
WASCO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SESSION 

June 6, 2012 

PRESENT: Rod Runyon , Chair of County Commission 
Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 
Scott Hege, County Commissioner 
Tyler Stone, Administrative Officer 
Kathy White, Executive Assistant 

At 9 a.m. Chair Runyon called to order the Regular Session of the Board of 
Commissioners. 

Chair Runyon asked if there were any corrections or additions to today's Agenda. 

Commissioner Hege brought a letter in support of Mosier in their application for 
an ODOT grant to construct a bike way station . He asked that the letter be added 
to the consent agenda. 

Commissioner Runyon related a recent experience in which he intended to 
respond to one person in an email but inadvertently replied to all . He cautioned 
everyone to be careful when using the email system. 

Commissioner Runyon asked for public comment; there was none. 

Discussion List Item - OCCF Amendment and WCCCF Staffing 

Christa Rude, Administrator for the Wasco County Commission on Children and 
Families, presented information regarding the OCCF funding amendment for 
CASA and Healthy Start. CASA is reduced to one year of funding as they are 
being transitioned to the Volunteer Commission as their fiscal agent. Healthy 
Start is being increased to two years of funding; they were previously funded 
through the CCF for only the first year of the biennium. The amendment 
formalizes the county's agreement with the state. 

{{{Commissioner Holliday moved to approve Amendment #2 to Oregon 
Commission on Children and Families 2011 -2013 County Intergovernmental 
Agreement #WA 1113 Commissioner Hege seconded the motion which 
passed unanimously.}}} 
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Ms. Rude then presented information regarding her recommendation for 
restructure in response to the transfer of their Special Projects Coordinator and 
the uw;oming maternity leave of their Office Specialist II. Given the context that 
the WCCCF is slated to be unfunded at the end of the 2013 fiscal year, Ms. Rude 
feels it would be best to leave the Special Projects Coordinator position vacant, 
transferring some of those responsibilities to herself and her Office Specialist II. 
To fill the remaining gaps, she recommends the creation of a temporary, part
time Office Specialist I position that would provide general office su'pport for the 
next 10-11 months. Furthermore, she explained that she has a WCCCF 
volunteer who has been working in the office consistently for the past 2 % years 
and already understands the office processes and procedures. Hiring the 
volunteer to fill the temporary position will profoundly reduce the amount of time 
needed for training which is a big advantage considering the short-term nature of 
the position. Therefore, Ms. Rude is seeking an exemption to the hiring process 
that would allow her to hire the volunteer without posting the position internally. 

Although, this position would represent an operating cost reduction, she would 
like to retain the excess funding to allow her to contract out any special projects 
for which she does not have the skills internally such as special events and 
minute taking. 

Some discussion followed with Monica Morris, Finance Manager, and Tyler 
Stone, County Administrator, expressing support for Ms. Rude's 
recommendation. Ms. Rude is asking for permission to proceed. 

Chair Runyon inquired as to whether this needed a motion from the Board. Mr. 
Stone said they just needed to be aware of the action being taken. 

Discussion List Item - Surplus Animal Control Vehicle 

Deputy Sheriff Lane Magill explained that in the transition of animal control 
responsibilities from the County to the City of The Dalles, the City has expressed 
an interest in obtaining the County's animal control vehicle. Agreements have 
already been reached for the transfer of the vehicle. Deputy Sheriff Magill is 
requesting that the vehicle be surplused so that the transfer of title can be 
completed . 

Chair Runyon believed that the Board had already discussed this possibility at a 
previous session. Commissioner Holliday confirmed that. 
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{{{Commissioner Hege moved that the Board make the 2007 Ford Ranger a 
surplus vehicle (Order #12-027). Commissioner Holliday seconded the 
motion which passed unanimously.}}} 

Discussion List Item - Community Corrections Plan 

Robert Martin, Director of Community Corrections, presented the 2012-2013 
Community Corrections Plan which includes the State budgeted amount of one 
year of 1145 funding. The Board previously approved the intergovernmental 
agreement that allows this to move forward. Expenditures are outlined in the 
budget; funding is issued in July. There is a less than $10 change from last year. 

Chair Runyon asked if there were any questions. Commissioner Holliday 
commented that she was surprised that the LPSCC committee review was 
eliminated. Mr. Martin explained that since this was an annual renewal with 
basically the same funding, rather than the traditional biennial process, there 
didn't seem to be a reason to have the plan re-reviewed. 

{{{Commissioner Hege moved to approve Resolution 12-008 Adopting the 
Community Corrections Plan. Commissioner Holliday seconded the motion 
which passed unanimously.}}} 

Consent Agenda- April 4 & May gth Regular Session Minutes, BPA 
Financials, Letter of Support for Mosier Grant Application. 

Commissioner Holliday motioned to approve the consent agenda with the 
addition of the Letter of Support for the Mosier Grant Application. Chair Runyon 
seconded the motion. Chair Runyon called for discussion or comment from the 
Board. 

Commissioner Hege offered a correction to the April 4, 2012, minutes. The 
acronym- AFSEC should be EFSC (Energy Facilities Siting Council). Chair 
Runyon pointed out a correction on page 3 of the April 41

h minutes- item #1 
identifies someone by the first name of Rodger; that should read Rodger Nichols, 
Columbia Gorge Commissioner. 

With those corrections, Chair Runyon called for a vote on the motion. 

{{{The Board unanimously approved the Consent Agenda.}}} 

The Board recessed at 9:23a.m. 
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Chair Runyon called the meeting back in session at 9:30a.m. 

I Fermin Sanchez Dog Ordinance Hearing. 

Sally Carpenter, Deputy District Attorney from the Wasco County District 
Attorney's office, presented herself as the representative for Wasco County. She 
explained that she had seven witnesses and presented the Board with a witness 
list (attached). Deputy Courtney Floyd was expected to arrive. Araceli Galvan 
would not be called; all other witnesses were present. 

Chair Runyon asked Deputy DA Carpenter for an overview. She first wanted to 
inquire as to the presence of the dog owner, Fermin Sanchez. Both Chair 
Runyon and Deputy DA Carpenter asked for Mr. Sanchez to make his presence 
known. There was no reply from anyone in the room. 

Deputy DA Carpenter stated that the County was ready to proceed. She directed 
the Board's attention to the District Attorney's memorandum, included in the 
Board Packet, which outlines the summary of the case and the applicable law. 

Deputy DA Carpenter: "This is basically a case of Mr. Sanchez' dog killing, at the 
time, two sheep. It turns out, a couple of days later another sheep passed away 
as a result of injuries incurred from this dog. All the sheep are owned by a 
gentleman named of Guadalupe Flores. And we are ready to call witnesses." 

Chair Runyon: "At this point we will ca ll to the stand Martin Galvan. " 

Deputy DA Carpenter: "And we also have an interpreter, Sandra Silva , from the 
Youth Services Department. Before we start I would like to ask Ms. Silva if she 
and Mr. Galvan understand each other in the Spanish language." 

Ms. Silva translated to Mr. Galvan and responded that they were able to 
understand one another. 

Deputy DA Carpenter: "Would the Chair please swear in Mr. Galvan?" 

Chair Runyon: "Martin Galvan, under penalty of perjury, do you solemnly swear 
or affirm that the evidence you shall give in this matter shall be the truth, the 
whole truth and nothing but the truth? Signify by saying, I do." 

Mr. Galvan: I understand everything. (as translated by Ms.Silva throughout his 
testimony) 

Ms. Carpenter: "Does he agree to tell the truth?" 
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Mr. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Go ahead and have a seat, sir. Sir, would you please tell us you r 
full name and spell your last name for us." 

Mr. Galvan: "Martin Galvan." 

Ms. Carpenter: "How do I spell your last name, sir?" 

Mr. Galvan: "G-A-L-V-A-N." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Mr. Galvan, where do you live?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Rowena." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Do you maintain livestock at your property?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Yes, I am the caretaker. They belong to the owner of the property." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What kind of livestock do you keep? 

Mr. Galvan: "Cows, sheep, chicken, horses." 

Chair Runyon: "Can I ask you to please speak up?" 

Ms. Silva: "Okay." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Back in April, did you have a problem with any of your 
livestock?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Yes, the ones the dog bit." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Can you please tell us what you saw and what you heard that 
day?" 

Mr. Galvan: "When we woke up, my wife heard the sheep were running . So I 
went outside and I saw when the dog was biting one of the sheep." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What did the dog look like?" 
Mr. Galvan: "It's black. There was a light post right there and I could see the 
dog." 

Ms. Carpenter: "About what time of day was this?" 
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Mr. Galvan: "It was early in the morning. I can't remember the time. It was either 
2 or 3." 

Ms. Carpenter: "How large was the dog?" 

Mr. Galvan: "It was pretty large. About that height." (Mr. Galvan indicated height 
by raising his hand parallel to the floor at about table height.) 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did it have a long tail or short tail?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Long." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did it look like any breed of dog that you were familiar with?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Like a German shepherd." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did it injure or kill any animals that you were caring for?" 

Mr. Galvan: "It had killed one previously and it bit two." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What kind of animals did it kill and bite?" 

Mr. Galvan: "It killed a little sheep and it bit a big sheep and another little one." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Do you recall what kind of injuries and on what part of the body 
the sheep got?" 

Mr. Galvan: "I can't recall to the little sheep what he did, but to the big one, it bit 
off the ear and inside this part of the body." (indicating the mid-section) 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did you do anything to scare off the dog or chase off the dog?" 

Mr. Galvan: "I didn't want the dog to leave because I wanted the cops to see the 
dog but the cops didn't came." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did the police eventually arrive?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Not until 8 in the morning and the dog was gone by then." 

Ms. Carpenter: "So, at one point did you corral the dog on your property?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Yes, I went and closed the gate so the cops would come, but they 
didn't come." 
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Ms. Carpenter: "So, when the dog was on your property, did you take 
photographs of the dog?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Mr. Galvan, I am going to show you what has been marked as 
State's exhibits one, two, three and four. Can you tell us what is in these exhibits, 
please? Can you tell us what number one is, please?" 

Mr. Galvan: "This is the area of the grass where I had the dog corralled." 

Ms. Carpenter: "So this is the property you manage?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Does this property include this rainbow at the top?" 

Mr. Galvan: "No." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What is this at the top? Is this a computer image?" 

Mr. Galvan: "I think so, cuz it's not there." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And in State's exhibit 2, can you tell us what's in that?" 

Mr. Galvan: "That's the dog." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And did you take the photos in State's exhibits 1 and 2?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Yes. It was really dark; that's why you can see it very well. " 

Ms. Carpenter: "And can you tell us what's in State's exhibits 3 and 4 ?" 

Mr. Galvan: "It's the same thing . It's the dog." 

Ms. Carpenter: "At this time we will offer State's exhibits 1,2,3, and 4. " 

Chair Runyon: "These are the same photos we received as part of our board 
packet of information." 
Ms. Carpenter: "I believe so. I believe in the board packet, though, they were 
scanned in as black and white." 

Chair Runyon: "Correct." 
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Ms. Carpenter: "Will exhibits 1,2,3, and 4 be received by the board?" 

Chair Runyon: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Thank you." 

Chair Runyon: "This is my first dog thing." 

Ms. Carpenter: "It's alright. Mr. Galvan, what color are the sheep that this dog 
was attacking?" 

Mr. Galvan: "The baby ones are brown and the large one is both colors- brown 
and white." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And before the police arrived, did the dog escape?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Yes, I had to go to work and he made a hole under the fence and 
left under the gate." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did you watch the dog make the hole?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "So, he made it by digging?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Do you manage these sheep for a gentleman by the name of 
Guadalupe Flores?" 

Mr. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Thank you, Mr. Galvan. I have no further questions for you ." 

Chair Runyon: "One question while he is still here. And I know you are not the 
owner; you are the caretaker. In the report, it said that the two smaller sheep that 
died were worth around $135.00 each?" 

Mr. Galvan: "I don't know. They are not mine. The price would be the owner. He 
is the one." 

Chair Runyon: "The third sheep that passed away- was it of a similar breed or a 
larger sheep? There was an indication there was a larger animal in the pen." 
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Mr. Galvan: "I don't know. You guys would have to ask the owner." 

Chair Runyon: "Okay." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What breed are these sheep?" 

Mr. Galvan: "I don't know. You better ask him." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. Will do. Any further questions from the Board?" 

Chair Runyon: "That's all I had." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Thank you, sir. We appreciate it. " 

Chair Runyon: "At this time, we'll call Maria Galvan to the stand. Does Maria 
need an interpreter?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Chair Runyon: "Maria under penalty of perjury, do you solemnly swear or affirm 
that the evider)ce you shall give in this matter shall be the truth, the whole truth 
and nothing but the truth? Signify by saying , I do." 

Ms. Galvan: "I do." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Again, Ms. Galvan is being assisted today by Spanish language 
interpreter, Sandra Silva, from the Youth Department- Youth Services 
Department. Ms. Silva can you and Ms. Galvan understand each other in the 
Spanish language?" 

Ms. Galvan to Ms. Si lva: "I do understand you." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Would you please tell us your full name?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Maria Galvan." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And how do I spell your last name?" 

Ms. Galvan: "It's Galvan, I can't spell it but I can write it to you." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. That's fine that your last name is Galvan. Are you married 
to Martin Galvan?" 
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Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And do you live with him in Rowena?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Do you manage livestock together?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did anything happen with your livestock back in April?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Can you please tell us what happened?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Early in the morning, I heard lots of noises outside. I heard the little 
sheep screaming and the chickens moving around so I went out. I told my 
husband something was going on outside, so we both went outside. He got out 
first and he was the one that saw the dog when he was there with the sheep. 
When he screamed for me, we both ran . That is when we saw the dog run and 
we went into the pasture to see what was going on." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What did this dog look like?" 

Ms. Galvan: "When I went outside the dog was running , but my husband went 
out first so he is the one that saw the dog better than me. And then when we 
went inside where the little pasture is, we saw the dog in there." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What color was the dog?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Black." 

Ms. Carpenter: "How large would you say the dog was?" 

Ms. Galvan: "It was very tall ." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did it have a long or short tail?" 
Ms. Galvan: "Large." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Before that day in April , had you ever seen that dog?" 
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Ms. Galvan: "Yes, about two times, prior to that incident, we saw him kind of 
roaming around the property, but not inside." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Does that dog belong to anybody on your property?" 

Ms. Galvan: "No." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Do you know the person who owns that dog?" 

Ms. Galvan: "No." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What kind of sheep are on your property?" 

Ms. Galvan: "I don't know what kind of sheep; I don't know the specific breed 
they are." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did you see whether this dog injured or killed any animals on 
your property." 

Ms. Galvan: "I didn't see when the dog killed the sheep. It was my husband that 
saw when the dog was attacking the sheep." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did you see any injuries to any of your sheep after this?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What kind of injuries?" 

Ms. Galvan: "One of the little, she was bitten on the top. And the other one, I 
couldn't see at that time in the morning where it was injured and it didn't die until 
the next morning. And the large one, the big sheep didn't die until days later." 

Ms. Carpenter: "So, in total, three sheep died?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And they died at different times after this incident?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Before the dog got onto your property, were those sheep okay? 
Were they injured or were they dead?" 

Ms. Galvan: "No, they were fine." 
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Ms. Carpenter: "So it was after this dog got onto to your property that these 
sheep were injured and eventually died?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And you manage these sheep for somebody named Guadalupe 
Flores?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What color are the sheep that died?" 

Ms. Galvan: 'They were black and white and the larger one is mostly white but 
also has brown spots." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did you try to corral this dog?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And when you did that, did you and your husband take 
photographs of this dog?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Pid the dog eventually escape?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes, after we put in him the gate then he took off." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did you watch him escape?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "How did it escape?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Underneath the wire, he dig." 

Ms. Carpenter: "He dug a hole?" 

Ms. Galvan: "Yes." 
Ms. Carpenter: "Have you seen that dog since this incident?" 

Ms. Galvan: "No." 
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Ms. Carpenter: "Ms. Galvan, I have no further questions for you. I don't know if 
the Commissioners have questions for you." 

Chair Runyon: "Sherry do you have anything? Scott? (both indicated no) You are 
excused." 

Ms. Carpenter: "We appreciate it Ms. Galvan. Thank you ." 

Chair Runyon: "The next person on your list, Araceli Galvan is not here today?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "She is here, but I have excused her as a witness for me, Mr. 
Chair, but we do wish to call Guadalupe Flores." 

Chair Runyon: "Call Guadalupe Flores to the stand, please. If you will stand there 
and I will read the oath here. Do you need an interpreter, sir?" 

Mr. Flores: "I think I'll be fine. I might be fine. I understand everything you say. I 
hope you understand what I'm gonna' say." 

Chair Runyon: "Should we have the interpreter stand by just in case?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "That would be fine. Thank you ." 

Chair Runyon: "Under penalty of perjury, do you solemnly swear or affirm that the 
evidence you shall give in this matter shall be the truth, the whole truth and 
nothing but the truth?" 

Mr. Flores: "I do." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Go ahead and have a seat, sir. Sir, what is your name?" 

Mr. Flores: "Guadalupe Flores" 

Ms. Carpenter: "How to you spell your last name?" 

Mr. Flores: "F-L-0-R-E-S" 

Ms. Carpenter: "And are you able to understand the proceedings today?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah, I am. Mostly." 
Ms. Carpenter: "Would you like to have . . . Is your primary language in 
Spanish?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah, it is." 
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Ms. Carpenter: "Would you prefer to have an interpreter today?" 

Mr. Flores: "Either way works. I'll be fine." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. If you don't understand me at any point, just ask." 

Mr. Flores: "Thank you." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Sure. Mr. Flores, do you own some sheep?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yes, I do." 

Ms,. Carpenter: "Where are those sheep kept?" 

Mr. Flores: "Rowena. I've got a little property over there. They are over there." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Is that a property on Hwy. 30?" 

Mr. Flores: "Right. Outside Hwy. 30." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What kind of sheep are they?" 

Mr. Flores: "They are called Barbados Sheep. They're kind of between sheep 
and goats. They're sheep; they look at little bit like goats." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What color are they?" 

Mr. Flores: "A little brown with spots or you know, cinnamon colored looking. 
Most of them got spots." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What is the primary· purpose that you raise them for?" 

Mr. Flores: "Well, they're meat animals but mine are pets more like and we sell 
them to people for pets. When they're little a lot of people like them 'cause 
they're pretty, pretty colored and the shape of them - they've got long tails, too. 
So people buy them for pets, most of them. That's how we sell them - when 
they're little, really small, for pets. 

Ms. Carpenter: "And are these sheep managed by the Galvan family?" 
Mr. Flores: "Yes, they are." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And you know the Galvan family?" 
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Mr. Flores: "Yeah, I know them. Yeah." 

Ms. Carpenter: "In April of this year did anything happen to your sheep?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah, I got call early in the morning from Martin. Not sure, but it was 
early in the morning- 4, 5 or something like that. He called me and said that dog, 
big dog, got into the property and was killing the sheep. And I said 'Well , can you 
do something; can you call the police.' And he said , 'I already did.' I said , 'Try to 
lock him in or something while they arrive." He goes, 'I already did.' He went over 
and closed the gate or something. Somehow he managed to keep it inside. I 
went to bed or something for a little bit and then I call him again and he goes, 
'The police are not here yet and the dog is running around the fence.' He 
managed to pull the sheep out from that corral to another property. But the dog 
was trying to get out, he says. And then he went to work. And the next time I 
called him he was like, 'The dog escaped and they are not there yet.' 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did any of your sheep end up dying as a result of this incident?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah, my big ram, my breeding ram and two babies, two young 
ones. " 

Ms. Carpen.ter: "Before the dog, before this incident with the dog in April were 
your sheep okay?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah. Yeah, they were fine." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Were any of them injured or dead?" 

Mr. Flores: "No, no." 

Ms. Carpenter: "So it was after this incident with the dog that sheep died?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah, we take good care of them." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What is the value, the monetary value of each of the sheep that 
have died as a result of this?" 

Mr. Flores: "The little ones, we sell them from anywhere from $135 to $150 for 
the little ones. But the big one, I got a lot of money into it because that is my 
breeding animal and they are worth $400 or something like that, $350 to $400." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And it was a male ram?" 
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Mr. Flores: "Yeah, right. That was my breeding animal. Yeah. But my big loss is I 
haven't bred my animals since then because I lost my breeding animal and I 
don't have money to another one. They are expensive, like I said, so all my other 
ewes, my other animals have not bred yet and I hope I get another one soon 
before- I already lost this season, you know. There are ten to twelve animals 
that should be bred by now and they are not. It's a problem." 

Ms. Carpenter: "When a male breeds with a female sheep, how many babies do 
they usually have?" 

Mr. Flores: "Two, most of them, but some of them give two, I mean three, excuse 
me. Very rarely, when they are young, only one. Most of them average two, 
some of them three. I've got some that give birth to three. Most of them it's two." 

Ms. Carpenter: "So as the result of this then you have lost the ability to breed this 
male with your females?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah, until I get another one." 

Ms. Carpenter: "So you would estimate that the male was valued at around 
$400.00?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. And each of the babies that was killed is around 
$135.00?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah, something like that." 

Ms. Carpenter: "How soon after this .incident with the dog did each of those 
sheep die?" 

Mr. Flores: "When I arrived, I don't remember what time I came, the two little 
ones were already dead, so I just buried them. But the other one, the big one, he 
stayed alive, well kinda alive. He got worse and worse. I don't know, three, four 
days, two. I don't know, probably three days or something like that. Three, four 
days. I'm not sure. I just didn't want to pay much attention to it because my 
grandkids were in love with him and they want to see him all the time. When we 
go over there they call him the papa sheep. So they want to pet him and he was 
sick, you know with fever, so I don't want to have much to do with it. I kind of stay 
away from it until we buried him." 
Ms. Carpenter: "Before that male adult sheep died, what kind of injuries did he 
have?" 
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Mr. Flores: "Martin tell me he was barely walking. He couldn't walk. He had one 
leg staying all the way in the air, so we looked at him and he got a bit underneath 
real bad. He got swollen big time there and he got a little bit on the ears and the 
nose. His nose got swollen , too, big time. Yeah." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Mr. Flores, I don't have any further questions for you . I don't 
know if the Commissioners would like to ask you some questions." 

Chair Runyon: "Were there any veterinarian bills involved with the one that was . 
" 

Mr. Flores: "No, I came to the vet after I see him real sick when I came to the vet 
because I know it's very expensive and we don't have money to, you know. So 
we came to the vet late, I think on the day that he died. When I came to the vet 
and I asked him he goes, 'If he is fever already and dying, he isn't gonna make it. 
It will cost you a lot if I go over there,' he says." 

Chair Runyon : "So there were no vet bills?" 

Mr. Flores: "No, no, no." 

Chair Runyon : "Sherry? Scott?" 

Commissioner Hege: "Question. Do you have any idea how the dog might have 
gotten into the pen? I mean somehow it was secured." 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah. That's a good question because I don't really know. I think 
Martin tell me he kind of pushed between the gate we have or somewhere, but I 
am not sure how. He managed to kind of push things around and get in or 
something, but we 've got pretty secure around. I don't know how he went in. 
Yeah ." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And the property where the Galvans live, that's actually your 
property that you own, correct?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah. Yes it is." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And have you participated in building and maintaining those 
fences there?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah. Oh, yeah, yeah. Martin take good care of my property. If he 
needs something, he just call me and say, 'We need posts, we need wire.' He's 
always keeping it really, really, really good over there. So, yes we do." 
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Ms. Carpenter: "Any further questions?" 

Chair Runyon: "None from us. You're excused." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Thank you, Mr. Flores. That's all we have. Appreciate it." 

Chair Runyon: "And you said Deputy Floyd ... " 

Ms. Carpenter: "He is present." 

Chair Runyon: "He arrived ." 

Ms. Carpenter: "He is here, yes." 

Chair Runyon: "Please take the stand, Deputy Floyd. Under penalty of perjury, do 
you solemnly swear or affirm that the evidence you shall give in this matter shall 
be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?" 

Deputy Floyd: "I swear." 

Chair Runyon: "State your name for the record." 

Deputy Floyd: "My name is Courtney Floyd. F-L-0-Y-D." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Where are you employed?" 

Deputy Floyd: "I 'm employed with Wasco County Sheriff's Office. " 

Ms. Carpenter: "What's your position there?" 

Deputy Floyd: "I am a deputy." 

Ms. Carpenter: "How long have you been a deputy there?" 

Deputy Floyd: "I have been a deputy approximately eleven years." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Do your job duties include enforcing Oregon laws?" 

Deputy Floyd: "Correct." 

Ms. Carpenter: "On April181
h, 2012, were you called to the Galvan residence on 

Hwy. 30?" 

Deputy Floyd: "Yes, I was." 
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Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. And what was the exact address of that location?" 

Deputy Floyd: "8, excuse me, 5835 Highway 30 West. " 

Ms. Carpenter: "Thank you. Is that location in Wasco County, Oregon?" 

Deputy Floyd: "Yes, it is." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And what happened when you arrived there?" 

Deputy Floyd: "I arrived and met with Martin and Maria. Correction, I'm sorry - I 
met with Maria and her daughter, if I say this right Arcelia. " 

Ms. Carpenter: "Is that Araceli?" 

Deputy Floyd: "Araceli. Thank you. And quickly realized I could not speak with 
the one I needed to, Maria. So, how do you say that again? Aracelia?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "Araceli?" 

Deputy Floyd: "Araceli. She spoke fluent English and interpreted for me and that 
is how I was able to do my investigation." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Tell us about your investigation." 

Deputy Floyd: "I was advised that at approximately 4:00a.m. that morning they 
heard some commotion out in the pens with the goats and chickens and Martin 
and Maria went outside. And that is where they noticed a dog running around in 
the pen within the confines with the sheep- stirring them up. They were able to 
quarantine the dog to one side and get the sheep into an adjoining pen through a 
gate and get them to a safe location. I was advised that they quickly realized that 
there was one small sheep that was already dead within the original pen where 
the dog was at. They attempted to keep the dog quarantined until they took 
photos of it. And then subsequently the dog dug its way out and got out before I 
was there. And to help realize - I didn't get there until about 1 0:25ish. That was 
due to 4:00a.m. to 8:00a.m. there are no deputies on duty. And then, I believe 
at that time I was the only one and due to priority calls that I had to deal with , 
knowing that this wasn't an emergency at the time, I had to deal with priority calls 
before arriving at Galvan's at 1 0:30." 
Ms. Carpenter: "Did you see any injured animals when you arrived at that 
location?" 
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Deputy Floyd: "I was shown the deceased small sheep in the pen or the confines 
where the dog or where the attack occurred. And then I was shown another small 
one in an adjoining pen where they said another small one had, was alive at the 
time, had died since the attack. And then the other larger ram that, at the time, I 
wasn 't advised that it had a bit underneath. I did notice it walking slow or kind of 
limping. I just notice that and they were showing me that the ear was shredded 
and I could see the blood, the dried blood on it." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Deputy Floyd, I'm going to show you some exhibits, exhibits 
5,6,7,8,9,10, 11,12,13,14,15,16, and 20. Can you please explain these exhibits 
for us?" 

Deputy Floyd: "Five through sixteen are photos that I took on scene and they 
depict the scene - I would call it a farm and where the attack occurred and the 
deceased sheep and the ram that was still alive at that time. Oh, and then exhibit 
20 is at where I was shown the confined pen where the dog, where the attack 
occurred and the dog had been contained and then escaped before my arrival. 
They showed me where the dog had dug a hole and got out of the fence. And so 
I went to the hole to take photos and I could see I could see more dog prints as 
opposed to sheep hoof prints and scratch marks. And then the fence area where 
he had dug out, So the hole was freshly dug, I could tell. And there were no 
sheep in the pen. And the dog had left and there were tufts of hair in the hole 
remaining; so, indicating to me that they were left by the dog because there were 
no sheep and the dog had just dug the hole. So I seized those hair fibers and put 
them into evidence at that time." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And is that exhibit 20?" 

Deputy Floyd: "That is. That's exhibit 20." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And are exhibits 15 and 16 photographs of that hole?" 

Deputy Floyd: "Yes, it is." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. 15 and 16 show where the hair was seized from?" 

Deputy Floyd: "Correct." 

Ms. Carpenter: "At this time we wish to offer exhibits 5 through 16 as well as 
exhibit 20." 

Chair Runyon : "Let the record show we are receiving the evidence - exhibits 5 
through 16 and exhibit 20." 



WASCO COUNTY COURT 
REGULAR SESSION 
APRIL 6, 2011 
PAGE 21 

Ms. Carpenter: "During the course of your investigation, Deputy Floyd, did you 
contact the owner of the sheep?" 

Deputy Floyd: "Yes, I did." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay, and what is that owner's name." 

Deputy Floyd : "Guadalupe Flores." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And what did Mr. Flores tell you about the sheep?" 

Deputy Floyd: "He described them as a hybrid breed of sheep/goat and that they 
were called Barbados and bred for, as he was saying, for companion or 
consumption." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And did he give you an estimated value of each of the sheep that 
had died?" 

Deputy Floyd: "He described the smaller, the two smaller sheep, at 
approximately $135.00 each and the larger one $350.00 to $400.00 for 
replacement value." 

Ms. Carpenter: "I meant to ask you , the exhibits 5 through 16, in the 
photographs. Did you actually take those photographs?" 

Deputy Floyd: "Yes, I did." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Deputy I have no further questions at this time. I don't know if the 
Board has questions for you." 

Commissioner Hege: "I have one quick question about one of the photographs. It 
seems like at one point we were talking· about a freshly dug hole under a fence, 
but the photograph- actually there was a board, it looks like the fence was 
actually bent up. It didn't look like there was any freshly dug hole under the 
fence. It looked like it was just kind of a place where he slipped under." 

Deputy Floyd: "Unless the depth perception of the photo is deceiving. There was, 
it appeared from the yard over that they had placed boards down at the corner 
whether to retain their yard or what because it was higher than the pen location, 
that the fence kinda went down to the ground and up a little bit. I don't know if it 
was an area that an animal had escaped previously and then been kind of 
patched back up. But at the location there are kinda the dig marks and some 
scratch marks and the dirt there because the lack of the sheep prints and what 
have you , I could tell the dirt had been pushed out and was starting to dry. If I 
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recall , when I moved the dirt it was then moist again. And you know, to me, 
growing up on a farm too, it looked like to me that it had been freshly dug. And it 
was kind of concaved and the hair fibers were left after the hole was dug. 
And the dog had just enough room to slide out and get into the next yard." 

Commissioner Hege: "Was there any indication as to how the dog had gotten into 
the pen from your observation?" 

Deputy Floyd: "Not that I was aware of unless it jumped in and was afraid to jump 
out or whatever." 

Commissioner Hege: "How high was the fence? Is it possible the dog could jump 
in?" 

Deputy Floyd: "You mind if I refresh my memory on looking at the photos?" 

Commissioner Hege: "I was just curious. Did it seem like it was the height that 
maybe a dog could jump in?" 

Deputy Floyd: "From what I recall, yes. It wasn't like a huge chain link fence, 
more like just a" 

Ms. Carpenter: "Do you want to look at the exhibits?" 

Deputy Floyd: "Yes, if I could. The reason why is cuz I know some of the fences 
are quite high but also, as you can see, where on exhibit 6 the fence is slumped, 
people have been climbing over it where I took extra photos of the goats and 
other additional fences. I didn't get a picture of the entire pen area, which I 
should have. For some reason I didn't." 

Commissioner Hege: "So it is possible the dog could have maybe jumped over. " 

Deputy Floyd: "From what I'm seeing , yes. Especially that one photo, it would be 
possible even for a person to push the fence down and step over. To me the 
containment was more for just keeping the sheep in at least in some areas." 

Chair Runyon: "Anything further? Thank you." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Would you stick around? It is possible I will have more questions 
for you." 

Deputy Floyd: "Yeah." 
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Chair Runyon: "We will call Deputy Gavin Marble. Please state your name and 
where you work for the record ." 

Deputy Marvel: "Gavin Marble. I work for the Wasco County Sheriff's Office." 

Chair Runyon: "Please say the appropriate answer following this paragraph: 
Under penalty of perjury, do you solemnly swear or affirm that the evidence you 
shall give in this matter shall be the truth , the whole truth and nothing but the 
truth?" 

Deputy Marble: "I do." 

Chair Runyon: "Thank you, sir." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Where are you employed?" 

Deputy Marble: "Wasco County Sheriff's Office." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And what's your position there?" 

Deputy Marble: "Deputy Sheriff." 

Ms. Carpenter: "How long have you been a Deputy Sheriff there?" 

Deputy Marble: "Since January." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Do your job duties include enforcing Oregon laws?" 

Deputy Marble: "They do." 

Ms. Carpenter: "On April 21 51 of 2012, were you asked to assist in an 
investigation involving a dog that had killed some livestock?" 

Deputy Marble: "I was. I actually overheard the radio dispatch. Sgt. Birchfield 
went to take a call that sounded extremely similar to one that I'd heard a couple 
days before that Courtney Floyd took. And so I was farther south and by the time 
I got up north to The Dalles, Sgt. Birchfield had already made contact, done an 
investigation and then was returning into town. So we met to discuss briefly what 
he had investigated and how that- my goal was to determine whether the two 
were linked together. The description of the dog in both cases was almost 
identical. It was a large black dog, possibly a shepherd mix, far larger than a 
normal size dog. The locations were very close as far as the addresses on Hwy. 
30 in Rowena. And the animals that were injured or killed were very similar." 
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Ms. Carpenter: "What did you in the course of your investigation that day?" 

Deputy Marble: "I knew that Deputy Floyd had gathered photos of original, of the 
dog in the original case that the victims had taken. So I gathered those photos, 
printed those out. Sgt. Birchfield informed me that he had located a dog matching 
that description at 5882 Hwy. 30 West and had talked to the owner who he 
identified as Fermin C. Sanchez. I gathered those photographs and then went to 
that address to speak to Mr. Sanchez regarding the dog." 

Ms. Carpenter: "May I see exhibits 1 through 4, please? Deputy Marble, when 
you went to speak with Mr. Sanchez did you show him the photos in exhibits 
1 ,2,3, and 4?" 

Deputy Marble: "Yes, these are the photos that I showed Mr. Sanchez." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And did you say anything to Mr. Sanchez when you showed him 
those photos?" 

Deputy Marble: "I told Mr. Sanchez that these were photos that were taken of a 
dog inside a fenced area that had killed or injured some sheep. And his response 
was something to the effect of, 'Well, that sure looks like Moccasin.' I asked him 
who Moccasin was. He goes, 'Well , that's my dog.' I asked him, 'Is Moccasin 
here, can I look at Moccasin?' He said, 'Yeah, he's in the back yard.' We 
proceeded into the back yard . It was fully fenced but there were, I saw when 
entering the gate about three holes that were large enough for me to crawl 
through on hands and knees in the fence. Walked around the back. Moccasin, 
the dog that matched these photos, was laying on his back porch. There was 
also another German shepherd in the back yard. It did not match the description. 
It was a full German shepherd, very overweight. I'm not sure it could have 
jumped a curb. So I photographed this dog, took photographs of this dog laying 
on the back porch of Mr. Sanchez's residence." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Deputy Marble, let me show you exhibits 17, 18, and 19. Can 
you tell us what those are?" 

Deputy Marble: "These are the photographs I took of Moccasin laying by his food 
dish at Mr. Sanchez's residence in the backyard ." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Is it a true and accurate representation of that dog?" 

Deputy Marble: "Yes, ma'm." 
Ms. Carpenter: "At this time we offer State's exhibit 17, 18 and 19. Will those be 
received Mr. Chair?" 
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Chair Runyon: "I'm sorry, what did you say?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "Will those be received?" 

Chair Runyon: "Yes. Receiving exhibits 17, 18 and 19 for the record." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did you have any further conversation with Fermin Sanchez?" 

Deputy Marble: "I did , I discussed with him, I told him that Moccasin appeared to 
be the dog in the photos. He agreed. He concurred. Moccasin was a large dog. If 
he was standing here, he could probably set his chin on this table standing on all 
fours. He's a very large dog. I shared with Mr. Sanchez that after the 
investigation if it was determined that his dog, Moccasin, had injured these sheep 
that he would be financially responsible for that. He agreed and stated quote, 
'Oh, I will make it right, whatever I need to do.' He also mentioned to me at that 
time that a cougar had been seen in the area and that Moccasin might have been 
responding to a cougar kill in the yard and just eating off of a cougar kill . I told 
him that could be a possibility. First time I had heard of that, not wanting to 
exclude any options at that time. I thanked him for his time, offered him a 
business card to be in contact with us and left the scene, left his home.'' 

Ms. Carpenter: "So you mentioned that on April 21st Sgt. Birchfield had had a 
similar call regarding a livestock kill in the area?" 

Deputy Marble: "Yes, ma'm.'' 

Ms. Carpenter: "Are you at all familiar with the nature of that call?" 

Deputy Marble: "I did read Sgt. Birchfield's report. I was not on scene during that 
investigation.'' 

Ms. Carpenter: "Can you give us a summary of Sgt. Birchfield's report on that?" 

Deputy Marble: "I can attempt to. The ... On that day a large black dog, a 
shepherd mix, got into another pen and I believe killed a goat or a sheep, I 
believe it was a goat, and two roosters, two chickens. The properties were close, 
again as I mentioned before. I am not sure of the address of the second property. 
But to me, it just popped in my head that this was just way to similar at a very 
close location to not be related and that is why I went and spoke to Sgt. Birchfield 
about that. 

Ms. Carpenter: "So when you say in a close location, the incident of the goat and 
chickens, the incident of the sheep the Galvan's were managing and Fermin 
Sanchez's residence -how close were those three locations?" 
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Deputy Marble: "Estimating, I would estimate within a quarter of a mile of each 
other." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Are they all located within the Rowena area of Hwy. 30 .West?" 

Deputy Marble: "They're all on the same road, on Hwy. 30 West. " 

Ms. Carpenter: "And they're all in Wasco County?" 

Deputy Marble: "Yes, ma'm." 

Ms. Carpenter: "I have no further questions for you Deputy. It is possible the 
Commissioners do." 

Chair Runyon: "Are there any further questions?" 

Commissioner Holliday: "Well, I have a question but (inaudible) At some point 
Moccasin was sent to Estacada. Was there, or did you ask or someone ask for 
the dog to be brought back to Wasco County? 

Deputy Marble: "Yes. Deputy Ward and Sgt. Birchfield and myself responded to 
Fermin Sanchez's residence to take custody of the dog. We were advised by Mr. 
Sanchez that the dog was in Estacada. He had taken it to Estacada. At that time 
he really didn't give us a reason that he had taken the dog to Estacada. I said , I 
can 't remember who was speaking at the time, but Mr. Sanchez was told either 
by myself, Sgt. Birchfield or Deputy Ward that the dog needed to be returned and 
that it would be taken into custody by the Wasco County Sheriff's Office, at least 
for a minimum of 10 days for a quarantine at that time. He told us he would have 
it back by Friday. I believe Deputy Ward wrote a supplemental that was included 
in that he would have it back by that Friday. He did bring the dog back and it was 
housed at the Humane Society, under the custody of the Wasco County Sheriff's 
Office." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And Deputy, the Humane Society, is that also known as the 
Wasco County Animal Shelter?" 

Deputy Marble: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Also as Home at Last Animal Shelter or Humane Society?" 

Deputy Marble: "Yes, ma'm. There is about seven names I think. " 
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Ms. Carpenter: "Gotcha. And when the dog was lodged there was Mr. Sanchez 
cited for owning a dog that harmed or chased livestock?" 

Deputy Marble: "Deputy Ward did issue Mr. Sanchez a citation for that violation, 
yes, or crime." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And the dog was lodged that day?" 

Deputy Marble: "Yes, on that Friday. I did have contact with the animal shelter 
regarding that because there was some confusion as to why the dog was there. I 
spoke with an employee at the animal shelter regarding why it was there and that 
it was in the custody of the Wasco County Sheriff's Office." 

Ms. Carpenter: "I have no further questions, does the Commission?" 

Chair Runyon: "You said 10 days, where is the dog now?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "We have further testimony on that from Sgt. Doug Kramer." 

Chair Runyon: "Okay. Thank you ." 

Commissioner Hege: "So in the photographs you had, looks like you took, it looks 
like the dog was tied up. Is that correct?" 

Deputy Marble: "Yes, at that time he was tied up." 

Commissioner Hege: "Was there any discussion about that? Was the dog always 
tied up?" 

Deputy Marble: "It was mentioned very briefly that, I believe it was by Mr. 
Sanchez's wife or girlfriend, she just kind of through a comment in there, 'That 
dumb dog's always gettin ' out,' something to that effect. Again I didn't include it 
in my report because at the time I didn't feel it was that substantial. I was just 
trying to link the two together, which that would have been a good piece now that 
I think about it. But, yeah, it was mentioned he was tied up because he had 
gotten out before." 

Commissioner Hege: "Okay. Thank you." 

Chair Runyon: "Anything else? Thank you ." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Next is Sgt. Douglas Kramer." 
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Chair Runyon: "Sgt. Douglas Kramer to the stand, please. Sgt. Kramer, under 
penalty of perjury, do you solemnly swear or affirm that the evidence you shall 
give in this matter shall be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?" 

Sgt. Kramer: "I do." 

Chair Runyon : "State your name for the record." 

Sgt. Kramer: "Douglas Kramer. K-R-A-M-E-R. With the City of The Dalles Police 
Department. " 

Ms. Carpenter:."Sgt. Kramer, do your job duties as Sergeant at the City of The 
Dalles Police Department include enforcing Oregon Laws?" 

Sgt. Kramer: "Yes, they do." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Were you on duty on June 1st of 201 2 as City of The Dalles 
Police?" 

Sgt. Kramer: "Yes, I was." 

Ms. Carpenter: "On that day did you receive a call to the Home at Last Wasco 
County Animal Shelter?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "On that day did you receive a call to the Home at Last Wasco 
County Animal Shelter?" 

Sgt. Kramer: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Is that located in Wasco County, Oregon?" 

Sgt. Kramer: "Yes, it is." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. What time did you receive that call?" 

Sgt. Kramer: "I received it around 1:10 p.m. on that Friday." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And what was the nature of that call?" 

Sgt. Kramer: "Steve Drynan, basically the administrator at Home at Last, called 
requesting an officer regarding the theft of a dog that had been ordered to remain 
at Home at Last. Upon hearing his information about it, I then went out there to 
meet with him and then review video that he had of Fermin Sanchez coming to 
visit this dog . The dog, obviously he had been informed it had been housed there 
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because of a bit towards another animal and was under quarantine through the 
County. Mr. Drynan showed me clips of Fermin meeting with the dog and 
explained that sometime during that meeting, which took place on the west side 
of the building , there is a fenced in, contained area that's locked, closed with 
padlocks. In that area, apparently, there's a key, a hide-a-key box that they keep 
out there because the door closes and locks everyone out that goes out to 
maintain this area. So, they keep a key on site so that they can then unlock the 
padlocks and get out of there if they need to. Apparently Mr. Sanchez had visited 
this area four times prior with the approval of Home at Last and had become 
aware of this hide-a-key. And At that point, he visited with the dog and when the 
employees were no longer looking decided to use the hide-a-key to open the 
padlock on one of the gates and leave with the dog. The video that I was shown 
at the time did not articulate which direction Mr. Sanchez had left in. It was just 
either west or north of the property as there are two gates, but one gate on the 
north side of that containment was left unlocked and a padlock was found by Mr. 
Drynan prior to my arrival, indicating that that would have been the gate that he 
obviously had used to leave this premise. With all that information I gathered that 
obviously there was probable cause for a theft case and began attempting to 
contact Mr. Sanchez at his residence. At around 3:45p.m. Officer Becknell and I 
left the City to go to Rowena and attempt to contact Mr. Sanchez, but he was not 
at his residence. His brother, Marcelino (sp) Sanchez stated that he hadn't seen 
him for three days and that the dog wasn't there either. I didn't believe his 
statements, however, we contacted the owner of the property that Mr. Sanchez 
lives at, Fermin Sanchez lives at, which is also where Marcelino lives and he said 
that he was in the process of evicting the Sanchez's and that he had seen 
Fermin there that morning with his truck, he described as a grey and blue Ford 
older pick-up. And , I believe he was no longer at the residence at this time. 
Officer Becknell and I asked him to call if he should return so then we could 
attempt to locate the dog and Mr. Sanchez, Fermin Sanchez, to arrest him for the 
crime of theft. At this time, we have not been able to locate Mr. Sanchez or the 
dog. We don't believe he is at his residence; however, I was informed today that 
his vehicle had returned in the last couple of days by neighbors. So, we can 
attempt to look into finding him there, but it's gonna take, obviously, someone 
calling to notify us he has returned as it is outside the City, to verify if he is there 
or not. The County could follow-up if they are available sometime, further." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Sgt. Kramer, I don't have any further questions. Does the 
Commission have any questions?" 

Chair Runyon: "Does anyone on the Commission have any further questions? 
Sherry?" 

Commissioner Holliday: "No." 
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Chair Runyon: "Scott? (Commissioner Hege indicated no.) Thank you . 

Ms. Carpenter: "Thank you ." 

Chair Runyon: "I believe that completes the list. Do you have any further 
witnesses that aren't listed here?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "I don't believe so. I know that another party's here. Mr. O'Dell is 
here. Mr. O'Dell's incident was references by Deputy Marble earlier. Mr. O'Dell , 
do you wish to speak about incident at your property?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. Is that okay with the Commission?" 

Chair Runyon : "Absolutely." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay, come on up Mr. O'Dell." 

Mr. O'Dell: "Good Morning." 

Chair Runyon: "I'm going to read this to you if you will raise your hand, please. 
Under penalty of perjury, do you solemnly swear or affirm that the evidence you 
shall give in this matter shall be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the 
truth?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "I do." 

Chair Runyon: "State your name and address for the record. " 

Mr. O'Dell: "Jason O'Dell, 5955 Hwy. 30 West, Rowena, Oregon. " 

Chair Runyon: "Be seated, sir." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Mr. O'Dell, back in April this year did anything happen at your 
property?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "Yeah , that Saturday morning I was . .. well I guess I should start 
Friday night. Midnight my fiance was outside with our dogs. Our dogs acted 
peculiar, so she brought the dogs in the house fearing for the dogs' safety. About 
4:30 in the morning, I was awakened by the dogs going nuts in the house 
barking and carrying on. I heard some noised outside. I got up, went and looked 
outside. The noises had stopped, I didn't see anything, so I went back to bed. 
About 8 o'clock that morning, my fiance's daughter got up and was leaving with 



WASCO COUNTY COURT 
REGULAR SESSION 
APRIL 6, 2011 
PAGE 31 

her boyfriend, saw a large German shepherd and another smaller dog in the 
field, laying next to our goats. As a teenager, she thought it was cute - they were 
friends and they were sleeping together, so she didn't think nothin' of it. We woke 
up a little bit later. Shelly had went outside to have a cigarette and noticed that 
the owners of the German shepherd and the small dog were tugging on their 
dogs, walking down right in front of our fenced in property. Thought that was kind 
of strange that they were being kind of abusive toward their dogs, or just 
disciplinary. toward their dogs. 'Bout a half an hour later we walked outside to go 
to our hot tub and I had made the comment, 'Wouldn't that be strange if 
something had got in here and got our animals?' Shelly proceeded to walk 
around the truck and spotted both our animals laying there on the ground just 
deceased." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. What kind of animals were deceased?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "They were miniature Nubian goats. They were just pets. We got 
them for the kids to take care of and so they were basically pets for the foster 
kids." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Did you ever see the large black dog?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "I didn't see it that morning. We had an incident about 2 weeks earlier. 
The dog was in our yard, very docile dog, friendly. When some company we had 
left that day, Shelly had looked on the dog tag and walked the dog down the 
street and delivered it back to its owner." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Who is the owner." 

Mr. O'Dell: "I believe this Sanchez. I didn't catch his name. I wasn't there at the 
time when she returned the dog." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Do you know if the dog belongs to a neighbor of yours?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "Yes, I do." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Do you, have you ever seen this dog go to that neighbor?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "Yes, I have." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. Do you know your neighbor's address where this dog 
lives?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "I believe it's 5882 Hwy. 30 West. They're kinda catty corner across 
from our property." 
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Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. Can you estimate how many yards away they live from 
you?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "I would say at the farthest point of our property, closest to theirs is 30. 
yards or less. " 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. And you live here in Wasco County, Oregon?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "That is correct." 

Ms. Carpenter: "So when you saw this dog, can you describe for us what this dog 
looked like?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "The dog is dark black with some grey on the tips of his hair from 
being old. It is a large German shepherd, long tail, real tall dog." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Do you know the people who own that dog." 

Mr. O'Dell: "I do not know them." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay, either by name or by sight?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "By sight, I've seen them when they've walked. They walk their walk 
their dogs, once in a while, by our house." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. Have you ever spoken with those folks?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "I have not." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Have you ever socialized with those owners?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "No." 

Ms. Carpenter: "I have no further questions for you, Mr. O'Dell. It's possible the 
Commissioners do." 

Chair Runyon : "You lost two animals as well." 

Mr. O'Dell: "Yes, well we lost three total. We lost two of the goats and one of the 
roosters. We thought we'd lost both roosters. When I was searching the property, 
found a trail of feathers and hair across our property and it led me to our 
neighbor's that we also run our animals on . While I was over there, I heard the 
other rooster starting to crow and so I called for him and he actually came back." 
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Chair Runyon : "But we have no direct connection to know the same dog was 
involved?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "When Deputy Birchfield was at our house doing the report, we made 
the comment that that dog was in our field , that our daughter saw it in the field . 
He went over and made contact with the Sanchez's. They agreed that the dog 
was in our field, that they had removed the dog from the field and that's about the 
same time that Shelly had saw them walking down the street with the dog." 

Chair Runyon: "Do you have a value for those goats?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "The female that we got, she was about $200-$250 and the male was 
right around $75. And then the roosterwas 30 bucks." 

Commissioner Hege: "I wonder if we could have the witness look at the 
photographs and see if he can positively identify that that is the dog." 

Mr. O'Dell: "I have seen the photos. We went down after we found the incident 
and Mr. Birchfield, Officer Birchfield let us know that there was an incident down 
the road. We called Guadalupe Flores, he was our old landlord, and asked him if 
he'd had an issue with animals. And so, he informed us that he had. We went 
down and talked to the tenants, Martin, and they showed us the photos that they 
had down there that they had taken." 

Commissioner Hege: "So is the photograph in front of you, is that the dog?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "That is the dog, yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And you're looking at exhibit #17 and you're saying that is the 
dog." 

Mr. O'Dell: "That is the dog." 

Ms. Carpenter: "That was in your field?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. Is this also the same dog that you saw your neighbors 
walking along Hwy. 30?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "Yes." 
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Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. And also in exhibits 18 and 19, is that also the same 
dog?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "That is correct." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay." 

Mr. O'Dell: "We had also conducted an investigation with some of our neighbors, 
asking them if they saw anything that morning or if they'd heard any noises and 
informed them what we'd found with the dog in the field. And they had warned us 
that their dog had been attacked about a month earlier by the same dog. They 
were neighboring properties. Their dog was attacked and bitten and then the, 
apparently, the owner of the property the dog resides on was pinned up against 
his barn about a week or two earlier than that also." 

Commissioner Holliday: "So what is the deposition of your case?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "Pardon me?" 

Commissioner Holliday: "What's the, what's going on with your case?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "Apparently it wasn't linked to it this morning. We'd been in contact 
with Guadalupe and we did get a letter in the mail stating court was a month ago. 
Then they sent us a letter stating that it was going to be postponed 'til today. We 
never got anything for today." 

Ms. Carpenter: "I also meant to ask you , the two goats who died, the two goats 
that died, were they of a breeding age?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "They were. We'd had them for a little over a year and a half and they 
were about a month and a half old when we got them - so a little over a year and 
a half in age." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Were they capable of breeding?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "The female was yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. Did you have any intentions to breed that female?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "Not at that time. " 

Ms. Carpenter: "So to the loss of the female does not also represent the loss of 
potential babies?" 
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Mr. O'Dell: "Not at that time. The male that we had was the brother and at this 
time we hadn't." 

Ms. Carpenter: "I have no further questions for the witness." 

Chair Runyon: "Do you have something Scott. (Commissioner Hege indicated 
no.) Thank you." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Thank you ." 

Chair Runyon: "I assume you are going to tell us how that can tie into or not tie 
into the similar- if it has to be handled separately." 

Ms. Carpenter: "It appears to be a separate incident, one involving Mr. O'Dell's 
livestock, yet I think it would be helpful when arguing disposition of this dog when 
the Commissioners are ready to get to that stage. I think it is very good 
circumstantial evidence of what the O'Dell family saw, large, black dog in their 
field in proximity to Mr. Sanchez, his home and his dog. This is very good 
circumstantial evidence that this dog that's being accused today has been 
engaged in similar conduct." 

Chair Runyon: "But really it is just still evidence in the case that we 're involved 
with. " 

Ms. Carpenter: "I don't consider it direct evidence of the case we're involved with 
but it is circumstantial evidence and good evidence especially when we get to the 
disposition phase and what remedies the County will be asking for. " 

Chair Runyon: "So the O'Dells would have to have a separate hearing. " 

Ms. Carpenter: "It all depends on what the Board of County Commissioners 
orders today when it comes to disposition. If today the Board finds Mr. Sanchez's 
dog did not kill the livestock owned by Guadalupe Flores being managed by the 
Galvan's, it is possible that we could have an additional hearing down the road 
involving Mr. O'Dell's livestock. But if the Board does find today that Mr. 
Sanchez's dog killed Mr. Flores' Barbados sheep, and depending on how the 
Court, pardon me, the Commission disposes of the dog, then it may be a moot 
issue. It all depends on disposition, basically, is the short answer." 

Chair Runyon: "Okay. Any further things you want to give before I start here? 
Maybe you can just see if I am correct here as I read Chapter 609 under the 
definitions of livestock it lists both sheep and goats. I know there was some 
question as to what kir)d of breed it is, some it's a goat, some it's a sheep, but 
they are both listed so it seems to be a moot point there. Under 609.140 under 
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right of action by owner regarding damaged livestock, the owner of any livestock 
which has been damaged , injured, chased, wounded or killed ·by any dog shall 
have a cause of action against the owner of such a dog for the damages 
resulting there from, including up to double the value of the livestock killed and 
double the amount of any damage to the livestock. And under 609.150 right to kill 
dog that harms or chases livestock, looks like the person on the property, not the 
dog's own property, but another property would have had the right to take care of 
the matter there at hand. Section 2 of that says, if any dog, not under control of 
its owner or keeper is found chasing or feeding off the carcasses of livestock not 
the property of such owner or keeper shall be deemed prima fascia as engaged 
in killing, wounding or injuring livestock. I thought that was kind of a pertinent 
thing that I dug out there." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Actually, for today's purposes, no. They are helpful there, I th ink, 
in shedding light on what I consider the applicable statutes today. 609.140, which 
the Chair referenced earlier, I think that has more to do with a private law suit, 
the livestock owner versus the dog owner, rather than what we have today which 
is an allegation before a Board of County Commissioners brought by the County 
asking for disposition of the dog itself rather than a money suit. So I think 
609.140 is just a money suit for damages. I think it is separate from what we are 
doing today." 

Chair Runyon: "And you feel we have put out the proper notifications and so forth 
for the record?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "I do believe so. Your administrative assistant has sent Mr. 
Sanchez a letter and this has also been published in the newspaper. I can give to 
the Board a copy, my copy from the newspaper if it wishes." 

Chair Runyon: "I think we have that." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay." 

Chair Runyon: "Then at this point we know not where the dog is; we know not 
where the owner of the dog is." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Correct, but I still feel that the Board of County Commissioners 
can make their ruling today with knowing that the dog, at this point, is still being 
located as well as the owner. I would ask for the Board of County Commissioners 
to make an order today." 

Chair Runyon: "The District Attorney provided us with a paper here that set out 
four things that we had to look for: the date- I think we have that confirmed , we 
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have heard enough testimony to confirm that; that the act occurred in Wasco 
County- and that was pretty well substantiated, the owner of the dog is Fermin 
Sanchez, both from the direct Deputy report and from the neighbors and other 
witnesses; and that from pictures and testimony at the scene that this is the 
identified dog that killed or wounded livestock in the cage owned by Guadalupe 
Flores. That correct?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "Correct." 

Chair Runyon: "We've heard admissions to all those items. So, we have a 
disposition in front of us. We have questions, other than the things I brought up? 
Scott?" 

Commissioner Hege: "I am not sure. When we talk about the penalties, I have 
some questions there." 

Chair Runyon: "Okay. So, if we find that the dog is guilty that killed and wounded 
the livestock, the District Attorney is asking us on page 4 of the disposition, 1) A 
civil penalty of not less than $500 and not more than $1 ,000 payable to Wasco 
County under ORS 609.162(1)(c) and ORS 609.167(1). And I am assuming we 
can find a range there or impose the minimum or the maximum." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Right and I would actually ask for the maximum, your Honor, Mr. 
Chair, because of the multiple death to livestock in the primary case brought 
today as well as the secondary case we brought up today involving Mr. O'Dell's 
livestock. These are an aggravated series of incidents so, I think, warranting the 
elevated penalty." 

Chair Runyon: "Number 2 on the list was euthanasia of the dog under ORS 
609.162(1)(c) and 3, restitution of the dead livestock. Here we had some 
additional things that were brought into this. Initially, it was asking for $270, $135 
for each of the two sheep, payable to Wasco County to be forwarded to livestock 
owner, Guadalupe Flores, under ORS 609.180 and ORS 609.190. My math 
looking at it, and I realize there was some guesswork between $350 and $400 on 
the one animal. The first two it was about $270 and in the neighborhood of $400 
makes it $670 for the three goats. We've heard from Mr. O'Dell , the neighbor, 
and it's appropriate for us to bundle this together if we felt so. " 

Ms. Carpenter: "And I would ask the Board of Commissioners to do that please." 

Chair Runyon: "That's about $355, again we are guessing a little bit on the funds, 
which came out to about a thousand and a quarter. So my suggestion to the 
Commissioners is my thought, and we will discuss this as we go forward, striking 
the dollar amount in the DA's request and changing that to the $600 to Mr. Flores 
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and let me see, about $650 and $350 to Mr. O'Dell would make it work out to 
about the thousand maximum. Maybe my numbers are off." 

Ms. Carpenter: "If I may interrupt, actually. The civil penalty that we're asking for 
is separate from the restitution. The restitution is designed to make the victim 
whole and the civil penalty is designed, basically to penalize. They have separate 
purposes; I'm asking for them under separate statutes. I'm asking that they not 
be run together into one tidy sum. I am asking for an order of a civil penalty plus 
a separate order awarding restitution to the victims. 

Chair Runyon: "Okay, I am just going through the list. So we would need to have 
two separate actions." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Well, I mean, we could do it all in one order, one page. What I 
meant to say is separate line item - a separate line for the civil penalty and a 
separate line item for the restitution. They don't have to be on separate orders 
from the Board of Commissioners." 

Commissioner Hege: "Quick question. Can we provide restitution , as 
Commissioner Runyon has suggested, to another party not involved in this?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "I think that Mr. O'Dell's case is involved in this. It sounds like the 
Board is kind of heading in that direction as well. I think these are related 
incidents; it's all in the same neighborhood; we have very similar evidence. I think 
the Board of Commissioners does have that kind of authority to do that. Mr. 
O'Dell testified under oath today about his loss, about what his family witnessed. 
I think the board has that authority." 

Commissioner Hege: "Okay, we can actually put it in here?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "I believe so." 

Commissioner Hege: "I believe so." 

Chair Runyon: "Sherry, questions?" 

Commissioner Holliday: "No, (inaudible) 

Chair Runyon: " And I'm sorry, I just wanted to give you my summary thought 
and kind of let you go from there." 

Commissioner Holliday: "I have a question. I think, I believe there will be some 
cost to Home at Last. Can that also be included in the penalty phase of this, Ms. 
Carpenter?" 
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Ms. Carpenter: "Pardon?" 

Commissioner Holliday: "A charge to Home at Last - I think there will be some 
cost incurred by Home at Last. Can those costs also be incurred in this penalty 
part of it?" · 

Ms. Carpenter: "At this point, I don't know of any costs incurred by Home at Last. 
Mr. Stone has related to me, the County didn't have to pay anything to house the 
dog at the time. If Home at Last incurred separate costs as a result of the theft of 
the dog that occurred on Friday, then the criminal case against Mr. Sanchez for 
stealing the dog, we'll try to get restitution for that, basically. So say if you took it 
he is part of that or has somehow damaged the lock or basically caused any 
further cost to Home at Last, we'll try to get restitution in the criminal case. 

Commissioner Holliday: "Well , that was my thought, that if they had to repair 
anything." 

Mr. Stone: "There will be housing costs that Home at Last incurs as part of our 
agreement." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay." 

Mr. Stone: "We don't, Wasco County doesn't pay that, but they will incur costs." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. So, I don't know if the Commissioners heard that but there 
- Home at Last does incur costs for housing the dog on the Wasco County hold." 

Commissioner Hege: "But we don't know what that cost is. Is that correct?" 

Mr. Stone: "Steve can give you an idea. They've got a per-day rate that they 
have developed." 

Chair Runyon: "So actually, I have kind of two issues. First of all, the disposition 
of the dog. Alright." 

Commissioner Holliday: "Okay, I'm going to make a motion that the dog is found 
guilty of the killing and wounding of the livestock of both Mr. Flores and Mr. 
O'Dell's livestock. And that we impose the following penalty: a civil penalty of 
$1 ,000.00 payable to Wasco County, euthanasia of the dog, and restitution for 
the dead livestock at Chair Runyon's figures at, for Mr. O'Dell, $355.00 and a 
rounded up figure for Mr. Flores' animals at $650.00." 
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Chair Runyon: 'That was a number that equaled a $1 ,000.00, was what I was 
coming up with." 

Commissioner Holliday: "Okay." 

Chair Runyon: "$350.00 I was using for Mr. O'Dell and $650.00, is that correct? 
That would be $1,000.00?" 

Commissioner Holliday: "Okay, so $350.00 and $650.00." 

Chair Runyon: "Do I have a second?" 

Commissioner Hege: "I would second that." 

Chair Runyon: "We have a motion and a second. Any further discussion at this 
time?" 

Commissioner Hege: "I have a question. Okay, for the DA- Number two, I am 
just curious, under penalties, were there other options and why did you choose 
that option, just out of curiosity?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "For penalties?" 

Commissioner Hege: "Yeah." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Again, for the civil monetary penalty," 

Commissioner Hege: "Just in 2 option, number 2." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Oh, for the euthanasia?" 

Commissioner Hege: "Yeah." 

Ms. Carpenter: "It's an aggravated case because of the multiple livestock killed. I 
think that is the appropriate disposition." 

Commissioner Hege: "Okay." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Just, basically, the aggravated nature of the case." 

Commissioner Hege: "Okay." 

Chair Runyon: "Anything else?" 
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Ms. Carpenter: "So the Board has ordered the $1,000.00 civil penalty." 

Chair Runyon: "We had a hand raised. I don't know if it's appropriate to take 
another question since we are in deliberation at this point. Jason, you had 
something brief?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "My question was on the Oregon 609.140, the owner of any livestock 
which has been damaged, injured, chased, wounded, or killed by a dog
including double the value of any livestock killed. We would actually like double 
the value due to the dog should have been taken into custody on the first issue 
and then ours would not be an issue. " 

Chair Runyon : "So noted." 

Mr. O'Dell: "As well as Mr. Flores, because that was his main breeding goat, he 
is entitled to the value of also possible future animals. He had multiple females 
that were ready to be bred, but his breeding ram was killed . And so, I feel that he 
is entitled to that money as well from the dog's owner." 

Chair Runyon: "Thank you. Do we wish to make any amendments to the motion 
or do we follow the basic lines of the District Attorney?" 

Commissioner Holliday: "No, I am going to amend my motion to - say if it bred 
twice again or if it had two babies which he said usually they have two babies 
that would be another $270.00 that would be double the cost. And Mr. O'Dell, 
because of the fact that your animals were fenced, I sympathize with that. I would 
be willing also to amend my motion to make that not $350.00, which I think it 
was, but bump it to $500.00." 

Commissioner Hege: "I second the amendment to the motion." 

Chair Runyon: "Okay. We have a motion, initially, on the table so we need to vote 
on that and then vote on the amendment - if I am correct on Robert's rules. " 

Commissioner Hege: "We vote on the amendment and then vote on the motion." 

Chair Runyon: "We've got to do both , though." 

Commissioner Hege: "We vote on the amendment and then on the motion." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And, Chairman Runyon , I'm sorry to interrupt what you are 
doing, too. Mr. O'Dell addressed 609.140, but again, it's my belief that applies to 
a civil lawsuit between a livestock owner and a dog owner, not necessarily what 
we're doing today with the County Commissioners." 
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Commissioner Holliday: "So what you're saying, Ms. Carpenter, then is the 
$1,000.00 is the maximum and the stated cost or the stated value of the sheep, 
the additional cost is not?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "It's my understanding the maximum civil penalty is $1,000.00. 
And it's my understanding when it comes to the value of the killed or wounded 
animals we can only get the single value, not the double value that 609.140 asks 
for." 

Chair Runyon: "When I read that section as well, she pointed that out. " 

Commissioner Holliday: "I'm sorry." 

Ms. Carpenter: "I'm sorry to interrupt." 

Chair Runyon: "We don't have any opportunity to do that here. Thanks for 
reminding me." 

Commissioner Hege: "Quick follow-up question, Ms. Carpenter. So, does the 
value, does the value, because it's a breeding stock have anything to do with 
that?" 

Ms. Carpenter: "I think it may, especially if Mr. Flores can put a dollar value on 
that. That could be very helpful. Perhaps we could recall Mr. Flores and he could, 
perhaps, help the Commissioners put a dollar value on that estimate. Would the 
Commissioners like to do that?" 

Chair Runyon: "If we're going to go back to that, then I think we need to withdraw 
any motion." 

Ms. Carpenter: "That's probably true, too." 

Commissioner Holliday: "Okay, well, I'll withdraw my motion." 

Chair Runyon: "And your amendment to that motion?" 

Commissioner Holliday: "Yes, and my amendment." 

Chair Runyon: "Let's get some clarification on value." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Mr. Flores, if you'd come on up." 

Chair Runyon: "I thought we had a $1,000.00 limit, initially." 
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Ms. Carpenter: "And it's my understanding again that there's really no limit on 
what I am calling singular restitution, basically dollar for dollar loss, to the victim 
or victims in this case. I just don't feel we can double restitution amounts 
because this is not a civil lawsuit." 

Chair Runyon: "Corrected." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay." 

Chair Runyon: "I suppose you've already been sworn in. Could you give us some 
clarification on the value of - " 

Mr. Flores: "Well, what I was saying is when I feel that I lost more because I lost 
my ram, breeding ram, and I got ten to twelve ewes that should be bred by now. 
They're not. So it's not two animals. If it really comes to truth, twenty-four babies 
should have been coming within the next couple months. You know, they give 
birth every four to five months -four months more like it. So, I lost all that. So, I 
am not going to get those animals bred until I get another breeding animal which 
I cannot afford right now, yet. So, I am going to lose the whole twenty-four 
animals, minimum- you know, little babies that I'm not going to have any more." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And you estimate the value of each baby at about $135.00?" 

Mr. Flores: "Well, I think the babies probably less because they're little, but you 
know." 

Ms. Carpenter: "What is your estimated value of a newborn baby?" 

Mr. Flores: "Baby? I don't know, $80.00 to $100.00." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay." 

Mr. Flores: "Because people buy them for $80.00 when they're just babies
$80.00 to $100.00." 

Chair Runyon: "My question, though , would be we can't value something that 
may or may not happen." · 

Ms. Carpenter: "Sure." 

Chair Runyon: "We can only value what was lost. If there's a civil lawsuit to come 
out of all of this for other additional value and so forth , I think that's another 
venue than what we're here for, than what we're able to do. Is that correct? Is 
that what I'm hearing?" 
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Ms. Carpenter: "I think if it's reasonably calculated, and so what we could ask is 
in the past, Mr. Flores, have you bred your breeding ram with a ewe?" 

Mr. Flores: "Oh, yeah, yeah." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And in the past, what has been the typical birth rate of ewes bred 
with your ram?" 

Mr. Flores: "Well, they all bred and they all give birth . They all come up fine. Like 
I said , we take good care of them. They all give birth- two, sometimes three, 
some of the real young ones, one. But they always come alive and they always 
leave well . I mean, every time we bred them, they give birth healthy. So, yeah." 

Commissioner Holliday: "Ms. Carpenter? How many times a year do they breed , 
because I mean we could, I mean if they're like possums .. . " 

Ms. Carpenter: "I would defer to Mr. Flores on that question. I have not raised 
livestock before. So generally each ewe breeds two or three times a year?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah, I mean, if people really took care of them and know how to do 
it three. Mine do two." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Two?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah, two times a year. But I'd rather not do it so that they don't 
breed on the time to give birth in winter time. That's why I kind of leave them off 
that time. That's why I'm saying they're not gonna breed because by the time I 
get another ram they be close to give birth in winter time so it's gonna be too late 
soon, here." 

Chair Runyon: "I think a lot of this gets to be very subjective and what not and I'm 
inclined to stay within that $1 ,000.00 as suggested by the District Attorney. If they 
have civil actions, in my point of view, I'll let each of you speak to your thoughts; 
those can be brought forward in another situation, another venue." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Sure." 

Chair Runyon : "Any thoughts about that? I just don't know how we calculate 
sheep that we don't know will be born or won't be born ." 

Commissioner Holliday: "Well, we know at least some of them would have been 
born ." 
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Ms. Carpenter: "Right. I think we do have a fairly good estimate from Mr. Flores 
that he lost at least one breeding cycle that this ram could have contributed to. Is 
that correct Mr. Flores?" 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah, yeah ." 

Ms. Carpenter: "At least one and that would have yielded twenty-four babies." 

Mr. Flores: "Yeah . Like you say, they might not all bred, but I got twelve animals, 
at least ten or eight would easy, you know. You never know what. " 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. And again, the $1,000.00 civil penalty cap doesn't apply to 
restitution; those are separate notions- separate things that we're asking for." 

Chair Runyon: "Okay, so then my numbers then become the minimum. What do 
you guys propose?" 

Commissioner Hege: "I think that probably, I mean in terms of this, I think he did 
lose value." 

Commissioner Holliday: "I think so, too." 

Commissioner Hege: "Yeah, and if he said maybe eight of them would have 
taken, I mean let's just assume that and they would have had two each, that 
would be sixteen; and if you put them at $80, that would be another $1 ,280.00 
related to the breeding loss in addition to the loss of the actual livestock. I would 
suggest we might add $1,280.00 to the number that Chair Runyon had on there." 

Commissioner Holliday: "That was $650.00." 

Chair Runyon: "To Mr. Flores?" 

Commissioner Hege: "Yes." 

Chair Runyon: "So $650.00 and $1,280.00." 

Commissioner Holliday: "So it's $1,930.00." 

Chair Runyon: "Okay. And what about Mr. O'Dell? I have it at $350.00." 

Commissioner Holliday: "And I, I attempted to add an addition $150.00 to make it 
$500.00." 

Chair Runyon : "$500.00" 
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Commissioner Hege: "What was that for?" 

Chair Runyon: "The loss of two pet goats that the O'Dell's had." 

Ms. Carpenter: "I believe Mr. O'Dell stated the female was valued at between 
$200.00 and $250.00?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "And the male was valued at about $75?" 

Mr. O'Dell: "Correct. " 

Ms. Carpenter: "You also lost chickens?" 

Commissioner Holliday: "A chicken." 

Mr. O'Dell: "I also lost a rooster at about $30.00." 

Ms. Carpenter: "$30.00." 

Chair Runyon: "Yeah, the original total I used $250.00, $75.00, $30.00, was 
$355.00. I had just made it $350.00 even because we were guessing on some of 
the amounts." 

Commissioner Holliday: "And I had asked for it to be $500.00. Okay, I'm ready to 
remake my motion. " 

Commissioner Hege: "Okay." 

Commissioner Holliday: "So, I'll make a motion that we, I guess we already found 
the dog guilty as charged of killing, injuring the livestock and that we imposed the 
following penalty: a civil penalty of $1 ,000.00 payable to Wasco County, 
euthanasia of the dog, and restitution for the dead livestock as $1,930.00 to Mr. 
Flores and $500.00 to Mr. O'Dell for the loss of their animals." 

Commissioner Hege: "I would second that motion." 

Chair Runyon: "We have a motion and a second. Do we have discussion? All in 
favor, signify by saying 'Aye."' 

Chair Runyon , Commissioners Holliday and Hege: "Aye." 
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Chair Runyon: "Motion's approved, it's unanimous. Thank you everyone for your 
time - appreciate that." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Thank you, sir. And just for clarification, Commissioner Holliday, 
the restitution for Mr. Flores was a total of?" 

Commissioner Holliday: "$1,930.00" 

Ms. Carpenter: "$1 ,930.00 and to Mr. O'Dell was $500.00. " 

Commissioner Holliday: "Yes." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Okay. Thank you ." 

Chair Runyon: "The claimants, if they have further questions can ask at the DA's 
office for clarifications." 

Ms. Carpenter: "That's totally fine." 

Chair Runyon: "For oth.er actions that might be possible and that sort of thing. 
Okay." 

Ms. Carpenter: "Thank you." 

C.hair Runyon; "Thank you all very much." 

Ms. Carpenter: "We appreciate it." 

Chair Runyon: "We will take a brief recess." 

Recessed at 11:00 a.m. 

Reconvened at 11:15 a.m. following the Extension Budget Hearing 

I WASCO COUNTY PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING 

Monica Morris, Finance Manager, summarized the County budget. The budget 
presented to the budget committee was $33,807,837.00. The budget presented 
to the board is different by the changes approved at the budget committee. 
Those changes are: 

1) Wasco County will not be partnering with Hood River in the Veterans 
Program, so we elected to not receive their revenue which reduces our 
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General Fund revenue. The result of that action places our Veterans' 
Service Officer in Wasco County five days a week. It did not change the 
cost of the service; it reduced the revenue. 

2) The budget committee also chose to increase the general fund expenses 
by adding a .5 non-benefitted position- a Veterans Service Officer aid. 
That is an increase of $16,181.00. 

3) There was also an increase in the Veterans Service Officer's materials 
and services budget by $6,000.00. 

4) There was a change to increase the general fund contribution to the 
museum fund by $2,500.00. 

5) To counteract increases to the general fund, the committee elected to 
reduce the transfers that go to the Capital Acquisitions Fund by 
$47,494.00. The transfer will now be $152,000.00. 

The new budget being presented is $33,742,530.00. 

Chair Runyon opened the hearing to public comment; there being none, the 
public comment section of the hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Hege inquired about the FTE numbers shown in the 
Administration Services budget. The LB1 document reflects 18 FTE for 
Administrative Services in the adopted budget. In the proposed/approved budget 
there are 19 FTE positions. Since the 2.5 County Court positions are being 
moved to Administrative Services, he wanted to know why the number isn't 
higher. 

Monica explained that the FTE number is not only full-time employees, but 
combinations of part-time employees to equal a full-time employee. 
Administrative Services also includes the Fair and Museum. We have fewer of 
those part-time positions due to attrition. The total came to 19, even with the 
addition of the 2.5 County Court positions. Ms. Morris offered to provide the detail 
of how the net increase came to 1 FTE over last year's budget. 

{{{Commissioner Hege moved to approve Resolution 12-010 in the matter 
of fiscal year 2012-2013 tax levy and appropriations. Commissioner 
Holliday seconded the motion which passed unanimously.}}} 

Public Budget Hearing closed at 11:28 a.m. 
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CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC FEE HEARING 

Public Hearing on Fees re-opened at 11:30 a.m. 

Public Health Director Teri Thalhofer explained that the new Licensed Facilities 
Fees are in response to nevyly created State categories. The new Environmental 
Health fees reflect new technologies for treating solid waste which create the 
need for the investment of staff time. 

Molly Rogers, Youth Services Director, explained the fee for expunging juvenile 
records which acknowledges the time and effort required to do that. Ms. Rogers 
added the caveat that if the Court were to ever start charging a filing fee, she 
would most likely return to the Commission with a request to reduce or eliminate 
this fee. 

Marty Matherly, Public Works Director, explained his requested fee is to recover 
costs incurred by the County to process and inspect for a road rally. The fee is 
actually a deposit made by rally organizers. Public Works would then track their 
time. Once the rally closes, the organizers would be refunded or billed the 
appropriate amount to accurately recover costs. 

Commissioner Holliday reminded the gallery that previous discussions had 
entertained the possibility of other future events to which this system of 
remuneration might be applied. 

Commissioner Hege asked if this was directed toward one event in particular. Mr. 
Matherly responded that there are currently two events to which this would apply, 
but that it is, in general, a fee for the use of County grounds for high speed 
racing. 

Linda Brown, Wasco County Clerk, explained that the $1.00 fee she is requesting 
is to administer the collection of the low-income housing fee that the County 
collects for the State. The State has elected not to pay counties an administrative 
fee out of the fees collected. This is to offset the cost the County incurs. There 
are other counties that add an administrative fee to compensate for the staff time 
invested in collecting the State fee. She is asking that the fee be deposited into 
the General Fund to help with the administering of the fund through Finance. 

Commissioner Holliday asked if the Clerk's Association had abandoned efforts to 
get a portion of the $15.00 fee for administrative costs. 



WASCO COUNTY COURT 
REGULAR SESSION 
APRIL 6, 2011 
PAGE 50 

Ms. Brown responded that the Housing Lobbies had been staunchly opposed 
and had been able to exercise their influence to block any portion of the fee from 
being diverted. 

A representative for Community Corrections was not available but had previously 
explained their fee amendment requests. 

Chair Runyon outlined the reason for eliminating the credit card fee for 
processing dog license. This is a result of the County moving those 
responsibilities to Home as Last who will now process dog licenses. 

Chair Runyon opened the floor for public comment. There being none, he closed 
the public comment portion of the hearing and opened deliberations. There being 
no further questions or comments from the Board, he then called for a motion. 

{{{Commissioner Hege moved to approve Ordinance 12-013 in .the matter of 
amending Wasco County's Uniform Fee Schedule for various county 
departments. Commissioner Holliday seconded the motion which passed 
unanimously.}}} · 

Chair Runyon closed the Public Fee Hearing. 

DISCUSSION on the refunding of overpaid taxes. 

Mr. Stone brought forward a request by the County Assessor, Tim Lynn, to 
approve refunds for accounts outlined in the document he provided (attached). 
These refunds are the result of the Department of Revenue reinstating eligible 
applicants that had already paid on their accounts in November, 2011 - interest 
will be paid on the overpayments. There are four accounts listed with varying 
refund amounts. 

Some discussion followed to determine the nature/cause of the overpayments, 
with Ms. Morris explaining the routine nature of the process and the statute 
requiring Board approval before payments could be made. 

{{{Commissioner Hege moved to approve the tax refund approval request 
from the County Assessor's office. Commissioner Holliday seconded the 
motion which passed unanimously.}}} 
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DISCUSSION on support for an extension of renewable energy 
incentives. 

Commissioner Hege brought forth a letter in support of an extension on a 2.2 
cent incentive per kilowatt hour produced with renewable energy. It is largely 
used by wind projects and expires at the end of 2012. The industry is trying to get 
it extended. Commissioner Holliday pointed out that there are many projects on 
hold waiting for the outcome of the extension request and added that she would 
be happy to support it. The letter is directed to Greg Walden. 

***The Board was in consensus to sign the letter supporting the extension 
of the renewable energy incentive.*** 

DISCUSSION on the letter supporting the continuation of the Silvicultural 
rule exempting logging roads from runoff rules. 

Commissioner Holliday reintroduced a letter regarding logging roads that had 
been discussed and tabled in a previous session. Commissioner Hege believes 
that the matter has already been acted upon and is back in play. No further 
action was taken by the Board. 

I DISCUSSION COMMUNITY CARE ORGANIZATIONS. 

Mr. Stone stated the CCO group meetings have resulted in the selection of a 
candidate to support as a regional CCO - that candidate is Pacific Source. They 
have now split into groups to work on developing governance board , a clinical 
advisory panel and a community advisory committee, guided by statutes. Ms. 
Thalhofer added that of the final two candidates, she felt most of the 
stakeholders could have been comfortable with either and there will be a future 
opportunity to withdraw support for Pacific Source. The proposed region is 
Wasco, Sherman and Hood River Counties. General discussion followed . 

AGENDA ITEM- COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
WASCO COUNTY AND WASCO COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT. 

Mr. Stone summarized changes to the agreement which the Board had been 
made aware of throughout negotiations. 

• Article 13 - Vacations 
o 13.1 Vacation Accrual schedule changes 

• Article 15 - Other Leaves of Absence 
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o 15.1 Compassionate Leave amended to include mother-in-law, 
father-in-law, and grandchildren 

• Appendix A- Sheriff's Department Pay Plan 
o COLA adjustment changed from 3.5% to 1.5% effective July 1, 

2012 and July 1, 2013. 
• Training pay- $50.00 per month when actively training a recruit. 

General discussion followed. Mr. Stone conveyed his, as well as Sheriff 
Eiesland's, recommendation to the Board for approval of the agreement. 

{{{Commissioner Holliday moved to approve the Collective Bargaining 
Agreement Between Wasco County and Wasco County Law Enforcement 
effective through June 30, 2014. Commissioner Hege seconded the motion 
and commended Mr. Stone, Sheriff Eiesland and the union for working 
collaboratively to reach this agreement. Mr. Stone stated that most of the 
credit belonged to Sheriff Eiesland. The motion passed unanimously.}}} 

I General Housekeeping 

Chair Runyon asked for a consensus regarding Board sessions being on the first 
and third Wednesdays of each month with special sessions, if necessary, being 
on the second. He asked that each Commissioner review their schedule for 
conflicts and notify Kathy White of any regularly scheduled days for which they 
could not be present. 

Recessed at 12:15 p.m. for lunch 

Re-convened at 1:30 p.m. 

I Agenda Item - 018 Appointment 

Scott Turnoy, Mid-Columbia Economic Development Program Manager, 
explained to the Board that Joan Silver, outgoing appointee, could not be 
appointed for a third term. Despite her willingness, the State would not grant an 
exception to the two-term rule. Ken Farnsworth is the sole applicant to fill the 
opening. Both Commissioner Holliday and Chair Runyon voiced their support of 
the applicant, who possesses the necessary financial background. 

Mr. Turnoy explained that the position is responsible for the consideration and 
approval of grants and loans through the Oregon Investment Board and for 
setting 018 policy and procedures. 

Some discussion followed regarding levels of available funding through MCEDD. 
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***Commissioner Holliday moved to recommend to the State, through 
MCEDD, the appointment of Ken Farner to the Oregon Investment Board. 
Commissioner Hege seconded the motion which passed unanimously.*** 

I General Discussion 

Genera1 discussion ensued regarding the voting powers of the Budget 
Committee Chair. Chair Runyon shared the results of his research into the matter 
in which he discovered that the Committee Chair is free to vote or not as he or 
she chooses. 

Commissioner Holliday brought up the Bob Paul Memorial planned in memory of 
Staff Sgt. Robert J. Paul , 43, of The Dalles, OR who was killed in Afghanistan. 
Money has been raised but not enough to support the planned salt rock 
memorial. As an alternative, it was decided that a wooden bench might be a 
viable alternative and Commissioner Holliday wanted to know if the 
Commissioners were amenable to that idea. Chair Runyon suggested that a 
wooden bench would not hold up to the elements. Commissioner Holliday was 
not sure if it was intended to be an indoor or outdoor bench and said she would 
follow up with Mr. Matherly. She suggested they might consider a wrought iron 
bench. 

Agenda Item- MCEDD Intergovernmental Agreement 

Amanda Hoey, Executive Director for MCEDD, introduced Jessica Metta, 
MCEDD Staffing Coordinator. MCEDD annually approaches their County and 
City members regarding their services toward economic development. Ms. Hoey 
outlined their presentation requesting $40,000.00 which goes toward the 
management of the Wasco County Economic Development Commission. Jessica 
Metta coordinates this effort. 

Ms. Metta outlined upcoming projects and programs within Wasco County, which 
includes grant writing assistance, the Economic Development Summit, EDC loan 
funds and business retention and expansion program. All of these would 
continue with the agreement renewal. 

{{{Commissioner Holliday moved to approve the Intergovernmental 
Agreement between Wasco County and MCEDD. Commissioner Hege 
seconded the motion which passed unanimously.}}} 
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Agenda Item - Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment Plan 

Mike Davidson, Wasco County Sheriff's Office Emergency Manager, summarized 
the Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment Plan (formerly the 
Hazard Identification and Vulnerability Analysis) which was included, in its 
entirety, in the Board Packet. The plan was last updated in August, 2008. FEMA 
mandated that the plan now include a terrorism response, but since that had 
been included in the previous version it did not need to be created, just updated. 

Changes include: 

• Revisions to the Threat Matrix (pg. 5) 
• Statistical Revisions (population, median income, etc.) 
• Public Health Narrative 

The plan will most likely need revision again next year in response to new 
guidelines being developed by FEMA. 

Ms. Thalhofer added that the unique relationship North Central Public Health 
enjoys with the local emergency managers facilitates more useful emergency 
planning. Mr. Davidson concurred, adding that Wasco was the first county in the 
state to add health issues into the risk assessment. Some discussion followed 
regarding the various threats included 

{{{Commissioner Hege moved to adopt the Threat and Hazard Identification 
and Risk Assessment Plan, updated April, 2012. Commissioner Holliday 
seconded the motion which passed unanimously.}}} 

Agenda Item - Emergency Alert System Operations Plan 

Mr. Davidson summarized EASOP and provided a chart to illustrate the plan (see 
attached). A team has been working on development for a year. Currently, if 
there is a need for an emergency alert, someone must call radio stations and ask 
for the alert to be broadcast. In some cases, radio stations are automated for part 
of their day and there is no one at the station to call. The alert system will cover 
four counties (Wasco, Sherman, Gilliam, & Hood River) and automatically send 
alerts out through an encoder system. A schematic on page 18 of the plan 
outlines the system used to-immediately broadcast alerts. Mr. Davidson asked 
that the Board approve the plan presented. 
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{{{Commissioner Holliday moved to· adopt the Columbia Gorge Operational 
Area Emergency Alert Systems Operations Plan. Commissioner Hege 
seconded the motion which passed unanimously.}}} 

Mr. Davidson went on to explain the citizens alert system which is a reverse 9-1-
1 system which he hopes to have ready for review in July and implemented this 
fall through Everbridge. Using their technology, an area can be selected to 
receive automated alert calls to land lines. We have unlimited phone calls for the 
next five years. In addition, notification groups can be created for specific alerts 
to emergency responders, government officials, etc. Citizens can also register for 
their cell phones, email addresses, etc. to receive emergency notifications. Noo
emergency alerts can go out for street closures, water main breaks, criminal 
activity, local missing children, air quality alerts, etc. 

A brief discussion followed regarding the local volunteer Hamm radio 
organization that provides a back-up for the emergency alert system. 

Agenda Item - 2012 Transportation Improvement Schedule 

Marty Matherly and Arthur Smith from Wasco County Public Works summarized 
the Improvement Schedule which outlines a 6-year road improvement plan that is 
updated every 3 years. The process begins with a roads assessment followed by 
a service rating process from which a priority list is developed . The priority list is 
focused by practicality. The narrowed priority list of roads is then toured by the 
Board of County Commissioners who provides input to Public Works. Public 
Works then refines a final list and presents it to the Board for approval. 

Chair Runyon pointed out the list was not set in a particular order, but that repairs 
would be made based on money found, grants, time, ability, and opportunity. 

Commissioner Hege inquired about allowing the public an opportunity to 
comment on the priority list. Mr. Matherly read a quote, "Petitioners can bring our 
attention to problem roads, however road condition, traffic volume, and type of 
use should actually drive the system so that the quietly suffering farmer on the 
bad road gets the same attention as the squeaky wheel. " 

{{{Commissioner Holliday moved to approve the 2012 Wasco County Public 
Works Capitol Improvement Schedule. Commissioner Hege seconded the 
motion. The Commissioners applauded the efforts of Public Works in 
creating the priority list. The Board passed the motion unanimously.}}} 

Chair Runyon also commended the Public Works solution to the Veterans Drive 
issue regarding a barrier at the end of that road where drivers come down a 
steep grade and must stop. Public Works was able to move excess dirt from 
another project to create that barrier. 
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A brief discussion ensued regarding the enterprise zone behind Cousins in The 
Dalles. Commissioner Holliday had received an email inquiring if the money from 
the zone would be split 50/50 between the City of The Dalles and Wasco County. 
She had forwarded the message on to the rest of the Board and added that 
historically, it has always been a 50/50 split. Both Chair Runyon and 
Commissioner Hege both agreed that was acceptable. Chair Runyon asked Mr. 
Stone to respond to the inquiry. 

The meeting adjourned at 2:40 p.m. 

WASCO COUNTY BOARD 
OF COMMISSIONERS 

Commission 
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ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS 
 
 
 

1. FORM LB-1 – Wasco County Public Budget Hearing 

2. Executive Assistant Note to Board – Changes to WCLEA Agreement 

3. Staffing Transition Plan – Commission on Children and Families 

4. Outline – Emergency Alert System 

 



WASCO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SESSION / AGENDA   WEDNESDAY, June 6, 2012 

LOCATION: Wasco County Courthouse, County Courtroom #202 
511 Washington Street, The Dalles, Oregon 

Public Comment: Individuals wishing to address the Commission on items not already listed on the Agenda may 
do so during the first half-hour.  To speak at other times please wait for the current speaker to conclude.  Raise 
your hand to be recognized by the Chair for direction.  Speakers are required to give their name and address.  
Please limit comments to three minutes, unless extended by the Chair. 

Departments:   Are encouraged to have their issue added to the Agenda in advance.  When that is not possible the 
Commission will attempt to make time to fit you in during the first half-hour or between listed Agenda items. 

NOTE:  This Agenda is subject to last minute changes.  Meetings are ADA accessible.  For special accommodations 
please contact the Commission Office in advance, (541) 506-2520.  TDD 1-800-735-2900.   Wasco County does not 
discriminate against individuals with disabilities. 
 

9:00 a.m.                                                          CALL TO ORDER 

 Items without a designated appointment may be rearranged to make the best use of time. 

- Corrections or Additions to the Agenda 
- Administrative Officer - Tyler Stone:  Comments 
- Discussion Items – Community Corrections Plan, Surplus Animal Control Vehicle, OCCF 

Amendment, (Items of general Commission discussion, not otherwise listed on the Agenda)  
- Consent Agenda - BPA Easement & License Final Documents  (Items of a routine nature: 

minutes, documents, items previously discussed.) 

9:30 a.m. Public Hearing – Fermin Sanchez Dog Ordinance Violation 

11:00 a.m. Recess for Extension Hearing 

11:15 a.m. Public Budget Hearing – Wasco County, Monica Morris 

11:30 a.m. Public Fee Hearing – Wasco County 

12:00 p.m. Collective Bargaining Agreement Wasco County & Wasco County Law Enforcement – 
Rick Eisland 

12:15 p.m. Lunch 

1:30 p.m. Oregon Investment Board Appointment – MCEDD, Scott Turnoy 

1:45 p.m. MCEDD Intergovernmental Agreement – MCEDD, Jessica Metta 

2:00 p.m. Threat & Hazard Identification & Risk Assessment Plan – Mike Davidson 

2:15 p.m. Emergency Alert System Operations Plan – Mike Davidson 

2:30 p.m. 2012 Transportation Improvement Schedule – Marty Matherly 

 

  NEW / OLD BUSINESS 
  COMMISSION CALL / REPORTS 
  ADJOURN 



WASCO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SESSION 

June 6, 2012 
 

DISCUSSION LIST 
 
 
ACTION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 

1. Community Corrections Plan 

2. Surplus Animal Control Vehicle 

3. OCCF Amendment 

 
ON HOLD: 
 

1. Wasco County website improvement 

2. Admin move   



 

 

Discussion Item 

Community Corrections Plan 

 

 Explanatory Email 

 2012-2013 Community Corrections Plan 

 Resolution 12-008 Adopting Community 

Corrections Plan 



Wasco County Mail - Fwd: 2012-2013 Corrections plan

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=7d850ab937&view=pt&cat=BOCC&search=cat&th=13776b53c8c2b718[5/24/2012 7:35:14 AM]

Kathy White <kathyw@co.wasco.or.us>

Fwd: 2012-2013 Corrections plan
3 messages

Tyler Stone <tylers@co.wasco.or.us> Tue, May 22, 2012 at 3:40 PM

To: Kathy White <kathyw@co.wasco.or.us>

Fyi

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: "Martin Robert V" <Robert.V.Martin@cc.doc.state.or.us>

Date: May 22, 2012 3:38 PM

Subject: 2012-2013 Corrections plan

To: "Eiesland Rick" <ricke@co.wasco.or.us>

Cc: "Monica Morris" <monicam@co.wasco.or.us>, "Tyler Stone" <tylers@co.wasco.or.us>

Please see the attached Corrections Plan and state budget.

(Try as I might my outdated Word program would not let me edit the footer on the form they sent to use.)

 

Please note that DOC is not requiring that this plan be approved by the LPSCC committee :  “Whether or not your
LPSCC requires review or re-approval of your plan is a local decision, DOC will not be requiring it for our processes since plans will be
exact replicas of what was submitted originally.” (Denise Sitler, email of 4-5-12)

 

What is required is the County Commission to adopt a resolution just as last year (Resolution #11-023) that needs
to be forwarded to DOC along with the Corrections Plan, also just as last year. The plan and resolution need to go
to Denise Sitler in Salem.

 

My preference would be to dispense with the LPSCC process if possible as nothing has changed and this is just an
extension of what was approved.

 

Please advise how you desire to proceed.

 

 

 

Robert V. Martin, Director

Community Corrections

Wasco County

421 E. 7th Street (Annex B)

mailto:Robert.V.Martin@cc.doc.state.or.us
mailto:Robert.V.Martin@cc.doc.state.or.us
mailto:Robert.V.Martin@cc.doc.state.or.us
mailto:ricke@co.wasco.or.us
mailto:monicam@co.wasco.or.us
mailto:tylers@co.wasco.or.us
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                  Wasco County 
2012 - 2013 Community Corrections Biennial Plan 

 
Department of Corrections 
2575 Center Street NE 
Salem, Oregon  97310 

For Office Use Only 
 
Date Received: 

Address: 421 E. Seventh St. (Annex B), The Dalles, OR, 97058 
Telephone: (541) 506-2570 
Fax: (541) 506-2571 

Community Corrections Director/Manager: Robert Martin 
Address: 421 E. Seventh St. (Annex B), The Dalles, OR, 97058 
Phone: (541) 506-2574  Fax: (541) 506-2571  Email: Robert.V.Martin@cc.doc.state.or.us 

Sheriff: Rick Eiesland 
Address: 511 Washington St., The Dalles, OR 97058 
Phone: (541) 506-2580  Fax: (541) 506-2581  Email: ricke@co.wasco.or.us 

Jail Manager: Jim Weed 
Address: 221 Weber Road, The Dalles, OR 97058 
Phone: (541) 298-1576  Fax: (541) 298-1361  Email: jweed@norcor.co.wasco.or.us 

Supervisory Authority: Sheriff Rick Eiesland 
Address: 511 Washington St., The Dalles, OR 97058 
Phone: (541) 506-2580  Fax: (541) 506-2581  Email: ricke@co.wasco.or.us 

Supervisory Authority:       
Address:       
Phone:        Fax:        Email:       

LPSCC Contact: Molly Rogers 
Address: 202 E. 5th St., The Dalles, OR 97058 
Phone: (541) 506-2667  Fax: (541) 506-2661  Email: mrogers@wcjd.co.wasco.or.us 

 
Biennial Budget 

 
State Grant-in-Aid Fund: $694,158.00 
Inmate Welfare Release Subsidy Fund: $2,269.00 
County General Fund: $0.00 
Supervision Fees: $70,000.00 
Other Fees: $4,050.00 
Other: $132,528 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Wasco County 
2012-2013 Community Corrections Budget Summary 

 
 

Program Name Grant in Aid 
Fund 

Inmate Welfare 
Release 

Subsidy Fund 

County/Other 
Funds and 

Fees 
Total 

Adminstration $90,000      $8,600 $98,600

Community Service /work crew $1,000      $600 $1,600

Other Program / Services   $9000      $3,100 $12,100

Sex offender Services $13,000      $2,000 $15,000

Substance Abuse Services $30,000      $3,400 $33,400

Supervision $327,693      $181,147 $508,840

Transitional Services $8,000 $2,269 $6,731 $17,000

Domestic Violence Services $6,000      $1,000 $7,000

Custodial / Sanction beds $209,465       $209,465

                           

                           

                           

                           

                           

                           

                           

                           

                           

                           

                           

Fund Total $694,158 $2,269
 

$206,578 $903,005
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Wasco County Community Corrections 
Organization Chart  

2012-2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wasco County Sheriff:  
Rick Eiesland 

Supervisory Authority 

Community Corrections 
Director 

Robert Martin 

     PO Chris Kipper 

PO Ashley Handley 

PO Marco Beitl 

Contracted Services 
Contractors 

Office Specialist II, 
Lena Lindhorst 

Office Specialist II, 
Jessica Jauken 

PO Shawn Sorensen 

Wasco County Commissioners 
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Program Name: Administration 

Program Category: Administration 

Program Description: Provides for the necessary resources and infrastructure of the department. Provides the 
hardware, software, facilities, and associated infrastuctures and maintenance and expenses 
required to operate community corrections.  

Program Objectives: To provide the necessary operational infrastucture and resources to adequately operate the 
department effectively. 

Method(s) of Evaluation: State of Oregon Outcome Measure Reports and department special reports and evaluation 
by the County. 

 
Monthly Average to be Served:  325 Type of Offender(s) Served: Crime Category: Gender: Risk Level: 
   Probation   Felony   Male   High 
   Parole/Post-Prison   Misdemeanor   Female   Medium 
   Local Control     Low 
      Limited 
 

Which Treatment Provider(s) Will You Use Within This Program? 
Provider Name Treatment Type 

(ie., Anger Management, Cognitive, DV, Dual 
Diagnosis, Sex Offender, Inpatient Substance 

Abuse, or Outpatient Substance Abuse)  

CPC Y/N? If Yes, Overall Score 

NA NA  Yes  No NA 

             Yes  No       

             Yes  No       
 
Funding Sources 

 State Grant-In-Aid Fund $90,000.00 

 Inmate Welfare Release Subsidy Fund       

 County General Fund       

 Supervision Fees       

 Other Fees       

 Other Supervision Fees and County funds $8,600.00 
 
Additional Comments:  See cover sheet for breakdown of county fees and funds 
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Program Name: Community Service/ Work Crew 

Program Category: Community Service and Work Crew 

Program Description: Provides referral and monitoring of court ordered community service hours and PV sanction 
hours to non-profit organizations and the work crew.  

Program Objectives: To provide pro-social community service opportunity for offenders to complete required 
CSW  hours and opportunity to give something back to the community in the process. The 
program also provides a non-custody response for low level violations. 

Method(s) of Evaluation: State of Oregon Outcome Measures. 
 
Monthly Average to be Served:  29 Type of Offender(s) Served: Crime Category: Gender: Risk Level: 
   Probation   Felony   Male   High 
   Parole/Post-Prison   Misdemeanor   Female   Medium 
   Local Control     Low 
      Limited 
 

Which Treatment Provider(s) Will You Use Within This Program? 
Provider Name Treatment Type 

(ie., Anger Management, Cognitive, DV, Dual 
Diagnosis, Sex Offender, Inpatient Substance 

Abuse, or Outpatient Substance Abuse)  

CPC Y/N? If Yes, Overall Score 

NA NA  Yes  No NA 

             Yes  No       

             Yes  No       
 
Funding Sources 

 State Grant-In-Aid Fund $1,000.00 

 Inmate Welfare Release Subsidy Fund       

 County General Fund       

 Supervision Fees       

 Other Fees       

 Other Supervision Fees and County funds $600.00 
 
Additional Comments:  See cover sheet for break down of county fees and funds 
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Program Name: Other Programs / Services 

Program Category: Other Programs 

Program Description: Provides assistance in accessing various types of treatment, evaluations, and programming. 
Programming includes support of cognitive and Moral Reconation Therapy; mental health 
screening, evaluation, and treatment; transportation to inpatient treatment programs; 
contingency funding in support of programs and services; American sign language 
interpretting services when needed; interpretting services for foreign language offenders 
when needed; theft school; and other services that may address crisis intervention or special 
needs. 

Program Objectives: To enhance public safety and reduce recidivism by assisting and promoting the rehabilitation 
of offenders.  

Method(s) of Evaluation: State of Oregon Outcome Measure reports. Consultation with treatment providers and staff.  
 
Monthly Average to be Served:  10 Type of Offender(s) Served: Crime Category: Gender: Risk Level: 
   Probation   Felony   Male   High 
   Parole/Post-Prison   Misdemeanor   Female   Medium 
   Local Control     Low 
      Limited 
 

Which Treatment Provider(s) Will You Use Within This Program? 
Provider Name Treatment Type 

(ie., Anger Management, Cognitive, DV, Dual 
Diagnosis, Sex Offender, Inpatient Substance 

Abuse, or Outpatient Substance Abuse)  

CPC Y/N? If Yes, Overall Score 

Ron Webber Moral Reconation Therapy  Yes  No       

Theft Talk Online Services Theft Talk classes and 
Anger Management 

 Yes  No       

Center For Living Mental Health  Yes  No       
 
Funding Sources 

 State Grant-In-Aid Fund $9,000.00 

 Inmate Welfare Release Subsidy Fund       

 County General Fund       

 Supervision Fees       

 Other Fees       

 Other Supervision fees and county funds $3,100.00 
 
Additional Comments:  See cover sheet for breakdown of county fees and funds 
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Program Name: Sex Offender Services 

Program Category: Sex Offender Services 

Program Description: Provides subsidy funding assistance for qualifying offenders, for  the cost of sex offender 
treatment, evaluations, polygraph, and plethysmograph testing. 

Program Objectives: To enhance public safety, by addressing offender treatment needs to reduce recidivism and 
reduce criminality. 

Method(s) of Evaluation: State of Oregon outcome measure reports and Corrections Program Checklist (CPC) 
assessment. 

 
Monthly Average to be Served:  30 Type of Offender(s) Served: Crime Category: Gender: Risk Level: 
   Probation   Felony   Male   High 
   Parole/Post-Prison   Misdemeanor   Female   Medium 
   Local Control     Low 
      Limited 
 

Which Treatment Provider(s) Will You Use Within This Program? 
Provider Name Treatment Type 

(ie., Anger Management, Cognitive, DV, Dual 
Diagnosis, Sex Offender, Inpatient Substance 

Abuse, or Outpatient Substance Abuse)  

CPC Y/N? If Yes, Overall Score 

Therapeutic Solutions Inc. Sex offender  Yes  No 63% 

             Yes  No       

         Yes  No       
 
Funding Sources 

 State Grant-In-Aid Fund $13,000.00 

 Inmate Welfare Release Subsidy Fund       

 County General Fund       

 Supervision Fees       

 Other Fees       

 Other Supervision fees and county funds $2,000.00 
 
Additional Comments:  See cover sheet for breakdown of county fees and funds 
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Program Name: Substance Abuse Services 

Program Category: Substance Abuse 

Program Description: Provides finanacial assitance for qualifying offenders to access various types of substance 
abuse treatment and evaluations. Provides for drug testing and lab expenses for monitoring 
drug and alcohol abuse by offenders.  

Program Objectives: To enhance public safety and reduce recidivism by reducing substance abuse and addiction 
and supporting addiction recovery.  

Method(s) of Evaluation: State of Oregon Outcome Measures and Corrections Program Checklist assessment. 
 
Monthly Average to be Served:  15 Type of Offender(s) Served: Crime Category: Gender: Risk Level: 
   Probation   Felony   Male   High 
   Parole/Post-Prison   Misdemeanor   Female   Medium 
   Local Control     Low 
      Limited 
 

Which Treatment Provider(s) Will You Use Within This Program? 
Provider Name Treatment Type 

(ie., Anger Management, Cognitive, DV, Dual 
Diagnosis, Sex Offender, Inpatient Substance 

Abuse, or Outpatient Substance Abuse)  

CPC Y/N? If Yes, Overall Score 

Dave Bullock Substance Abuse  Yes  No       

Crossroads Counseling Substance Abuse  Yes  No       

Center For Living Substance Abuse  Yes  No       
 
Funding Sources 

 State Grant-In-Aid Fund $30,000.00 

 Inmate Welfare Release Subsidy Fund       

 County General Fund       

 Supervision Fees       

 Other Fees       

 Other Supervision fees and county funds $3,400.00 
 
Additional Comments:  See cover sheet for breakdown of county fees and funds 
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Program Name: Supervision 

Program Category: Supervision 

Program Description: All associated functions and tasks related to monitoring and supervising offenders placed on 
probation, post-prison supervision, and parole. Staff track and monitor programming, 
treatment,  and sentences.  Officers oversee compliance to conditions of supervision and 
assess and address criminogenic needs, making referrals to appropriate treatment programs 
based on conditions and needs. Offenders are held accountable for their actions and 
compliance to conditions of supervision through a continuum of sanctions. Reports and other 
material are produced for the Courts, the Department of Corrections, the Parole Board, as 
well as the Interstate Compact.  

Program Objectives: To enhance public safety, reduce recidivism, and reduce addictions and criminality. 

Method(s) of Evaluation: State of Oregon Outcome Measure Reports. 
 
Monthly Average to be Served:  325 Type of Offender(s) Served: Crime Category: Gender: Risk Level: 
   Probation   Felony   Male   High 
   Parole/Post-Prison   Misdemeanor   Female   Medium 
   Local Control     Low 
      Limited 
 

Which Treatment Provider(s) Will You Use Within This Program? 
Provider Name Treatment Type 

(ie., Anger Management, Cognitive, DV, Dual 
Diagnosis, Sex Offender, Inpatient Substance 

Abuse, or Outpatient Substance Abuse)  

CPC Y/N? If Yes, Overall Score 

NA NA  Yes  No NA 

             Yes  No       

             Yes  No       
 
Funding Sources 

 State Grant-In-Aid Fund $327,693.00 

 Inmate Welfare Release Subsidy Fund       

 County General Fund       

 Supervision Fees       

 Other Fees       

 Other Supervision fees and county funds $181,147.00 
 
Additional Comments:  See cover sheet for breakdown of county fees and funds
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Program Name: Transitional Services 

Program Category: Transition Services 

Program Description: Financial assistance for qualifying offenders for transportation, food, clothing, or other 
necessary items, as well as crisis and transitional housing (including individual and group 
housing). 

Program Objectives: To enhance public safety and reduce recidivism by enhancing the offenders opportunity for 
success in the community.  

Method(s) of Evaluation: State of Oregon outcome measure reports. 
 
Monthly Average to be Served:  6 Type of Offender(s) Served: Crime Category: Gender: Risk Level: 
   Probation   Felony   Male   High 
   Parole/Post-Prison   Misdemeanor   Female   Medium 
   Local Control     Low 
      Limited 
 

Which Treatment Provider(s) Will You Use Within This Program? 
Provider Name Treatment Type 

(ie., Anger Management, Cognitive, DV, Dual 
Diagnosis, Sex Offender, Inpatient Substance 

Abuse, or Outpatient Substance Abuse)  

CPC Y/N? If Yes, Overall Score 

NA NA  Yes  No NA 

             Yes  No       

             Yes  No       
 
Funding Sources 

 State Grant-In-Aid Fund $8,000.00 

 Inmate Welfare Release Subsidy Fund $2,269.00 

 County General Fund       

 Supervision Fees       

 Other Fees       

 Other Supervision fees and county funds $6,731.00 
 
Additional Comments:  See cover sheet for breakdown of county fees and funds 
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Program Name: Domestic Violence Services 

Program Category: Other Services 

Program Description: Provides subsidized access to evaluation and appropriate programmingfor qualifying 
offenders.  

Program Objectives: To enhance public safety and reduce recidivism by addressing treatment needs for domestic 
violence offenders. 

Method(s) of Evaluation: State of Oregon Outcome Measure reports.  
 
Monthly Average to be Served:  25 Type of Offender(s) Served: Crime Category: Gender: Risk Level: 
   Probation   Felony   Male   High 
   Parole/Post-Prison   Misdemeanor   Female   Medium 
   Local Control     Low 
      Limited 
 

Which Treatment Provider(s) Will You Use Within This Program? 
Provider Name Treatment Type 

(ie., Anger Management, Cognitive, DV, Dual 
Diagnosis, Sex Offender, Inpatient Substance 

Abuse, or Outpatient Substance Abuse)  

CPC Y/N? If Yes, Overall Score 

Therapeutic Solutions Inc. Domestic Violence  Yes  No 63% 

             Yes  No       

             Yes  No       
 
Funding Sources 

 State Grant-In-Aid Fund $6,000.00 

 Inmate Welfare Release Subsidy Fund       

 County General Fund       

 Supervision Fees       

 Other Fees       

 Other Supervision fees and county funds $1,000.00 
 
Additional Comments:  See cover sheet for breakdown of county fees and funds 
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Program Name: Custodial/Sanction Beds 

Program Category: Custodial/Sanction Beds 

Program Description: Provides jail beds for offender sanctions and 1145 inmates. 

Program Objectives: Provides a resource to fund local incarceration for violations and 1145 inmates. 

Method(s) of Evaluation: State of Oregon Outcome Measures. 
 
Monthly Average to be Served:  30 Type of Offender(s) Served: Crime Category: Gender: Risk Level: 
   Probation   Felony   Male   High 
   Parole/Post-Prison   Misdemeanor   Female   Medium 
   Local Control     Low 
      Limited 
 

Which Treatment Provider(s) Will You Use Within This Program? 
Provider Name Treatment Type 

(ie., Anger Management, Cognitive, DV, Dual 
Diagnosis, Sex Offender, Inpatient Substance 

Abuse, or Outpatient Substance Abuse)  

CPC Y/N? If Yes, Overall Score 

NA NA  Yes  No NA 

             Yes  No       

             Yes  No       
 
Funding Sources 

 State Grant-In-Aid Fund $209,465.00 

 Inmate Welfare Release Subsidy Fund       

 County General Fund       

 Supervision Fees       

 Other Fees       

 Other             
 
Additional Comments:        
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IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE STATE OF OREGON 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASCO 

 

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING A COMMUNITY  ) 
CORRECTIONS PLAN; DESIGNATION OF   ) 
REPRESENTATIVE TO ADMINISTER THE COMMUNITY ) RESOLUTION 
CORRECTIONS PLAN AND TO APPLY FOR    ) #12-008 
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS FUNDING.  ) 
 
 

 WHEREAS, Wasco county is required by Senate Bill 1145 to adopt a 

Community Corrections Plan; and 

 WHEREAS, the Wasco County Local Public Safety Coordinating Council 

is recommending the adoption and submittal of the Community Corrections Plan 

for Wasco County. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE WASCO COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS DOES HEREBY RESOLVE: That the Wasco County Board 

of Commissioners adopts the Community Corrections Plan, hereto attached and 

marked Exhibit A; and 

 IT IS HEREBY FURTHER RESOLVED: That Wasco County is authorized 

to apply for Department of Corrections Funding; and  

 IT IS HEREBY FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Wasco County 

Community Corrections Manager be designated as the representative to 
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administer the Community Corrections Plan and Funds for the period beginning 

July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013. 

 DATED this 6th day of June, 2012. 

     WASCO COUNTY BOARD 
     OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

     Rod Runyon, Commission Chair 

 

     Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 

 

     Scott Hege, County Commissioner 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

Eric J. Nisley 
Wasco County District 
Attorney 

 



 

 

Discussion Item 

Surplus Animal Control Vehicle 

 

 Explanatory Letter 

 Order 12-027 to Surplus Animal Control Vehicle 



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

   

 
 

 

To: Wasco County Commissioners 

 

Re: Surplus of Animal Control Vehicle 

 

To whom it may concern, 

 

As all of you know Wasco County has made arrangements to discontinue the Wasco County Animal 

Control Program.  Through the negotiations process Wasco County has agreed to provide the current 

Animal Control vehicle, (2007 Ford Ranger), to the City of The Dalles to assist them with the 

implementation of their program.   

 

The Wasco County Sheriff’s Office would request Unit 07-01, (2007 Ford Ranger), be declared surplus so 

it can be release to the City of The Dalles.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

Lane Magill 

Chief Deputy 

Wasco County Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

511 Washington St., Suite #102 

The Dalles, Oregon 97058 

Phone 541-506-2580 

Fax 541-506-2581  

Wasco County 

nty SHERIFF 



1 - ORDER 

IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE STATE OF OREGON 
 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASCO 
 

 

IN THE MATTER OF SURPLUSING SHERIFF’S   ) 
DEPARTMENT VEHICLE: UNIT #07-01   )   O R D E R 12-0027 
2007 FORD RANGER          )     
 

 
 NOW ON THIS DAY, the above-entitled matter having come on 

regularly for consideration, said day being one duly set in term for the 

transaction of public business and a majority of the Court being present; and 

 IT APPEARING TO THE COURT: That above said vehicle is no 

longer required by the county; and  

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: That above said 

vehicle will be considered surplus and disposed of by the Wasco County 

Sheriff’s Department, in accordance with state laws governing the disposition 

of property. 

 DATED this 6th day of June, 2012. 

 

     WASCO COUNTY BOARD 
OF COMMISSIONERS 

      

 

     _______________________________ 
     Rod L. Runyon, Chair of Commission 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
     _______________________________ 
_______________________ Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 
Eric J. Nisley     
Wasco County District Attorney  

_______________________________ 
     Scott C. Hege, County Commissioner 



 

 

Discussion Item 

OCCF Amendment 

 

 WCCCF Memo 

 Amendment #2 to OCCF 2011-2012 County 

Intergovernmental Agreement #WAS1113 



MEMORANDUM 
To: Wasco County Board of Commissioners 

Commissioner Runyon, Chair 
Commissioner Holliday 
Commissioner Hege 

CC: Molly Rogers, Youth Services Director 

Monica Morris, Finance Manger 

From: Christa Rude, WCCCF Administrator 

Date: 6/1/2012 

Re: Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment for 2012-2013 

Greetings, 

Our Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) is being amended to reflect changes as follows: 

• Reduction to CASA (Court Appointed Special Advocates) to reflect only one year of funding as 
CASA is being transitioned to the Volunteer Commission. 

• Increase to Healthy Start to reflect BOTH years of our biennial agreement (the first IGA only 
reflected year one as the state was deliberating around funding for year two). 

BOTH of these changes have already been anticipated and have NO IMPACT to the current approved 
budget. 

Your signatures formally recognize changes we have discussed in previous sessions of the BOCC. I will be 
available first thing on June 6 to respond to any questions you may have. 

Thank you for your consideration of this amendment. 

ATTACHED 
• Amendment #2 to Oregon Commission on Children and Families 2011 -2013 County 
Intergovernmental Agreement #WAS1113 (please note highlighted line items under Exhibit 1 
Award) 
• Exhibit C: From the OriginaiiGA (for historical reference) 

Together we are building a healthy community for children and families. 

• Child abuse and neglect • Readiness to Learn 
• Homeless & Runaway Youth • Youth substance use 



AMENDMENT #2 TO  

OREGON COMMISSION ON CHILDREN AND FAMILIES 2011-2013 COUNTY 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT #WAS1113 
 
 

 This Amendment Number 2 (this “Amendment”) to Oregon Commission on 
Children and Families 2011-2013 County Intergovernmental Agreement between the 
parties hereto and dated as of July 1, 2011 (as amended from time to time, the 
“Agreement”), is entered into as of the date of the last signature hereto, by and between 
the State of Oregon acting by and through its State Commission on Children and Families 
(“Agency”) and Wasco County acting by and through its Local Commission on Children 
and Families (“County”).   
 

RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the Agency and County wish to modify the Award set forth in 
Exhibit C of the Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants and agreements 
contained herein and other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1. The Award section of Exhibit C of the Agreement is hereby amended to read in 

its entirety as set forth in Exhibit 1 attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference.   

 
2. County represents and warrants to Agency that the representations and warranties 

of County set forth in section 2 of Exhibit E of the Agreement are true and correct 
on the date hereof with the same effect as if made on the date hereof. 

 
3. Agency shall adjust the disbursement of the Award to County consistent with the 

change in the Award made by this Amendment. 
 
4. Capitalized words and phrases used but not defined herein shall have the 

meanings ascribed thereto in the Agreement. 
 
5. Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in 

full force and effect. 
 
6. The parties hereto ratify and approve the Agreement as herein amended. 
 
7. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which 

when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, 



notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories to the same counterpart.  Each 
copy of this Amendment so executed shall constitute an original. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as 
of the dates set forth below their respective signatures. 

 
 
STATE OF OREGON ACTING BY AND THROUGH 
ITS STATE COMMISSION ON CHILDREN AND FAMILIES 
 
By:_________________________________ 
Name:_______________________________ 
Title:________________________________ 
Date:________________________________ 
 
 
WASCO COUNTY ACTING BY AND THROUGH  
ITS LOCAL COMMISSION ON CHILDREN AND FAMILIES 
 
By:__________________________________ 
Name:________________________________ 
Title:_________________________________ 
Date:_________________________________ 
 



EXHIBIT 1 

 AWARD 
 
 

 
FUNDING AREA   GEN FUND FED FUNDS  CFDA NUMBER 

 

 
1.  Great Start    $ 22,175 $ 0    
 
2.  Children Youth and Families  $ 22,175 $ 0 
 
3.  Court Appointed Special Advocates $ 14,549 $ 0   
 
4.  Youth Investment   $ 0  $ 39,356 93.667 
 
5.  Youth Investment – 
     Relief Nurseries   $ 0  $ 0  93.667 
 
6.  Family Support Services  $ 0  $ 12,442 93.556 
 
7.  Basic Capacity   $ 227,351 $ 0   
 
8.  Relief Nurseries   $ 0  $ 0   
 
9.  Healthy Start   $ 264,115 $ 0  
 
10. JCP Prevention   $ 45,000 $ 0  
  

 
 

EXPLANATION OF AWARD 
 

The Award set forth above reflects the maximum amount of financial assistance that 

Agency will provide to County under this Agreement in support of Activities or Services in 

each of the specified Funding Areas.  The CFDA (Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance) 

Number specifies the source of federal funds as follows:  CFDA Number 93.667 specifies 

Title XX block grant funds, CFDA Number 93.556 specifies Title IV-B2 Family Support 

grant funds. 

 

[The balance of this page is intentionally left blank.] 

 



WASCO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SESSION 

June 6, 2012 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

 
1. April 4, 2012, Regular Session Minutes 

2. May 9, 2012, Regular Session Minutes 

3. BPA Financials 

 



 

 

 
 

WASCO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SESSION 

April 4, 2012 
 

 
  PRESENT: Rod L. Runyon, Chair of County Commission  
    Scott C. Hege, County Commissioner 
    Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 
    Tyler Stone, Administrative Officer 
    Kathy White, Interim Executive Assistant 
 
     
At 9:00 a.m. Chair Runyon called to order the Regular Session of the Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
Chair Runyon asked if there were any corrections or additions to today’s Agenda.   
 
Chair Runyon added the routing of purchase orders, Gorge Commission - April 
10th meeting, the Cove on I-84 to the discussion list. 
 
Commissioner Holliday added a cut-off date for information being submitted for 
inclusion to the BOCC session packet. 
 

 
 

John Roberts, Planning Department, presented information to the Board 
regarding PGE’s Cascade Crossing Project, the co-location of power lines from 
Bethell to Boardman, of which about 16 miles will cross into unincorporated parts 
of Wasco County. This application is application is being reviewed by AFSEC. 
PGE’s application has been deemed complete which means their clock has 
started ticking to get this project reviewed and completed. 
 
AFSEC has sent out a request for comments. Mr. Roberts brought with him the 
application exhibit (K) that is applicable to Wasco County. Comments are due by 
Friday, April 6, 2012. AFSEC has designated the Wasco County Board of 
Commissioners as a special advisory group. The Planning Department has 

OPEN TO DEPARTMENTS 
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reviewed and prepared comments which are to be accompanied by a letter from 
the County Commissioners.  
 
Thursday, April 5, 2012, the Planning Department will have comments along with 
a cover letter for BOCC review. They will be available to answer questions. Once 
the letter and comments have been reviewed and signed, the Planning 
Department will submit them to AFSEC by the deadline. 
 
We have not seen any issues but view this as an opportunity to point out any 
shortcomings in the application and as a county, what type of conditions do we 
think are important to this application. We expect to have seven or eight 
suggested conditions for the application, such as: 
 

1. Enter into a road use agreement 
2. Enter into a weed management plan 
3. Address fire suppression 
4. Reseed lay down areas 
5. Temporary housing concerns for work crews 

 
Overall most of the issues have already been mitigated. The project is scheduled 
for a 2015 construction start and a 2016 completion. 
 
Commissioner Hege: Is the application open for public comment? 
 It is not to that point yet. That will start after comments from the affected 
jurisdictions.  
 
Commissioner Runyon: Our Hunt Park project may play a part in the solution for 
temporary housing. 
 
Commissioner Holliday: When this project was first presented to us in 2008, 
much more of the line ran through Wasco County. The Warm Springs Tribe 
lobbied to have it go through tribal land. Wasco County lobbied to have it remain 
in the County because it meant millions of dollars in tax benefit. In the end, we 
will still get some of that benefit. 
 
 

  
Item #1 Approval of Title III (amended) 
 
 Approved unanimously 
 

CONSIDERATION of items listed on the Consent Agenda of April 4, 2012,  
(Attached). 
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Item #1 April 10, 2012, Gorge Commission Meeting  
  
Roger stated that at the upcoming meeting they will be starting to discuss the 
framework for how to deal with expansion applications. These are very 
preliminary discussions. He will report back to the Commission as to progress. Of 
course, the Commissioners are welcome to attend the meeting. 
 
Item #2 The Cove on I-84 
  
An email from Rep. Huffman has been circulating regarding the Cove across 
from Klindt’s farm on I-84 and making that more accessible to the public. It is 
used as a windsurfing and swimming area. Many years ago there were plans to 
make that a public area, but parking was always a problem – at one point they 
banned parking altogether. Some research has been done; the planning 
department located plans from about 25 years ago. There is really nothing 
coming forward for development of the Cove at this time.  
 
Item #3 Routing & Purchase Orders 
  
Commissioner Hege received an email appointing him as second approver for 
routing and purchase orders. Sherry has been doing the secondary approvals. 
There seems to be a glitch in the system as all three Commissioners have been 
receiving notifications. Tyler Stone believes it may be necessary to get Eden 
involved. Commission Chair Runyon stated that sometimes the emails come 
from individuals, rather than system generated. Those individuals may not be 
clear regarding who should receive the email and therefore send it to all. He 
would like to see some standardization with notification coming only to the Chair. 
Tyler will check on it. 
 
Item #4 Cut-off Dates for Document Submission for Board Packets 
 

Currently the cut-off date is the Thursday prior to scheduled sessions. Perhaps it 
should be as early as Monday of the week prior to scheduled sessions. With the 
transition to a new Executive Assistant, it will be some time before the process 
smoothes out. The department heads will be reminded or the importance of 
timely submission. If they cannot, they are always welcome to present during the 
open section of the session from 9:00 – 9:30 a.m. 
 
 
 

CONSIDERATION of items listed on the Discussion List of April 4, 2012,  
(Attached). 
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Item #5 Letter to the White House Re: 9th Circuit Court Ruling on Logging Roads 
 

This ruling will be very expensive to implement; $56 million for the permitting 
alone. Nick Pepper represents the group lobbying for a review of the decision. 
Commissioner Hege interjected that although the letter states that the forestry 
industry contributes millions to the economy, he believes it is in the hundreds of 
millions. Commission Chair Runyon asked that the words “my county” be 
changed to “our County.”  
 
{{{The letter is supported by the Board with the requested changes. 
Corrections will be made and the letter will be returned to the BOCC for 
signatures today.}}} 
  
The Board recessed at 9:28 a.m. 
 
The Board reconvened at 9:30 a.m. 
 

  
Item #1 Continuation of Public Hearing on Chapter 19 Energy Ordinance 
Planning Legislative Hearing PLALEG-09-06-003 
 

Commission Chair Runyon: This legislative hearing is to consider recommending 
amendments to the Wasco County Land Use and Development Ordinance 
related to energy production, consumption and conservation, reformatting and 
modernizing language that is out-of-date or incorrect, creating consistency with 
State regulations, and making other recommendations appropriate for Wasco 
County. This hearing is closed to public testimony; the Board has accepted 
written testimony until the opening of this meeting. The purpose of today’s 
hearing is for deliberation, staff report changes based on evidence, testimony 
and public comment. Commission Chair Runyon introduced John Roberts, 
Director of the Wasco County Planning Department. 
 
Mr. Roberts introduced his staff: Jeanette - Senior Planner, Joey – Associate 
Planner. He then presented the Staff Report, a clean version of Chapter 19, and 
a document showing all the proposed changes (included in Board packet) to the 
Board.  
 
This is the 5th public hearing on the proposed changes to the Chapter 19 Energy 
Ordinance. This process has included a lot of hard work and good research. The 
public has been included in this very transparent process in a constructive way.  

CONSIDERATION of items listed on the Agenda of April 4, 2012,  
(Attached). 
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Although there are changes to sections 1,2,3,4, 15, and 19 totaling 100 pages. 
We really need to address a couple sentences in those 100 pages. These 
amendments address more than just wind energy and will streamline some of the 
planning and improve code. Todd deserves a lot of credit for the amount of work 
he has invested in the project. No regulation is perfect and all are subject to 
interpretation; if we get to a place where it is not working, then we will have to 
make adjustments just as we are now.  
 
The other challenge is that “what-ifs” are unlimited. We have seen many of those 
already, both internally and with the public. At some point, we must move forward 
to adoption. Chapter 19 needs to be updated as it is no longer useful considering 
it is based on 1980’s technology.  
 
Traditionally, commercial interests get most of the attention, but the non-
commercial applications will be used the most. Good definitions have been 
added and it will categorize applications giving the Planning Department better 
guidelines for applying the regulations. Related and supporting facilities are now 
addressed and comprehensive planning will be included. Referrals to EFSEC will 
be easier. 
 
Commissioner Hege: What issues will we see in the way of nuisance issues? 
The new regulations will allow adjacent property owners to look at potential 
impacts of building. The new regulations give more power to adjacent property 
owners. 
 
Commissioner Hege: Will the installation of solar panels, for instance, be easier? 
It makes the decision faster as we will have better criteria. 
 
At the March 20th hearing and following that hearing, we have received written 
comments, which have been included in your board packet. Those comments fall 
into three categories: setbacks, noise standards and participating vs. non-
participating land-owners. 
 
Setbacks 
 
In the current ordinance there are only two setbacks and they are not clear 
regarding commercial and non-commercial application. Fall height is not clearly 
defined. We propose four setbacks: 
  

 1 mile non-resource zones (measure from property line and with no 
provision for adjustment or waiver).  More complicated but addresses 
many concerns of residences that live in rural-residential properties. 

 ¾ of mile city limits of Urban Growth Boundary (provision for adjustment; 
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 Non participating landowner resource lands: 2/3 of a mile residence on ag 
and forest land (resource lands); with adjustment provision 

 Participating landowner resource lands – no setback 

 Other – do have some fall-height provisions for roads, major and minor 
utilities (1.5 and 1.1 fall height) 
 

As wind energy is developed, the adequacy of these setbacks will become 
clearer. It is unlikely, but possible that wind energy production will be located 
near residential zones. The adjustment provision of the ordinance allows for 
some flexibility.  
 
Noise 
 
Noise standards are difficult to address. No matter what setbacks we write the 
DEQ noise standards are strict and can override county ordinances. 
Measurement of noise levels is complicated. It is incumbent upon participating 
and non-participating landowners to serve as the checks and balances for 
enforcement of these regulations. The DEQ requires a 1.5 mile setback from 
residences. A signed waiver can reduce that requirement to as little as ¼ mile.  
 
Commissioner Hege: How would a landowner know if the noise levels are 
exceeded? What would the County do? Anything less than 105 megawatts is 
reviewed by the County. Anything over that level gets a referral from the State in 
which case we would defer to the State for approval. Smaller projects would 
require diligence on our part to be certain regulations are enforced.  
 
Commissioner Hege: Is there a process, post-construction, for a non-participating 
landowner to file a complaint? Yes, but we would have to review statute and it 
would probably go through the state. 
 
Participating vs. Non-participating Landowners 
 
As Todd said at the February 15th, meeting: Our setbacks are a safe harbor, a 
safety net. People not participating in the project are still protected and have an 
opportunity for influence as it relates to the impact on them. To be participating 
landowners must have signed consent on file. 
 
Suggested and Final Changes 
 
The staff report outlines what has been changed since March 4, 2012:  
 

 Lighting 

 Non-resource standards 
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 Road use 

 Decommissioning 

 Setbacks 
 
Final changes are in some ways a response to recent comment (see Exhibit A).  
 
Radar triggered lighting will not be required as the technology is not practical for 
full implementation. Radar triggered lighting requirements may be applied on a 
case-by-case basis. Language has been added to minimize light pollution. 
 
Setbacks are outlined on page 2 of Exhibit A and we have reviewed those today.  
 
The Planning Department will apply the following six criteria to landowners 
applying for permits: 
 

1. Consent 

2. Compliance with DEQ 

3. Project would not force change to adjacent land for farm/forest use 

4. Project would not unduly burden existing infrastructure 

5. Project would not impair safety 

6. Project would not adversely affect the environmental resources 

 
Non-Resource Zone 
 
Setbacks will be 1 mile from a property boundary - no adjustments. DEQ requires 
1.5 miles. Setbacks will be ¾ mile setbacks from city limits or urban growth 
boundaries or urban reserves with adjustments available. Consent would come 
from the city rather than the landowner. 
 
Commissioner Hege: Hypothetically, how would that happen? (Mr. Roberts) It 
would be part of the application process. When the landowner makes the 
request, they would be advised to go to the city for consent. The county would 
not move forward without that consent. The city would probably go through a 
similar process of public hearings. Whatever their process, we would accept their 
consent or denial. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: We have gone through the questions. I was worried 
that the county had provisions and was being pressured into making 
unnecessary changes. However, John has made a case for the changes being 
necessary. Since the State noise rules override the County, are regulations 
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necessary at all? (Mr. Roberts) Gaps have been indentified and filled. Participant 
and non-participant rules are necessary.  
 
Commission Chair Runyon: I am happy to see that non-participants will have a 
voice. 
 
Commissioner Holliday: I agree with my colleagues in their accolades for the 
work done by the Planning Department. I feel they have more than adequately 
addressed public concerns and Commission concerns. Wasco County has been 
criticized for being too restrictive and this illustrates our flexibility. I especially 
appreciate the deference to cities to make their decisions regarding requests to 
alter waivers. 
 
Commissioner Hege: Does decommissioning have to be funded from the 
beginning and maintained throughout the life of the project? Is there a 
mechanism for funding post-production? How is the County addressing this 
issue? (Mr. Roberts) If it is an EFSEC project there is no leeway. The County can 
negotiate the specifics of decommissioning plans and will do so case by case. 
There will be decommissioning agreements with oversight.  
 
Commissioner Hege: Are we not requiring the same regulations as the State is 
for decommissioning? (Mr. Roberts) We are more flexible and can negotiate the 
conditions of the decommissioning plan. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: I was concerned that regulations would create 
prohibitive expense. I am pleased that the proposed regulations alleviate that. 
 
Commissioner Hege: How are large-scale solar projects going to be dealt with as 
they relate to nuisance regulations? (Mr. Roberts) There are standards for 
evaluating that outline evaluating that as part of the approval process for both 
commercial and non-commercial applications. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: This ordinance address the spectrum of energy 
sources including hydro, wind, petroleum, and solar. If, down the line, we find 
gaps or inadequacies, we can make adjustments to the regulations. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon outlined the choices before the Commission: 
 

 Continue the discussion to a future date 

 Approve proposed amendments 

 Deny proposed amendments 

 Approve some, but not all proposed amendments 
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Commissioner Holliday: I hereby make a motion to approve the proposed 
amendments to chapters 1, 2, 3, 4, 15, and 19 of the Wasco County Land Use 
and Development Ordinance regarding planning case: PLALEG-09-06-003, 
approved by the Wasco County Planning Commission, in light of the applicable 
criteria and findings presented in the staff report to the Board dated February 15, 
2012, and as contained in the attachment titled “Land Use and Development 
Ordinance Amendments,” Final Draft, dated April 4, 2012,” with the following 
additional amendments: Attachment A and Staff Report Exhibit A. 
 

 The planning department retain discretion to make non-substantive 
changes to the amendments to create and ensure consistency with: title 
page, table of contents, formatting page numbering, headers, spacing, 
indentation, underlining, grammar, incomplete sentences, and cross 
referencing between chapters; 

 With additional amendments as proposed by staff as presented today 

 

Commissioner Hege seconded the motion. 

Commission Chair Runyon: Is there any further discussion? 
 
Commissioner Hege stated that this ordinance is a good balance of interests, 
public and private. Sherman County has enjoyed broad based benefits from their 
wind energy program. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: They would like to use our regulations as a model. 
Some think the process too long, others too short. We are just providing an 
opportunity for stakeholders to be heard. He, again, expressed his appreciation 
for the efforts and dedication of the Planning Department staff. 
 
Commissioner Holliday: We didn’t make this decision in the dark. We visited 
Sherman County with private citizens to tour their facilities. Our plan addresses 
both ends of the County. 
 
{{{The motion was approved.}}} 
 
The Board recessed at 10:38 a.m. 
 
The Board reconvened at 10:48 a.m. 

 

CONSIDERATION of items listed on the Discussion List of April 4, 2012,  
(Attached). 
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Item #6 Legal Counsel for Wasco County 
 

Kathy McBride was doing a lot of the legal review for DA Nisley. That work is now 
falling back to DA Nisley. The discussion is around continuing that practice or 
finding an alternative. Tyler Stone suggested that there are a number of 
alternatives: 
 

 Keep the current system, training the new assistant to fill the role Kathy 
McBride had in the process 

 Hire a paralegal 

 Hire an in-house attorney who would take over all of the County’s legal 
work 

 Retain a law firm 

 Move all of the duties to County Counsel 

 
Mr. Stone went on to say that with a new assistant soon to be hired, this would 
be a good time to make any changes.  
 
DA Nisley added that legal counsel would not be a person who prepares 
documents but rather answers to the Commission and represents the County 
and the interests of County officials in their capacity in the county. Dan Olsen is 
former county counsel for Washington County. He has indicated a willingness to 
be on retainer @ $500 per month with and hourly rate beyond the minimum time. 
That is an option that allows you to not hire a full-time county counsel. In 1999 I 
took on that role as a supplement to my duties as District Attorney.  I am happy 
to continue to assist Tyler in researching options. The advantage of not having a 
full-time attorney is that you can access specialty attorneys. 
 
Commissioner Hege: The one thing I thought of is that we were already paying 
Kathy a stipend to do the legal work. We can redirect that money toward another 
solution. A full-time person would be far more than that. Kathy’s replacement will 
be more administrative in their role and will move to Tyler’s office. With the 
uncertain economy, we should be conservative in our commitment to future 
expenditures. We should be prudent in how we manage our resources for filling 
these needs. 
 
Commissioner Holliday: I agree with Scott in that we don’t want to spend too 
much. Perhaps we can hire someone part-time. Can Eric’s office support this 
function? 
 
DA Nisley stated that he does not believe that the county is large enough to have 
a dedicated counsel. He suggests that they hire someone who would probably be 
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remotely located. Most counties have someone like that. A staff person would 
prepare the document and send it to counsel who would review and return to 
county. 
 
Mr. Stone observed that the biggest challenge is having someone who is capable 
in this position who can develop the legal documents. Can the new person 
manage the packet and prepare the documents? Is there anyone on Eric’s staff 
who could handle that? 
 
DA Nisley responded that he has never had anyone on staff to do that, Kathy did 
that. They worked together over the years to for her to develop the necessary 
skill set to do that. An attorney still has to approve the document as to form.  The 
County may want to hire a part-time legal secretary. 
 
Tyler pointed out that if the County contracts out, someone in that office would 
prepare the document and the County would be charged.  
 
Commissioner Holliday said that it is not rocket science; surely someone can be 
trained to do that. Eric could work with someone for that. 
 
DA Nisley said he would be happy to do that, but Tyler may have some special 
projects that will need outside counsel. 
 
Tyler reminded the Board that Kathy also took care of properties and really didn’t 
have the time to keep up on that. There are still properties out there that need 
attention. 
 
DA Nisley said that the title companies could be doing some of that work. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon interjected that what needs to be done as a group is 
to determine what the County wants the Executive Assistant to be doing. Do we 
need to do a public notice for our consideration? Can we put out an RFP? 
 
DA Nisley responded that they could do that. 
 
Mr. Stone: There is an opportunity here to make some decisions. Are we going to 
not use Eric in the same way we have traditionally done? 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: If we go in the direction of an RFP, we would not 
need Eric. 
 
DA Nisley: What I do now would cost you more to go outside to get. 
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Commissioner Holliday: We really need to determine what it is we want them to 
do and where you want them to do that before we can determine what we are 
looking for. We need to develop some kind of RFP. 
 
Eric said that Kathy McBride had a template she worked from to create the 
documents. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: We will have to entertain more discussion. Tyler will 
bring an outline of duties to the Commission for review. 
 

 
Item #2 Enhanced Interoperability Grant Funding Application 
 

Kathi Hall outlined the documents provided to the Board in their packet.   
 
The history is that the state had a grant opportunity for immunization grant 
announced in August with a deadline in the fall. They did not have enough 
applicants and so they reopened for applications in February. We submitted and 
were awarded the $35,000 for the enhancement of our current EMR to work with 
the State’s immunization database. The first $48,650 was too high and we asked 
that they include only the immunization part, first year is $34,500. Maintenance 
fees will be $4200 and $4400 in consecutive years.  
 
Monica Morris, Finance Manager: – This module is in addition to the medical 
records module they have recently purchased. Public Health has some budgeted 
funds that contractually cannot be spent this year. With the new request, the cost 
of the module is what the grant amount is. The grant will not cover maintenance 
fees -- $21K and will grow each year. They do have some Medicaid money 
coming in that will help pay for that. My only concern is that the annual cost is 
roaming at a time when public funds are not stable. They are looking at breaking 
out into their own district. They do need this or something like this to meet their 
meaningful use obligations.  
 
Commissioner Hege: What are you currently doing? (Ms. Hall) We have to 
manually enter into both systems.  
 
Commissioner Hege: It is a cost of about $50K – wouldn’t it be less expensive to 
hire someone to do data entry? The payback is 17 years. Won’t the software be 
outdated in 5? (Ms. Hall) That is what the maintenance fees are for, so that the 
vendor will keep us up-to-date. I see it being viable for 15-20 years. 
 

CONSIDERATION of items listed on the Agenda of April 4, 2012,  
(Attached). 
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Ms. Morris: The true cost of the asset is $34K, with a maintenance fee each year. 
 
Commissioner Holliday: If the district goes out on its own, how will they generate 
the revenue? (Ms. Hall) We expect to double the output of our new officer. 
 
Ms. Morris: If I were to look at this as my department, I would have to look at ROI 
both in dollars and outcomes. Is the cost and value comparable? 
 
Ms. Hall: If we do not meet meaningful use we will be fined in the future. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: How long is the contract? (Ms. Hall) It is a 3-year 
contract. 
 
Mr. Stone: Once you are in, you are really in for at least 5 years. This is similar to 
Eden, but dealing with public health. 
 
Paul Ferguson, Information Services Manager: A big part of this is linking up with 
the state program. As their systems develop and increase, this may put us in a 
position to take advantage of their improvements. This software will allow our 
system to communicate with the state system. It should also allow for 
communication with other entities. 
 
Commissioner Hege: We just started using this vendor. How is it going? (Ms. 
Hall) It is going well. We have bi-monthly trainings with the vendor who has been 
very supportive. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: Do we really have a choice? (Mr. Stone) There is 
always a choice, but Public Health has renegotiated so that it is within the grant. 
The issue is really the ongoing maintenance costs. I look more favorably on it, 
but it would be imperative that Public Health meet their commitment to increase 
revenue/decrease costs to pay for the ongoing costs. 
 
Ms. Morris: It will still have costs. Just because we get a grant doesn’t mean we 
should take it. There are always costs to the County associated with any grant. 
 
Commissioner Hege: In terms of the Health District Board, are they aware of this 
issue? (Ms. Hall) It has not really been brought before the Health District Board 
because it has to be approved by BOCC first.  
 
Mr. Stone: The grant must be approved with and exemption from findings for the 
vendor since we are already using this vendor. 
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{{{Commissioner Hege moved to accept and approve Agreement #138468 
State of Oregon HS-HER Enhanced Interoperability Grant Agreement. 
Commissioner Holliday seconded the motion. Motion passed.}}} 
{{{Commissioner Hege moved to exempt vendor from bidding process – 
Special Exemption 8. Commissioner Holliday seconded the motion. Motion 
passed.}}} 
 
{{{Commissioner Hege moved to accept and approve the Net Smart 
Addendum included in the Board packet. Commissioner Holliday seconded 
the motion. Motion passed.}}} 
 
Item #3 Water Shed/Mosier Project 
 

Kate Conley, Watershed Coordinator, explained that they are currently in the 
design phase of the Honald/Byers Side Channel project which is their 1st priority. 
Ms. Conley then led the Board through a Power Point presentation outlining the 
benefits of the Honald/Byers Side Channel project. (see attached) The project 
budget is included in the Power Point. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon observed that this will be good for homes in the flood 
zone.  
 
Ms. Conley explained that they are requesting a letter of support and estimate of 
in-kind match by April 13, 2013, to be submitted with their grant application. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon suggested that she contact Public Works to discuss 
the possibility of in-kind from that department. 
 
Ms. Conley: Who would be my point of contact for the letter? Mr. Stone. 
 
Commissioner Holliday: At some point in the future we might be able to provide a 
work crew to help. 
 
The Board recessed for lunch at 12:05 p.m. 
 
The Board reconvened at 1:00 p.m. 
 
Item #4 The new Oregon Youth Authority Program at NORCOR 
 
Jeff Justesen, NORCOR Juvenile Facility Manager, introduced Josh, who is 
participating in the program. 
 
The decision for NORCOR to enter into contract for a residential treatment 
program began 1.5 years ago. The state budget called for a reduction of 525 of 
900 beds at youth correctional facilities. Of the 900, a certain number were for 
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Measure 11 offenders (public safety beds). The reduction would devastate 
system’s ability to work with youth. The final budget reduction was150 beds. 
Closed custody beds are the most expensive beds. Options have been expanded 
in residential community settings. We are looking to deal with youth who are on 
probation and enhance the communities’ ability to deal with these youth who 
would otherwise be unsupervised.  
 
A year ago we began work on a proposal for 12 beds, BRS level 5 which allows 
for federal financial support for these beds. Level 5 is the highest level. NORCOR 
has to provide certain staffing ratios and make an hourly commitment. The RFP 
covers youth 12-25 years old, usually between the ages of 16 and 20, accepting 
youth from any county throughout the state. Inappropriate referrals can be denied 
and some referrals are given priority based on geography. Some Youth are in 
need of assessments for placement and stay in the temporary beds during that 
time. Youth at risk from revocation from escaping non-secure settings are not 
ready for treatment and stay. These are youth who endanger other youth in 
residential settings or who have been discharged from residential programs for a 
variety of reasons. 
 
Our program focuses on TOOLS: Taking Ownership of Life Schools. CJ Tool 
runs the program with a focus on education and life skills. The structure and 
routine of the program helps support these goals. Those who do not have GED 
or diploma go to school during the day at NORCOR. We try to keep detention 
groups separate from the Tool Group. District 21 provides the education piece 
which is required by contract. There is a teacher and an instructional assistant 
(new to the program this year).  
 
Life skills are also taught. For instance Josh participated in work readiness 
programs. Youth do different jobs in the facility and greenhouse where the goal is 
to teach the good work habits. We also do evidence based groups for behavior 
modification. Criminal thinking groups are also run. Youth are involved with 
community service through a variety of organizations – Youth Services, Home at 
Last, etc. We are also working on mentorships and apprenticeships.  
 
One of the reasons education is important: youth in custody have a recidivism 
rate of 28% with no education, 14% if they have an associate’s degree, 8% with 
a bachelor’s degree, and 0% with a master’s degree. Mr. Justesen turned the 
floor over to Josh, who is the oldest youth currently in the program. 
 
Josh explained that he was repeatedly in trouble, getting many parole violations. 
He has spent quite a bit of time in youth facilities. He went to a Polk county 
independent living program and moved back to his home town. Without a solid 
foundation he lost his way and became involved with drugs. His Parole Officer 
began to work intensively with him telling him he was nearing his last chance and 
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wanted him self-commit to rehabilitation. He was arrested again and his Parole 
Officer decided to send him to the transitional program at NORCOR. 
 
Since being at NORCOR, he has gained 50 pounds and is doing much better. He 
finds the mental health support to be extremely helpful. Jeff Albin is the man who 
runs the groups. This part of the program has fostered the most growth.  He goes 
to meetings/groups daily. The staff is very willing to work with the youth. He also 
participates in yoga meditation and AA. The school appears to be excellent.  The 
TOOLS program is comprehensive. Josh thinks it should be expanded. It has 
really turned him around and he is ready to go out and be part of the community. 
He didn’t want to go into a sobriety program but now has extended his time 
because he wants to enter an independent living program that supports sobriety.  
 
Mr. Justesen wanted the board to know that he didn’t coach Josh. He explained 
that yoga, meditation and drum therapy are evidence-based programs for 
reducing anxiety, stress and depression. Two-thirds of the males entering the 
program have drug and alcohol issues; a substantial percentage has mental 
health issues. We are here to prep them to move on. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: How old are you Josh? (Josh) I recently turned 20. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: Do you realize how many skills you have? You have 
great skills.  (Josh) They’ve been gone for about a year. My drug use – I thought 
I was gone forever. This is the longest I’ve ever been clean for. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: Well, you’re not gone forever; you’ve got some great 
communicative skills. Keep working on it. 
 
Commissioner Hege: Is Josh a shining example? What kind of problems do you 
deal with? (Mr. Justesen) Josh presented with behaviors that are typical of the 
kids we see. Some are not doing as well, but many have made substantial 
progress as has Josh. 
 
Commissioner Holliday: Are the youth both male and female? (Mr. Justesen) 
There are just males in our program. Females are sent to other facilities for 
women only. The facilities are gender specific. 
 
This is an expensive program to run, but we felt it was important to keep it 
running and investment in our youth and our future. There is currently an RFP 
out for more beds and we would like to double the number of beds we offer.  
Most facilities have openings available immediately, but we have a wait list for 
our program. We are still new and changing all the time. The kids who are in the 
program now are helping to build the program as we learn what works for them. 
Six months from now it will look different still. 
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We are breaking even now. If we expand the program we will add additional staff. 
It is important that we are sustainable and perhaps have a profit for reinvestment. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: Expansion will also add jobs to the community which 
is a big deal. 
 
Commissioner Holliday to Jim Weed: If you had had this program earlier, would it 
have positively impacted the adult criminal population? (Mr. Weed) Absolutely! 
We have a far greater opportunity to affect change in the juvenile population than 
we do in the adult population.  
 
Mr. Justesen: The new jobs would be bachelor level education positions. We are 
also building at NORCOR to make ourselves more attractive to the state and 
federal government to contract with us. This includes green spaces and 
recreational areas. Jim is a huge supporter of this pilot program. We are working 
on cost effectiveness, growth and a plan for NORCOR in the future. 
 
Commissioner Hege to Mr. Justesen: How do the mentorships work? Do you 
need more businesses to step up? (Mr. Justesen) We will in the future. The youth 
have to earn the right to participate in the mentorship program. They are always 
supervised. CJ Tool is already working on that. 
 
Item #5 Burn Restriction Ordinance Request – City of The Dalles 
 

Julie Krueger, City Clerk, along with member of the City’s Burn Ordinance 
Committee - Terry Meyers, Dan Hamill and Karen Murray from Tri-County waste 
appeared before the Board to request that they extend the City ordinance to 
County’s urban growth boundary. They believe the extension would help to avoid 
confusion and protect citizen’s health. 
 
Dan Hamill from the Fire District said that his experience in another county that 
was faced with an air quality issue was that they enforced a ban. One of the 
issues that swayed them was the fact that sometimes the restriction applied to 
one person, but not to a neighbor across the street. Mr. Hamill recommends 
adopting the ordinance county wide and would like to open a discussion with the 
county. 
 
Karen Murray from Tri-county supports the idea and would like to see it be 
adopted county-wide and support it with programs for yard debris collection and 
shred events.  
 
Terry Meyers, lay member of the committee, added that the air we breathe is not 
contained by geographical boundaries. It makes sense to have it cover the entire 
area. 
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Commission Chair Runyon: This has been a topic of my morning group. I have a 
burn barrel. I don’t burn things I shouldn’t. I get a legal permit. Under the 
ordinance, if I have a barrel I can’t burn but if I dump it in my yard, I can. 
 
Mr. Hamill: I can speak on the fire-response side when it comes to burn barrels. 
Unfortunately, we do have the individuals out there who are burning plastics. If 
you were to follow the DEQ rules, only natural products can be burned. The 
argument then becomes – if you are burning letters that have plastic windows, 
technically, by statute, you are burning non-legal stuff – but that’s pretty minimal. 
We have other people illegal out there who are just flat burning household trash. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: Don’t we already have laws? (Mr. Hamill) Yes, but 
DEQ doesn’t have enforcement ability. Neither do local fire departments that 
enforce city ordinance. The majority of burn barrels in the community cannot 
meet ordinances regarding distances from buildings and property lines. This 
ordinance was spearheaded by citizens in conjunction with officials who served 
as advisors. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon: My barrel is proper and I think it is safer than a pile in 
my yard. The issue regarding the smoke crossing the line could go on forever. 
DEQ has a 3-mile radius for burning. We allow the orchardists to burn diseased 
trees as agricultural. 
 
Ms. Krueger: Part of the theory is that we only want to go out to the urban growth 
area to complete the area. 
 
Commissioner Hege: We have had this same problem with codes enforcement. 
County codes enforcement and city codes enforcement have not been able to 
effectively deal with that issue. Wherever we draw the line, there will be someone 
on the other side of that line to whom the regulations do not apply. The people 
who live more rurally will probably not like this idea. 
 
Commissioner Holliday: In Maupin, we have burn barrels. We have someone 
who checks them and reports violations. I would have to hear from the folks who 
would be affected before I entertained passing an ordinance. 
 
Ms. Meyers: When serving meals on wheels, I found that there are many people 
with breathing issues and many geographical pockets where the smoke hangs in 
the air.  
 
Commission Chair Runyon: I understand what you are saying. There are those 
who object to wood burning stoves. We will have to gather more information. 
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Mr. Hamill: I understand the point about the arbitrary line. For enforcement, the 
urban growth areas will be easier. If they don’t meet the requirements for a fire 
department response, they will be referred to codes enforcement. The straighter 
urban growth area boundary line would make it easier for enforcement. The 
current City line is zig zaggy. 
 
Commissioner Holliday: We hope that public input will give us some direction. 
Keith and John can help with that. Dan will also offer support.  
 
Ms. Krueger offered to put together information that may help with the process. 
 
Item #6 Surplus Vehicles 
 

Sheriff Lane Magill told the Board that in February they had a meeting to discuss 
what vehicles needed to be surplused. He is here requesting that the county 
release the following vehicles for disposal. 
 

 1979 Ford ambulance – it has been unused for 5-7 years (auction) 

 1996 Jeep Cherokee (Community Corrections Unit 9601) – Based on the 
County Vehicle Policy it has run out of time. 

 1999 Ford Explorer (IT Unit 99-34) has met time and mileage 
requirements 

 2002 Impala (Wasco County Planning Unit 02-07) has met both the age 
and mileage requirement 

 
 
Sheriff Magill recommends liquidating all the above listed vehicles, except the 
ambulance, by means other than the spring auction where. He is confident the 
County can benefit from high sale prices through a sealed bid. He has already 
spoken to the District Attorney about this option. Based on Sheriff Magill’s 
research the county could get 2-3 times the money than at auction. He proposes 
running a 30 day ad for $75-$110 and perhaps listing the vehicles on eBay 
and/or craigslist. He anticipates $6,000 - $7,000 in return rather than the $1,500 
that might be expected from spring auction. If unsuccessful, the County could 
always hold them for auction in the fall. 
 
In addition, he plans to move 3 of the patrol vehicles out. Two will go to the 
Assessor’s office and one to Planning. The vehicles that are being replaced at 
the Assessor’s office will go to Planning and Corrections. 
 
He went on to explain that there is the potential of another vehicle from the 
Animal Control. It could be sold or moved to another department. City has also 
requested that that vehicle be transferred to them if they pick up Animal Control. 
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Commission Chair Runyon: This has nothing to do with public works? (Mr. Stone) 
No, Public Works specialty vehicles, while in the vehicle plan do not necessarily 
fall under the same rules. 
 
{{{Commissioner Holliday made a motion to surplus the 4 named vehicles. 
Commissioner Hege seconded. Motion passed.}}} 
 
Item #7 Wasco County Sheriff Strategic Plan 
 

Sheriff Magill explained that the Strategic Plan is designed to have semi-annual 
and annual reports. When they looked at it, he became aware that it was too far 
away from the budget process to be able to base decision on. In the updated 
plan, the dates have been removed.  
 
The second issue is the 6 primary goals. The main focus of the plan in those goal 
areas is financial assistance through the AOC to have a web page and place 
reporting data on the internet as well as place forms on line to expedite 
processes. The AOC could not provide funding so some of the report goals were 
thwarted.  In the meantime, they have developed a county newsletter that has 
gotten very good feedback. 
 
They were putting in a radio tower which was slowed by FCC regulations. The 
contractor took on the FCC process without additional charge. The tower was put 
into use starting in February and MDT coverage is now 60% better in southern 
Wasco County.   
 
They were granted $27,600 in addition funding from Homeland Security Grant 
Fund to upgrade 911 and mobile data systems. Additional funding was directed 
to The Dalles Police who will upgrade Sirosis Park for radio antennas. Homeland 
Security has advised that next year funding will be reduced to $12,000. They 
looked at upgrading to digital but it is millions of dollars and not feasible. The 
radio system and communication plan is nearly complete which will give us 12-15 
years of longevity. 
 
Patrol division has seen a great increase. We are grateful for the extra 1.5 
positions. It has had an impact. It has increased employee morale and increased 
patrols. They had to release one person during the probationary period and will 
replace that person by the end of May from a previous list. 
 
With the addition of the 1.5 positions they were able to get someone back on the 
Mid-Columbia Interagency Narcotics Task Force. That person started on April 2, 
2012. The remaining .5 position will be used for the Marine Safety Officer. 
 
They could not afford a new interview room, but will try to work that out next year. 
They requested a part-time investigator. We had a line item for a person to do 
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background checks. Looking at the statistics, the need for background checks 
has significantly diminished. That person can now help with evidence process 
which frees up the investigator which alleviates the need for the additional part-
time investigator. They will be watching to see what the ROI will be with the new 
arrangement. 
 
Emergency Management has completed a lot of projects. The backup generator 
is up and running and very reliable. The Hazard Mitigation Plan should be 
complete by September. The Operations Plan update should be done by month 
end. They are looking at an outside vendor to provide an Emergency alert 
system. 
 
The backup radio system at the Juniper Flat radio station is up and running. 
 
911 policy and procedure manual was on a timeline but we found it was much 
more involved than anticipated. It should be done by year end. 
 
The hard mapping system is obsolete. They will go with electronic system that is 
more than 50% cheaper and will be accessible in the patrol cars as well as 
dispatch and search and rescue. 
 
We have not been able to fill the current position for 911 dispatch due to the 
inability of applicants to pass a background check. They will not request another 
position until that is resolved. 
 
Two new administrative assistants and two new parole and probation officers 
have been added to Community corrections.  
 
NORCOR video system for visitation proved to be too costly even though it is a 
fee based program. They are looking at an outside vendor to do that.  
 
NORCOR is working with ICE and the US Marshalls for the housing of inmates. 
He fully supports the current plan to open our beds to those agencies to generate 
revenue. The Oregon Youth Authority is impressed with the program at 
NORCOR and would like to see it increase which will increase revenue by 
$200,000 per year. 
 
We are in the process of doing 3 background checks on volunteers which will 
alleviate some budget issues. The utilization of volunteers will see an ROI of 
$6,000 - $10,000 per year. 
 
Building a fingerprint cabinet was brought in under budget which means it pays 
for itself in 6 months rather than one year.  
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Commission Chair Runyon: Great report. I am very happy about the additional 
employees.  
 
Sheriff Magill: We are only 4 short of 24/7 full staffing. Deputy Ward graduates 
the April 24, 2012. Another deputy graduates in June with a third beginning the 
academy in July. 
 
Mr. Stone: We are very appreciative to Lane for the great work on the plan. 
 
Commissioner Holliday: Is the Marine Deputy doing marine stuff now? (Sheriff 
Magill) We picked up a deputy from the Seaside Police Department, Gavin 
Marvel. He is a lateral certified police officer and wanted to move to the marine 
division. He is currently at the marine academy and starts May 1. He will be 
working with the rafters in Maupin. 
 
Commissioner Holliday: We will have a meeting on the April18th that we would 
like to have him at.  
 
Commission Chair Runyon: I would like to recognize that there are two 
commission candidates who are in attendance. I would also like to say, for the 
benefit of the press, that Gladys Sherran is 93 today. Gladys was one of the first 
nurses into Japan after the bomb. There will be a celebration today at OVH.  
 
Commission Chair Runyon adjourned the session at 2:35 p.m. 
 
      WASCO COUNTY BOARD  
      OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Rod L. Runyon, Chair of Commission 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Scott Hege, County Commissioner 
 



 

1 | P a g e  

 

 
 

WASCO COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SESSION 

May 9, 2012 
 

 
  PRESENT: Rod L. Runyon, Chair of County Commission  
    Scott C. Hege, County Commissioner 
    Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 
    Tyler Stone, Administrative Officer 
    Kathy White, Interim Executive Assistant 
 
     
At 2:00 p.m. Chair Runyon called to order the Regular Session of the Board of 
Commissioners. 
 

 
Commission Chair Runyon called upon Christa Rude, Administrator for the 
Wasco County Commission on Children and Families, to address the Board 
regarding two of the discussion list items: CASA Funding & WCCCF Funding 
Allocation. Ms. Rude began by sharing information regarding the Safe Sanctuary 
Model being brought to our community by the Safe Schools Healthy Students 
grant and Core Management Team. The goal of the model is to assist 
communities in overcoming shared trauma in order to move towards progress. 
 
Ms. Rude then explained that the CASA amendment redirects fiscal responsibility 
for CASA pass-through funding from the Wasco County Commission on Children 
and Families to another Oregon State agency effective July1, 2012. CASA 
funding is 100% pass-through, therefore the change will have no impact on any 
Wasco County budgets. Monica Morris has been copied on the change. 
 
The second agreement allocates previously unallocated funds for the WCCCF.  
 

CONSIDERATION of items listed on the Discussion List of April 4, 2012,  
(Attached). 
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Commissioner Holliday made a motion to approve both the CASA amendment 
and the WCCCF funds allocation agreement. Commissioner Hege seconded the 
motion.  
 
{{{Amendment #1 to the Oregon Commission on Children and Families 
2011-2013 County Intergovernmental Agreement #WAS1113 and the 
WCCCF Funding Agreement Amendment were passed unanimously.}}} 
 
 
 
 
Chair Runyon asked if there were any corrections or additions to today’s Agenda.  
There were none. 
 
He then asked for any issues from the public. There were none. 
 
He then asked for anything from department heads. Fred Davis, Facilities 
Manager, explained the process for securing facilities service for the Pine Hollow 
facility (discussion item). There being only one applicant and that applicant 
having been the contractor for last fiscal year, Mr. Davis asked that the 
Commission act on the contract so that the facilities maintenance can begin for 
the season.  
 
Commissioner Holliday made a motion to approve the Personal Services 
Contract between Wasco County and Lee Hazel to perform facilities 
maintenance at the Pine Hollow Reservoir. Commissioner Hege seconded the 
motion with the comment that although the Commission is just now approving the 
contract, work actually began on May 1, 2012.  
 
{{{The Personal Services Contract Between Wasco County Oregon and Lee 
Hazel was approved unanimously.}}} 
 
John Roberts, Planning Director, asked to speak. He requested to be on the 
agenda toward the end of June to present their strategic plan. He suggested that 
they meet at public works. Teri suggested that she could also present the Public 
Health strategic plan that day. 
 
Mr. Roberts would also like to arrange for a day to visit the illegal dwelling in the 
forest resource zone. This field trip was previously scheduled but snowed out. 
Arrangements will be made, confirming a date through email. 
 

OPEN TO DEPARTMENTS 
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OHA Contract #135575 Amendment #8 
Teri Thalhofer explained that this is a routine amendment to the OHA contract. 
There is some altered language around the TB case management which is not 
an issue as they do very little of that here. There is a financial increase for Title 
10, targeting high cost contraceptives. It is a two-year contract. There are usually 
10-12 contract amendments each year in response to Federal funding changes. 
 
{{{Commissioner Holliday motioned to approve OHA Contract #135575 
Amendment #8. Commissioner Hege seconded the motion which passed 
unanimously.}}} 
  
Lane County Contract #13985 Amendment #2 
In years past, food handler classes were scheduled and held in a public class 
forum. Applicants signed up and paid for classes through Public Health. There 
was a push for virtual classes which would decrease local revenues for licensing. 
Lane County created such a virtual class and therefore was able to capture that 
revenue for their county. An intergovernmental agreement allows Wasco County 
to direct applicants to the Lane County online class which costs $10, of which 
Wasco County gets $6 for each of their applicants who access the Lane County 
class. This amendment is an extension of the existing contract.  
 
{{{Commissioner Hege motioned to approve Lane County Contract #13985 
Amendment #2. Commissioner Holliday seconded the motion which 
passed unanimously. }}} 
 
Home at Last Expansion 
 

The expansion had been placed on hold; during that time HaL received a 
$26,000 grant from Petco Corp. They decided to do a modular expansion which 
will cross the property line. A large boulder has been removed to make room. A 
large amount of work and materials have been donated by Crestline and 
Modular. They are working with another company who may donate surplus 
asphalt to repave the parking lot. They hope to have the expansion completed in 
the next two months. 
 
Home at Last Lease Agreement and Management Contract 
Tyler Stone, County Administrator, explained that work to revise both the lease 
and management contracts for HaL has been ongoing over the past 8 months. 
All parties are in agreement as to the document language. 
 

CONSIDERATION of items listed on the Discussion List of April 4, 2012,  
(Attached). 
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{{{Commissioner Hege moved to approve both the Home at Least Lease 
Agreement and the Home at Last Management Agreement. Commissioner 
Holliday seconded the motion which passed unanimously.}}} 
 
Nolan Ryan, The Dalles City Manager, expressed appreciation to both Wasco 
County and Home at Last for the working with the City during the transition 
period. He will be going to the City Council this coming Monday asking for a half-
time animal control officer position since the county will no longer be handling 
animal control. 
 
Mr. Stone added that the County will still be doing some limited animal control 
through the Sheriff’s Office.  

  
Enhanced Web Mapping for Wasco County 
 

Dan Boldt, County Surveyor, introduced Sherzod Rakhmanov, County Intern 
from Uzbekistan, who led the group through a power point presentation (see 
packet) outlining the process for creating and benefits of a web mapping system 
for the county. Mr. Rakhmanov holds a Masters Degree from Spain and has 
been interning with the County for the past year.  
 
Mr. Rakhmanov explained the costs involved. The County already has the 
necessary software, but it will require several months to develop. Once 
developed, he is willing to train staff for use and maintenance. Hood River 
already has this capability and Mr. Rakhmanov used their site to demonstrate. 
 
A discussion ensued in which everyone agreed that the project would be of great 
benefit to the county. Paul Ferguson, Information Services Manager, pointed out 
that the project would not be free but that Mr. Rakhmanov provided great value. 
 
Chair Runyon pointed out that preparatory work would have to be done before 
the project could begin. Mr. Stone advised him that that discussions have already 
begun and he would keep the Commission informed.  
 
Commissioner Hege inquired as to what was needed from the Commission 
today. Mr. Boldt explained that the program Mr. Rakhmanov is on will need to 
know if Wasco County will continue to employ him as an intern for the remainder 
of the year so that his Visa can be extended. The maximum extension would 
allow him to remain until December 6, 2012, at which time he would have 30 
days to vacate the country.  
 

CONSIDERATION of items listed on the Agenda of April 4, 2012,  
(Attached). 
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{{{Commissioner Hege moved to extend Mr. Rakhmanov’s internship 
through the end of December. Commissioner Holliday seconded the motion 
which passed unanimously. }}} 
 
Tyler announced that Mr. Rakhmanov’s internship position would be moved to an 
engineering assistant internship with a commensurate increase in pay. 
Status Update to the Wasco County Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Mr. Roberts introduced the presentation by explaining that the update is required 
by FEMA in order to be eligible for funding. It also prompts us to identify gaps 
and needed changes. Intern Will Clark has been working on this for Wasco, 
Umatilla and Hood River Counties. The process entails a series of 4 meetings; 
they are halfway through that process. 
 
Mr. Clark outlined what has been accomplished thus far. At the first meeting, held 
in February, they developed a community profile which outlines the infrastructure. 
At the second meeting, they completed a risk assessment. In two weeks there 
will be a third meeting at which they will do final edits on documents from the first 
two meetings as well as re-evaluating action items which is the implementation 
arm of the plan. The final meeting will be implementation and maintenance 
planning. They hope to have it ready for public review by the end of June and 
then to FEMA in July. Once it is approved by FEMA, it will come before the board 
for final approval.  
 
Mike Davidson, Wasco County Sheriff’s Office Emergency Manager, added that 
a steering committee will meet twice each year to review implementation.  
 
Commission Chair Runyon asked if there are changes made throughout the five 
year term of the plan. Mr. Davidson answered affirmatively and also explained 
that cities within the county can fall under the County plan and/or can add their 
own addendum. Historically, the City of the Dalles and Maupin will add their own 
addendum, but most of the cities will elect to fall under the County plan. 
 
Commissioner Hege asked if the FEMA maps for the county will be updated. 
Jeanette Montour, Senior Planner, replied that although we are high on the list 
for updating, funding is short. She is hopeful that there will be funding available in 
the next fiscal year. 
 
Request for Position Realignment – Public Health 

Teri Thalhofer, Director. Wasco-Sherman Health Department, explained that the 
Public Health Nursing Supervisor position and the Clinical Programs Supervisor 
position have essentially the same job description except that the Clinical 
Programs Supervisor does not supervise nursing practices. Her Nursing 
Supervisor has resigned; it is difficult to recruit and retain nurses due to the 
significantly lower-than-market salary offered by Public Health. The Board of 
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Health has recommended having the option of replacing that position with a 
Clinical Programs Supervisor and reassigning the supervising of nursing 
practices to Ms. Thalhofer. Both jobs would be posted; when one is filled the 
other would be removed. Although, she would prefer to fill the Nursing Supervisor 
position, it is imperative to get someone hired to manage the programs. Either 
position would be within their budget. 
 
{{{The Board arrived at a consensus to approve the position realignment 
for the Public Health Nursing Supervisor/Clinical Programs Supervisor 
position as recommended by the Board of Health and requested by Ms. 
Thalhofer.}}} 
 
CCO Update 
Ms. Thalhofer addressed the Board regarding the selection of a CCO applicant to 
recommend to the State. The State will not certify a CCO without local 
stakeholder support. The local hospitals have agreed to work with the Council 
and therefore will not independently endorse an applicant. Wasco County was 
not represented at the last council meeting. Council members have been asked 
to respond to a questionnaire and scoring rubric to be applied to the submitting 
candidates’ proposals. Monday night there will be a presentation made by the 
two candidates. At a meeting which will be scheduled following the presentations, 
the Council will determine which of the two candidates, if either, to recommend to 
the state. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon revisited the discussion from a previous BOCC 
session regarding how votes were being distributed at the Council. Ms. Thalhofer 
responded that a decision was made at the last Council meeting: Behavioral 
Health has a vote, each County has a vote, each Public Health entity has a vote, 
each hospital has a vote, and the IPA has a vote. 
 
Ms. Thalhofer concluded by announcing that the ELC will be meeting in Burns in 
Harney County next month. 
 
Commission Chair Runyon adjourned the regular session at 5:05 p.m. and 
moved to Executive Session. 
 
 
      WASCO COUNTY BOARD  
      OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Rod L. Runyon, Chair of Commission 
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      ________________________________ 
      Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Scott Hege, County Commissioner 
 



 

 

Consent Agenda Item 

BPA Financials 

 

 Memorandum  

 Easement Voucher Certificate 

 License Voucher Certificate 

 Taxpayer ID Certification 

 Corporation Acknowledgment  



 

MEMORANDUM  

TO: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

FROM: KATHY WHITE 

SUBJECT: BPA DOCUMENTS  

DATE: 6/5/2012 

 

EXPLANATION OF BPA C ONSENT AGENDA DOCUMENTS 

On May 16th, 2012, the Wasco County Board of Commissioners approved and signed an 
easement agreement with the Bonneville Power Administration to allow easement and right-of-way 
for electric power transmission for $1,250. In addition, the BOCC approved and signed a license 
($500) for BPA to enter the transmission area for clearing and construction purposes. 

The BPA Consent Agenda documents facilitate the financial closure of the agreements by 
creating vouchers for payment, gathering payment information and certifying payment documents. 
Once these documents are executed and returned to BPA, they will issue payment to the County. 



Lead Tract No. AZE-8-A-5 

 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY-BONNEVILLE POWER ADMINISTRATION 

 

 

VOUCHER CERTIFICATE 
 

 

CONTRACT PRICE $ 1,250.00 

 

 FOR:  Transmission line easement. 

 

LIST OF CHECKS TO BE ISSUED: 

 

NAME OF PAYEE MAILING ADDRESS  AMOUNT 

WASCO COUNTY, a Municipal 

Corporation and Political Subdivision 

of the State of Oregon, acting by and 

through its County Court 

 

511 Washington Street 

The Dalles, OR 97058 

 

$1250.00 

       

 

 

$ 

       

 

 

$ 

       

 

 

$ 

       

 

 

$ 

 

 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS ON THIS VOUCHER. $1,250.00 

 

 

CERTIFICATE: 

 

As grantor in the instrument described above, (I) (we) hereby authorize the disbursements above shown. 

 

 SIGN NAME BELOW DATE 

 
 

_______________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________ 

  

 
BPA  SEPTEMBER 2005 



Lead Tract No. AZE-8-A-5 

 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY-BONNEVILLE POWER ADMINISTRATION 

 

 

VOUCHER CERTIFICATE 
 

 

CONTRACT PRICE $ 500.00 

 

 FOR:  Transmission line License 

 

LIST OF CHECKS TO BE ISSUED: 

 

NAME OF PAYEE MAILING ADDRESS  AMOUNT 

WASCO COUNTY, a Municipal 

Corporation and Political Subdivision 

of the State of Oregon, acting by and 

through its County Court 

 

511 WASHINGTON STREET 

THE DALLES, OR 97058 

 

$500.00 

       

 

 

$ 

       

 

 

$ 

       

 

 

$ 

       

 

 

$ 

 

 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS ON THIS VOUCHER. $ 500.00 

 

 

CERTIFICATE: 

 

As grantor in the instrument described above, (I) (we) hereby authorize the disbursements above shown. 

 

 SIGN NAME BELOW DATE 

 
 

_______________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________ 

  

 
BPA  SEPTEMBER 2005 



Substitute IRS form W9e 

(07-2003) 

REQUEST FOR TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER AND CERTIFICATION 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 REQUIRED 
 Name WASCO COUNTY Phone Number(s) 541.506.2520 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 Business Name (If different from above) 
 

 

Check appropriate:       Individual/Sole Proprietor            Corporation            Partnership                    Other: 

 Address 511 WASHINGTON STREET 
 

 City, State, ZIP Code THE DALLES, OR 97058 
 

 Mailing Address 
 

 City, State ZIP Code 
 

 CERTIFICATION & Federal Tax Identification Number 
 

 Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and 

2. I am not subject to backup withholding because:  (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the 

Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) 

the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding, and 

3. I am a U.S. person (including a U.S. resident alien). 
 

CERTIFICATION INSTRUCTIONS:  You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject 

to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. 
 

 Social Security Number  Or       Employer Identification Number 

 ___   ___   ___   -   ___   ___   -   ___   ___   ___   ___    9 3   -   6  0  0  2  3  1  5   
 

Signature of U.S. person   ______________________________________________          Date    _________________________________ 
 

 

 Social Security Number  Or       Employer Identification Number 

 ___   ___   ___   -   ___   ___   -   ___   ___   ___   ___    ___  ___   -   ___  ___  ___  ___  ___  ___  ___  ___ 
 

Signature of U.S. person   ______________________________________________          Date    _________________________________ 
 

Do you require IRS form 1099?                YES               NO 

 

  Vendor Express Enrollment 

This form is used for Automated Clearing House (ACH) payments with an addendum record that contains payment related information 

processed through the Vendor Express Program. 
 

Contact Person         __________________________________________________  

Telephone Number               ____________________________________________ RETURN THIS FORM TO: 
Internet E-Mail Address           __________________________________________ Bonneville Power Administration 

 TERS-3 

Financial Institution Information P O BOX 3621 

Bank Name                            ___________________________________________ PORTLAND, OR  97208-3621 

Telephone Number                ___________________________________________  

Nine Digit Transit Number     __________________________________________  

Depositor Account Number    __________________________________________ 

Type of Account                    Checking                     Savings     

 

 

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT:  the above information is provided to comply with the Privacy Act of 1974 (P.L. 93-579).  All information 

collected on this form is required under the provision of U.S.C. 3322 and 31CFR 210.  This information will be used by the Treasury 

Department to transmit payment data, by electronic means to vendor’s financial institution. 
   BPA  December 2010 Rev. 



 

 

 

 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY-BONNEVILLE POWER ADMINISTRATION 

 

 

CORPORATION ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
Washington, Oregon, Idaho, Montana, and California 

 

 

 

State of OREGON) 

 ) ss. 

County of WASCO) 

 

On this_______________day of________________________, 20_______, before me personally  

appeared______________________________________________________________________, 

known to me, or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence, to be the   

   of the corporation that executed the within 

instrument or the person(s) who executed the within instrument as authorized agent(s) on behalf 

of the corporation; acknowledged to me that such corporation executed the same; acknowledged 

said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said corporation, for the uses and 

purposes therein mentioned; and on oath stated that ____he                      authorized to execute 

said instrument and that seal, if any, affixed is the corporate seal of said corporation. 

 

 
 

    

  Signature 

 

    

  Print Name 

 

  Notary Public in and for the 

 

  State of   

 

                     (SEAL) Residing at   

 

  My commission expires   

 

 
BPA  FEBRUARY 2008 
 



 

 

Agenda Item 

Public Hearing 

Fermin Sanchez Dog Ordinance Violation 

 

 Citation 

 Redacted Incident Report 

 Memo from Deputy District Attorney 

 Applicable ORS 



OREGON UNIFORM CITATION AND COMPLAINT 
Use for All Violations or Crimes Where Separate Complaint Will Not Be Filed/ORS: 1'53.045 or 133.069 

0 CRIME(S) "" VIOLATION(S) 
{See A on Back) {S e B on Back) 

~~~--~----~~~~~==~= 

STATE OF OREGON 

CITY/OTHER PUBLIC BODY----:-:-,-:-::c:-::----

COUNTY OF WASCO } 

Driver not Reg. owner 
Com. Vehicle 

I certlfY under DRS 153.045 and 153.990 and under other applicabl<> law and under penaWes for false swearing, do 
swear/affinnlhat I ave sulffcient grounds to and do believe that the above-mentioned defendanUperson commitled the 

'b'~7z'; l 'Z::"'"'"' w'c~ lfC/ . 

') 
621666 2011 UOCUSOUfCe PRINT MANAGEMENT 503·906·4046 

w 
()1 

en 
N 
01 



Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 

SUPPLEMENTAL INCIDENT REPORT 

SUPPLEMENT DATE 04/30/2012 
APPROVAL DATE 04/30/2012 

NAMES INVOLVED 

INVOLVEMENT Legal OWner CR # 1 

NAME oiiSjiANjiiCiiHiiEiiiZilj, FiiEjRMIN CHEZ 
ADDRESS il 

THE DALLES, OR 97058 

OFFICER 45695 WARD, RAY 
OFFICER 42193 BIRCHFIELD, ALAN 

SYSTEM# 8 

DOB AGE 49 DL NO 5173115 OR 
DESCRIPTION SEX M RACE I HAIR BLK EYES BRO HEIGHT 65 WEIGHT 218 

PROPERTY INVOLVED. 

INVOLVEMENT Evidence CR # 1 
TYPE 75 CITATION# 35625 

BRAND 

SYSTEM# 5 

MODEL 
~:,.:'•, \ \.r-;,1 

VEHICLES INVOLVED tr\( \ \\).. · 
NO ADDITIONAL VEHICLES INVOLVED \2"' ·; • _It; ,, ...... 

. 

NARRATIVE ' ' · 

8120227 

REPORT NUMBER 

D Non-Disclosure 

NAME TY . .;.PiEIJIBndBivjjldujja.l 
PHONE~ 
PHONE 
SSN 
ETHNICITY U 

On April 27, 2012 Sgt. Birchfield met with the District Attorney (D.A.)to discuss this case. After 
meeting with Deputy D.A. It was detemined the owner of the dog, Fermin Sanchez, would be issued 
a citation to appear before the County Commissioners. Sgt. Birchfield and I met with Fermin at his 
residence on Hwy 30 and issued a citation for Impoundment for Harming or Chasing Livestock ORS 
609.155. Fermin was explained the citation and the process for appearing before the County 
Commissioners and said he understood. 

Earlier in the day Fermin voluntarily delivered his dog (Moccasin) to the Home At Last Animal Shelter 
were it was impounded. 

Please referto case #'s S120227 and 8120234 

Action Recommended: Add to case file. Send copy to Deputy D.A. 

Submitted by; 

Deputy Ray Ward '/ f . j / 
Signature: _ __..L._jC_7----,t-f;Aa,.L-/ 4-t"'------=J __ Date:~-
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Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 
INCIDENT REPORT 

.'-j '']:--~~~~~~---, 
ii 
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5120227 

R~PORT NUMB~R 

AGENCY WCSO CAD EVENT 12002008 RELATED CASES 
CLASSIFICATiON 609.095 Dog (Public nuisance) 

MAJOR VIOLATION 609.095 STATUS PENDING 
DISPOSITION 04/22/2012 PENDING 

OFFENSES 609.095 Dog (Public nuisance) 

REPORTED 04/18/12 04:16 ' 

LOCATION 5835 HIGHWAY 30 W 

PREMISE 

OCCURRED 04/18/12 04:00 WED TO 04/18/12 04:20 WED 

CITY THE DALLES 

NATURE 0 Compuler Used 
0 Alcohol Relaled 
0 Drug Related 
0 Gang Related 
0 Search & Rescue 

AREA 3 

0 Hale/Bias 
0 Officer Assaul! 
0 Senior Citizen 
0 Juvenile 
0 National Foresl 

OFFICER 37326 FLOYD, COURTNEY 
APPROVED 24536 MCNEEL, CHRIS 

SYNOPSIS 

NIA Nl~ 
0 Arson ';;i) f"')) · 
0 Warrant Arrest,_,~ .. t·~· f' ... ~ 
0 Sex. Crime · ~""· >·-~:;...\\ 

B ChlldAbuse 
Domestrc Violence 

0 Search Warrant 
0 Narcollcs 
0 Marine 

0 Person Crime ~··1~) j 

REPORT FILED 04/25/12 00:00 '.;;;:.-~,>~ 
APPROVAL DATE 04/26/12 00:00 ~ 

Aracell Galvan reported that a dark colored German Shepard mix had killed one of the sheep and was chasing the others 
around Inside the pen. The dog dug out of the containment of the pen prior to law enforcement arriving. The dog's name 
and location Is unknown. 

SIGNATURES 

SubmittedBy ~ ~ ID 

Approved by ;::::: ~ ·v/:z. ID 
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Date 

Date 

Date 
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CR REFERENCE# SYSTEM # 2 
NAME 

ADDRESS 

Al T.ADDRESS 
DOB AGE !1 

DlNO 
LOCAL ID 

DESCRIPTION SEX F RACE H ETHNICITY H 
CAUTION 

EMPLOYER 

OCCUPATION 
COMMENTS 

ADDITIONAL INFO 

ADDRESS 

CR REFERENCE# 2 SYSTEM# 3 
NAME <->~n.vAN, MARTIN 

ADDRESS 

Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 
INCIDENT REPORT 

0 Juvenile 
INVOlVEMENT MN Mentioned 

SSN 
FBIID 

STATEID 

POB 

0 Juvenile 
INVOlVEMENT WI Witness 

ALT.ADDRESS •••• 
DOll 0 AGE 48 SSN 

DLNO 
WCALID 

DESCRIPTION 
CAUTION 

EMPLOYER 

FBIID 
STATEID 

SEX M RACE H HAIR BLI< EYES BRO ETHNICITY H 
POB 

OCCUPATION 
COMMENTS 

ADDITIONAL INFO 

ADDRESS 

CR REFERENCE# 3 
NAME 

ADDRESS 

SYSTEM 4 

ALT.ADDRESS 

DOB
DLNO 

LOCAl!D 

AGE 48 

DESCRIPTION SEX F RACE H ETHNICITY H 
CAUTION 

EMPLOYER 

OCCUPATION 
COMMENTS 

ADDITIONAL INFO 

ADDRESS 

INVOLVEMENT 

SSN 
FBIID 

STATEID 

POB 

0 Juvenile 

8120227 

REPORT NUMBER 

0 Non-Disc!(>Sure 
TYPE lndlyldual 

PHONE 
PHONE 
PHONE 

PHONE (541) 

RES.STATUS R 

0 Non-Disclosure 
TYPE Individual 

PHONE (541) 490-4283 
PHONE 
PHONE 

PHONE (541) 

RES.STATUS R 

0 Non-Disclosure 
TYPE Individual 

PHONE (541) 
PHONE 
PHONE 

PHONE (641) 

RES.STATUS R 



NAMES 

CR REFERENCE # 4 
NAME 

ADDRESS 

ALT.ADDRESS -
DOB 

DL NO 
LOCAL ID 

AGE 36 

Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 
INCIDENT REPORT 

0 Juvenile 
INVOLVEMENT VI Vlcllm 

8120227 

REPORT NUMBER 

0 Non-Disclosure 
TYPE Individual 

PHONE 
PHONE 
PHONE 

DESCRIPTION SEX M RACE H HAIR BLK EYES BRO 
CAUTION 

SSN 
FBIID 

STATE ID 
HEIGHT 

POB 
502 WEIGHT 160 ETHNICITY U 

PHONE (541) EMPLOYER 

. OCCUPATION 

COMMENTS 
ADDITIONAL INFO 

VICTIM OF 
INJURY 

RELATIONSHIP 

ADDRESS 

CR REFERENCE# ·5 SYSTEM#. 6 
NAME MARBLE, GAVEN DEPUTY 

ADDRESS . DEPUTY' 
THE DALLES, OR 97058 

AL T.ADDRESS 
DOB AGE 

DLNO 
LOCAL!D 

DESCRIPTION SEX M RACE W ETHNICITY N 
CAUTION 

EMPLOYER 

OCCUPATION 
COMMENTS 

ADDITIONAL INFO 

ADDRESS 

CR REFERENCE# 7 
NAME .SAI~CfiEZ, 

ADDRESS 

ALT.ADDRESS 
DOB 

DLNO 
LOCAL ID 

SYSTEM# 7 

DESCRIPTION SEX M RACE I HAIR BLK 
CAUTION 

EMPLOYER 

OCCUPATION 
COMMENTS 

ADDITIONAL INFO 

ADDRESS 

49 

0 Juvenile 
INVOLVEMENT 10 Involved Officer 

SSN 
FBIID 

STATE ID 

POB 

0 Juvenile 
INVOLVEMENT RO Reglslered Owner 

SSN 
FBIID 

STATEID 

RES.STATUS R 

0 Non-Disclosure 
TYPE Government 

PHONE 
PHONE 
PHONE 

PHONE (541) 

RES.STATUS R 

0 Non-Disclosure 
TYPE Individual 

PHONE 
PHONE 
PHONE 

HEIGHT 65 WEIGHT 218 ETHNICITY U 
POB 

PHONE (541) 

RES.STATUS R 



PROPERTY 

CR REFERENCE# 
TYPE 

QUANTITY 
BRAND 
SERIAL 

LOSS 
RECOVERED 
COMMENTS 

TAG 
SECTION 

ASSOC. NAMES 

CR REFERENCE# 
TYPE 

QUANTITY 
BRAND 
SERIAL 

LOSS 
RECOVERED 
COMMENTS 

TAG 
SECTION 

ASSOC. NAMES 

CR REFERENCE# 
TYPE 

QUANTITY 
BRAND 
SERIAL 

LOSS 
RECOVERED 
COMMENTS 

TAG 
SECTION 

CR REFERENCE # 
TYPE 

QUANTITY 
BRAND 
SERIAL 

LOSS 
RECOVERED 
COMMENTS 

Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 
INCIDENT REPORT 

!ZJ Submltte<l to Property 
CF1 INVOLVEMENT E Evidence 
75 DIGITAL PHOTOS 
1 Nclc coDE. 

[ZJ Evidence 
SYSTEM# 1 

COLOR 
MODEL 
OAN 

VALUE $.00 DATE AGENCY 
VALUE $.00 DATE AGENCY 
ENTERED INTO COMPUTER 4-18-12 AT 1253 HRS BY SGT. DET. MCNEEL 
0 Dispose<! DATE DISPOSITION 
0 Hold DATE BY 

BAR CODE I.S120227-001 CUSTODY DATE 
AREA SHED 

REL. REF# NAME 
IP 1 GALVAN, ARACELI 

!Zl Submitted to Properly 
CF2 INVOLVEMENT E Evidence 
59 DARK DOMESTIC DOG HAIR 
1 NCICCODE 

!ZJ Evidence 
SYSTEM# 2 

COLOR 
MODEL 
OAN 

VALUE $.00 DATE AGENCY 
VALUE $.00 DATE AGENCY 
ENTERED INTO E-2 ON 4-18-12 AT 12:30PM BY DEPUTY FLOYD 
0 Disposed DATE DISPOSITION 
0 Hold DATE BY 

BAR CODE 1.5120227-002 CUSTODY DATE 
AREA SHED 

REL. REF# NAME 
OW 1 SANCHEZ, FERMIN CHEZ 

!ZJ Submitted to Properly 
CF3 INVOLVEMENT E Evidence 
75 DIGITAL PHOTOS 
1 NCIC CODE 

!ZJ Evidence 
SYSTEM# 3 

COLOR 
MODEL 
OAN 

VALUE $.00 DATE AGENCY 
VALUE $.00 DATE AGENCY 
ENTERED INTO COMPUTER 4-25-12 AT 0950 BY DEPUTY FLOYD 
0 Disposed DATE DISPOSITION 
0 Hold DATE BY 

BAR CODE I.S120227-003 CUSTODY DATE 
AREA SHED 

'' 
CF4 t'INVOLVEMENT 
265 SHEEP 
2 
BARBADOS 

0 Submltte<l to Property 
P Destroy 

NCIC CODE 

VALUE $270.00 DATE 
VALUE $.00 DATE 
TWO BARBADOS SHEEP KILLED BY DOG 

0 Evidence 
SYSTEM# 4 

COLOR 
MODEL 
OAN 
AGENCY 
AGENCY 

0 Disposed DATE DISPOSITION 
BY 

TAG 
SECTION 

ASSOC. NAMES 

0 Hold DATE 

REL. REF # NAME 

BAR CODE 1.5120227-004 
AREA 

OW 4 FLORESGONZALEZ, GUADALUPE 

CUSTODY DATE 
SHED 

5120227 

REPORT NUMBER 

0 lnCuslody 
PROP.ROOM# 

BY 37326 FLOYD, COURTNEY 

DOB 
06/27/1990 

O lnCuslody 
PROP.ROOM# 

BY 37326 FLOYD, COURTNEY 

DOB 
10/06/1962 

0 In Custody 
PROP.ROOM# 

BY 37326 FLOYD, COURTNEY 

O lnCustody 
PROP.ROOM# 

BY 37326 FLOYD, COURTNEY 

DOB 
12/02/1975 

•• 



NARRATIVE 

REPORTED BY 37326 FLOYD, COURTNEY 

Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 
INCIDENT REPORT 

8120227 

REPORT NUMBER 

R!;PORT FILED 04/25/2012 

On April18'h, 2012 I was dispatched to 5835 Hwy 30 W. on a dog that killed some sheep and departed the 
area. Dispatch received the call at 4:16am. Due to staffing and priority calls, I did not arrive until about 
10:26am. I spoke to Araceli Galvan who told me she is the daughter of Martin and Maria Galvan. Aracell told 
me that her parents witnessed the event and did not speak English. Araceli Interpreted the conversation. 
Martin was currently at work and had earlier told Araceli the events he had witnessed. Araceli did call Martin 
to ask additional questions. Maria was on scene. Aracell provided the following statements. 

Araceli, Martin and Maria ail live at this residence that is rented from Guadalupe Flores and who is the owner 
of the sheep. Martin and Maria maintain the goats. Martin and Maria heard a commotion with the goats and 
chickens around 4:00am. They stepped outside and witnessed a black German Sheppard mix wearing a black 
collar running around with the goats inside the containment pen. They were able to keep the dog at bay 
while herding the goats into an adjacent pen. Martin took digital photos of the dog while it was stili Inside 
the pen. The dog then dug under the fence and departed the area. They have seen this same dog arrive from 
and head back east of their residence three times in the last month. 

Martin and Maria discovered one small dead goat, another small injured goat and an adult goat with its ear 
shredded and bleeding. Before my arrival, the small injured goat died. I viewed all three goats in question 
taking digital photos. Both small goats had blood on the back ofthe neck area with one having its abdomen 
punctured with intestine protruding. The adult goat's right ear was shredded with blood residue. 

I viewed the photos on the Galvan's camera of the dog and was allowed to take the SD card to download the 
photos onto our computer as evidence. I seized black hair from the bottom of the freshly dug hole and fence 
at the hole where the dog dug out under the fence. This type of hair was long and straight not the same type 
as the sheep within the pen. I was unable to locate the dog at this time. The digital photos and hair were 
entered into evidence. 

On April 21 '', 2012, Deputy Marble advised me that he had located the dog at 5882 Hwy 30 W. and spoke to 
the owner Fermin C. Sanchez who agreed the dog In the photos was his dog Moccasin. Refer to Deputy 
Marble's supplemental report. 



NARRATIVE 

Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 
INCIDENT REPORT 

8120227 

REPORT NUMBER 

On April 23'd, 2012, I made phone contact with the owner of the sheep Guadalupe Flores. Guadalupe told me 
they were his sheep and Martin took care of the sheep for him. Guadalupe told me that he heard of two 
sheep being killed and an adult sheep injured. Guadalupe said he had to put antiseptic on the sheep's ear 
and buttocks area where an additional bite was located aiorig with a penicillin shot. Guadalupe told me the 
sheep were a goat/sheep hybrid called Barbados breed for consumption. Guadalupe told me they were 
about $135.00 each for the smaller sheep and several hundred for larger sheep. 

Guadalupe told me that while he spoke to Martin, that Martin had told him the dog had the adult sheep's ear 
in its mouth and he had to throw rocks at the dog to make It leave. Guad(llupe stated that he was not so 
worried about the deceased sheep only that the dog did not return to kill all his sheep. 

On April 241h, 2012, I was able to re contact Aracell by phone. Araceli interpreted for Martin asking questions 
about the dog actually having hold of the sheep by its mouth. Aracell told me that Martin stated he saw the 
dog holding the sheep by Its ear and would not let go until Martin ran towards it throwing rocks. The dog 
then ran away from the sheep while they removed the sheep away from the dog. 

On April 25th, 2012, I drove to 5882 Hwy 30 W. and made contact with Fermin C. Sanchez. I explained to 
Fermin that after completing my investigation, Moccasin needed to be detained at the Humane Society 
Shelter. Fermin told me that Moccasin was now In Estacada so he won't cause additional problems. Fermin 
told me that he could have Moccasin back in The Dalles and lodged Into the Humane Society Shelter by 
Friday. I requested he call Wasco County Sheriff's Office when Moccasin returns and handed him a business 
card. 

Recommended Action: Case Closed. Moccasin is to be lodged at the Wasco County into the Humane 
Society Shelter. Forward to the District Attorney's Office for review. 

Submitted by Deputy Courtney Floyd. 



NARRATIVE 

SUPPLEMENT DATE 04/14/2012 
APPROVAL DATE 04/22/2012 

Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 

SUPPLEMENTAL INCIDENT REPORT 

OFFICER 50172 MARBlE, GAVEN 
OFFICER 42193 BIRCHFIElD, AlAN 

8120227 

REPORT NUMBER 

On 04-21-12, I heard Sgt Birchfield respond to another killed livestock call in the same area of Hwy 30 I 
knew Deputy Floyd responded to on 04-18-12. Sgt Birchfield told me he had located a dog that 
matched the description given of a large, black shepherd. He told me the location was 5882 Hwy 30 W, 
Rowena. 

I needed to return an item to the original RP on the call so when I responded to the RP's house I took 
the photos they had taken with me to show the dog's owner at 5882. When I arrived the owner, Fermin 
Chez Sanchez met me outside. 

I asked Sanchez if he owned a large black shepherd. He said that he did. I told him I was there 
following up on a couple of other cases and asked if I could show him a picture of a dog to see if he 
could identify it. He agreed. 

I showed him the pictures that the original RP had taken of the dog that they had seen eating their 
sheep. Sanchez said that it was his dog, Moccasin. I asked if I could see Moccasin and he agreed. I 
took photos of the dog and let Sanchez know that it may be necessary to quarantine the dog and If the 
dog was responsible for killing of the animals, he would be financially responsible. 

Sanchez responded, "Oh I will make it right whatever I need to do." He also brought up the fact that 
there was a cougar in the area and that Moccasin might have simply smelled the carcass and eaten off 
of it after it had been killed. I told him that could be a possibility and that someone would be in touch 
with him soon to give him more information on what he needed to do. 

I thanked him for his time and cooperation and left the home. 

ACTION RECOMMENDED: 

Attach to case 

SUBMITTED BY: 

Deputy Gaven Marble 50172 

<JQ~ . u!..-
v' ']t-vf... -



Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 

SUPPLEMENTAL INCIDENT REPORT 

NAMES· 04/14/2012 by 50172 MARBLE, GAVEN 

CR REFERENCE# 1 SYSTEM# 1 
NAME ~IN CHEZ 

ADDRESS _. 

ALT.ADDRESS -
DOB 

DLNO 
LOCAL 10 

AGE 

0 Juvenile 
INVOLVEMENT LO Legal Owner 

8120227 

REPORT NUMBER 

0 Non-Disclosure 
TYPE Individual 

PHONE_.. 
PHONE 
PHONE 

DESCRIPTION SEX M RACE I HAIR BLK EYES BRO 
CAUTION 

SSN 
FBIID 

STATEID 
HEIGHT 

POB 
65 WEIGHT 218 ETHNICITY N 

EMPLOYER 
ADDRESS 

OCCUPATION 
COMMENTS OWNER OF DOG· MOCCASIN 

ADDITIONAL INFO 

PHONE (541) 

RES.STATUS R 



DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 

DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 

S120227 Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 
INCIDENT REPORT REPORT NUMBER 

DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 

DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 



DATE: 04125/1211:04 SOURCE: CATAlOG 

DATE: 04/2511211:04 SOURCE: CATAlOG 

Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 
INCIDENT REPORT 

DATE: 04125/1211:04 SOURCE: CATAlOG 

DATE: 04/2511211:04 SOURCE: CATAlOG 

8120227 

REPORT NUMBER 



DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 

DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 

Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 
INCIDENT REPORT 

DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 

DATE: 04/2511211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 

5120227 

REPORT NUMBER 



DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 

DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 

Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 
INCIDENT REPORT 

DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE; CATALOG 

DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 

5120227 

REPORT NUMBER 



DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 

DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 

8120227 Wasco County 
Sheriff's Office 
INCIDENT REPORT REPORT NUMBER 

DATE: 04/25/1211:04 SOURCE: CATALOG 
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IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE STATE OF OREGON 
FOR WASCO COUNTY 

IN THE Jv1ATTER OF THE DISPOSITION OF 
THE GERMAN SHEPHERD MIX DOG 
OWNED BY FER111IN CHEZ SANCHEZ 

DISTRlCT ATTOIU\TEY'S MEMORANDUM 

TO: Rod Runyon, Chair of the Board 
Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 
Scott Hege, County Commissioner 

FROM: Sally Carpenter, Deputy District Attorney 

I. Procedure. 

In this case, Mr. Sanchez is accused of owning a dog that has killed and wounded 

livestock. Specifically, Mr. Sanchez's dog killed two Barbados sheep and injured a third 

sheep mvned by Guadalupe Flores. The dog is currently impounded at the county animal 

shelter. 

There are four things that I must prove for the allegation of ovming a dog that has 

killed and wounded livestock: 

Page 1- DISTRICT ATTORl\TEY'S MEMORANDUM 
In the matter of the German shepherd mix dog owned by Fermin Chez Sanchez 



1 

2 
1. The act occuned on Aprill8, 2012. 

3 
2. The act occuned in Wasco County, Oregon. 

4 
3. Fermin Sanchez owns a dog. 

5 
4. Fermin Sanchez's dog killed and/or wounded livestock. 

6 
For this kind of case, the Board of County Commissioners will act as hearings 

7 
officers, like a panel of three judges that hears the facts of a case and applies the facts to the 

8 
law. The applicable law for this case is found in Chapter 609 of the Oregon Revised 

9 
Statutes, which I will refer to in this Memorandum as the ORS. I have attached a copy of 

10 
the applicable statutes to this Memorandum for your ease of reference. 

11 
The Board of County Commissioners must provide :Mr. Sanchez an opportunity to 

12 
receive this hearing. ORS 609.156. Your executive assistant Kathy \Vhite has notified .Mr. 

13 
Sanchez by letter and by newspaper publication of this hearing. Additionally, .Mr. Sanchez 

14 
has informed me of his desire to have a hearing and contest the allegation. 

15 
A majority of the Board of County Commissioners must conduct the hearing, and the 

16 
hearing must be a full and fair inquiry into the facts necessary to determine the allegation. 

17 
ORS 609.158(3) and (5). Your determination will be upon consideration of the whole 

18 
record and will be supported by reliable, probative, and substantial evidence. ORS 

19 
609.158(3). Substantial evidence exists to support a fmding of fact when the record, viewed 

20 
as a whole, would permit a reasonable person to make that fmding. ORS 183.482(8)(c). 

21 
Substantial evidence is a relatively low amount of evidence -lower than the amount of 

22 
evidence required to prove a crime. 

23 

Page 2- DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S MEMORAJ\'DUM 
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2 
Once the hearing is complete and you make a determination, your findings and any 

3 
applicable penalties must be made 0 writing and delivered to .Mr. Sanchez. ORS 

4 
609.158(4). 

5 
II. Factual Summary. 

6 
On April 18, 2012, :Mr. Sanchez's dog went to the Galvan's property on West 

7 
Highway 30, where the dog entered a livestock pen and chased livestock around. Martin 

8 
Galvan saw the dog holding a sheep by its ear. The dog would not let go until Mr. Galvan 

9 
ran at the dog and threw rocks at the dog. Two of the sheep died that day, and a third sheep 

10 
received an ear injury. 

11 
Guadalupe Flores is the owner of the sheep, which are valued at $135 each. 

12 
There is a discrepancy about whether the livestock in this case were goats or sheep. 

13 
This discrepancy, however, is an unimp01tant issue since both goats and sheep are livestock. 

14 
ORS 609.125. 

15 
The main factual dispute at the hearing will be causation- whether Mr. Sanchez's 

16 
dog killed and injured the sheep. Mr. Sanchez has claimed that a cougar was somehow 

17 
involved. Yet, Mr. and .Mrs. Galvan saw the black German shepherd mix dog inside their 

18 
livestock pen and took photographs of the dog before it escaped by digging a hole under the 

19 
fence. Deputy Comtney Floyd collected black hair from the bottom of the freshly dug hole 

20 
where the dog escaped- hair that was long, straight, and not of the same type as the sheep 

21 
within the pen. Deputy Gaven Marble later showed the Galvans' photographs to Mr. 

22 
Sanchez, who identified the dog in the photos as his own. These observations by the 

23 
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Gal vans and the deputies constitute reliable, probative, and substantial evidence that .M:r. 

Sanchez's dog caused the death and injuries to the livestock. 

III. Penalties. 

If you fmd that Mr. Sanchez owns a dog that killed and wounded livestock, I request 

that you impose the following penalties: 

1. A civil penalty of not less than $500 and not more than $1000, payable to Wasco 
County. ORS 609.162(1)(c) and ORS 609.167(1). 

2. Euthanasiaofthedog. ORS 609.162(1)(c). 

3. Restitution for the dead livestock of $270 ($135 for each of two sheep), payable 
to Wasco County, to then be forwarded to livestock owner Guadalupe Flores. 
ORS 609.180 and ORS 609.190. 

I would normally request that you require Mr. Sanchez to pay to the County the costs 

of keeping his dog at the animal shelter, pursuant to ORS 609.155(3)(a). However, 

Administrative Officer Tyler Stone has informed me that there currently is no cost to the 

County to impound this dog. If impoundment costs change while this case is pending, I 

request that you require Mr. Sanchez to pay the costs of impoundment. 

Dated this 31st day of May, 2012. 

Sarah E. "Sally" C enter, OSB #00227 
Deputy Wasco County District Attorney 
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5 

6 

7 

8 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

9 
I hereby certify that I served the foregoing District Attorney's Memorandum upon 

10 Fermin Chez Sanchez on May 31st, 2012, by mailing a true copy thereof, certified by me as 
such, to: 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Fermin Chez Sanchez 
P.O. Box 595 
Hood River, Oregon 97031 

DATED this 31st day of May, 2012. 

Sarah E. Carpenter, SB #00227 
Deputy Wasco County District Attorney 
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183.480 EXECUTIVE BRANCH; ORGANIZATION 

(4) Every final order shall include a cita
tion of the statutes under which the order 
may be appealed. [1957 c.717 §11; 1971 c.734 §17; 1979 
c.593 §22) 

(Judicial Review) 
183.480 Judicial review of agency or

ders. (1) Except as provided in ORS 183.417 
(3)(b), any person adversely affected or 
aggrieved by an order or any party to an 
agency proceeding is entitled to- judicial re
view of a final order, whether such order is 
affirmative or negative in form. A petition 
for rehearing or reconsideration need not be 
filed as a condition of judicial review unless 
specifically otherwise provided by statute or 
agency rule. 

(2) Judicial review of final orders of 
agencies shall be solely as provided by ORS 
183.482, 183.484, 183.490 and 183.500. 

(3) No action or suit shall be maintained 
as to the validity of any agency order except 
a final order as provided in this section and 
ORS 183.482, 183.484, 183.490 and 183.500 or 
except upon shmving that the agency is pro
ceeding without probable cause, or that the 
party will suffer substantial and irreparable 
harm if interlocutory relief is not grant.ed. 

(4) Judicial review of orders issued pur
suant to ORS 813.410 shall be as provided by 
ORS 813.410. [1957 c.717 §12; 1953 c.449 §1; 1971 c.734 
§18; 1975 c.759 §14; 1979 c.593 §23; 1953 c.338 §901; 1985 
c.757 §4; 1997 c.837 §5; 2007 c.283 §11) 

183.482 Jurisdiction for review of con
tested cases; procedure; scope of court 
authority. (1) Jurisdiction for judicial re
view of contested cases is conferred upon the 
Court of · Appeals. Proceedings for review 
shall be instituted by filing a petition in the 
Court of Appeals. The petition shall be filed 
within 60 days only follmving the date the 
order upon which the petition is based is 
served unless otherwise provided by statute. 
If a petition for rehearing has been filed, 
then the petition for review shall be filed 
within 60 days only following the date the 
order denying the petition for rehearing is 
served. If the agency does not otherwise act, 
a petition for rehearing or reconsideration 
shall be deemed denied the 60th day follow
ing the date the petition was filed, and in 
such cases, petition for judicial review shall 
be filed within 60 days only following such 
date. Date of service shall be the date on 
which the agency delivered or mailed its or
der in accordance with ORS 183.470. 

(2) The petition shall state the nature of 
the order the petitioner desires reviewed, and 
shall state whether the petitioner was a 
party to the administrative proceeding, was 
denied status as a party or is seeking judicial 
review as a person adversely affected or 
aggrieved by the agency order. In the latter 

case, the petitioner shall, by supporting affi
davit, state the facts showing how the peti
tioner is adversely affected or aggrieved by 
the agency order. Before deciding the issues 
raised by the petition for review, the Court 
of Appeals shall decide, from facts set forth 
in the affidavit, whether or not the petitioner 
is entitled to petition as an adversely af
fected or an aggrieved person. Copies of the 
petition shall be served by registered or cer
tified mail upon the agency, and all other 
parties of record in the agency proceeding. 

(3)(a) The filing of the petition shall not 
stay enforcement of the agency order, but · 
the agency may do so upon a showing or: 

(A) Irreparable injury to the petitioner; 
and 

(B) A colorable claim of error in the or
der. 

(b) ·when a petitioner makes the showing 
required by paragraph (a) of this subsection, 
the agency shall grant the stay unless the 
agency determines that substantial public 
harm will result if the order is stayed. If the 
agency P,enies the stay, the denial shall be in 
writing and shall specifically state the sub
stantial public harm that would result from 
the granting of the stay. 

(c) When the agency grants a stay, the 
agency may impose such reasonable condi
tions as the giving of a bond, irrevocable 
letter of credit or other undertaking and that 
the petitioner file all documents necessary to 
bring the matter to issue before the Court of 
Appeals within specified reasonable periods 
of time. 

(d) Agency denial of a motion for stay is 
subject to review by the Court of Appeals 
under such rules as the court may establish. 

( 4) Within 30 days after service of the 
petition, or within such further time as the 
court may allow, the agency shall transmit 
to the reviewing court the original or a cer
tified copy of the entire record of the pro
ceeding under review, but, by stipulation of 
all parties to the review proceeding, the re
cord may be shortened. Any party unreason
ably refusing to stipulate to limit the record 
may be taxed by the court for the additional 
costs. The court may require or permit sub
sequent corrections or additions to the re
cord when deemed desirable. Except as 
specifically provided in this subsection, the 
cost of the record shall not be taxed to the 
petitioner or any intervening party. How
ever, the court may tax such costs and the 
cost of agency transcription of record to a 
party filing a frivolous petition for review. 

(5) If, on review of a contested case, be
fore the date set for hearing, application is 
made to the court for leave to present addi
tional evidence, and it is shown to the satis-
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faction of the court that the additional 
evidence is material and that there were 
good and substantial reasons for failure to 
present it in the proceeding before the 
agency, the court may order that the · addi
tional evidence be taken before the agency 
upon such conditions as the court deems 
proper. Tbe agency may modify its findings 
and order by reason of the addi tiona! evi
deuce and shall, within a time to be fixed by 
the court, file with the reviewing court, to 
become a part of the record, the additiona} 
evidence, together with any modifications or 
new findings or orders, or its certificate that 
the agency elects to stand on its original 
findings and order, as the case may be. 

(6) At any time subsequent to the filing 
of the petition for re\>iew and prior to the 
date set for hearing the agency may ">ith
draw its order for purposes of reconsider
ation. If an agency withdraws an order for 
purposes of reconsideration, the agency shall, 
within such time as the court may allow, af
firm, modiiY or reverse its order. ·rf the peti
tioner is dissatisfied with the agency action 
after withdrawal for purposes of reconsider
ation, the petitioner may refile the petition 
for re\>iew and the re\>iew shall proceed upon 
the rm>ised order. An amended petition for 
re\>iew shall not be required if the agency, 
on reconsideration, affirms the order or 
modifies the order with only minor changes. 
If an agency v.>ithdraws an order for purposes 
of reconsideration and modifies or reverses 
the order in favor of the petitioner, the court 
shall allow the petitioner costs, but not at
torney fees, to be paid from funds available 
to the agency. 

(7) Re\>iew of a contested case shall be 
confined to the record, and the court shall 
not substitute its judgment for that of the 
agency as to any issue of fact or agency dis
cretion. In the case of disputed allegations 
of irregularities in procedure before the 
agency not shown in the record which, if 
proved, would warrant reversal or remand, 
the Court of Appeals may refer the alle
gations -to a master appointed by the court 
to take e\>idence and make findings of fact 
upon them. Tbe court shall remand the order 
for further agency action if the court finds 
that either. the fairness of the proceedings or 
the correctness of the action may have been 
impaired by a material error in procedure or 
a failure to follow prescribed procedure, in
cluding a failure by the presiding officer to 
comply with the requirements of ORS 183.417 
(8). 

(8)(a) Tbe court. may affirm, reverse or 
remand the order. If the court finds that the 
agency has erroneously interpreted a pro
\>ision of law and that a correct interpreta-

tion compels a particular action, the court 
shall: 

(A) Set aside or modiiY the order; or 
(B) Remand the case to the agency for 

further action under a correct interpretation 
of the pro\>ision of law. 

(b) Tbe court shall remand the order to 
the agency if the court finds the agency's 
exercise of discretion to be: 

(A) Outside the range of discretion de
legated to the agency by law; 

(B) Inconsistent with an agency rule, an 
officially stated agency position, or a prior 
agency practice, if the inconsistency is not 
explained by the agency; or 

(C) Otherwise in \>iolation of a constitu
tional or statutory pro\>ision. 

(c) Tbe court shall set aside or remand 
the order if the court finds that the order is 
not supported by substantial evidence in the 
record. Substantial evidence exists to support 
a finding of fact when the record, \>iewed as 
a whole, would perroit a reasonable person 
to make that finding. [1975 c.759 §L5; 1977 c.798 
§4; 1979 c.593 §24; 1985 c.757 §2; 1989 c.453 §1; 1991 c.331 
§44; 2007 c.859 §§2,5] 

183.484 Jurisdiction for review of or
ders other than contested cases; proce
dure; scope of· court authority. (1) 
Jurisdiction for judicial rm>iew of orders 
other than contested cases is conferred upon 
the Circuit Court for Marion County and 
upon the circuit court for the comity in 
which the petitioner resides or has a princi
pal business office. Proceedings for review 
under this section shall be instituted by fil
ing a petition in the Circuit Court for Mar
ion County or the circuit court for the 
county in which the petitioner resides or has 
a principal business office. 

(2) Petitions for review shall be filed 
within 60 days only follmving the date the 
order is served, or if a petition for reconsid
eration or rehearing has been filed, then 
within 60 days only following the date the 
order den)>ing such petition is served. If the 
agency does not otherwise act, a petition for 
rehearing or reconsideration shall be deemed 
denied the 60th day following the date the 
petition was filed, and in such case petition 
for judicial re\>iew shall be filed v.>ithin 60 
days only follov.>ing such date. Date of ser
\>ice shall be the date on which the agency 
delivered or mailed its order in accordance 
,vith ORS 183.470. 

(3) Tbe petition shall state the nature of 
the petitioner's interest, the facts showing 
how the petitioner is adversely affected or 
aggrieved by the agency order and the 
ground or grounds upon which the petitioner 
contends the order should be reversed or re-
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ruination the dog causes physical injury to a 
person or damage to real or personal prop
erty, the keeper of the dog is strictly liable 

, to the injured . person or property owner for 
any economic damages resulting from the in
jury or property damage. 

(3) Subsection (2) of this section does not 
apply if a physical injury is to a person pro
voking the dog or assaulting the dog's keeper 
or to a person who trespasses upon premises 
from which the-keeper may lawfully exclude 
others. [2005 c.840 §1] 

609.120 [Amended by 1969 c.677 §3; repealed by 1977 
c.802 §15] 

DOGS HARMING LIVESTOCK 
609.125 Definition of "livestock!' As 

used in ORS 609.135 to 609.190, ''livestock" 
means ratites, psittacines, horses, mules, 
jackasses, cattle, llamas, alpacas, sheep, 
goats, swine, domesticated fowl and any fur
bearing animal bred and maintained com
mercially or otherwise, within pens, cages 
and hutches. [1999 c.756 §11] 

609.180 [Repealed by 1977 c.802 §15] 

609.135 Applicability of ORS 609.156, 
609.162 and 609.168. (1) ORS 609.156, 609.162 
and 609.168 apply in every county having a 
dog control program. 

(2) Except as provided under subsections 
(1) and (3) of this section, ORS 609.135 to 
609.190 apply in every county having a dog 
control program except as otherwise provided 
by county charter or ordinance. Except as 
provided under subsections (1) and (3) of this 
section, the provisions of 0 RS 609.135 to 
609.190 do not limit the powers of cities or 
counties to _adopt ordinances and regulations 
relating to the control of dogs. 

(3) ORS 609.162 (2) does not eliminate or 
restrict the ability of a county to adopt a 
charter or ordinance that is contrary to ORS 
609.163. Notwithstanding any county charter 
or ordinance, a notice of determination sent 
under ORS 609.156 (2) or after a full and fair 
hearing shall be sent as provided under ORS 
609.158 (4). [1999 c.756 §9a] 

609.140 Right of action by oWiler of 
damaged livestock. (1) The owner of any 
livestock which has been damaged by being 
injured,. chased, wounded or killed by any 
dog shall have a cause of action against the 
owner of such dog for the damages resulting 
therefrom, including double the value of any 
livestock killed and double the amount of 
any damage to the livestock. -

(2) If one or more of several dogs owned 
by different persons participate in damaging 
any livestock, the owners of the respective 
dogs shall be jointly and severally liable un
der this section. The owners of dogs jointly 

or severally liable under this section have a 
right of contribution among themselves. The 
right exists only in favor of an owner who 
has paid more than the pro rata share of the 
ovmer, determined by dividing the total dam
age by the number of dogs involved, of the 
common liability, and the total recovery of 
the owner is limited to the amount paid by 
the owner in excess of the pro rata share of 
the owner. 

(3) An action brought under this section 
may be tried as an action at law in any court 
of competent jurisdiction. 

(4) As used in this section: 
(a) "Owner" means the head of the family 

of the home where the dog is cared for at the 
time of the damage. 

(b) "Head of the family" means any per
son who has charge or manages the affairs 
of a collective body of persons residing to
gether, the relations between whom are of a 
permanent and domestic character. [Amended 
by 1973 c.655 §7; 1975 c.749 §1] 

609.150 Right to kill dog that harms 
or chases livestock. (1) Except as provided 
in subsection (3) of this section, any dog, 
whether licensed or not, which, while off the 
premises owned or .under control of its 
owner, kills, wounds, or injures any livestock 
not belonging to the master of such dog, is 
a public nuisance and may be killed imme
diately by any person. However, nothing in 
this section applies to any dog acting under 
the direction of its master, or the agents or 
employees of such master. 

(2) If arty dog, not under the control of 
its owner or keeper, is found chasing or 
feeding upon the warm carcass of livestock 
not the property of such owner or keeper it 
shall be deemed, prima facie, as engaged in 
killing, wounding or injuring livestock. 

(3) No person shall kill any dog for kill
ing, wounding, injuring or chasing chickens 
upon a public place, highway or within the 
corporate limits of any city. [Amended by 1975 
c.749 §6] 

609.153 Dog owner education program. 
(1) The State Department of Agriculture 
shall coordinate the development of a pro
gram to educate dog owners concerning their 
responsibility to avoid conflicts between dogs 
and livestock. The program shall include the 
publication of a brochure. A discussion of 
penalties and other measures provided for 
under ORS 609.162 and 609.163 shall be in
cluded in the brochure. 

(2) The obligation of the department un
der subsection (1) of this section is limited 
to the extent of any moneys specifically ap
propriated for that purpose or available from 
donations, gifts and grants by private or 
other nonstate sources. [1999 c.756 §10] 
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609.155 Impoundment for harming or 
chasing livestock; determination of fact; 
costs. (1) In a county with a dog control 
program, upon finding a dog engaged in kill
ing, wounding, injuring or chasing livestock 
or upon receipt from a complainant of evi
dence that a dog has been so engaged, the 
dog control officer or other law enforcement 
officer shall impound the dog. 

(2) If there is reason to believe that rea
sonable testing of a dog impounded pursuant 
to subsection (1) of this section, including 
but not limited to a fecal examination or ex
amination of the teeth of the dog, will pro
vide substantial further evidence as to 
whether the dog has been engaged in killing, 
wounding, injuring or chasing livestock, the 
county shall provide for the administration 
of the tests by a licensed veterinarian. 

(3)(a) After the completion of tests ad
ministered pmsuant to subsection (2) of this 
section and allowing an opportunity for a 
hearing under ORS 609.158, the county shall 
determine whether the dog has been engaged 
in killing, wounding, injuring or chasing 
livestock. If the county determines that the 
dog has been so engaged, the county shall 
take action as provided under ORS 609.162 
and 609.163. In addition to any action taken 
under ORS 609.162 and 609.163, the county 
may require that the dog owner pay the costs 
of keeping and testing the dog during im
poundment. If the county determines that the 
dog has not been engaged in killing, wound
ing, injming or chasing livestock, the dog 
shall be released to its owner and, if the dog 
had been impounded upon receipt of evidence 
from a complainant, the complainant shall 
pay the costs of keeping and testing the dog 
during the impoundment. 

(b) Notwithstanding ORS 609.090, a dog 
impounded pmsuant to subsection (1) of this 
section shall not be released until a determi
nation is made by the county pmsuant to 
this subsection. [1975 c.749 §4; 1977 c.802 §9; 1999 
c.756 §20] 

609.156 Opportunity to request hear
ing. (1) Prior to making a determination 
whether a dog has killed, wounded, injured 
or chased livestock, a county shall provide 
an opportunity for the dog owner to receive 
a hearing. The county shall send notice of 
the opportunity to request a hearing in a 
manner that is reasonably calculated, under 
all .the circumstances, to apprise the dog 
owner of the specific behavior and incident 
alleged and the possible penalties, and to 
provide the dog owner with a fair opportu
nity for making the hearing request. 

(2) A dog owner must cause a hearing 
request to be delivered to the county not 
later than the 14th day following the sending 
of notice under subsection (1) of this section. 

If a dog owner does not make a timely re
quest for a hearing, the dog owner is con
clusively presumed to have admitted the 
matter alleged and the county may imme
diately take action under ORS 609.162 and 
609.163. The county shall send notice of its 
determination in the manner provided . under 
ORS 609.158 (4). [1999 c.756 §2l 

809.157 [1975 c.749 §5; 1999 c.756 §21; renumbered 
809.161 in 1999] 

609.158 Hearing process; notice of de
termination; reexamination of determi
nation. (1) A hearing may be conducted and 
a determination whether a dog has killed, 
wounded, injmed or chased livestock may· be 
made by the county governing body or any 
members thereof, the dog control board or 
any members thereof or a county hearings 
officer. 

(2) Notwithstanding ORS 9.160 and 9.320, 
the county may choose to be represented at 
the hearing by any employee of the county. 
If the employee is not an attorney, ·the em
ployee shall not present legal argument, ex
amine or cross-examine witnesses, present 
rebuttal evidence or give legal advice to the 
governing body, dog control board m· hear
ings officer conducting the hearing. 

(3) The person presiding at the hearing 
shall ensure that the record developed at the 
hearing shows a full and fair inquiry into the 
facts necessary to determine the matter al
leged. A determination made by a county 
following a hearing must be upon consider
ation of the whole record and supported by 
reliable, probative and substantial evidence. 

(4) The county shall notify the dog owner 
of its determination and of any civil penalties 
or other measures imposed by delivering or 
mailing a copy to the dog owner or, if appli
cable, the attorney of the dog owner. 

(5) If a hearing is not conducted by a 
majority of the county governing body, the 
owner may request that the county govern
ing body reexamine the determination. If the 
county governing body does not grant the 
request for reexamination within 14 days, the 
request shall be deemed denied. A county 
governing body may not reexamine a deter
mination if a petition for judicial review of 
the determination has been filed. [1999 c.756 
§3] 

809.160 [Amended by 1975 c.499 §2; 1999 c. 756 §22; 
renumbered 609.169 in 1999] 

609.161 Disputable preswnption that 
dog harms or chases livestock. For pur
poses of ORS 609.135 to 609.190, a disputable 
presumption shall ru~se that a dog has been 
engaged in killing, wounding, injuring or 
chasing livestock if: 

(1) The dog is found chasing livestock not 
the property of the owner of the dog in an 
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area where freshly damaged livestock are 
found; 

(2) The dog is found feeding upon a warm 
carcass of a livestock animal; 

(3) An examination of the dog's feces in
dicates ingestion of portions of the anatomy 
or covering of the anatomy of livestock by 
the dog; or 

( 4) Portions of the anatomy or covering 
of the anatomy of livestock are found on the 
teeth of the dog, unless the dog is regularly 
used for the pmpose of herding sheep. 
[Formerly 1609.157] 

609.162 Guidelines for imposing reme
dial measures, civil penalties or other 
sanctions. (1) If a countv determines ·under 
ORS 609.156 (2) or after a full and fair hear
ing that a dog has engaged in killing, 
wounding, injming or chasing livestock, the 
county shall take action in accordance with 
the following guidelines: 

(a) If the dog has engaged in chasing 
livestock and has not previously killed, 
wounded, injured or chased livestock: 

(A) The county shall take reasonable 
measures to prevent a recUITence. ReaSon
able measmes include, but are not limited to, 
requiring that the dog owner take specific 
measures to adequately confine the dog and 
provide a notarized written pledge that the 
owner will prevent the dog from chasing 
livestock again; and 

(B) The county may impose a civil pen
alty of not more than $500. 

(b) If the dog has engaged in chasing 
livestock and has previously killed, wounded, 
injured or chased livestock, or if the dog has 
engaged in wounding or injuring livestock 
and has not previously killed, wounded, in
jured or chased livestock, the county shall 
impose a civil penalty of not less than $250 
and not more than $1,000. In addition to im
posing the civil penalty, the county may: 

(A) Require the dog owner to surrender 
the dog for adoption by a new owner ap

. proved by the county; 
(B) Require the owner to remove the dog 

to a location where, in the opinion of the 
county, the dog does not present a threat to 
livestock;· or 

(C) Require that the dog be put to death 
in a humane manner. Before requiring that 
a dog be put to death under this subpara
graph, the county shall make specific find
ings on the record that other measures are 
not available, are not adequate to remedy the 
problem or are otherwise unsuitable. 

(c) If the dog has engaged in wounding 
or injuring livestock and has previously 
killed, wounded, injured or chased livestock, 

or if the dog has engaged in killing livestock 
and has not previously killed livestock, the 
county shall impose a civil penalty of not 
less than $500 and not more than $1,000. In 
addition to imposing the civil penalty, the 
county shall: 

(A) Require the dog owner to remove the 
dog to a location where, in the opinion of the 
"?unty, the dog does not present a threat to 
livestock; or 

(B) Require that the dog be put to death 
in a humane manner. 

(d) If the dog has engaged in killing live
stock and the dog has previously killed live
stock, the county shall impose a civil penalty 
of not less than .$500 and not more than 
$1,000. In addition to imposing the civil pen
alty, the county shall require that the dog be 
put to death in a humane manner. 

(2) In establishing the history of a dog for 
purposes of this section, or the history of an 
owner for purposes of ORS 609.163, a county 
shall consider all known determinations in
volving the dog or owner by any court, or by 
a goveming body, official or agency of any 
local or state govemment, without regard to 
where or when the incident occurred. [1999 
c.756 §5] 

609.163 Enhanced civil penalties for 
habitual violators. (1) If a county assesses 
a civil penalty under ORS 609.162 against a 
dog owner who has previously been assessed 
a civil penalty, fine or forfeiture based upon 
the killing, wounding, injuring or chasing of 
livestock in an incident not involving the 
same dog or dogs as in the matter being de
termined, the county shall assess an addi
tional civil penalty of not less than $250 and 
not more than $1,000. 

(2) If a county assesses a civil penalty 
under ORS 609.162 against a dog owner who 
has previously been assessed two or more 
civil penalties, fines or forfeitures, or a com
bination thereof, based upon the killing, 
wounding, injming or chasing of livestock in 
two or more incidents not involving the same 
dog or dogs as in the matter being deter
mined, the county shall assess an additional 
civil penalty of not less than $1,000 and not 
more than $5,000. A penalty under this sub
section is in lieu of a civil penalty under 
subsection (1) of this section. 

(3) In addition to any other civil penalty 
under this section or ORS 609.162, if a dog 
that kills, wounds, injures or chases live
stock is not licensed as required, the county 
may assess a civil penal!}• of not more than 
$1,000. A civil penalty imposed under this 
subsection shall prevent imposition of a fine 
under ORS 609.990 for violation of ORS 
609.100. [1999 c.756 §6] 
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609.165 Judicial review of county de
termination. (1) A determination issued uo
der ORS 609.156 or 609.158 is subject to 
judicial review by the circuit coUl"t for the 
couoty making the determination as provided 
under ORS 34.010 to 34.100. Notwithstand
ing ORS 34.070, filing a petition for review 
shall automatically stay execution of the de
termination made by the· county. 

(2) Notwithstanding ORS 34.030, a peti
tion for review must be filed no later than 
the 21st day following the date on which the 
county delivered or mailed its determination 
in accordance with ORS 609.158 (4). The fil
ing of a request for reexamination under 
ORS 609.158 (5) does not act to toll the time 
for filing a petition for judicial review. How
ever, if a county governing body reexamines 
the determination, the time for filing a peti
tion for judicial review shall be extended 
through the 21st day follo,ving the date that 
the result of the reexamination is delivered 
or mailed. 

(3) If the court reverses the decision of 
the county, the court shall make special 
findings of fact based upon the evidence in 
the record and conclusions of law indicating 
clearly all aspects in which the county's 
procedure or determination was in error. 
[1999 c. 756 §4] 

609.166 Record of penalized owners. (1) 
When a civil penalty is assessed· against a 
dog owner under ORS 609.162 or 609.163, the 
county shall supply the State Department of 
Agriculture with information identif'ying the 
dog owner. The department shall supply the 
counties \vith forms for recording the infor
mation. 

(2) The department shall maintain the 
record of a penalized dog owner for a rea
sonable period and shall make the record 
available to any county upon request. , 

(3) The county and the department may 
charge reasonable fees to the dog owner to 
cover the cost of conducting and administer
ing the dog owner information program. [1999 
c.756 §8] 

609.167 Conversion of civil penalty 
into lien; disposition of proceeds. (1) Mon
eys collected from a dog owner under ORS 
609.162 or 609.163 shall be deposited in the 
county treasury. 

(2) A civil penalty under ORS 609.162 or 
609.163 is a penalty against the person own
ing the dog at the time that the dog killed, 
wounded, injured or chased livestock. The 
penalty may not be transferred to a subse
quent owner of the dog. 

(3) When a county assesses a civil pen
alty under ORS 609.162 or 609.163, if the 
amount of penalty is not paid within 21 days 
after delivery or mailing of · the determi-

nation, the county may record the penalty 
with the county clerk of any county of this 
state. The clerk shall thereupon record in 
the County Clerk Lien Record the name of 
the person incurring the penalty. However, 
the county shall not record a penalty with a 
county clerk while a request for reexamina
tion or petition for judicial review is pend
ing. 

( 4) In addition to any other remedy pro
vided by law, recording an order in the 
Couoty Clerk Lien Record pursuant to this 
section has the effect provided for in ORS 
205.125 and 205.126, and the order may be 
enforced as provided in ORS 205.125 an'd 
205.126. 

(5) Imposition of a civil penalty uoder 
ORS 609.162 or 609.163 does not prevent the 
bringing of an action for damages under ORS 
609.140 or 609.190. A determination by the 
county that a dog has killed, wounded, in
jured or chased livestock is prima facie evi
dence of the matter in a subsequent action 
uoder ORS 609.140 but not in an action un
der ORS 609.190. [1999 c.756 §7] 

609.168 l\'ficrochip identification of 
dog; rules. (1) A couoty shall implant an 
identif'ying microchip into a dog described in 
ORS 609.162 that is not put to death. Im
plantation shall be made prior to any adop
tion or relocation of the dog. The State 
Department of Agricultlll"e, by rule, shall 
prescribe standards for microchip implanta
tion. The county making an implantation 
shall forward the microchip information and 
the record of the dog to the department. 

(2) The department shalt maintain the 
record for a dog implanted ·with a microchip 
under this section for a reasonable period 
and shall make the record available to any 
county upon request. 

(3) The county and the department may 
charge reasonable fees to the dog owner to 
cover the cost of conducting and administer
ing the microchip implantation program. 
[1999 c.756 §9] 

609.169 Keeping dog with knowledge 
that it has harmed livestock. (1) Except 
as provided under subsections (2) and (3) of 
this section, a person may not own, harbor 
or keep any dog with knowledge that it has 
killed, wounded or injured livestock within 
this state or, with knowledge that, while off 
the premises owned or under the control of 
its owner and while not acting uoder the di
rection of its master or the agents or em
ployees of such master, it has killed or 
seriously injured any person. 

(2) A person is not prohibited from own
ing, harboring or keeping a dog pursuant to 
a county approved adoption or relocation of 
a dog uoder ORS 609.162 (1)(b) or (c). 
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(3) A person is not prohibited froin own
ing, harboring or keeping a dog, with know
ledge that it has killed or wounded chickens, 
unless the dog owner fails to pay full dam
ages for the killed or wounded chickens 
within three days after receipt of a demand 
for those damages from the owner of the 
chickens. [Formerly 609.160] 

609.170 Claim by owner of livestock. In 
a county with a dog control program tbe 
owner of any livestock killed, wounded, 

· chased or injured by any dog may, within 10 
days after the killing, wounding, chasing or 
injuring occurred, or became known to the 
owner, present to the dog control board or 
county governing body a verified statement 
containing a full account of the incident, 
stating in detail the amount of damage 
claimed on account thereof, and the name 
and address of the owner or keeper of the 
dog, if known. The claim shall be supported 
by the affidavit of at least one disinterested 
person as to all material facts contained in 
it. [Amended by 1953 c.640 §2; 1975 c.749 §7; 1977 c.602 
§10] 

609.180 Hearing and payment of 
claims. All claims presented as provided by 
ORS 609.170 shall be heard at the first regu
lar session of the dog control ·board or 
county governing body after their presenta
tion, or as soon thereafter as may be practi
cable. If the board or governing body 
determines that any livestock has been dam
aged by being killed, wounded, injured or 
chased, it shall file and enter a record of the 
value of the livestock and order a warrant 
drawn for the amount of damages thus found, 
or any portion thereof that it considers just, 
to be paid by the county treasurer out of the 
Dog License Fund. A livestock owner may 
refuse to accept the tendered payment and 
may withdraw a claim filed under ORS 
609.170. If the dog control board or· county 
governing body considers the claim unjust, it 
shall disallow the claim and enter that fact 
upon its record. A claim may not be allowed 
where it appears that the damage complained 
of was caused by a dog owned or controlled 
by the claimant or the agent of the claimant. 
[Amended 'by 1975 c.749 §8; 1977 c.602 §11; 1999 c.756 §23] 

609.190 Subrogation of county paying 
claim; collection by district attorney. In 
each case where a claim against the Dog Li
cense Fund of any county has been paid by 
the dog control board or county governing 
body, the county shall be subrogated to all 
the rights of the livestock owner against the 
dog owner for damages. The district attorney 
shall proceed promptly, in a lawful way, to 
collect for those damages. Any money so 
collected shall be paid over immediately to 
the treasurer of the county and credited to 
the Dog License Fund. [Amended by 1975 c.749 
§9; 1977 c.602 §12; 1999 c.756 §24] 

EXOTIC ANIMALS 
(Local Government Regulation) 

609.205 Prohibitions against keeping 
of wild or exotic animals. Notwithstanding 
the provisions of ORS chapters 496, 497 and· 
498 relating to wildlife, and ORS 609.305 to 
609.355 and 609.992 relating to exotic ani
mals, a city or county may prohibit by ordi
nance the keeping of wildlife, as defined in 
ORS 496.004, and may prohibit by ordinance 
the keeping of exotic animals as defined in 
ORS 609.305. [1977 c.802 §3; 1985 c.437 §9] 

(Generally) 
609.305 ''Exotic animal" defined. As 

used in ORS 609.305 to 609.355 and 609.992, 
"exotic animal" means: 

(1) Any member of the family Felidae not 
indigenous to Oregon, except the species 
Felis catus (domestic cat); 

(2) Any nonhuman primate; 
(3) Any nonwolf member of the family 

Canidae not indigenous to Oregon, except 
the species Canis familiaris (domestic dog); 

( 4) Any bear, except the black bear 
· (Ursus americanus); and 

(5) Any member of the order Crocodylia. 
[1985 c.437 §2; 1999 c.699 §3; 2009 c.492 §1] 

609.309 Policy on exotic animals. It is 
the policy of this state to protect the public 
against health and safety risks that exotic 
animals pose to the community, ensure the 
health, welfare and safety of exotic animals 
and ensure the security of facilities in which 
exotic animals are kept, so as to avoid undue 
physical or financial risk to the public. [1985 
c.437 §1; 1999 c.699 §4; 2009 c.492 §2] 

609.310 [1963 c.217 §1; reroaled by 1977 c.802 §15] 

609.312 Seller to provide buyer with 
informational material. A person who sells 
an exotic animal must, prior to accepting the 
offer to purchase, provide the prospective 
purchaser of the exotic animal with informa
tional material approved by the State De
partment of Agriculture regarding the care, 
husbandry, health and nutritional needs of 
the exotic animal. This section does not al
low the· sale of an exotic animal to a person 
located in this state other than an entity de
scribed in ORS 609.345. [1999 c.699 §2; 2009 c.492 
§3] 

609.315 [1985 c.437 §8; 1999 c.699 §5; 2009 c.492 §4; 
renumbered 609.345 in 2009] 

609.319 [1985 c.437 §3; 1999 c.699 §8; 2009 c.492 §5; 
renumbered 609.341 in 2009] 

609.320 [1963 c.217 §2; repealed by 1977 c.802 §15) 

609.325 Conditions for keeping exotic 
animal. Any person who keeps an exotic 
animal shall keep the animal under condi
tions of confinement or control that, given 
the nature of the animal, would be imposed 

Title 48 Page 749 (2011 Edition) 



 

 

Agenda Item 

Wasco County Public Budget Hearing 

 

 Budget Detail 

 Resolution 12-010 – Adopting County Budget 

for 2012-13 

 



FORM LB-1 

Telephone: 541-506-2770

Actual Amount Adopted Budget Approved Budget
2010-11 This Year 2011-12 Next Year 2012-13

13,793,808 12,485,927 12,935,871
3,124,491 3,500,150 3,392,997
9,737,984 8,229,911 7,381,419

487,470 460,500 382,364
1,270,607 1,861,415 1,909,288

376,047 866,328 336,595
7,142,859 7,179,689 7,403,996

35,933,265 34,583,920 33,742,530

9,690,422 10,710,064 10,894,368
7,603,024 11,604,746 7,851,477
2,384,890 3,053,928 5,809,824

521,131 523,958 525,720
1,139,427 1,729,815 1,904,508

0 1,286,596 1,250,037
0 0 0
0 5,674,813 5,506,596

21,338,895 34,583,920 33,742,530

289,978 301,167 0
2.5 2.5 0

581,026 637,038 656,106
9 9 9

300,223 367,045 357,301
4.5 4.5 4.5

4,447,417 4,017,878 3,895,584
34.75 36 36

1,912,894 1,925,403 2,218,706
13 18 19

4,315,039 6,652,688 6,071,523
0.25 0.25 0.25

494,038 753,976 717,882
7 7 7

438,314 512,553 521,116
6 6 6

3,492,860 6,622,073 6,845,449
27.5 25.5 25.5

2,357,682 2,808,887 2,864,208
26.85 27.00 27.00

1,107,731 1,086,353 1,022,807
10 10 10

1,601,692 8,898,859 8,571,848
0 0 0

21,338,894 34,583,920 33,742,530
142 146 144

 Interfund Transfers / Internal Service Reimbursements

 Federal, State and All Other Grants, Gifts, Allocations and Donations

           Total FTE

Personnel Services
Materials and Services
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Interfund Transfers
Contingencies

Unappropriated Ending Balance and Reserved for Future Expenditure
Special Payments

     FTE

     Total Requirements

     FTE

ADMINISTRATION

YOUTH

     FTE for that unit or program

SHERIFF
     FTE

All Other Resources Except Property Taxes

FINANCIAL SUMMARY - REQUIREMENTS BY ORGANIZATIONAL UNIT OR PROGRAM *

     FTE

Name of Organizational Unit or Program 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY - REQUIREMENTS BY OBJECT CLASSIFICATION

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

      FTE 

COUNTY CLERK

Property Taxes Estimated to be Received
     Total Resources 

COUNTY COURT

     FTE

PUBLIC WORKS

ASSESSMENT & TAXATION
      FTE

The budget process this year has shifted to budgeting based on actual expenditures.  The goalof this change is the elimination of any excess dollars that may be built into 
budgets and subsequently returned at the end of the year.  This is a change from years past where departments were asked to include some contingency dollars in their 

budgets.  The impact of this change will be more available dollars that can be put toward other areas that are in need.  Additionally, as unexpected items come up we 
may see an increased use of contingency funds where in years past a department may have been able to cover the item in their normal operating budget. What you 

continue to see in this budget as you did in the 2011/2012 budget is a conservative approach to budgeting.  With currently realized and future expected funding 
shortfalls, we continue with the 12/13 budget to address these challenges.  The continued funding of reserve funds help us to prepare for the funding uncertainties that 

we will face in the near future. We also continue the process of reforming our budgeting strategy to be service oriented using strategic planning and forecasting. By 
                          

                      

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

                         NOTICE OF BUDGET HEARING               

FINANCIAL SUMMARY - RESOURCES

 Beginning Fund Balance/Net Working Capital

 Revenue from Bonds and Other Debt 

TOTAL OF ALL FUNDS

 Fees, Licenses, Permits, Fines, Assessments & Other Service Charges

Contact: Monica Morris Email:monicam@co.wasco.or.us

     FTE
PLANNING
     FTE

PUBLIC HEALTH
     FTE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACTIVITIES and SOURCES OF FINANCING *

Non-Departmental / Non-Program
     FTE
     Total Requirements

     FTE

 
A public meeting of the Wasco County Commissioners will be held on June 6th, 2012 at 11:15 am at the Wasco County Courthouse, Courtroom 202, 511 Washington St., 
The Dalles, Oregon. The purpose of this meeting is to discuss the budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 as approved by the Wasco County Budget Committee.  
A summary of the budget is presented below. A copy of the budget may be inspected or obtained at the Wasco County Finance Department, 511 Washington St., Suite 
207, The Dalles, Oregon, between the hours of _8:30_ a.m. and _4:30__ p.m. This budget is for an annual budget period.  This budget was prepared on a basis of 
accounting that is the same as the preceding year.    



Rate or Amount Imposed Rate or Amount Imposed Rate or Amount Approved
$4.2523 $4.2523 $4.2523

$473,661 $461,957 $470,097

LONG TERM DEBT

General Obligation Bonds
Other Bonds
Other Borrowings
     Total
* If more space is needed to complete any section of this form, insert lines (rows) on this sheet or add sheets.  You may delete unused lines.

 Levy For General Obligation Bonds

 Permanent Rate Levy   (rate of $4.2523 per $1,000)

$1,036,565

on July 1.

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES

Estimated Debt Outstanding Estimated Debt Authorized, But 
 Not Incurred on July 1

$443,488

STATEMENT OF INDEBTEDNESS

 Local Option Levy

$593,077

                              
                             

                               
                             

                           
                           

                           
encouraging collaboration and creativity in departments and linking funding to outcomes – we can deliver results citizens are willing to pay for. Our presented budget is 

less this year mainly due to the excessive grant projects that have been completed or did not develop in the 2011/12 year. 
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IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE STATE OF OREGON 
 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASCO 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF THE FISCAL YEAR ) 
2012-2013 BUDGET, TAX LEVY AND  )R E S O L U T I O N #12-010 
APPROPRIATIONS.    )          
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED that the Wasco County Board of Commissioners hereby 

adopts the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Budget approved by the Budget Committee of the 

County on May 8, 2012, now on file in the Office of the Finance Office in the amount of 

$33,742,530. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Wasco 

County, Oregon, hereby imposes the taxes provided for in the adopted budget at the 

rate of $4.2523 per $1,000 of assessed value for operations and in the amount of 

$470,097 for bonds; and that these taxes are hereby imposed and categorized for tax 

year 2012-2013 upon the assessed value of all taxable property within the district as 

follows: 

     Subject to the  Excluded 
     General Government From 
     Limitation   Limitation__ 
General Fund               $4.2523/$1,000 
VA Bond Debt Service Fund     $470,097.00 
 
///// 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the amounts and for the purposes 
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shown in the attached LB1 Form for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2012, be and 

hereby are as follows: the total appropriated amount is $28,235,934, the total 

unappropriated amount is $5,506,596 for a total budget of $33,742,530. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk certify to the 

Assessor of Wasco County, Oregon, the tax levy made by this Resolution. 

 The above Resolution Statements were approved and declared adopted on this 

6th day of June, 2012. 

      WASCO COUNTY BOARD  
      OF COMMISSIONERS 
      
 
      _______________________________ 
      Rod L. Runyon, Chair of Commission 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Scott C. Hege, County Commissioner 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Kathy White 
Executive Assistant 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Eric J. Nisley 
Wasco County District Attorney 
  



 

 

Agenda Item 

Public Fee Amendment Hearing Continued 

 

 Youth Services 

 Public Works 

 County Clerk 

 Community Corrections 

 Public Health – Environmental Health 

 Public Health – Licensed Facility 

 County Treasurer 

 Power Point Outline of Requests 

 Ordinance 12-013 – Amending Fee Schedule 



Wasco County Mail - Fees Schedule

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=7d850ab937&view=pt&cat=BOCC&search=cat&msg=137296365457970a[5/10/2012 6:47:00 AM]

Kathy White <kathyw@co.wasco.or.us>

Fees Schedule

Molly Rogers <mollyr@co.wasco.or.us> Mon, May 7, 2012 at 3:20 PM

To: Kathy White <kathyw@co.wasco.or.us>

Kathy,

Under the Youth Services Department I would like to add a fee for completing and filing for expunctions.  Our fee structure has

been partially modeled after Umatilla County, which the application fee in Umatilla County is $60.00.  I am not sure what

documentation or rationale would be helpful, so please let me know.

-- 

Molly Rogers, MJM
Director

Wasco County Youth Services

202 East Fifth Street

The Dalles, OR 97058

(541) 506-2660

(541) 506-2661



May 10, 2012 

· To: Wasco County Board of Commissioners 

From: Marty Matherly, ~ 
Wasco County Public Works Director 

Re : Permit Ordinance- Permit Fees 

BACKGROUND: 

WASCO COUNTY 
PUBLIC WORKS 

2705 EAST 2ND STREET 
THE DALLES, OR 97058-4097 

541-506-2640 
FAX-506-2641 

Section 12 of the "Wasco County Permit Ordinance General Provisions" identifies permit regulations and 
classifications and Section 13 identifies permit fees. (Ordinance & Regulations can be found on: 
Computer> shared(\ \we-homer) (S) >permits.) 

All permits issued shall be classified under one of the following headings: 

(A) Cattle Guard Permit 
(B) Operations I Special Events Permit 
(C) Road Approach Permit 
(D) Road Encroachment Permit 
(E) Road Improvement Permit 
(F) Utility Permit 

Currently, Wasco County does not charge a fee for these permits. 

The Utility, Road Approach and Operations I Special Events Permits are the most requested and 
processed permits. The other three are very seldom applied for. 

Utility Permit: 

Per ORS 758.010, counties cannot charge for utility permits. However, Counties can charge a fee to 
recover the costs of processing and inspecting the other permits. 

Road Approach permit: 

On or around 2002, we made arrangements with the Planning Department to have land use applicants 
verify that they have an approved approach permit on file for any existing or new approaches onto 
county or public roads. The intent of this action was safety driven. We have many unpermitted 
approaches in the county. Thus, this anangement is the reason why approach permits are the highest 
number of permits we issue annually. 



Operations I Special Events Permit: 

An example of an "Operation Permits" would be a farm related activity on or across a county or public 
road which is generally short term use. We seldom issue Operations permits. 

However, "Special Event Permits" is different and becoming more popular. We are averaging more than 
10 events a year. Most are fundraising events such as bicycling events, triathlons' and walking/running 
events. Some are races and some are not. On an average, these permits require 1 to 3 hours of staff 
time. 

New to Special Events ...... ... ... Motor Vehicle Road Rally: 

In 2010 we received a request to permit a motor vehicle road rally. This request required us to revise 
our general permit conditions to accommodate a high speed car race on rural county roads. Approving 
the roads and spectator sites took many hours. The Road Department recorded more than 200 hours 

administering this particular permit. Total cost to Wasco County was more than $10,700. 

In 2011 the same rally group returned and made changes to certain situations and operations. Again, 
working through the changes and approving submittals took many hours. In addition, there was a 
thunderstorm during the event which caused many problems. The Road Department recorded more 
than 110 hours administering the 2011 event. Total cost to Wasco County was more than $6,000. 

In 2012 the rally group requested the same operations as the 2011 event. This decision reduced the 

road department time for review and approval. And, the permit conditions were administrated properly 
by the rally group (no thunderstorm). Total cost to Wasco County was more than $2,500. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

I recommend that Wasco County charge a fee to recover the costs to process and inspect a "Motor 
Vehicle Road Rally" (Operations/Special events Permit). The fee total would be actual costs for 
administering the permit. 

The procedure to determine the fee would be to charge an initial deposit of $500. Track staff time for 
processing the permit, inspect the event for compliance to permit conditions and inspect and approve 
road repairs after the event. When the permit is complete we would then bill for actual costs. Thus, we 
would either refund any remaining money or send a bill of the costs that exceeded the deposit. 

I recommend that Wasco County continues not charging a fee to the following permits: 

Cattleguards, road approach, road encroachment, road improvement and utility permits. 



 
 

 

March 7, 2012 

 

To: Board of County Commissioners 

From: Linda Brown, County Clerk 

Re: Fee to Offset Cost of Unfunded Fee Collection Service-FY 2012-2013 

 

Request: 

Adopt a fee of $1 per document assessed the Affordable Housing fee of $15 for the fee collection services 

provided by the county on behalf of the Oregon Housing and Community Services Department, as required by 

ORS 205.323 (1)(c).  The $1 fee shall be deposited into General Fund Clerk’s Fees (101.15.5115.411.124) 

 

Background: 

With the passage of HB 2436, (2009 Legislature) requires the County Clerk to collect a fee of $15.00 on behalf 

of the Oregon Housing and Community Services Department on only certain recorded instruments. 

 

The County Clerk then transfer all fees collected to the County Treasurer.  The fee must be deposited in the 

Assessment and Taxation Funds of the county.  The County Treasurer is then required to pay over moneys in 

the Assessment and Taxation Fund to the State Treasurer for deposit into specified account of the Oregon 

Department of Revenue and Housing and Community Services Department. 

 

The Oregon Association of Counties and County Clerk’s requested, without success that the Oregon State 

Legislature and sponsors of the bill allow counties a portion of the fees collected for the new housing-related fee 

as  is allowed on a previously established recording fee deposited in the County Assessment and Taxation Fund 

authorized under ORS 205.320(18). 

 

ORS 205.320(18) states “Notwithstanding any other law, five percent of any fee or tax that is not collected for 

the benefit of the county clerk shall be deducted from the fee or tax.  The moneys deducted shall be expended for 

acquiring storage and retrieval systems, payment of expenses incurred in collecting the fee or tax and 

maintaining and restoring records as authorized by the county clerk.  Moneys collected under this subsection 

shall be deposited in a county clerk records fund established by the county governing body.” 

 

ORS 205.320(9), states that the county can implement a fee, “For any service the clerk may be required or 

authorized to perform and for which no fee is provided by law, such fees as may favorably compare with those 

established by this section for similar services as may be established by order or rule of the county court or 

board of commissioners.” 
 
 
 



Recording Fees background: 

 

Recording fees are $56.00 for first page and $5.00 for each additional page: 

Fee breakout: 

 $10.00 A&T fee---General Fund gets $.50; Clerk’s Records Fund get $.50 and $8.00 goes to State 

of Oregon 

 $1.00 OLIS (Oregon Land Information Systems) all goes to state 

 $15.00 GIS---$14.25 to GIS Fund and $.75 to Clerk’s Records Fund 

 $10.00 Land Corner---$8.00 to Surveyor for Land Corner Preservation Fund; $1.00 to General 

Fund; $1.00 to Clerk’s Records Fund 

 $5.00---per page recording fee to Clerk’s Revenue (General Fund) 

 $15.00 Affordable Housing—All money plus interest goes to State.  Law was written that 

counties do not get any of the fee for administering the fund. 

Other counties that have added an administrative fee:  Jackson $3.00; Benton $2.00; Malheur, 

Tillamook, Deschutes, Klamath, and Crook all charge $1.00. 

 

 

 



To: Wasco County, 
       Administrative Services                                                        3-12-2012 
 
From: Robert Martin, Community Corrections 
 
Re: Fee Schedule Changes 
 
 
I am writing this request as per the email dated 2-27-2012, from Kathy McBride, 
notifying that we submit requested changes to the fee schedule to the Administrative 
Services office by 3-16-12. 
 
I am requesting the following changes to the fee schedule for our department: 
 

• #7.) The urine analysis fee be broken into two subcategories with the name 
changed to: “laboratory drug testing fee” and another subcategory called “instant 
drug testing fee”. We now use saliva as part of our drug testing and the name for 
the charges needs to be broad enough to include this. Additionally we want the 
flexibility to charge $7.50 for tests that are tested with an “instant test” and are not 
sent to the lab. This is a separate charge from laboratory testing, which would 
remain $15. The samples are often not sent to the lab if they instant test negative 
but we still have costs associated with these devices and the disposal of the 
hazardous wastes. (Note: This change is separate from the “Non-Departmental 
Drug Screen” item #14). 

 
• #9). The fee for inter-county transfer request processing (Wasco County as the 

sending county) is currently $10 and is noted as a “one time fee” in the schedule. 
It is requested that the “one time fee” portion be deleted as there should be a fee 
for each such request and the wording is simply confusing. Additionally it is 
requested that this fee be raised to $25 for each such retransfer request. There is a 
regimen of extra paperwork associated with these transfers and they are often not 
well thought out by clients and often fall flat after we have spent time in filling 
out all the paperwork and contacting the other county. I believe there is a balance 
between making it expensive enough to prevent frivolous requests and client 
needs.   

 
• #10). The fee for “electronic home detention monitoring” is currently $5.00 per 

day and it is requested this be increased to a minimum of $8.00 per day. This will 
help cover the expenses for equipment rental services associated with the 
program. Costs for equipment rental have gone up and there are consumables 
associated with this. This fee does not cover the actual costs to monitor when 
including staff time, equipment rental, administrative costs, and consumables, 
however, charging at that level would be beyond the pale for most of our clients 
to be able to afford. We rely on our grant funding to help subsidize this. 

 



• (New fee) It is requested that a new category of fee be adopted and identified as 
“Non-departmental electronic monitoring”.  This category is regarding cases not 
assigned to, and supervised by, Wasco County Community Corrections. We have 
frequently been pressed to provide this service and such clients are not covered in 
our grant funding. Our IGA with the State of Oregon does not allow grant funds 
spent on monitoring clients that are not specifically assigned to parole or 
probation with us. Regardless it is likely that we will eventually be required to 
take on such a case at some point and it would be advisable to have a fee in place 
that reflects the expense of such monitoring. Therefore it is requested that another 
category fee be added and designated “non-departmental electronic monitoring” 
and be scheduled at a rate of $55 per day with a one time “set up fee” of $250. 
This fee will be required to be paid “up front” prior to monitoring for the month 
(each month on the program). This fee is significantly above a “regular” case as it 
can not be subsidized by grant funding from the state. 

 
• #12). Out of state travel permit: It is requested this be increased to $3.00 

(currently $2.00). This fee has never been raised since inception and the costs 
associated have risen over time. 

 
• #14). The “Non-departmental Drug Screen fee” is currently $35 and is charged in 

the event we are required to obtain a drug screen sample for a person not on 
parole or probation to Wasco County Community Corrections. It is requested that 
this fee be raised to $45. This is a service that we have sometimes been required 
to do for another entity. The costs associated with this are not subsidized by our 
state grant as the person is not on supervision to this office and therefore all 
expenses would come straight out of our “pocket” so to speak. The cost of this 
service in the community would be far in excess of $45 (more like $90 to $100+). 
Our expenses include consumables from gloves, disposal containers, and 
hazardous waste storage and pickup expenses, to the actual lab expenses and the 
staff time of collecting the sample and reporting lab results to the referring 
agency. These expenses are not subsidized by our grant and aid from the state and 
we are prohibited from spending actual grant and aid dollars on non-department 
clients. This fee increase will help us cover expenses associated with this and is 
required to be paid up front.   

 
Please contact me if you have any questions regarding this request. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
 

Robert V. Martin, Director 
Community Corrections 
Wasco County  
421 E. 7th Street (Annex B) 
The Dalles, OR 97058 
(541) 506-2570 
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NORTH CENTRAL PUBLIC HEALTH DISTRICT 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SECTION 

FEE SCHEDULE 

 
ON-SITE SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS 

 

A.  New Site Evaluation:          

Single Family Dwelling…………………….                $475 

 Commercial Facility System Evaluations  

 Authorized by DEQ to Contract County: 

1) For first one thousand (1,000) 

gallons projected daily sewage flow     $500        

2) For each five hundred (500)   

gallons or part thereof above 1,000 

gallons but less than 2,500 gallons      $153         

B.  Construction-Installation Permit: 

a. For first 1,000 gallon projected daily sewage flow: 

Standard On-Site System…………      $495   

Alternative System: 

 Aerobic System…………………..       $1010   

 Capping Fill………………………       $877   

 Disposal Trenches in Saprolite…..      $510   

 Gray Water Waste Disposal Sump...      $285   

 Pressure Distribution……………...      $867   

 Redundant…………………………      $615 

 Sand Filter…………………………      $1010 

 Seepage Trench……………………      $560 

 Steep Slope………………………...      $560  

 Tile Dewatering……………………      $1010  

            Alternative Treatment Technologies (Future)    $1010         

 

With the exception of sand filters and pressure 

distribution systems, a $40 fee may be added  

to all permits that specify the use of a pump  

or dosing siphon. 

 

 Permit Transfer, Reinstatement or Renewal: 

  If Field Visit Required……………     $255  

  No Field Visit Required…………..     $102  

 

b. For systems with projected daily sewage flows  

greater than 1,000 gallons, the construction  

installation permit fee shall be equal to the fee  

required in (B) (a) plus $60 for each 500 gallons  

or part thereof above 1,000 gallons. 
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Alteration Permit: 

 Major………………………………………    $390    

 Minor………………………………………    $180  

Repair Permit: 

 Single Family Dwelling: 

 Major……………………………………….     $325 

 Minor……………………………………….     $130   

Authorization Notice: 

 If Field Visit Required……………………..     $285 

 No Field Visit Required……………………     $135   

Annual Evaluation of Alternative System (where required)    $275   

Renewal of Hardship Authorization for Temporary Dwelling 

             If Field Visit Required……………………..               $275 

             No Field Visit Required……………………               $185 

Existing System Evaluation Report…………………    $285   

Site Evaluation or permitting of any commercial  

facility system delegated to county shall follow  

same fee schedule as the Department of  

Environmental Quality. 

 

Plan Review fee for commercial facility systems greater than 600gpd would be 

$360 up to 1,000gpd then an extra $60 for each 500 gallons or part thereof above 

1,000gpd up to 2,500 gallons. 
 

Pumper Truck Inspection: 

First Vehicle, Each Inspection………...……     $110 

 Each Additional Vehicle, Each Inspection…     $75       
 

Refunds: 

A refund may be made of all or a portion of a  

fee accompanying an application if the applicant  

withdraws the application before any field work  

or other substantial review of the application has  

been done. 
 

Annual Report Evaluation Fee Holding Tank…………            $60    

 

Each of the above fees includes a $60 DEQ surcharge  

that will be forwarded to the State Department of  

Environmental Quality. 
 

 

Record Search, if not part of an onsite application and  

exceeds 15 minutes (Flat Rate)……………………..      $30 

 

Field Consultation Fee………………………………     $60/hr.   

                                                                                                 (1 hr. min)  



101 -  250 . . .  $471 

251 -  500 . . .    $745 

501 -  750 . . .  $1012 

751 - 1000 . . .   $1242 

1001 - 1500 . . $1618 

1500 . . . . . . .  $2025 

  1  -  10 . . . . .   $ 38 

11  -  20 . . . . . $ 69 

21  -  30 . . . . . $102  

31  -  40 . . . . . $134 

41  -  50 . . . . . $166 

51  -  75 . . . . . $204 

76 -  100 . . . .  $268 

FOOD SERVICE FEES:*                              

Full service restaurant fees based on seating criteria: 

  0  -  15   Seats…………………… $472           

16  -  50   Seats…………………… $530 

51 - 150   Seats…………………… $605 

> 150       Seats…………………… $675 
 

Bed & Breakfast………………… $205 

Limited Service Restaurant…….. $268 

Commissary……………………….. $337 

Mobile unit………………………… $320 

Warehouse………………………… $135 
 

Vending Machines (by # of machines):  

 

 

 

 

 

*A license expires annually on Dec. 31.  To reinstate a license after the Dec. 31 expiration, the 

applicant must pay a reinstatement fee of $100 in addition to the license fee required.  The rein-

statement fee shall increase by an additional $100 on the first day of each succeeding month until 

the license is reinstated.   

      

TEMPORARY RESTAURANT LICENSES: 

One Day Events… $50       Two or More Days Events…$70 

If NOT received at least four days prior to event- 

One Day Events… $70       Two or More Days Events… $120 

 

PLAN REVIEW FEES FOR FOOD SERVICE: 

For Initial Construction: 

Full Service Restaurant    $325 

Bed & Breakfast    $  97 

Limited Service Restaurant   $  97 

Commissary     $163 

Mobile Unit     $112 

Warehouse     $  66 

TOURIST FACILITY FEES:** 

Bed & Breakfast……………………… ……... $  85 

Travelers Accommodation…………………... $  90 

Organizational Camp 0 to 300 campers…….   $300  

                                      301 to 600 campers ….  $400 

                                      601 + campers………..  $1700 

Picnic Park……………………………………. $  85 
 

Recreation Park:  

 Base Fee……...$90  plus 

$2.75    per space for 1 - 50 RV spaces, plus  

$2.00    per space for 51 - 100 RV spaces, plus  

$1.35    per space for >100 RV spaces 

**Facilities that renew later than January 15 will be assessed a penalty fee of 

50% of the original fee, and another 50% on the first day of each successive 

month of delinquency.  

  

SWIMMING POOL & SPA FEES: 

First Pool/Spa……………………….… $195 

Additional Pool/Spa…………………… $117 

Plan Review Fees for Pools & Spas…… $388 
 

UNLICENSED FACILITIES: 

School (food service inspection) ..……………….… $ 90 

Daycare Inspection……………………………….… $ 90 

Institutional Inspection (Jail, Nursing Home, etc.)… $ 90 

 

North Central Public Health District 

Licensed Facility Fee Schedule  

OTHER FOOD SERVICE FEES: 

Mobile Inspection Fee  - 

     (For units licensed through other jurisdictions)  ………….$ 25 per inspection 

Quarterly Inspection Fee  - (A result of getting a score of  less  

     than 70 on 2 consecutive, unannounced semi-annual inspections)    

     ……………………….…………………………..$205 per inspection    

Hard Copy of Food Sanitation Rules ………………...………$   5 per copy 

ALL FACILITIES: 

A $50 fee (per inspection) will be charged for any facility requiring more than  

two resinspections, following a regular inspection. 

 
For Remodeling: 
Full Service Restaurant $130 

All Other food Facilities $70 

 

Operation Review for 30 day Intermittent or 90 day Seasonal……… $30 

Reinspection Fee for Intermittent or Seasonal Temporary Restaurant….$70 



Wasco County Mail - Fee Hearing

https://mail.google.com/...i=2&ik=7d850ab937&view=pt&as_has=fee&as_subset=all&as_within=1d&search=adv&msg=13727f3e507da56b[5/13/2012 9:19:27 AM]

Kathy White <kathyw@co.wasco.or.us>

Fee Hearing

Chad Krause <chadk@co.wasco.or.us> Mon, May 7, 2012 at 8:38 AM

To: Kathy White <kathyw@co.wasco.or.us>

Cc: Tyler Stone <tylers@co.wasco.or.us>

The Handling fee/credit card transaction of $2.50 needs to be eliminated.

 

As I understand it from Tyler, we won’t be collecting for the dog licenses after June 30 (Home at Last will), so we’ll be
dropping those PayPal/Visa transactions. 

 

And, when we get up and running with countywide credit card acceptance (in the next month, or so), WE won’t charge
any fee (the card processing company will).  THEY will have their own fee disclosure…but Wasco County won’t assess any
fee.  Chad.

 

 

 

Chad Krause

Wasco County Treasurer

541-506-2772

ChadK@co.wasco.or.us

 

 

 

From: Kathy White [mailto:kathyw@co.wasco.or.us] 
Sent: Monday, May 07, 2012 5:27 AM
To: All Users
Subject: Fee Hearing

[Quoted text hidden]

mailto:ChadK@co.wasco.or.us
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2012 Fee Amendment Requests 
May 16, 2012 



Youth Services 

• New Fees  

▫ Completing & Filing Expunctions  $60.00 



Public Works 

• New Fees 

▫ Process and Inspect Motor Vehicle Road Rally
 $500.00 Deposit – Billing for Actual Costs 

 



County Clerk 

• New Fees 

▫ Affordable Housing Fee Document Assessment 

 Administrative Fee - $1.00 per Document 



Community Corrections 
• New Fees 

▫ Non-departmental Electronic Monitoring   
 One-time Set-up Fee $250.00 

 Per-day Fee  $   55.00 

• Fee Increases 
▫ “Urine Analysis Fee” change to  “Laboratory Drug Testing Fee” 
 Instant Tests  $      7.50 (new category) 

 Laboratory Test  $     15.00 (same as current) 

▫ Inter-County Transfer Request 
 Eliminate “one-time fee” language (confusing) 

 Transfer Request $     25.00 (current fee $10.00) 

▫ Electronic Home Detention Monitoring 
 Per Day Fee  $        8.00 (current fee $5.00)  

▫ Out-of-State Travel Permit 
 Permit   $         3.00 (current fee $2.00) 

▫ Non-Departmental Drug Screen Fee 
 Fee   $       45.00 (current fee $35.00)  



Public Health – Environmental Health 

• New Fees 
▫ Alternative Treatment Technologies (Future) 
 Fee      $1010.00 

▫ Renewal of Hardship Authorization for Temporary 
Dwelling 
 If Field Visit Required   $   275.00 
 No Field Visit Required   $   185.00 

▫ Plan Review Fee 
 For commercial Facility systems greater than 600gpd 

       $    360.00 
 For commercial Facility over 1,000gpd $    360.00 plus 

$60.00 extra for each 500 gallons or part thereof above 
1,000gpd up to 2,500 gallons. 
 
 



Public Health – Licensed Facility 

• New Fees 

▫ Operation Review for 30 day Intermittent or 90 
day Seasonal   $30.00 

▫ Re-inspection Fee for Intermittent or Seasonal 
Temporary Restaurant $70.00 



- ORDINANCE 1 

 
 
 
 
 

IN THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE STATE OF OREGON 
 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASCO 
 

 
IN THE MATTER OF AMENDING ) 
WASCO COUNTY’S UNIFORM FEE )       O R D I N A N C E 
SCHEDULE FOR VARIOUS COUNTY )       #12-013 
DEPARTMENTS.    ) 
 
 
THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF WASCO COUNTY, OREGON, 

DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. PURPOSE 
 
 The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend established uniform fees to 

be collected by Wasco County Departments for performing the service 

required or necessitated by various state statutes. 

Section 2. AUTHORITY 

 This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority granted to general 

law Counties by ORS 203.035 and by Chapter 833 of the 1979 Oregon 

Laws. 

Section 3. FEE SCHEDULE 

 The following fees shall be charged and collected by the indicated 

Department before the filing, recording, or copying of subject documents 

shall be completed: 

 (A) WASCO COUNTY YOUTH SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
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(1) The fee for completing and filing expunctions shall be 

$60.00 

 (B) WASCO COUNTY CLERK’S OFFICE 

(1) The fee per document assessed the Affordable Housing 

fee of $15.00 for the fee collections services provided by 

Wasco County on behalf of the Oregon Housing and 

Community Services Department, as required by ORS 

205.323(1)(c) shall be $1.00 to be deposited into the General 

Fund Clerk’s Fees (101.15.5115.411.124). 

 (C) WASCO COUNTY COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS 

  DEPARTMENT 

(1) The one-time set-up fee for non-departmental electronic 

monitoring shall be $250.00. 

(2) The fee for non-departmental electronic monitoring shall 

be $55.00 per day. 

(3) The urine analysis fees shall heretofore be included in 

laboratory drug testing fees. 

(4) The laboratory drug testing fee shall be (a) $7.50 per 

sample for instant tests (b) $15.00 per sample for in-lab tests. 

(5) The inter-county transfer request fee shall be $25.00 

 (6) The electronic home detention monitoring fee shall be 

$8.00 per day. 
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(7) The fee for non-departmental drug screening shall be 

$45.00. 

(8) The fee for an out-of-state travel permit shall be $3.00. 

 (D) WASCO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

(1) A deposit of $500.00 shall be required for processing 

and inspecting of a motor vehicle road rally. Applicants 

shall be billed for actual costs. 

(E) WASCO COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH – ENVIRONMENTAL 

HEALTH 

(1) The Alternative Treatment Technologies fee shall be 

$1010.00. 

(2)  The renewal of hardship authorization for temporary 

dwelling shall be (a) $275.00 if a field visit is required (b) 

$185.00 if a field visit is not required. 

(3) The plan review fee shall be (a) $360.00 for a 

commercial facility systems greater than 600gpd (b) $360.00 

plus $60.00 extra for each 500 gallons or part thereof above 

1,000gpd up to 2,500 gallons for a commercial facility over 

1,000. 

 (F) WASCO COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH – LICENSED FACILITY 

(1) The fee for operation review for 30-day intermittent or 

90-day seasonal shall be $30.00. 
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(2) The re-inspection fee for intermittent or seasonal 

temporary restaurant shall be $70.00. 

SECTION 4 – ENACTMENT PROVISIONS. 
 
 (1) CONFORMANCE WITH LAW 

 Except as expressly provided herein, this Ordinance shall in no way 

be a substitute for or eliminate the necessity of conforming with any and all 

State and Federal laws, rules and regulations including but not limited to the 

payment of all other fees required by law and other Ordinances which are 

now or may be in the future in effect which relate to the requirements 

provided in this Ordinance. 

 (2) SEPARABILITY 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this 

Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by a Court of 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 

independent provision and such holdings shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portion of this Ordinance. 

 (3) EFFECTIVE DATE   

 This Ordinance shall take effect on June 6, 2012, upon its adoption. 

///// 

///// 
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Regularly passed and adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the County 

of Wasco, State of Oregon, by a _____ to _____ vote this 6th day of June, 

2012. 

     WASCO COUNTY BOARD 
     OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Rod L. Runyon, Chair of Commission 
 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 
 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Scott C. Hege, County Commissioner 
 
 
     ATTEST: 
 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Kathy White 
     Executive Assistant 
 
 
 
     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Eric J. Nisley 
     District Attorney 
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PREAMBLE 

This contract, hereinafter referred to as the Agreement, is entered into by Wasco 
County, Oregon, and the Wasco County Sheriff, hereinafter jointly referred to as the “County,” and the 
Wasco County Law Enforcement Association, hereinafter referred to as the “Association.”  The 
County and the Association acknowledge that there is a statutory division of authority and 
responsibility between the County Court and the Sheriff with respect to administration of the 
Department affected by this Agreement and that Oregon Revised Statutes shall control in the event of 
conflict with any provision of this contract. 

ARTICLE 1 - SCOPE OF AGREEMENT AND RECOGNITION 

1.1.  Scope of the Bargaining Unit:  The bargaining unit covered by this Agreement 
shall consist of all full-time, paid deputy sheriffs, records clerks, communications officers, animal 
control officers, assistant animal control officers, and civil deputies.  The chief deputy, lieutenants, 
sergeants, supervisors, administrative assistants, and confidential employees are excluded from the 
bargaining unit. 

In the event a new job classification is created within the Sheriff’s Office, the County 
and the Association will discuss whether or not the new classification will be included in the 
bargaining unit.  

1.2.  Recognition:  The County recognizes the Association as the sole and exclusive 
bargaining representative for all employees in the Sheriff’s Department as described in Section 1.1 of 
this Agreement.  

1.3 Time Computation:  Unless otherwise expressly stated, “days” shall be defined 
as full business days, Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. 

ARTICLE 2 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 

2.1.  Management Rights:  Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, the rights 
of members of the bargaining unit are limited to those specifically set forth in this Agreement.  The 
County retains all rights, responsibilities, prerogatives, and functions not specifically limited by the 
terms of this Agreement.  Except as required by ORS 243.650, et seq., the County shall have no 
obligation to bargain with the Association with respect to any subjects or the exercise of its discretion 
and decision making on any subjects not covered by terms of this Agreement.   

Without limitation, but by way of illustration, the exclusive prerogatives, functions, and 
rights of the County shall include the following: 

1. To determine the services to be rendered to the citizens of the County. 

2. To determine and to follow the County’s financial, budgetary and accounting procedures. 

3. To direct and supervise all operations, functions, and policies of the department in which the 
employees in the bargaining unit are employed, and operations, functions and policies in the 
remainder of the County as they may affect employees in the bargaining unit. 

4. To close or liquidate any office, branch, operation, facility or combination of facilities, or to 
relocate, reorganize or combine the work of divisions, offices, branches, operations or facilities 
for budgetary or other reasons. 
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5. To manage and direct the work force, including, but not limited to, the right to determine the 
methods, processes and manner of performing work; the right to hire, promote, and retain 
employees and to transfer them within the same pay range; the right to lay off subject to Article 
7 of this Agreement; the right to abolish positions or reorganize the department; the right to 
determine schedules of work subject to Article 5 of this Agreement; the right to purchase, 
dispose of and assign equipment or supplies. 

6. To determine the need for a reduction or an increase in the work force and the implementation 
of any decision with regard thereto. 

7. Except as required by ORS 243.650, et seq., to establish, revise and implement standards for 
hiring, classification, promotion, quality of work, safety, materials, equipment, uniforms and 
appearance. 

8. Except as required by ORS 243.650, et seq., to implement new, and to revise or discard, wholly 
or in part, old methods, procedures, materials, equipment, facilities and standards. 

9. To contract or subcontract work as may be determined by the County, provided that as to work 
which has been previously and regularly performed by employees in the bargaining unit, the 
County agrees to afford an opportunity for the Association to negotiate with the County as to 
the effect of such action on wages, hours and conditions of employment in the bargaining unit 
prior to finalizing or implementing any decision concerning such contracting or subcontracting. 

10. To assign shifts, workdays, hours of work and work locations subject to Article 5 of this 
Agreement. 

11. To designate and to assign all work duties. 

12. To introduce new duties within the unit. 

13. To determine the need for and the qualifications of new employees, transfers and promotions. 

14. To discipline, suspend, demote or discharge an employee so long as such action is not arbitrary, 
in bad faith or without just cause. 

15. To determine the need for additional educational courses, training programs, on-the-job 
training and cross-training, and to assign employees to such duties for periods to be determined 
by the County. 

16. To schedule meetings of employees and require attendance at such meetings, subject to the 
provisions of Article 11 of this Agreement. 

2.2.  Future Rules:  The parties jointly recognize that the elected officials of the County 
are directly responsible to the citizens of the County and to the public for the performance of the 
functions and services performed by the County;  it is jointly recognized that the County must and does 
retain broad authority to fulfill and implement its responsibilities and may do so by adoption of written 
work rules.  It is agreed that no existing work rule or new work rule will be promulgated or 
implemented which is inconsistent with a specific provision of this Agreement, provided that the 
requirements of Oregon Law will always be paramount.  All work rules which have been or shall 
hereafter be reduced to writing shall be posted within the department for a period of ten (10) days and 
shall be furnished to an Association officer at the time the rule is posted.  In the event the Association 
considers a work rule to be inconsistent with a specific provision of this Agreement or to be a 
bargainable subject, or otherwise wishes to discuss the rule, the Association shall so notify the Sheriff 
in writing within the ten (10) day posting period.  In such event, the rule shall be discussed or 
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negotiated between the Sheriff and/or his designee and the Association.  A copy of an updated Policy 
and Procedure Manual shall be accessible to each employee and furnished to the Association upon 
request. 

2.3. Nothing in this Agreement, or in this Article, will be construed to prevent the 
County from initiating any program or change which is not contrary to an express provision of this 
Agreement. In the event the County desires to amend or modify or change any of its policies affecting 
existing conditions involving a mandatory subject of bargaining (including the decision and/or its 
impact) over which the Association has not otherwise waived its right to bargain,  the County will 
provide the Association with written and oral notice of the proposed change.  The Association shall 
have ten (10)days to object in writing and orally to the person proposing the change or their designee. 
The failure of the Association to object in writing to the proposed change within ten (10) days of the 
notice provided for above shall serve as a waiver of the Association’s right to bargain.  The 
Association’s written objection shall specify the nature of the objection and identify whether the 
Association believes the proposed change involves a mandatory bargainable subject or a mandatory 
bargainable impact of a permissive subject. 

If the County agrees that the proposed change or its impact is mandatory, the parties 
shall bargain in good faith over said changes for a period not to exceed twenty (20) days.  If after the 
passage of twenty (20) days, the parties have not reached agreement, either party may declare an 
impasse and initiate interest arbitration pursuant to ORS 243.746, by requesting a list of thirteen (13) 
arbitrators from the Employment Relations Board.  Within seven (7) days of receipt of the list from the 
ERB, the parties, by lot, will alternately strike names from the list until only one (1) arbitrator remains 
on the list, who shall serve as the arbitrator.  The arbitrator shall make a binding decision on the parties 
as to whether the County’s proposal or the Association’s proposal shall be adopted pursuant to the 
interest arbitration criteria established by law. 

2.4.  Probationary Employees:  The Association recognizes the right of the Sheriff to 
terminate the employment of a probationary employee for any reason and to exercise all rights not 
specifically modified by this Agreement with respect to such employees, including, but not limited to, 
the shifting of work schedules or job assignments, the assignment of on-the-job training, cross-training 
in other classifications, and the requirement that such employees attend training programs, including 
on their off-duty time. 

2.5.  Filling of Job Openings:  Whenever a job opening in the Sheriff’s Department 
occurs, notice of such opening will be posted in the department for a period of one (1) week to provide 
employees the opportunity to apply for the job.  Where, in the Sheriff’s judgment, based on prior 
performance and experience of the employees, applicable Civil Service exam results, and other 
relevant criteria, the relative qualifications, aptitude and ability to perform the work are equal between 
two (2) or more internal applicants for an opening, the employee with the greater departmental 
seniority shall be offered the position first.  As between equally qualified internal and external 
applicants based on the criteria stated above, the existing employee shall be offered the position first.  
The Sheriff shall determine the step on the salary schedule at which the employee selected to fill the 
job opening will be placed, and shall advise the employee of that information at the time he/she offers 
the position to the employee.  Upon request, a senior employee who is not selected shall be provided 
with a written explanation for nonselection. 

2.6.  Outside Employment:  Employees wishing to engage in off-duty employment must 
obtain written approval from the Sheriff.  In order to be approved, the outside employment must: 

A. Be compatible with the employee’s County duties; 

B. In no way detract from the efficiency of the employee in County duties; 



4 

 

C. In no way be a discredit to County employment; 

D. Not take preference over extra duty required by County employment; 

E. Request and approval must be in writing, with a copy provided to the employee by the Sheriff. 

2.7.  Temporary Employees:  A temporary employee shall not be employed for more 
than six (6) consecutive months. 

ARTICLE 3 – ASSOCIATION RIGHTS 

3.1.  Fair Share: 

A. Dues/Fair Share Deduction: All employees covered by the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall become members of the Association or shall make payments in lieu of dues 
(fair share payments) to the Association.  The parties agree to a fair share agreement, and in 
accordance with such, it is agreed that each employee who is a member of the bargaining unit 
herein defined but who is not a member of the Association shall be liable to contribute to the 
Association as representation costs an amount as determined by the Association’s Executive 
Board.  The County agrees to deduct dues or an amount equal to the required monthly dues 
(fair share) as determined by the Association’s Executive Board from the wages of each 
employee covered by this Agreement.   The County agrees to deposit the total amount deducted 
from all covered employees into an established account designated by the Association, on a 
monthly basis.  The County will provide a listing of each bargaining unit member and fair share 
employee and the amount deducted, to the Association, on a semi- annual basis.  

B. Religious Exemption:  If an employee certifies in writing to the Association and the County the 
presence of bona fide religious tenets or teachings of a church or religious body of which such 
employee is a member and if such employee provides concurrently, authorization for a non-
religious charity deduction equal to the fair share amount as mutually agreed between the 
Association and the employee, the provisions of Section 3.1 hereof shall not apply.  An 
in-lieu-of fair share payment other than a non-religious charity may be mutually agreed 
between the Association and the employee.  In such instance, the Association and the employee 
shall provide written notification and/or authorization to the County as applicable. 

C. Hold Harmless:  The Association agrees to indemnify and hold the County harmless from and 
against any and all claims, suits, orders or judgments brought against the County as a result of 
the County’s compliance with the provisions of this Section and to reimburse any fees, costs or 
expenses incurred by the County in connection with same. 

3.2.  Labor Relations Training:  Subject to the operating requirements of the 
Department, members of the Association Executive Board shall be allowed an unpaid leave of absence 
or shall be allowed to use accrued vacation or compensatory time for the purpose of attending labor 
relations training and conferences. 

3.3.  Bulletin Boards:  The County agrees to authorize the use of bulletin board space in 
convenient places to be used by the Association in communicating with the bargaining unit members.  
The Association shall limit its posting of notices and bulletins to such bulletin boards.  The contents of 
such notices and bulletins shall be limited to the posting of factual information as it relates to 
employees and the business of the Association. 

3.4.  Safety Committee:  An employee representative selected by the Association shall 
be included as a member of the County Safety Committee.  The Safety Committee shall meet at regular 
times, and shall be responsible for reviewing and recommending County health and safety policies and 
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procedures, for workplace inspections to locate and identify safety and health hazards, for investigating 
safety-related incidents, and for such other activities as the County Safety Committee and the County 
may determine would promote health and safety in the workplace. 

3.5.  Collective Bargaining Agreement Renewal Sessions: The Association’s 
negotiating team, to be composed of no more than two (2) on-duty employees, shall be permitted to 
attend negotiation meetings with the County relative to securing contract renewal without loss of pay, 
unless such absences hamper the normal operations of the Sheriff’s Department.  The dates, times, and 
places for these negotiation sessions will be established by mutual agreement between the parties. 

3.6.  Contract Administration: The County agrees that, subject to the operating 
requirements of the Department and with supervisory approval, a designated Association officer may 
during normal working hours without loss of pay or benefits, attend meetings with County 
representatives pertaining to labor relations and attend hearings and arbitrations between the 
Association and the County.  Hours utilized for this purpose shall not be considered hours worked in 
determining the payment of overtime.  Work hours shall not be used by Association officers, 
employees or representatives for solicitation of Association membership, collection or checking of 
dues or other activities relating to the internal business of the Association.  Subject to the operating 
requirements of the Department and with supervisory approval, on duty employees may attend 
Association meetings no more often than quarterly and no longer than two (2) hours in duration, but 
shall be subject to call. 

3.7.  Association Mailbox:  The County agrees to provide the Association a mailbox in 
the Sheriff’s Department.  The parties agree that unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, delivery 
or notice to the Association as required by this Agreement shall be satisfied with delivery to the 
designated Association mailbox.  

ARTICLE 4 - NO STRIKE CLAUSE 

4.1.  No Strike Clause:  No employee covered by this Agreement shall engage in any 
work stoppage, slowdown, picketing or strike at any location in the County during the duration of this 
Agreement.  If any such work stoppage, slowdown, picketing or strike shall take place, the Association 
will take all reasonable steps to immediately notify such employees so engaging in such activities to 
cease and desist.  Employees in the bargaining unit, while acting in the course of their employment, 
shall not refuse to cross any picket line established in the County by a labor organization when called 
upon to cross such picket line in the line of duty.  Any employee engaging in any activity in violation 
of this Article shall be subject to disciplinary action, including discharge by the County. 

ARTICLE 5 - HOURS OF WORK 

5.1.  Workweek:  The “workweek” shall be defined as seven (7) consecutive calendar 
days commencing on Monday at 5 a.m. and ending the following Monday at 4:59 a.m. for employees 
working in the 911 center, and commencing Monday at 6 a.m. and ending the following Monday at 
5:59 a.m. for all other employees. 

5.2.  Hours: 

A. The regular hours of work each workweek, to the extent consistent with operating requirements 
of the Sheriff’s Department and the need for continuous service to the County throughout the 
week, shall be five (5) consecutive days of eight (8) consecutive hours of work per day, 
including meal and rest periods. 
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B. At the option of the County, the regular hours of work each work week may be scheduled on 
the basis of four (4) consecutive days of ten (10) consecutive hours of work per day, including 
meal and rest periods. 

C. The other provisions of this Article notwithstanding, it is recognized that employees on Special 
Assignments must work such hours as the nature of the Special Assignment requires, and that, 
by mutual agreement between the County and the employee, the hours of work each day or 
each week may sometimes not be consecutive for an employee on a Special Assignment while 
carrying out the responsibilities of the Special Assignment.  Special Assignments shall be those 
made by the Sheriff to individual Deputy Sheriffs to carry out or perform a specific function on 
a temporary or ongoing basis.  The Special Assignments for which non-consecutive hours may 
be worked include Investigator, Search and Rescue Coordinator, Traffic Safety Team, Marine 
Deputy, School Resource Officer, Narcotics Task Force Officer, Training Officer and Range 
Master. 

5.3.  Work Schedules:  Subject to Sections 5.1 and 5.2 of this Article, all employees 
shall be scheduled to work on a regular work shift, and each shift shall have regular starting and 
quitting times.  Work schedules showing the employees’ shifts, workdays and hours shall be posted on 
department bulletin boards.  Except for emergencies and other situations beyond the County’s control, 
and for the duration of the emergency or other situation, changes in work schedules shall be posted at 
least seven (7) calendar days prior to the effective date of the change. 

Shift changes which occur without seven (7) calendar days prior written notification 
shall be subject to premium pay at time and one-half the employee’s regular rate of pay.  The premium 
pay liability shall be limited to those hours of the first two (2) days of a shift change which fall outside 
the employee’s previously scheduled work hours.  However, if a shift change without the seven (7) 
calendar days prior notification is the result of a bona fide emergency or other situation beyond the 
County’s control which could not reasonably have been anticipated, the schedule change shall, for 
purposes of overtime payment, be treated as though seven (7) calendar days prior notification had been 
given. 

5.4.  Shift Assignments: 

A. Shift Change and Rotation for Patrol Deputies. 

1. Shift Scheduling.  The regular shift rotation shall occur approximately every three (3) 
months.  The County will allow patrol deputies to select two(2) of the four (4) shift 
schedules that he or she is to be scheduled to work during the year, as follows: 

a. The County shall first post a master schedule of the anticipated available shifts 
for each quarter of the year. 

b. Each employee, starting with the employee who has the most class seniority, 
shall in turn indicate his or her shift preference as to any two (2) of the four (4) 
shift tours that he or she wishes to work among those indicated on the master 
schedule that have not been previously selected by more senior employees.  
However, any employee who at the time of selection of shifts for the following 
year worked twenty (20) or more days on a shift other than the shift he/she 
selected as a result of shift reassignment pursuant to part 2c below, shall select 
by seniority three (3) of the four (4) shift tours that he or she will work. 

c. After all employees have made two (2) or three (3), if applicable, shift tour 
selections, the County shall, without limits as to its discretion, schedule the 
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remaining shift tours for each employee so as to complete the work schedule for 
the year. 

2. Exceptions.  With regard to the above procedure, it is recognized that the scheduling of 
shifts on the basis of employee preference will not be allowed to interfere with the 
County’s ability to provide the best and most cost-effective service to the public. By 
way of example thereof, the following exceptions to the above shift scheduling 
procedure are made: 

a. Probationary employees shall not be subject to these shift selection procedures. 

b. Employees assigned to a particular activity that is traditionally associated with 
specific work schedules shall not be subject to the provisions of these shift 
selection procedures.  Examples of such assignments include the following: 

   (1) Investigations 

   (2) Narcotics 

   (3) Inter-Agency Task Force  

   (4) Marine Deputy  

c. The County shall continue to have the right to change the scheduled work shift 
of employees in order to meet operational needs and to respond to changes in 
staffing due to employee terminations, employee disabilities, budgetary 
exigencies and the like.  Notice of any permanent change in the regular work 
schedule will be posted at least two (2) weeks in advance.  The foregoing shall 
not apply when the change in schedule is for reasons beyond the control of the 
County. 

B. Rotating shifts shall not be applicable to or may be modified in the following situations: 

1. A resident assigned deputy; 

2. Criminal investigator training position, normally of six (6) months to one (1) year of 
duration; 

3. Special Assignments, except Search and Rescue Coordinator, Training Officer and 
Range Master; 

4. Authorized and available “light-duty” work assignments for injured employees that 
place the employee on a temporary “fixed” shift; 

5. Prior authorized and approved “preference” vacation schedules that, due to 
unanticipated vacancies (terminations, etc.), necessitate temporary changes in the 
normal rotation; 

6. Training situations; 

7. Any unforeseen or emergency situation that would necessitate a change in the normal 
rotation for a reasonable period of time. 
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C. Any individual who, due to training, is advanced beyond, and therefore, loses a part of his/her 
shift rotation, will be given an equal amount of “makeup” time on that shift when the training is 
completed through a temporary trade with the trainee.  The trainee’s regular rotation will not be 
designated until the “makeup” time is completed. 

D. By mutual agreement between the employee and his/her supervisor, the schedule of an 
employee assigned to a Special Assignment position of Investigator, Search and Rescue 
Coordinator, Traffic Safety Team, Marine Deputy, School Resource Officer, Narcotics Task 
Force Officer, Training Officer or Range Master, or of a Patrol Deputy may be “flexed” to 
allow the employee to work more than the number of hours in his/her regular shift without 
payment of overtime, provided that during the same workweek the employee is allowed an 
amount of time off without pay equal to the amount of daily time worked in excess of the 
number of hours in the employee’s regular shift.  Flex time shall not result in overtime or 
compensatory time to the County unless the employee works more than forty (40) hours in the 
workweek involved, and the parties specifically waive application of ORS 279.340 whenever a 
flex time schedule or schedule adjustment occurs. 

5.5.  Shift Rotation: The parties agree that the workweek will remain the same for all 
employees (Monday, 5 am through the following Monday, 4:59 am for employees working in the 911 
center, and Monday, 6 am through the following Monday, 5:59 am for all other employees), even in 
weeks in which an employee rotates to a new schedule in accordance with Sections 5.3 and 5.4 hereof.  
The parties agree that if a shift rotation results in an employee working more than forty (40) hours in a 
workweek, the employee will be paid overtime in accordance with Section 11.3 of this Agreement.  
The parties further agree that if a shift rotation results in an employee working less than forty (40)  
hours in a workweek, the employee may make up the additional hours needed to reach forty (40) in the 
workweek from accrued vacation or compensatory time off, or by working the additional hours if shifts 
are available.   The parties agree that in a shift rotation, an employee will get at least two days off 
between the old shift and the new shift.  If an employee does not get at least two days off in such 
circumstances, the employee will be paid time-and-a-half for any work performed on those two days. 

5.6.  Meal Periods:  To the extent consistent with the operating requirements of the 
department, continuous shift employees will normally be granted a meal break of thirty (30) minutes 
which shall be considered on-duty time.  Any employee required to work four (4) or more hours 
beyond his/her scheduled quitting time shall be provided with a meal either during or at the conclusion 
of his/her extended shift.  Dispatch personnel who are not allowed to leave their work station during 
their meal break will have a meal provided to them.  Employees who are not assigned to continuous 
shifts shall receive a nonpaid duty-free lunch period of one-half (1/2) to one (1) hour. 

When an employee is on authorized travel outside the County, a meal allowance in an 
amount up to the current State/Department of Administrative Services rate shall be allowed. 

5.7.  Break Periods:  Employees shall be relieved of their duties for 10 minutes during 
each half shift.  If such break time is not prescheduled, an employee may take it at such time(s) as 
workloads allow.  Employees may be subject to call during such periods, and will not receive extra 
compensation if they do not receive or are required to work during a break. 

5.8:  No provision of this Agreement shall be construed as establishing or inferring a 
guarantee of any hours of work per day or per week. 

ARTICLE 6 - PROBATIONARY PERIOD 

6.1.  Probation Period:  The probationary period is an integral part of the employee 
selection process and provides the County with the opportunity to upgrade and improve the quality of 
its services to the citizens of the County by observing a new employee’s work, training new 
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employees, and assisting new employees in adjusting to their positions, and by providing an 
opportunity to reject any employee whose work performance fails to meet required work standards.  
Probationary employees are covered by this Agreement. 

6.2.  Length of Probation:  Whenever a new employee is hired, promoted or transferred 
into a bargaining unit position, he/she shall serve a probationary period of twelve (12) full months of 
employment, unless the position requires certification by the Oregon DPSST and he/she does not 
possess the certification required of the position, in which event the probationary period shall be 
eighteen (18) full months of employment.  Every new employee who successfully completes his/her 
initial probationary period shall become a regular employee. 

6.3.  Current Employees:  In instances where a current employee assumes a different 
position in the bargaining unit, the employee will be subject to reclassification to his/her former 
position for unsatisfactory performance in the new position, or he/she may voluntarily return to his/her 
last job position, for a period of up to sixty (60) calendar days from the date the employee assumes the 
different position.  After sixty (60) calendar days, the employee will only be entitled to return to the 
next available opening in the employee’s previous classification for up to six (6) months. 

ARTICLE 7 - SENIORITY 

7.1.  Definitions:  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, an employee’s 
seniority shall be regarded as his/her “departmental seniority” and/or his/her “classification seniority.”  
Departmental seniority shall be the employee’s total length of unbroken employment with the Sheriff’s 
Department, and classification seniority shall be the employee’s total length of unbroken employment 
in his/her current classification.  An employee’s length of employment shall be his/her most recent 
period of continuous employment within the department or the classification. 

7.2.  Continuous Employment:  Continuous employment for the purpose of 
accumulating vacation leave credit shall be service unbroken by separation from employment with the 
County.  Periods of excused absence of less than one (1) month shall be included as continuous 
employment.  Unless the law otherwise requires, layoffs of one (1) month or more, or leaves of 
absence of one (1) month or more, including absences due to sick leave, will not be counted as part of 
continuous employment for accrual purposes, but employees returning from any such leave and from 
layoff status within one (1) year of the layoff shall be entitled to credit for service prior to the absence. 

If an employee is on a bona fide time loss injury, and is able to return to work within 
one (1) year, the period of the injury shall be considered as continuous employment for purposes of 
maintaining said employee’s seniority.  The employee shall also continue to receive all of the health, 
welfare and life insurance benefits that the County is permitted by law to provide that are specified in 
Article 16 of this Agreement for up to one (1) year. 

7.3.  Loss of Seniority:  All seniority shall be lost for the following reasons: 

A. If the employee voluntarily quits or resigns; 

B. If the employee is discharged; 

C. If the employee retires; 

D. If the employee is laid off because of a reduction in force or lack of work for a period in excess 
of one (1) year; 

E. Unless a reason satisfactory to the Sheriff is given, failure to respond within five (5) days after 
receipt of a notice of recall from a layoff.  Such notice shall be sent by certified mail, return 
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receipt requested, and marked “deliver to addressee only,” to the employee’s last known 
address on file with the County; 

F. Failure to register in person or by mail with the County at least once every thirty (30) calendar 
days during periods of layoff, signifying his/her availability for recall and updated address and 
telephone number. 

7.4.  Layoff and Recall:  In the event of a layoff of employees in the department, 
selection of employees retained will be in accordance with classification seniority within the affected 
job classification(s), so long as the senior employees possess qualifications, aptitude and ability to 
perform the work equal to those of the employees laid off.  Except in unusual circumstances, 
employees shall normally be given at least two (2) weeks’ notice of layoff.  In the event an employee 
displaced from his/her job by reason of a layoff is unable to bump to another job classification(s) in 
which he/she has previously accrued seniority because the classification is a corrections classification 
which was transferred to NORCOR, then for purposes of layoff and recall only, the displaced 
employee’s classification seniority shall be deemed the same as his/her departmental seniority. 

Only in the event of a layoff shall employees have bumping rights.  An employee 
displaced from his/her job by reason of a layoff shall only be entitled to bump to other job 
classifications in which they are certified and have previously accrued seniority, provided the 
displacing employee has greater departmental seniority and possesses qualifications, aptitude and 
ability to perform the work equal to the employee he/she displaces. 

Employees will be recalled from layoff in the reverse order of the layoff. 

7.5  Seniority List:  Upon request, the Sheriff shall provide the Association with a 
copy of the seniority list. 

7.6 Specialty Assignments:  Vacant specialty assignments for search and rescue 
coordinator, reserve coordinator, posse coordinator, traffic safety team, marine deputy, school resource 
officer, training officers, range master, and other specialty assignments not specifically excepted herein 
shall be posted by the Sheriff for at least fourteen (14) days in order to allow interested employees to 
apply for the assignment.  Appointments to specialty assignments shall be made on the basis of 
qualifications and competence as determined by the Sheriff.  Ties will be broken by seniority.  
Disagreements over assignments and removals from assignments under this section may be grieved 
through Step 2 of the grievance procedure. 

ARTICLE 8 - DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 

8.1.  Discipline:  Disciplinary action shall be limited to the following: 

A. Written reprimand 

B. Suspension without pay 

C. Reduction in pay 

D. Demotion 

E. Discharge 

Disciplinary action shall only be taken for just cause, which shall include application of 
progressive discipline when consistent with the nature of the offense and other relevant circumstances.  
If an employee is to be disciplined, he/she shall receive written notice specifying the reason or reasons 
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for the disciplinary action, the policies, procedures, rules, regulations and/or laws determined to have 
been violated and the facts which lead to the disciplinary conclusion.  If the Sheriff or another 
supervisor has reason to discipline an employee, he/she shall not impose such discipline in a manner 
that will unduly embarrass or humiliate the employee before other employees or the public. 

The appeal of any disciplinary action shall be made through the grievance procedure set 
forth in Article 10.  The Association may process a grievance concerning economic discipline 
commencing at Step 2 of the grievance procedure.  Employees shall not be permitted to pursue any 
disciplinary action grievance arising under this Agreement to the County Civil Service Commission. 

8.2.  Discharge:  Any employee may be discharged during his/her probationary period 
without recourse to the provisions of this Article or the grievance procedure (Article 10) of this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 9 - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 

9.1.  Employee Bill of Rights: 

Whereas, the security of Wasco County and its citizens, plus the integrity and reputation 
of the Wasco County Sheriff’s Department, depends to a great extent on the manner in which 
employees of the Sheriff’s Department perform their varied and difficult duties, the performance of 
which duties involves those members in all manner of contacts and relationships with the public; and 

Whereas, out of such contacts and relationships may arise questions concerning the 
actions of members of the Department; 

Now, therefore, to ensure that such investigations are conducted in a manner conducive 
to good order and discipline, meanwhile observing and protecting the individual rights of each 
employee of the Sheriff’s Department, the following rules are hereby established: 

A. When any bargaining unit member is under investigation and subjected to interview by 
competent authority designated by the Sheriff which could reasonably lead to an economic 
sanction, the interview shall be conducted under the following conditions: 

1. The interview shall be conducted at a reasonable hour, preferably at a time when the 
member is on-duty, or during the normal working hours for the member, unless the 
seriousness of the investigation requires otherwise.  If such interview does occur during 
off-duty time of the member being interviewed, the member shall be compensated for 
such off-duty time in accordance with regular department procedures and the provisions 
of this Agreement. 

2. The interview shall take place at a location designated by the investigating officer, 
preferably at the Wasco County Sheriff’s Department. 

3. The member under investigation shall be informed, in writing, prior to such interview 
that he/she has a right to have Association representation during the interview, and of 
the rank, name and command of the officer in charge of the interview, the interviewing 
officers, and all other persons to be present during the interview.  All questions directed 
to the member being interviewed shall be asked by and through no more than two (2) 
investigators at one time.   

4. Unless release of information would otherwise compromise the investigation, the 
member under investigation shall be informed in writing of the nature of the 
investigation, the specific facts which form the basis of the allegation(s) against the 
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member, the specific rules, regulations, policies, procedures and/or laws the member is 
alleged to have violated, the name and address of the persons making the complaint 
unless the complainant requests the information not be disclosed, and statement and/or 
reports which state the facts upon which the allegation(s) are based, prior to any 
interview.  If the Sheriff receives an anonymous complaint against a member, he/she 
may determine if there are other known persons or evidence to substantiate it.  If there 
are, then the Sheriff may pursue the complaint.  If not, no record of the anonymous 
complaint may be retained.  The member may be informed of the receipt of the 
anonymous complaint, but the member shall not be interviewed unless other known 
persons or evidence substantiate the complaint. 

5. The interview session shall be for a reasonable period taking into consideration the 
gravity and complexity of the issue being investigated.  The member being interviewed 
shall be allowed to attend to his/her own personal physical necessities. 

6. The member being interviewed shall not be subjected to offensive language or 
threatened with disciplinary action, except that a member refusing to respond to 
questions or submit to interview shall be informed that failure to answer questions 
directly related to the investigation or interview may result in disciplinary action.  No 
promise of reward shall be made as an inducement to answering any question.  The 
member’s home address, telephone number, or photograph shall not be given to the 
press or news media without his/her express consent, unless otherwise required by law. 

7. The complete interview of the member may be recorded.  If a tape recording is made of 
the interview, the member shall be provided a complete copy of the tape if further 
proceedings are contemplated or prior to any further interview at a subsequent time.  
Upon request, the member shall be provided a transcribed copy of any notes made by a 
stenographer or to any reports or complaints made by investigators or other persons, 
except those which are deemed by the Sheriff to be confidential.  No notes or reports 
which are deemed by the Sheriff to be confidential may be entered in the member’s 
personnel file.  The member being interviewed shall have the right to bring a recording 
device and record any and all aspects of the interview. 

8. If prior to or during the interview of the member it is deemed that he/she may be 
charged with a criminal offense, he/she shall be immediately informed of his/her 
constitutional rights. 

9. Upon the filing of a formal written statement of charges, or whenever an interview 
focuses on matters which are likely to result in disciplinary action against the member, 
that member, at his/her request, shall have the right to be represented by an Association 
representative of his/her choice who may be present at all times during such interview.  
The Association representative shall not be subject to the same investigation. This 
section does not apply to any communications with a member in the normal course of 
duty, including administrative inquiries (matters which experience and common sense 
indicate are subject to resolution at the supervisory/command level and which are 
unlikely to lead to discipline of an economic nature), counseling, instruction, or 
informal admonishment, or other routine or unplanned contact with a supervisor or any 
other member, nor shall this section apply to an investigation concerned solely and 
directly with alleged criminal activities. 

B. No member shall be subjected to disciplinary action, or denied promotion, or be threatened 
with any such treatment, because of the lawful exercise of rights granted herein, or the exercise 
of any rights under any existing administrative grievance procedure.  Nothing in this section 
shall preclude the Sheriff from ordering a member to cooperate with other agencies involved in 



13 

 

criminal investigations.  If any member fails to comply with such order, the Sheriff may 
officially charge such member with insubordination, consistent with the member’s 
constitutional rights. 

C. No member shall be compelled to submit to a polygraph examination against his/her will.  No 
disciplinary action or other recrimination shall be taken against a member refusing to submit to 
a polygraph examination, nor shall any comment be entered anywhere in the investigator’s 
notes or anywhere else that the member refused to take a polygraph examination, nor shall any 
testimony or evidence be admissible at a subsequent hearing, trial, or proceeding, judicial or 
administrative, to the effect that the member refused to take a polygraph examination. 

D. Nothing contained herein shall preclude or prohibit any member from pursuing civil litigation 
for false or malicious complaints. 

9.2.  Personnel Files: 

A. No material reflecting critically upon an employee shall be placed in his/her personnel file that 
does not bear either the signature or the initials of the employee indicating that he/she has been 
shown the material or a notation that the employee has been provided a copy of the material 
and refused to sign.  A copy of any such material shall be furnished to the employee when it is 
placed in the personnel file. 

B. An employee, or his/her Association representative, with written authorization of the employee, 
may inspect the contents of his/her personnel file upon either the employee’s or the Association 
representative’s written request to do so to the Sheriff.  If the employee believes that material 
which is in or is to be placed in his/her personnel file is incorrect or derogatory, he/she shall be 
entitled to prepare in writing his/her explanation or opinion regarding the particular materials, 
and this shall be included as a permanent part of the file, provided such written explanation or 
opinion is presented to the Sheriff within thirty (30) calendar days of the date the material in 
question is presented to the employee for signature.  Any derogatory material placed in an 
employee’s personnel file which is subsequently determined by the Sheriff to be unfounded or 
without basis shall be removed. 

C. All written records of disciplinary action taken against an employee will be placed in the 
employee’s personnel file within fourteen calendar (14) days of the issuance of the discipline.  
Any other material placed in an employee’s personnel file will be entered within thirty (30) 
calendar days of the occurrence giving rise to the entry, or thirty (30) calendar days after the 
occurrence comes to the attention of the Sheriff or the employee’s supervisor, whichever is 
later. 

9.3.  Non-Discrimination:  The County and the Association agree that each will fully 
comply with applicable laws and regulations regarding discrimination and will not discriminate against 
any employee because of such employee’s race, religion, color, national origin, age, union status, 
marital status, gender or other status protected under local, state or federal law.  The parties agree that 
the labor agreement will not serve to restrict the County’s obligation to comply with federal and state 
law concerning its duty to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities. 

Any claim of a violation of this Section shall be pursued through Step 3 of the grievance 
procedure contained herein, but shall not be pursued to Step 4, Arbitration, or otherwise used as the 
basis for a claim of a violation of this Agreement. 
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ARTICLE 10 - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE 

10.1  Definition of Grievance:  For the purpose of this Agreement, a grievance is 
defined as any one of the following: 

a. A claim by an employee covered by this Agreement concerning the meaning or 
interpretation of a specific provision or clause of this agreement as it affects 
such employee; 

b. A claim by the Association concerning the application of a specific provision or 
clause of this Agreement as it affects a specific member or members of the 
Association. 

In the event of a grievance concerning a disciplinary issue, an individual employee who does not wish 
the Association to pursue a grievance (under Section 10.1(b) hereof) shall notify the Association in 
writing at any time prior to the Association decision to arbitrate the issue.  A grievance which is 
resolved by an individual’s exercise of his/her right to elect not to pursue a disciplinary grievance shall 
not constitute a precedent against the Association with regard to the substance of the disciplinary 
grievance in question. 

10.2.  Grievance Procedure:  To promote better employer-employee relationships, both 
parties pledge their immediate cooperation to settle any grievances or complaints that might arise out 
of the application of this Agreement, and the following procedure shall be the sole procedure to be 
utilized for that purpose. 

Step 1:  The aggrieved employee, or an Association Representative, shall take up the grievance 
with the employee’s supervisor within  ten (10) days of its occurrence or ten (10) days of the 
date on which the employee first had, or with the exercise of due diligence reasonably could 
have had, knowledge of the occurrence, whichever is later.  In the event the alleged grievance is 
one in which two (2) or more employees would be aggrieved, the grievance may be taken up 
with the supervisor(s) of the aggrieved employees by the Association representative, provided 
the Association identifies the grieving employees.  The employee’s supervisor shall respond to 
the grieving party. 

Step 2:  If the matter is not settled within ten (10) days of its reference to the supervisor, the 
grievance shall be reduced to writing, including, but not limited to, a statement of the grievance 
and relevant facts, the provision(s) of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the relief sought, 
and the grievance shall be presented to the Sheriff by the Association representative within 
twenty (20) days of the date it was taken up with the supervisor at Step 1.  The Sheriff or 
his/her designee shall meet with the Association representative within ten (10) days, or as 
otherwise mutually agreed, to attempt to settle the grievance.  After the meeting, the Sheriff 
shall provide a written response within ten (10) days to the grieving party. 

Step 3:  Should the Association representative and the Sheriff fail to reach a settlement within 
ten (10) days of submission of the grievance to the Sheriff, the Association shall have the right 
to submit the grievance in writing to the County Court, provided that such submission shall be 
within ten (10) days from the date of the written response from the Sheriff at Step 2. After 
submission of the grievance to the County Court, the County Court shall provide a written 
response within ten (10) days to the Association representative. 

Step 4:  Should the County Court and the Association fail to settle the grievance within ten (10) 
days from the date the grievance is submitted to the  County Court and if the Association 
wishes to pursue the matter further, the Association shall, within ten (10) days from the 
expiration of the ten (10) day period for settlement with the County Court, simultaneously 
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(1) provide written notice to the County Court of the Association’s referral of the grievance to 
arbitration and (2) send a written request to the Employment Relations Board’s State 
Conciliation Service to provide a list of the names of thirteen (13) arbitrators.  A copy of the 
request for an arbitration panel shall be enclosed with the notice to the County Court which 
refers the dispute to arbitration.  Upon receipt of the arbitrator list, the Association and the 
County shall alternately strike names from it, with the first strike being determined by lot.  
When only one (1) name remains on the list, that name shall be the arbitrator. 

10.3.  Arbitrator’s Decision:  The arbitrator’s decision shall be final and binding on the 
Association and the County but the arbitrator shall have no power to alter the terms of this Agreement.  
The arbitrator’s decision shall be within the scope and terms of this Agreement and the arbitrator shall 
be requested to issue his/her decision within thirty (30) calendar days after the conclusion of the 
proceedings, including filing of briefs, if any. 

10.4.  Arbitrator’s Expenses:  Expenses for the arbitrator’s services and proceedings 
shall be borne by the losing party as determined by the arbitrator.  However, each party shall be 
responsible for any other expenses incurred by them. 

10.5.  Time Limits:  The time periods specified in this Article may be extended or 
modified by written agreement. If at any step of the grievance procedure the grievant fails to comply with 
the time limits or procedures set forth in this Article, the grievance shall be deemed abandoned and 
non-arbitrable.  If at any step of the grievance procedures the County fails to issue a response within the 
time limits set forth in this Article the grievance will be advanced to the next step.   

10.6.  Grievance Meetings:  Meetings between the Sheriff and/or the County Court or 
their designee(s) and representatives of the Association shall be arranged at mutually convenient times. 
The purpose of meetings with the Association will be to adjust pending grievances and to discuss 
procedures for avoiding future grievances. In addition, the Association may discuss with the County 
other issues which would improve relationships between the parties.  Prior written notice of topics for 
discussion at such meetings shall be furnished by each party to the other. If the parties agree to meet 
for the purpose of processing a grievance during the regularly scheduled work hours of some or all of 
the employees involved in processing such grievance, those employees shall suffer no loss of pay for 
the time involved.   

10.7.  Determination of Merit:  The provisions of this Article shall not be interpreted to 
require that the Association process any grievance through the grievance or arbitration procedure 
which it believes, in good faith, lacks sufficient merit. 

ARTICLE 11 - COMPENSATION 

11.1:  Employees covered by this Agreement shall be compensated in accordance with 
the wage schedule attached to this Agreement and marked Appendix A, which is hereby incorporated 
into and made a part of this Agreement. 

When a new position not listed on the wage schedule in Appendix A is established, the 
County shall designate a job classification and pay rate in writing for the position.  If the parties agree 
that the position is in the bargaining unit, but the Association does not agree that the job classification 
and/or pay rate are proper, the Association shall have the right to submit the issue as a grievance at 
Step 2 of the grievance procedure. 

11.2.  Pay Periods:  The salaries and wages of employees shall be paid semi-monthly. 
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11.3.  Overtime:  The Sheriff or designee, whenever in their judgment they deem it 
necessary because of emergency or for purposes of efficiency, economy, or otherwise, may require 
employees to work overtime on any day, at any hour, and for so long a period of time as they specify. 

Except for instances when an employee works a “flex” schedule, an employee shall be 
compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1-1/2) for work under the following conditions, but in no 
event shall such compensation be received twice for the same hours: 

A. In the case of a “5-8” work schedule: 

1. All work in excess of eight (8) hours (excluding the uncompensated portion of meal 
periods) on any scheduled workday. 

2. All work in excess of forty (40) hours in any workweek. 

B. In the case of a “4-10” work schedule: 

1. All work in excess of ten (10) hours (excluding the uncompensated portion of meal 
periods) on any scheduled workday. 

2. All work in excess of forty (40) hours in any workweek. 

C. In any week in which an employee works a “flex” schedule, the employee shall receive 
overtime compensation only for work in excess of forty (40) hours in that workweek. 

D. Except in the case of a shift extension and when otherwise practicable, overtime work shall be 
distributed equally among those qualified employees in a given classification who are willing 
and available to safely and efficiently perform the work. 

Employees who work overtime without proper authorization will be subject to discipline, up to and 
including termination. 

11.4.  Court Time:  Whenever an employee is required to appear in Court outside 
his/her regularly scheduled shift, he/she shall be compensated for such time at the rate of time and 
one-half (1-1/2) for all time spent in such Court appearance, with a minimum of two (2) hours’ 
compensation at the overtime rate.  This minimum guarantee shall not be applicable to Court time 
which includes an extension directly prior to or immediately after the employee’s regularly assigned 
shift. 

11.5  Callback:  Authorized callback overtime shall be compensated at the below 
minimums: 

(a) On a Scheduled Workday:  Two (2) hours (either overtime pay or compensatory 
time off at the rate of time and one-half, at the employee’s choice, as provided in Section 11.6), 
provided, however, that this minimum shall not apply if the callback assignment begins thirty (30) 
minutes or less before the start or after the end of the employee’s regular shift. 

(b) On a Scheduled Day Off:  Two (2) hours (either overtime pay or compensatory time 
off at the rate of time and one-half, at the employee’s choice as provided in Section 11.6).  Scheduled 
days off shall include scheduled leave days. 

11.6.  Form of Compensation:  Compensation for authorized overtime work shall be 
paid in the form of compensatory time off or in the form of compensatory pay at the applicable rate.  
An employee shall be entitled to choose to have overtime compensated in the form of compensatory 
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time off, to a maximum accrual of forty (40) hours.  An employee may choose to have an additional 
forty (40) hours of overtime compensated in the form of compensatory time off, subject to supervisory 
approval.  Compensatory time off shall be scheduled consistent with the FLSA at a time that is 
mutually agreeable to the Sheriff or designee and the employee.  Compensatory time off may be 
combined with other forms of time off.  Except for vacation requests made as part of the annual 
seniority-based vacation scheduling request process provided for in Section 13.2 of Article 13, the 
Department will respond in writing to the employee within five (5) days of a request for prescheduled 
time off. 

11.7.  Monthly Report:  Each month each employee will be provided with a report as to 
his/her accumulations of compensatory time off, vacation time, holiday time, and sick leave. 

11.8  Definition of “Hours Worked”:  The parties agree that only for purposes of 

calculation of overtime in accordance with Section 11.3, above, all hours for which an employee 

receives compensation shall count as “hours worked, “ excluding holiday pay under Section 12.3.  

11.9Certified Field Training Officer Compensation:Any certified Field Training Officer 

will be paid a lump sum of $25.00per pay period during which the Field Training Officer has a 

probationary employee under their supervision for training purposes with him/her during his/her 

scheduled shift(s). 
 

ARTICLE 12 - HOLIDAYS 

12.1  Recognized Holidays: 
 

A. The following shall be recognized as holidays for regular and probationary employees under 
this Agreement: 

 

New Year’s Day January 1
st
 

Martin Luther King, Jr.’s Birthday Third Monday in January 

Presidents’ Day Third Monday in February 

Memorial Day Last Monday in May 

Independence Day July 4
th

 

Labor Day First Monday in September 

Veterans’ Day November 11
th

 

Thanksgiving Day Fourth Thursday in November 

Christmas Day December 25
th

 

  

12.2.  Holiday Pay:  An eligible employee shall receive eight (8) hours pay for each of 
the holidays listed above which falls on a regularly scheduled workday and on which he/she performs 
no work. 

12.3.  Weekend Holidays:  Whenever a holiday falls on an employee’s regularly 
scheduled day off, he/she shall be credited with eight (8) hours of holiday time off or shall be paid an 
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extra eight (8) hours at his/her regular hourly rate, with such payment to be in addition to his/her 
normal wage. 

12.4.  Holiday Work:  If an eligible employee works on any of the holidays listed 
above, he/she shall, in addition to his/her pay for that day, be credited with one and one-half (1-1/2) 
hours of holiday time off for each hour worked or shall be paid an extra one and one-half (1-1/2) hours 
of compensation at his/her regular hourly rate for each hour worked on the holiday, with such payment 
to be in addition to his/her normal wage.  

12.5.  Holiday Accrual:  The choice of holiday time-off or pay is the sole option of the 
employee for each holiday worked or which falls on a regularly scheduled day off.  All hours accrued 
as holiday time-off shall be kept in a separate holiday account and shall not be combined with any 
other form of time-off accrual allowed by the Agreement.  Such holiday account shall not exceed forty 
(40) hours. 

12.6.  Holiday During Vacation:  Should an employee be on paid vacation when a 
holiday occurs, such holiday shall not be charged against his/her vacation. 

12.7:  After an employee has served with the County for sixty (60) calendar days or 
longer, he/she will be entitled to cash payment for uncompensated accrued holiday time off if his/her 
employment is terminated.  In case of death, compensation will be paid to the employee’s beneficiary 
as designated on his/her County life insurance policy. 

ARTICLE 13 - VACATIONS 

13.1.  Amount of Vacation and Eligibility Requirement:  Regular employees who have 
at least one (1) year of continuous employment with the County shall be entitled to annual paid 
vacation in accordance with the following schedule: 

 
Length of Employment Yearly Accrual      Monthly Accrual 

   

1 through 3 years 92 hours  7.67 

Beginning at the start of the 4
th

 year 100 hours  8.33 

Beginning at the start of the 5
th

 year 108 hours  9.00 

Beginning at the start of the 6
th

 year 116 hours  9.67 

Beginning at the start of the 7
th

 year 124 hours  10.33 

Beginning at the start of the 8
th

 year 132 hours  11.00 

Beginning at the start of the 15
th

 year 172 hours  14.22 
 
Effective July 1, 2012, the vacation accrual shall be adjusted to the following schedule: 
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Length of Employment Yearly Accrual Monthly Accrual 

   

1 through 3 years 92 hours  7.67 

Beginning at the start of the 4
th

 year 100 hours  8.33 

Beginning at the start of the 5
th

 year 108 hours  9.00 

Beginning at the start of the 6
th

 year 116 hours  9.67 

Beginning at the start of the 7
th

 year 124 hours  10.33 

Beginning at the start of the 8
th

 year 132 hours  11.00 

Beginning at the start of the 9
th

 year 140 hours 11.67 

Beginning at the start of the 10
th

 year 148 hours 12.33 

Beginning at the start of the 11
th

 year 148 hours 12.33 

Beginning at the start of the 12
th

 year 156 hours 13.00 

Beginning at the start of the 13
th

 year 156 hours 13.00 

Beginning at the start of the 14
th

 year 164 hours 13.67 

Beginning at the start of the 15
th

 year 172 hours  14.22 
 
 

13.2.  Scheduling:  Employees shall be permitted to request either a split or single 
vacation.  Whenever possible, consistent with the judgment of the Sheriff as to the needs and 
requirements for vacation relief, employees may schedule their vacation times.  Subject to such 
requirements, vacation time shall be scheduled as between employees on the basis of classification 
seniority, provided, however, each employee will be permitted to exercise seniority only once a year.  
The County shall make the final determination of vacation times, based on operations and the 
availability of vacation relief. 

13.3.  Maximum Accumulation:  The maximum accumulation of accrued vacation is 
two hundred and forty (240) hours.  Employees are expected to schedule vacation to avoid exceeding 
the maximum accumulation.  If an employee is denied a vacation request within the thirty (30) days 
prior to exceeding the maximum accumulation, the employee’s vacation time in excess of 240 hours 
may either be cashed out or the employee may be required to take vacation time off at a time selected 
by the County, at the Sheriff’s discretion.  In all other circumstances, vacation accumulation in excess 
of 240 hours will be lost. 

13.4.  Vacation Pay on Termination or Death:  Upon termination or death of a regular 
employee who has completed at least one (1) year of continuous employment, compensation at the 
current rate for all accumulated vacation shall be paid to the employee or his/her heirs. 

13.5.  Leave Donation: An employee may donate vacation leave time to another 
employee who has exhausted all accrued paid leaves and is in documented need of additional sick 
leave due to illness or injury of the employee or a family member for a serious health condition as 
defined by the FMLA/OFLA.  Leave donations shall be subject to the terms of the Wasco County 
Hardship Leave Policy dated June 2004. 

ARTICLE 14 - SICK LEAVE 

14.1.  Accumulation:  After an employee has completed six (6) full months of 
employment, he/she shall be credited with forty-eight (48) hours of sick leave time.  Thereafter, the 
employee shall continue to accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours for each full calendar month 
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of active employment, provided the employee performs work during the month.  Sick leave is provided 
by the County to cover “sickness” and is not to be used as a supplement for vacation.  Sick leave may 
be taken only for the purposes specified in Section 14.2 hereof. 

14.2.  Utilization of Sick Leave:  Employees may utilize their allowance for sick leave 
when unable to perform their work duties by reason of: 

A. Illness; 

B. Injury; 

C. Pregnancy; 

D. Necessary medical or dental care; 

E. Quarantine -- exposure to contagious disease which will endanger the health of the employee if 
he/she continues to work or the health of those who associate with him/her; 

F. Serious illness in the employee’s immediate family, which shall be defined to include the 
employee’s mother, father, spouse, sister, brother, children and grandparents, or any relative 
residing in the employee’s immediate household.  This does not provide extended household or 
child care.  A maximum of five (5) days’ absence shall be allowed for each such serious illness. 

G. As provided for and allowed pursuant to the Oregon and Federal Family Medical Leave laws. 

14.3:  An employee shall not be required to furnish a medical certificate to substantiate 
a request for sick leave of two (2) days or less.  Unless otherwise required by law, an employee shall 
be required to furnish a medical certificate for absences of more than two (2) days, except that this 
requirement may be waived by the County in individual cases.  If a health care provider was not 
consulted, a signed statement from the employee giving the reasons for the absence and the reasons for 
not having a health care provider’s statement may be accepted as supporting evidence by the Sheriff or 
designee.  Proven abuse or misuse of sick leave may subject an employee to discipline, up to and 
including discharge. 

14.4:  No employee shall be entitled to sick leave pay while absent from duty due to the 
following causes: 

A. Disability arising from any sickness or injury purposely inflicted. 

B. Sickness or disability sustained while on leave of absence without pay. 

C. Inability to properly perform required duties because of intoxication. 

D. Injury or illness for which the employee is eligible for industrial insurance benefits from an 
employer other than the County. 

14.5:  In the event an employee suffers from “sickness” and is unable to perform his/her 
duties, he/she shall notify his/her supervisor of his/her expected absence and the nature and expected 
length thereof prior to the start of his/her regular work shift. 

14.6.  Integration with Workers’ Compensation: When an injury occurs in the course of 
employment, the injured employee may utilize accrued sick leave to receive the difference between 
payments received under workers’ compensation and his/her regular salary.  In such instances, 
prorated charges will be made against the employee’s accrued sick leave. 
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14.7:  Sick leave is provided by the County solely in the nature of insurance against loss 
of income due to “sickness,” as defined above.  Except as allowed by ORS 238, et seq., (PERS) and 
Section 14.8 below, no compensation for accrued sick leave shall be provided for any employee upon 
his/her death or termination of employment, for whatever reason.  Sick leave shall not accrue during 
any period of layoff or leave of absence, except for a leave of absence required by the County for 
job-related educational or training purposes. 

14.8:  Upon the service or disability retirement of an employee, all of the retiring 
employee’s accumulated sick leave shall be reported to the Public Employees Retirement System, and, 
pursuant to procedures of the PERS, taken into account in determining the employee’s retirement 
benefits. 

14.9:  Sick Leave during FMLA or OFLA leave.  An employee must use accrued sick 
leave when the employee is on FMLA and/or OFLA leave due to his/her own serious health condition. 

ARTICLE 15 - OTHER LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

15.1.  Compassionate Leave:  An employee will be granted a compassion leave, with 
pay, for work time lost in the event of a death in the employee’s immediate family.  Paid time off 
granted shall be up to a maximum of forty (40) hours.  Compassion leave shall be granted for each 
death in the employee’s immediate family.  Immediate family shall include the employee’s mother, 
father, spouse, sister, brother, children, grandparents, mother-in-law, father-in-law and grandchildren, 
or any relative residing in the employee’s immediate household. 

15.2.  Leave of Absence:  After completion of his/her probationary period, a leave of 
absence without pay for a limited period not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days may be granted an 
employee for job-related educational or training purposes or for other reasons satisfactory to the 
County where, in the judgment of the Sheriff, the work of the Department would not be seriously 
handicapped by the temporary absence of the employee requesting such leave.  Any such leave must 
be requested in writing and must be approved by the Sheriff and the County Court.  At the discretion of 
the County, upon further written request by the affected employee, such leave may be renewed or 
extended for any reasonable period. 

15.3.  Military Leave:  Military leave shall be granted in accordance with State and 
Federal law. 

15.4. Family Medical Leave: Family Medical leave may be taken pursuant to Oregon 
and Federal law. 

ARTICLE 16 - INSURANCE AND RETIREMENT 

16.1.  Health and Welfare:   

A. The County will make available the health insurance plan in place as of the execution of this 
Agreement or reasonably comparable medical, vision and prescription insurance to bargaining 
unit employees and their eligible dependents through the remaining term of this Agreement.   

B. Effective on August 1 of each year of this agreement, the County will adjust its contribution in 
an amount equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of the total premium cost in effect on those dates. 

C. In the event that any of the insurance coverage provided shall have a net premium in an amount 
per covered employee greater than the applicable basic County contribution, then the individual 
employee shall be responsible for paying any such difference and the County is hereby 
authorized to advance such sums for the express purpose of premium payment and then to 
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make automatic payroll deductions from the earnings of any and all covered employees for 
reimbursement to the County of any such amount advanced.  Where the condition of the 
insurance contract calls for premium payment before the covered month has ended, should an 
employee not remain on the payroll for the entire calendar month, the employee is 
automatically liable to the County for any such amounts advanced and the County is hereby 
authorized to deduct such amounts from the earnings of the employee. 

D. Bargaining unit employees will be allowed to participate in a Section 125 Plan offered by the 
County to pay any insurance premium amounts for which they are responsible, as well as for 
other eligible medical and/or dependent care expenses. 

16.2.  Dental Insurance: The County agrees to make available through the term of this 
Agreement for all regular employees who are covered by this Agreement and who qualify under the 
terms of the program the Blue Cross dental insurance coverage (or comparable coverage).  Effective 
January 1, 2005, the County will contribute up to 100% of the employee only rate per month towards 
the premium cost of such dental insurance. 

16.3.  Long-Term Disability Insurance:  The County shall continue to provide a 
long-term disability insurance program for all employees who are covered by this Agreement and who 
qualify under the terms of such program.  It is understood and agreed that the premium for such 
insurance, and the County’s obligation under this Section, shall not exceed nine dollars ($9.00) per 
month for each eligible employee. 

16.4.  Liability Insurance:  The County agrees to adequately insure all employees in the 
bargaining unit against claims by third persons for personal injury or property damage resulting from 
the performance of an employee, including the use or operation of vehicles or equipment of the 
County, while engaged in the regular course of assigned duties. 

16.5.  Retirement: 

A. The County agrees to continue participation in the Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS), and/or the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP), whichever is applicable, 
subject to the terms and conditions thereof.  The County agrees to pay the employee 
contribution in the amount of six (6) percent of the employee’s gross salary. 

B. The “pick up” or contribution payment of employee member monthly contributions to the 
PERS/OPSRP system shall continue for the life of this Agreement. 

C. The full amount of required employee contributions “picked up” or paid by the County on 
behalf of employees pursuant to this Agreement shall be considered as “salary” (within the 
meaning of ORS 238.005) for the purposes of computing an employee member’s “final average 
salary” within the meaning of ORS 238.005 but shall not be considered as “salary” for the 
purposes of determining the amount of employee contributions required to be contributed under 
the PERS/OPSRP plans.  Such “picked up” or paid employee contributions shall be credited to 
employee accounts and shall be considered to be employee contributions for the purposes of 
ORS Chapter 238 and ORS Chapter 238A. 

16.6.  Life Insurance:  The County shall pay the premium for present levels of life 
insurance coverage throughout the term of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 17 - TRAINING AND CERTIFICATION 

17.1.  Training:  Ongoing schooling, training, and professional improvement are 
recognized as essential elements in maintaining and upgrading the duties and services of the Sheriff’s 
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Department.  Both the Sheriff and each individual employee are expected to work towards furtherance 
of this goal. 

A. Notice of all DPSST approved classes and other training opportunities received by the Sheriff 
shall be posted on the departmental bulletin board. 

B. All requests for approval of schooling or training classes shall be made in writing, and the 
Sheriff or designee shall respond in writing, either granting approval or denying the request, 
and setting forth the reasons for any denial.   This response shall be returned to the employee 
within fourteen (14) calendar days of the receipt of the request by the employee’s supervisor. 

C. Employees who fail to complete at least twenty (20) hours of approved schooling and/or 
training during a fiscal year shall be ineligible to receive a merit step. 

D. An employee who possesses a DPSST Certificate referred to in Section 17.3 must complete at 
least twenty (20) hours of approved schooling and/or training during a fiscal year in order to 
receive a certification pay premium during the following fiscal year.  This schooling and/or 
training is in addition to any required of the employee under paragraph C of this section. 

E. As a condition of enforcing the ability to deny salary step advancement as provided in 
paragraph C of this section, the County agrees to provide for sufficient local training 
opportunities that are relevant to each employee’s training needs and work assignments so as to 
allow the employee to achieve the necessary training without undue hardship. 

F. When an authorized school or training class is attended during regularly scheduled work hours, 
the employee will be compensated at his/her regular rate of pay. 

G. When the employee attends an authorized school or training course on his/her regularly 
scheduled day(s) off such attendance will not be considered hours worked and will not be 
compensated unless any of the following are applicable: his/her attendance was required by the 
Sheriff, the training is directly related to the employee’s job (other than specialized or follow-
up training required by law or ordinance for certification), or the employee performed 
productive work during such attendance.  In the event the training is to be compensated, the 
employee will be compensated at the appropriate regular or overtime rate of pay.  When an 
employee is attending school at the DPSST Academy, he/she shall be compensated as a 
regularly scheduled workday.   

17.2.  Tuition Reimbursement:  For the purpose of encouraging employees to pursue 
appropriate formal education, the County shall reimburse employees for educational training courses 
taken with written approval of the Sheriff, pursuant to the following qualifications: 

A. Only regular employees who have been so employed for at least one (1) year will be eligible 
for reimbursement. 

B. Reimbursement expenses shall be restricted to tuition, course fees and required textbooks, and 
no more than nine (9) hours of credit may qualify for payment under this plan in any given 
quarter. 

C. To obtain reimbursement, the course must be taken from a recognized and accredited school. 

D. Reimbursement shall be conditioned upon presentation of evidence to substantiate the expense 
and evidence of a “pass” or “C” grade or better. 

17.3.  Certificates: 
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A. Subject to the provisions of subparagraph D of Section 17.1, any employee who has been 
employed by the Wasco County Sheriff’s Department for at least six (6) months and who 
possesses an Intermediate Certificate from DPSST in the field in which he/she is then working 
shall receive a premium of two and one-half percent (2 ½ %) of base salary per month in 
addition to his/her regular salary.  

B. Subject to the provisions of subparagraph D of Section 17.1, any employee who has been 
employed by the Wasco County Sheriff’s Department for at least six (6) months and who 
possesses an Advanced Certificate from DPSST in the field in which he/she is then working 
shall receive a premium of five percent (5%) of base salary per month in addition to his/her 
regular salary.  

17.4.  Fitness Incentive:  The County will provide a wellness program open to all 
employees, such as Healthy Benefits, so long as available through medical and hospital insurance.  The 
Sheriff encourages active participation in wellness activities by all his employees.  If adequate space is 
available at the discretion of the County, employees may supply fitness equipment for working out on 
the employee’s own time.  Employees will assume full responsibility for maintaining any fitness 
equipment, and will hold the County harmless from any liability as a result of their use of the 
equipment for working out in the facility.  Employees will be required to sign any releases that the 
County may require before using the equipment or working out in the facility. 

ARTICLE 18 - CLOTHING AND EQUIPMENT 

18.1.  Uniforms:  The County will furnish all required uniforms, excepting footwear. 

18.2.  Side Arms:  A side arm meeting the Sheriff’s specifications shall be made 
available to each Deputy Sheriff for use as a duty weapon.  Each Deputy shall be responsible for the 
care and maintenance of his/her side arm and shall return it in serviceable condition upon the 
termination of his/her employment. 

18.3.  Repair or Replace Personal Property: 

A. The County shall reimburse employees, up to a maximum of fifty dollars ($50.00), for loss or 
damage to their wristwatch incurred while in the line of duty.  The County shall reimburse 
employees, up to a maximum of one hundred seventy-five dollars ($175.00), for loss or damage 
to their eyeglasses incurred while in the line of duty, provided such reimbursement is not 
available from Workers’ Compensation or health insurance.  

B. With the Sheriff’s approval, an employee may choose to use his/her own side arm or other item 
of required equipment (e.g., leather) instead of that provided by the Sheriff.  If the item is 
approved by the Sheriff, the Sheriff shall repair or replace such items when they are lost or 
damaged in the line of duty, so long as the loss or damage was not the result of the employee’s 
negligence.  The Sheriff’s obligation under this paragraph shall not exceed the cost of the 
corresponding departmental issue item. 

18.4.  Boot Allowance:  The Sheriff agrees to reimburse employees for expenses 
incurred for the purchase of boots necessary and appropriate for assigned duties, not to exceed one 
hundred fifty dollars ($150) every three (3) years. 

ARTICLE 19 - CLOSING 

19.1.  Savings Clause:  Should any Article, Section, or portion thereof, of this 
Agreement be held unlawful and unenforceable by any Court of competent jurisdiction, or any 
administrative agency having jurisdiction over the subject matter, such decision shall apply only to the 
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specific Article, Section, or portion thereof directly specified in the decision; upon the issuance of any 
such decision, the parties agree immediately to negotiate a substitute, if possible, for the invalidated 
Article, Section, or portion thereof.  All other portions of this Agreement, and the Agreement as a 
whole, shall continue without interruption for the term thereof. 

19.2.  Funding:  The parties recognize that revenue needed to fund the wages and 
benefits provided by the Agreement must be approved annually by established budget procedures.  All 
such wages and benefits are therefore contingent upon sources of revenue and annual budget approval.  
The County has no intention of cutting the wages and benefits specified in this Agreement because of 
budgetary limitations, but cannot and does not guarantee any level of employment in the bargaining 
unit covered by this Agreement.  The County agrees to include in its annual budget request amounts 
sufficient to fund the wages and benefits provided by this Agreement, but makes no guarantee as to 
passage of such budget requests pursuant to established budget procedures. 

19.3.  Entire Agreement:  The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which 
resulted in this Agreement each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and 
proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective 
bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of 
that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the sole and 
entire existing Agreement between the parties.  Except as specifically modified by or treated in this 
Agreement, all policies, matters, questions and terms affecting unit employees in their employment 
relationships with the County shall be governed by the Rules and Regulations of the Wasco County 
Civil Service Commission and by the Wasco County Personnel Ordinance.  Except as otherwise 
provided by this agreement, the County and the Association for the life of this Agreement each 
voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and agrees that the other shall not be obliged, to bargain 
collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to or covered by this Agreement, even 
though such subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or 
both parties at the time that they negotiated or signed this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 20 - TERM AND TERMINATION 

This Agreement shall be effective as of its execution, and shall remain in full force and 
effect through June 30, 2014.  It shall be automatically renewed from year to year thereafter unless 
either party shall notify the other in writing not later than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the 
expiration or subsequent anniversary date that it wishes to modify this Agreement for any reason.  In 
the event such notice is given, negotiations shall begin not later than thirty (30) calendar days after said 
notice.  This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect during the period of negotiations. 
 
 
WASCO COUNTY DEPUTY SHERIFFS 
ASSOCIATION 

WASCO COUNTY 

  
              
WCLEA President  Rod Runyon, Chair, County Commission 
  
  
              
WCLEA Vice President Scott Hege, County Commissioner 
  
  
        
 Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 
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 WASCO COUNTY SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT 
  
  
 By:        
  Rick Eisland, Sheriff 
  
  
Date:        Date:        
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APPENDIX A 

WASCO COUNTY SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT 

PAY PLAN 

 

Adjust wages across the board as follows: 

Effective July 1, 2012, adjust wage scales across the board for all classifications 
by 1.5%. 

Effective July 1, 2013, adjust wage scales across the board for all classifications 
by 1.5%. 

It is the intent of the County Court and this Contract that the minimum time of 
service in step within the Sheriff’s Department for employees shall be one (1) year.  Progression 
from one step to another is not automatic with minimum time, but is subject to the 
recommendation of the supervisor and/or appointing officer. 
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APPENDIX B 

WASCO COUNTY SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT 

WAGE SCALE 
 
 
 
 
Wasco County 

  

 
 
 

   SHERIFF'S DEPT. SALARY MATRIX 
     

Effective July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 
 

1.5% 
COLA 

   

       Union Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 

              

Deputy Sheriff $19.33 $20.29 $21.32 $22.38 $23.50 $24.67 

              

Civil Deputy $19.33 $20.29 $21.32 $22.38 $23.50 $24.67 

              

Animal Control Officer $18.39 $19.33 $20.29 $21.32 $22.38 $23.50 

              

Animal Control Assistant $16.70 $17.52 $18.39 $19.32 $20.28 $21.30 

              

Animal Shelter Attndt/Clerk $12.54 $13.15 $13.82 $14.51 $15.25 $16.01 

              

Records Clerk $13.54 $14.22 $14.93 $15.66 $16.46 $17.28 

  
      911 Comm. Operator $16.55 $17.39 $18.25 $19.16 $20.13 $21.13 
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Wasco County 
      SHERIFF'S DEPT. SALARY MATRIX 

     
Effective July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 

 

1.5% 
COLA 

   

       Union Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 

              

Deputy Sheriff $19.62 $20.59 $21.64 $22.72 $23.85 $25.04 

              

Civil Deputy $19.62 $20.59 $21.64 $22.72 $23.85 $25.04 

              

Animal Control Officer $18.67 $19.62 $20.59 $21.64 $22.72 $23.85 

              

Animal Control Assistant $16.95 $17.78 $18.67 $19.61 $20.58 $21.62 

              

Animal Shelter 
Attndt/Clerk $12.73 $13.35 $14.03 $14.73 $15.48 $16.25 

              

Records Clerk $13.74 $14.43 $15.15 $15.89 $16.71 $17.54 

              

911 Comm. Operator $16.80 $17.65 $18.52 $19.45 $20.43 $21.45 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



 

 

Agenda Item 

Oregon Investment Board Appointment 

 

 Executive Appointments Interest Form – Ken 

Farner 

 Letter of Nomination 

 



EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS 
INTEREST FORM 

office use only 
ACK T 
SEC REV 

The purpose of this form is to assist the Governor and staff in evaluating the qualifications of an applicant for appointment to a board 
or commission. Please complete the entire form and return to: 

Executive Appointments, Office of the Governor, 900 Court Street NE Room 160, Salem, OR 97301-4047 
Phone (503) 378-3123 Executive Appointment's Private Fax (503) 373-0840 

www.governor.oregon.gov (this form is available 011 the Web page) 

BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENT(S) DESIRED 

(dh<..JU~ ~~1_ &o~n.~k~~~J( . ~ 
Board Position Requirements, if any (as listed in Boards 

& Commissions Book) 

Board Position Requirements 

Board - Position Requirements 

PERSONAL DATA 

1ooress: Hom~ Business 0 

--F¥~~ .. --(e.g. Mr, Mrs, Ms, Dr, etc.) 

MIL Last Name __,__h_..d..:t-~"!......Jncwe'='-r-_________ _ 

j) .~· () 
BusinessName __ ~~~~~~~~~~---------------------------------
Business Address ________________________________________ _ 

Business Phone LF-J_ -2 ...----· ext 

l.__..J-_____ .c__ ___ E-mail address JJ..en-T @ ??.£. -Ou-;"7--

Jf the information below is unknown see hllp:/1/andru.leg.state. or.uslfindlegsltr!findset.htm or call your County Elections Office 

Home 

Name of your State Senator -----------c---------------'--- Senate District# ____ _ 

Name of your State Representative House District# ____ _ 

Name of your us· Representative Congressional District# ___ _ 

To assist us in meeting our affirmative action objectives, we would appreciate information about your gender and background. This 
infonnation is optional. Under state and federal law, this information ri1ay not be used to discriminate against you. 

Gender 
BMale 
0Female 

Race!Ethnicity 
0 Asian or Pacific Islander 
0 Black 
0 Hispanic 

Disability 
D~Native American 
J:5-White · 
0 Multiracial/Other 

1 



EMPLOYMENT & EXPERIENCE List major paid employment & significant volunteer activities. A current resume may 
be substituted for this section. 

Dates (from-to) Employer/Organization Title/Position 

\ 

INTEREST IN APPOINTMENT Describe in detail why you are interested in serving on this particular board or 
commission. Include information about your background and how you meet the requirements for the position (s) being sought. You J ay complete this secti n on a enar~te sheet. ~ k 

7-
~~~~~~~~~~~~db~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Some appointments are subject to confirmation by the Oregon State Senate. One area of inquiry will be whether you or your 
spouse/domestic partner may have a cOnflict of interest between private life an~ public service. 

I will accept appointment if selected by the Governor, and if appointed, I pledge my best efforts to resolve, before assumption of 
office, an&' s jl' interest that would be inconsistent with my responsibilities as a gubernatorial appointee. 

signature Date ~/t"'n'--'7~/;L'-;-=f=---------

2 



EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENTS BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Furnishing the following information is voluntary, but failure to provide the requested data may preclude selection for appointment. 
The Governor's Office considers the information on this page to have been submitted in confidence pursuant to ORS 192.502(4). The 
Govemor)s Office Will not release this page for public inspection unless required to do so. Information submitted on this Interest 
Fonn will be maintained confidential to the extent permitted by the Oregon Public Records Law. 

The Govemof)s staff and the Oregon State Police may conduct a background investigation to ·obtain information about you. Please 
provide the following information and sign below to penn it the investigation to be conducted. For an appointment to a state board or 
commission you are expected to comply with all income tax laws. · 

I hereby authorize the Oregon State Police and the Governor's Office to request and review any and all records pertaining to me on 
file with the Department of Revenue, the Motor Vehicles Division, law enforcemerit agencies, and past and present employers, 
employees, business associat~es, d qu:~·ntanc s. 

Signature (no electronic) --..-----31A~ ~tfn.~ Date ,;LA.,_V::_.~z~~_,_/-=~---------
(a) Please provide any other narri;~ you have used or been known as: _-:77~'7\'"""

7

1<~"',"'"'1::::.._7 ______ ~ 

City 

(b) Are you legally.authorized to work in the United States? Yes~ No 0 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

Have you been disciplin~enninated or asked to resign from a position by an employer within the past lO 
years? Yes 0* No?\ 

Have you EVER been convicted, arrested, detained, charged, indicted or summoned to answer for any 
criminal offense or violation (except minor traffic offenses with a fine of less than $100.00)? 

Yes0* N~ . 

Have you ever filed for bankruptcy? Yes 0 * N~ 
(f) Have you ever held a professional license of any kind? Yes)25[• No 0 

(g) 

(h) 

If you have held a professional license, have you ever had disciplinary action of any nature taken against you with 
regard to such license? Yes 0* No~ . 

If you are appointed, is there anything in your background, not covered by questions (a)-(g) above, that might 
reflect poorly on the State of Oregon or on the Board or Commission to which you have applied, if known publicly? 
Yes 0* NoJi( . . 

* If your answer to any of the above questions (c)- (h) is ''yes," please give full details on the back of this page or a separate 
sheet of paper. 

State 

Disclosure of your Social Security number is volunta1y. If provided, it may be used to verifY your identity and to obtain your criminal 
history records, if any. Failure to provide your SSN for these purposes will delay processing your Interest Form. 

SocialSecurityNumber ~- Jt -'-(76/ Driver'sLicenseNumber '3f:l.S~fl,j, StateA_ 

DateofBirth /() I ~;t. I /f'3{ PlaceofBirth ~~ ~£) 
Month Day Year ity . State 

Oregon Resident? Yes)'J No 0 If yes, how long have you lived in Oregon? 

HomePhone:.![//1·)...9~-//tJO WorkPhone: k~ 

3o~~ct4-e-j~df-,u~ 

Email: ~ ft~ -~{1----
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June 6, 2012 
 
Kendall Clawson 
Director of Executive Appointments 
Office of the Governor 
State Capitol, Room #160 
900 Court Street, N.E. 
Salem, OR 97301 
 
 
Dear Mr. Clawson, 
 
On Wednesday, June 6, 2012, The Wasco County Court moved to nominate Ken 
Farner for appointment by Governor John Kitzhaber to the Oregon Investment 
Board to replace Joan Silver whose term expired in June 30, 2011. Please find 
enclosed the Executive Appointments Interest Form which has been completed 
by Mr. Farner. 
 
If anything further is required of Wasco County, please contact our office at 
541.506.2520. 
 
 
      Respectfully, 
 
 
 
      Rod L. Runyon 
      Commission Chair 
      Wasco County Board of Commissioners 
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1 – INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN 

WASCO COUNTY AND MID-COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
 This Intergovernmental Agreement is made and entered into this 6th 

day of June, 2012, by and between Wasco County and Mid-Columbia 

Economic Development District (hereinafter referred to as MCEDD). 

 PURPOSE: 

 The Mid-Columbia Economic Development District, working under the 

direction of the Wasco County Board of Commissioners and the Wasco 

County Economic Development Commission, will provide leadership and 

staff support for economic development activities in Wasco County, as 

outlined in MCEDD’s Proposal of 2011, which is hereto attached and 

incorporated herein marked Exhibit A. 

 MCEDD, as directed by the Wasco County Board of Commissioners, 

will be responsible to the Wasco County Economic Development 

Commission (WCEDC) for the following areas: 



2 – INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

 1. MCEDD will work closely with the Chair of the WCEDC to 

 prepare the agenda, take minutes at the meetings, and make the 

 arrangements for all scheduled meetings of the WCEDC; and 

2. MCEDD will communicate with WCEDC members, County 

Commissioners, and other entities in Wasco County; and 

3. MCEDD will work with employees of Wasco County to maintain 

a web site that shows the calendar of events as it pertains to the 

WCEDC; and 

 4. MCEDD will assign staff to support the WCEDC; and 

5. MCEDD will work closely with the WCEDC to gather, review 

and prioritize the Wasco County economic development projects.  

MCEDD will continue to maintain the Needs & Issues Inventory on the 

Wasco County web site; and 

6. MCEDD will work closely with the WCEDC to review and 

update the Wasco County Strategic Action Plan annually to insure the 

accuracy of information presented in the plan; and 

 7. MCEDD will work closely with the members of the WCEDC to 

 determine a long-term scope of work for the MCEDD staff assigned to 

 work with the WCEDC, and for the WCEDC; and 

8. The Executive Director, or a designee at MCEDD, will be 

available to report to the Wasco County Board of Commissioners, as 

needed, on the activities of the Wasco County Economic Development 

Commission or as requested by the Board of Commissioners; and 



3 – INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

9. MCEDD will work closely with the Mid-Columbia Council of 

Governments, the Oregon Employment Department, The Dalles Area  

Chamber of Commerce, and other community partners to provide 

accurate information about Wasco County; and 

10. MCEDD will serve as point of contact for Wasco County for all 

information requests and make referrals as needed to community 

partners; and  

11. MCEDD staff will be available to provide economic 

development assistance in Wasco County by providing assistance in 

grant writing, project development, and the acquisition of resources 

from supporting organizations; and 

12. MCEDD will work to facilitate discussions and strategic plans 

that lead to private sector investments in our tax base and the creation 

of jobs for the citizens of our County; and 

13. Other items and activities as agreed to by both parties of this 

Agreement that further the economic growth of Wasco County. 

 PERSONNEL: 

 Jessica Metta shall be designated as MCEDD’s Primary Contact 

Person for the purposes of this Agreement.  This Project Administrator shall 

be responsible for management of MCEDD’s day to day administrative 

activities under this Agreement, and for apprising and updating the Wasco 

County Board of Commissioners and the Wasco County Economic 

Development Commission. 



4 – INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

 WASCO COUNTY’S RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 Wasco County will be responsible for being the Fiscal Agent for all 

grants received by Wasco County.  In consideration for services rendered 

under this Agreement, Wasco County will provide MCEDD Forty Thousand 

Dollars ($40,000.00) during Fiscal Year 2012-2013 as follows:  Nineteen 

Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-Eight Dollars ($19,998.00) payable by 

December 30, 2012; Three Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-Three Dollars 

payable on the 20th day of the months of January, February, March, April, 

and May, 2013; and Three Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-Seven Dollars 

payable by June 20, 2013. 

 This Agreement may be terminated by either party subject to thirty 

(30) days written notice.  This Agreement shall remain in effect until June 30, 

2013. 

     MID-COLUMBIA ECONOMIC  
     DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
     __________________________________ 
     Amanda Hoey 
     Date:______________________________ 
 
     WASCO COUNTY BOARD  
     OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
     __________________________________ 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: Rod L. Runyon, Chair of Commission 
 
_________________________ __________________________________ 
Eric J. Nisley    Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 
Wasco County District Attorney 
     __________________________________ 
     Scott C. Hege, County Commissioner 
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Wasco County Economic Development 

 

Mid-Columbia Economic Development District (MCEDD) staff will work closely with the 

Wasco County Economic Development Commission (WCEDC) to execute the scope of work 

outlined below.  

 

Scope of Work 

1. WCEDC CALENDAR: At the beginning of the fiscal year, MCEDD will work with the 

WCEDC on the calendar of regularly scheduled bi-monthly meetings, keeping in mind 

the need to meet throughout the County. Commission meetings and special meetings will 

be arranged as needed. Prior to each meeting, staff will work with the WCEDC Chair to 

create and distribute a written agenda. Appropriate public notices will be distributed to 

the news media and meeting minutes will be taken to document Commission discussions 

and actions. The meeting calendar, agendas and approved minutes will be posted on the 

website.  

2. NEEDS AND ISSUES: The Needs and Issues process will be conducted in a timely 

manner to meet any federal or state guidelines and will focus on collaboration with 

community partners. As a part of the process, MCEDD will work with current project 

sponsors to determine project status.  Additionally, a call for projects will be submitted to 

the County, the incorporated Cities, the Port, and other known entities within the County 

that might be seeking project funding. A critical part of the process is to work with 

project sponsors to be sure the need is expressed clearly and correctly and readiness to 

proceed noted. MCEDD will compile the list of projects and present it to the WCEDC for 

prioritization, inviting in local proposers to assist in the process. The list will ultimately 

be submitted to the Wasco County Board of Commissioners and the approved list added 

to the website.  

3. STRATEGIC PLAN: An important part of any economic development project is the 

planning process. The current strategic plan will be updated to reflect the current status of 

Wasco County. MCEDD will work with the County Commission, WCEDC and local 

partners to create a relevant plan for the future. Once the plan is completed, copies of the 

plan will be distributed to key community partners and posted on the website. 

4. LONG TERM SCOPE OF WORK: The long term scope of work will be directed by the 

strategic plan. MCEDD staff will create bi-monthly work plans focusing on reaching 

goals and targets established in the approved strategic plan. 

5. REPORT OF ACTIVITIES: MCEDD staff will formally report to the Court on a 

quarterly basis about the activities of the WCEDC, progress of developing projects 

outlined in the strategic plan, and other significant economic development related issues 

or activities.  

6. INFORMATION AND REFERRAL: MCEDD will serve as point of contact for Wasco 

County for all information requests and make referrals as needed to community partners. 

All project leads specific to Wasco County will remain confidential, limited to those who 

need to know, unless the WCEDC determines there to be a strategic advantage in a wider 

sharing of information. To provide current and accessible information the WCEDC 

website will be maintained and updated. Lists of funding sources and grant writers will 

be made available to the WCEDC. The project lead will represent the County, whenever 

possible, at economic development related activities in the region.  

7. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE: MCEDD will work with the WCEDC 

and partners in the County to ensure all efforts are made to provide assistance. This 
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element of the scope of work may be the largest as opportunities arise in the County that 

require personal assistance for job generating activities or addressing infrastructure and 

community needs. Under this element, MCEDD will facilitate discussions and efforts that 

consider how the WCEDC can encourage, support and help foster a business climate that 

attracts private sector investments and job creation in the County.   

 

Budget Form and Narrative 

The majority of the cost for this project is personnel to carry out the scope of work. 

 

Contractor Expenses: 

 Personnel 

  Salary $  27,500 

  Other Payroll Expenses $  10,000 

 Total Personnel Expenses $  37,500 

  

 Supplies/Services 

  Travel $  1,500 

  Supplies $    300 

  Communication/Building $    300 

 Miscellaneous $    400 

 Total Supplies/Services $  2,500 

Total Contractor Expenses $40,000 

 

Cash, fees, in-kind donations, and other funding sources: 

We anticipate additional funding support for Wasco County communities related to economic 

development assistance activities as we assist in securing funding for local projects. In addition, 

MCEDD will provide individual representation for Wasco County through its various 

memberships. 

 

Evaluation 

The performance of this contract can be based on the timeliness and quality of the project 

deliverables: 

 Meeting calendar set early in the contract with agendas, public notices, minutes, and 

appropriate follow-up as directed by the WCEDC. 

 A prioritized Needs and Issues Project List that represents the community’s funding 

needs and fulfills any federal and state requirements.  

 An updated Wasco County Economic Development Action Plan (Strategic Plan) created 

with community input.  

 Quarterly progress reports to Wasco County Board of Commissioners including a 

summary of information and referral requests, progress on the long term scope of work, 

efforts and activities that address private sector investment and job creation and economic 

development assistance provided by MCEDD staff.  

 A report at the end of the contract period summarizing activities undertaken during the 

period. 
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Threat and Hazard Identification & Risk 

Assessment Plan 

 

 Introductory Email 

 Plan Introduction – Changes Made 

 THIRA Plan 



Wasco County Mail - Fwd: THIRA Plan

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=7d850ab937&view=pt&search=inbox&th=13785398cde1bf35[5/25/2012 12:00:16 PM]

Kathy White <kathyw@co.wasco.or.us>

Fwd: THIRA Plan
3 messages

Mike Davidson <miked@co.wasco.or.us> Fri, May 25, 2012 at 11:18 AM

To: Kathy White <kathyw@co.wasco.or.us>

Kathy,

Here is the Threat Assessment document we talked about.

Mike

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: Mike Davidson <miked@co.wasco.or.us>

Date: Fri, May 4, 2012 at 9:52 AM

Subject: Fwd: THIRA Plan

To: Sue Stephens <sues@co.wasco.or.us>

here's the original e-mail

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: Mike Davidson <miked@co.wasco.or.us>

Date: Wed, Mar 28, 2012 at 3:57 PM

Subject: THIRA Plan

To: Sue Stephens <sues@co.wasco.or.us>

Sue,

The document that is attached is the one we talked about.  It is the Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment.

 This is an updated document from what used to called Hazard Identification and Vulnerability Analysis.  The second

document is a record of changes that have been incorporated into this version.  If the BOC wants to approve this on the

Consent Docket that is fine or I can schedule an appearance if needed.  Either way i need to know what it has been approved

and filed with the Clerks Office.

Thanks,

-- 

Michael L. Davidson, Emergency Manager

Wasco County Sheriff's Office

(541) 506-2790

-- 

Michael L. Davidson, Emergency Manager

Wasco County Sheriff's Office

(541) 506-2790

mailto:miked@co.wasco.or.us
mailto:sues@co.wasco.or.us
mailto:miked@co.wasco.or.us
mailto:sues@co.wasco.or.us


 i 

PLAN ADMINISTRATION 
 
 
The Wasco County Debris Management Plan, including attachments, will be 
reviewed and approved on an annual basis.  All updates and revisions to the plan 
will be tracked and recorded in the following table.  This process will ensure the 
most recent version of the plan is disseminated and implemented by emergency 
response personnel.   
 

Record of Plan Changes 

Date Change Number Summary of Changes 

August 2008 Revised Version 
Release – Adopted by 
County Court 08-13-
08 

New Public Health Section, 
revision of Hazard Matrix, 
removal of Appendix “F” and 
revision of Table of Contents 

County Court 
copy 

08-13-08  

City Manager 
copy 

08-15-08  

March 2012 1 1) Re-Name document from 
Hazard Identification and 
Vulnerability Analysis to 
Threat and Hazard 
Identification and Risk Analysis 

2) Change Threat Matrix to add 
Public Health Emergency 
category and delete Pandemic 
and Category A Agent 

3) Change Population from 
23,791 to 25,213 

4) Change Median income from 
$17,195 to $42, 133 

5) Change Median home price 
from $105,500 to $188,400 

6) Replace Public Health Hazard 
narrative 
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Executive Summary 

The Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) requires each political subdivision to base its 
Emergency Operations Plan on a hazard analysis.  The hazard analysis is also a training 
tool, providing introductory knowledge of the hazards posing a threat to Wasco County. 
To make the analysis more useful, adjective descriptors (High, Moderate, and Low) are 
established for each hazard’s probability-of-occurrence and vulnerability and a risk rating 
is assigned based on a subjective estimate of their combination.  The risk rating is 
assigned on the probability of a hazard occurring over the next 50 years.  The risk rating 
will help focus the emergency management program on the hazards of greatest risk. 

A high risk rating warrants major program effort to prepare for, respond to, recover 
from, and mitigate against the hazard. 

A moderate risk rating warrants modest program effort to prepare for, respond to, 
recover from, and mitigate against the hazard. 

A low risk rating warrants no special effort to prepare for, respond to, recover from, or 
mitigate against the hazard beyond general awareness training. 
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Wasco County Hazard Identification and Vulnerability 
Assessment 

 

Hazard Analysis Matrix 
HAZARD HISTORY 

WF = 2 

VULNERABILITY  
WF = 5 

THREAT 
WF = 10 

PROBABILITY 
WF = 7 

TOTAL 

Severe Weather 9 X 2 
= 18 

9 X 5 
= 45 

9 X 10 
= 90 

9 X 7 
= 63 

= 216 
 

Public Health 
Emergency 

4 X 2 = 8 8 X 5 = 40 10 X 10 = 
100 

8 X 7 = 56 = 204 

Drought 8 X 2 
= 16 

8 X 5 
= 40 

8 X 10 
= 80 

8 X 7 
= 56 

= 192 
 

Wildfire 10 X 2 
= 20 

6 X 5 
= 30 

7 X 10 
= 70 

10 X 7 
= 70 

= 190 
 

Flood 7 X 2 
= 14 

3 X 5 
= 15 

5 X 10 
= 50 

9 X 7 
= 63 

= 142 
 

HAZMAT – 
Transportation 

2 X 2 
= 4 

5 X 5 
= 25 

7 X 10 
= 70 

5 X 7 
= 35 

= 134 
 

Hazmat – 
Fixed Site 

2 X 2 
= 4 

5 X 5 
= 25 

5 X 10 
= 50 

5 X 7 
= 35 

= 114 
 

Earthquake 4 X 2 
= 8 

5 X 5 
= 25 

5 X 10 
= 50 

4 X 7 
= 28 

= 111 
 

Energy 
Emergency 

4 X 2 
= 8 

3 X 5 
= 15 

5 X 10 
= 50 

5 X 7 
= 35 

= 108 
 

Landslide/ 
Debris Flow 

4 X 2 
= 8 

4 X 5 
= 20 

4 X 10 
= 40 

5 X 7 
= 35 

= 103 

Terrorism  2 X 2 
= 4 

4 X 5 
= 20 

5 X 10 
= 50 

2 X 7 
= 14 

= 88 
 

Dam Failure 2 X 2 
= 4 

3 X 5 
= 15 

5 X 10 
= 50 

1 X 7 
= 7 

= 76 
 

Volcano 2 X 2 
= 4 

2  X 5 
= 10 

4 X 10 
=  40 

1 X 7 
= 7 

= 61 
 

Tornado 1 X 2 
= 2 

1 X 5 
= 5 

1 X 10 
= 10 

1 X 7 
= 7 

= 24 
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INTRODUCTION 

The purpose of the Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment, or THIRA, is 
to give the reader a sense of what hazards they should consider in mitigation, 
preparedness, response, and recovery activities.  Elected officials, emergency managers, 
emergency responders, public educators, and others who have a role or an interest in 
emergency management can use the THIRA. 

This document defines hazards and vulnerabilities in Wasco County and each of its 
cities.  For the purposes of the THIRA, Wasco County is the geographic subdivision of 
the State of Oregon.  Included in this area are unincorporated Wasco County and 
incorporated cities.  The THIRA will refer to all of these geographic areas as Wasco 
County. 

The fact that this document describes specific disasters does not suggest that those 
involved in emergency management should dwell on each particular hazard.  A good 
emergency management program should be applicable to a wide variety of disasters.  An 
all-hazards approach will avoid the creation of plans and procedures that are not 
transferable to different types of incidents.  The purpose of the detailed descriptions of 
individual hazards described in the THIRA is to provide an overall picture of what 
disasters are possible and a description of the ways in which these disasters may impact 
the community.  

An important function of the THIRA is to act as a 
justification for emergency management plans.  The 
THIRA is the compass that guides the planning 
process and the application of emergency 
management resources.  As such, the objective of the 
THIRA is to provide answers to questions that are 
crucial to emergency planners.  

 

For example, 

 What hazards exist in Wasco County? 

 To what extent can certain hazards impact life, property, and the 
environment? 

 What is the likelihood a disaster will occur? 

 What disasters have happened in Wasco County? 

 In our disaster planning and preparedness efforts, what are the primary 
disasters we should take into consideration? 

It is essential for planners to have answers to these questions since a good plan should 
be based on realistic assumptions about what disasters are possible and what disasters 
are likely in Wasco County.   

The data is not original, but extracted from various publications.  Numerous technical 
experts also made contributions.  The THIRA is not presented as a detailed study, but as 
a general overview.  Wasco County Emergency Management expresses its thanks to the 
local, state, and federal organizations that provided information and assistance.   

Hazard - a possible source of 
danger or harm to people, 
property, or the environment. 
 
Vulnerability - the potential for 
death and injury to people and 
economic loss to individuals, 
organizations, or government 
caused by a disaster.  
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HAZARD ANALYSIS METHODOLOGY 

 
The following categories are used in conducting this hazard analysis: 
 
HISTORY (weight factor = 2) 

 
The record of occurrences of previous major emergencies or disasters.  Examples of 
events to include in assessing history of a hazard in the jurisdiction are events for which 
the following types of activities were required: 

 

 The EOC was activated 

 The alternate EOC was activated 

 Activation of three or more EOP functions (alert & warning, evacuation, shelter etc.) 

 A multi-jurisdictional response was required 

 A "local emergency" was declared 
 
VULNERABILITY (weight factor = 5) 

 
The percentage of population and property likely to be affected. 

 
MAXIMUM THREAT   (weight factor = 10) 

 
The maximum percentage of population and property that could be impacted under a 
worst case scenario. 

 
PROBABILITY (weight factor = 7) 

 
The likelihood of occurrence within a specified period of time. 

 
By multiplying the "severity rating" of the rating system by the weight factors associated with the 
categories above, a sub-score for history, vulnerability, maximum threat, and probability for each 
hazard was determined.  Adding the sub-scores produced a total score for that hazard. 
 
The total score isn't as important as how it compares with the total scores for other hazards the 
jurisdiction faces.  By comparing scores, Wasco County can determine priorities:  Which hazards 
should the County be most concerned about?  Which ones less so? 

 
 
SEVERITY RATINGS (Applied to the four categories) 

 
LOW  =   1 - 3   points 
MEDIUM  =   4 - 7   points 
HIGH  =   8 - 10 points 

 
The following categories are considered in determining the severity: 
 
HISTORY:  (The record of occurrences of previous major emergencies or disasters.) 

 
LOW  0 - 1 event   per 100 years 
MEDIUM  2 - 3 events per 100 years 
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HIGH  4 +   events per 100 years  
 
VULNERABILITY: (The percentage of population and property likely to be affected.) 

 
LOW  < 1%  affected 
MEDIUM  1 - 10% affected 
HIGH  > 10% affected 

 
MAXIMUM THREAT:   (The maximum percentage of population and property that could be 

impacted under a worst case scenario.) 
 
LOW  < 5%  affected 
MEDIUM  5 - 25% affected 
HIGH  > 25% affected 

 
PROBABILITY: (The likelihood of occurrence within a specified period of time.) 

 
LOW  >  1 chance per 100 years 
MEDIUM  >  1 chance per 50 years 
HIGH  >  1 chance per 10 years 
 

 

Hazard/Risk Calendar 

 
Appendix C is a Hazard Risk Calendar showing the time of year a particular hazard is 
likely to occur. 

Review 

This document will be periodically reviewed for content and applicability.  It will be 
reviewed following receipt of each revision to the State of Oregon Threat and Hazard 
Identification and Risk Analysis and, as a minimum, at least once per review cycle of the 
Emergency Operations Plan (EOP).  Cyclic review will be scheduled as part of the EOP 
review process. 
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COUNTY CHARACTERISTICS 

 

Wasco County spans a distance of 2,381 square miles on the South shore of the 
Columbia River in the north-central part of Oregon State.  The Mid-Columbia region 
begins just East of the Cascade Mountain range and extends into the high plateaus of 
Oregon and Washington's Columbia Basin.  In general, the region's geographical position 
results in a climate characterized by relatively mild temperatures, seasonal precipitation, 
mild winters and dry summers.  The Cascades serve as an effective moisture barrier for 
the majority of the Gorge, causing storms to dump much of their moisture West of the 
peaks and leaving areas to the east in a "rain shadow."  Annual precipitation levels 
decrease significantly as you head from the region's western boundary to the East.  

Wasco County is bordered on its’ North side by the Columbia River.  To the South. a 
portion of the high desert area of Central Oregon.  To the West rises the Cascade 
Mountains and to the North, the Columbia River Gorge. The Columbia River is the only 
fresh-water corridor for ocean-going commerce on the entire West Coast of North 
America, and the only water-grade route through the Cascade Range between Canada 
and California.  To the East, Wasco County borders Sherman County.  
 
Along the Columbia River are low-lying bottomlands, from which a series of alluvial plains 
and terraces extend South.  Land elevations rise from less than one hundred feet on the 
Columbia River and it’s floodplains, to over 4,000 feet above mean sea level.  The 
western half of Wasco County lies at the eastern end of the Columbia River Gorge, and 
once away from the Columbia River Gorge, the County is comprised of a series of rolling 
hills and valleys that extend South into central Oregon. 

The major driving route is Interstate 84, which leads west to the metropolitan areas of 
Portland, OR.  Interstate 84 and State Highway 97 provide access to the County’s major 
population centers and recreational opportunities. 

 

CLIMATE 
 

Wasco County enjoys a mild but variable climate, with rainfall and temperature figures 
growing drier and warmer as one travels from West to East.  The following statistics were 
measured at The Dalles and are based on averages over a ten year period. 

 

  

 

 

   Precipitation

Month Min Max Mean Inches

January 29 41 35 2.62

March 37 57 47 1.2

May 49 73 61 0.54

July 60 87 74 0.18

September 51 80 65 0.48

November 35 50 43 2.03

Temperature Range (F)
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All weather and hydrological reports from the National Weather Service originate from the 
National Weather Service and the Northwest River Forecast Center in Portland. 

Demographics 

There are several factors that contribute to the overall vulnerability of the people who live 

in Wasco County.  For example, population densities, non-English speaking population, 

and growth rates are all factors that may impact a community’s vulnerability to hazards.  

Below are listed several factors that are commonly considered variables in a community’s 

collective vulnerability to disaster. 

 
Population Growth 

 

Population growth is a minor factor in a community’s vulnerability to disaster.  This is 
because higher growth rates increase the probability of a technological or manmade 
disaster and because this adds to other factors that contribute to vulnerability such as 
development patterns, economic development characteristics, and so on.  Most 
importantly, a rapid growth rate may stress a local government’s ability to plan, regulate, 
and serve the new population.  

Wasco County is growing at a rate slower than the 
state average.  Since 1990, Wasco County has been 
growing an average of .97% a year.  This is below the 
state average of 2.04% a year.  The County continues 
to rely on farm and fruit production, and has a 
population density of about 10 persons per square mile. 

  

Vulnerable Populations 
 
A characteristic of disasters is that they exceed the ability of emergency response 
agencies to provide assistance promptly.  In a major disaster, the public may be on their 
own for at least three days.  Individuals may need to go for several days without utilities 
and food and water sources.  Disasters may also isolate individuals by damaging 
transportation routes.  Not all people are able to respond to these conditions 
appropriately.  Many people are in vulnerable populations that may have difficulty 
following official instructions and taking protective actions.  For instance, someone who is 
developmentally disabled or deaf may not be able to hear or understand instructions on 
sanitation, evacuation routes, or shelter locations.  

Vulnerable populations are those groups that possess specific characteristics that inhibit 
their ability to prepare for, respond to, or recover from a disaster.  These characteristics 
include physical and developmental disabilities, mental illness, poverty, old age, or an 
inability to speak or understand English.  These groups are more heavily impacted 
because they may lack the necessary knowledge, skills, social support structures, or the 
mental and physical abilities necessary to take care of themselves.  Historically, 
vulnerable populations present a special challenge to emergency managers and 
response agencies and they are more likely to be victims of a disaster. 

Wasco County   

2010 Population – 25,213 

Land Area- 2,381 Sq. mi. 

2006-2010 median  per capita income - 

$42,133 

2006 -2010 Median home price - $188,400 
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Fortunately, many people that fall into one of these categories have families, friends, 
neighbors, and other caretakers that will be able to assist them.  But many of them do not 
have adequate support and those who do may not be able to rely on it in a major event.   

 

Non-English speaking and special cultural characteristics 
 

According to the 2010 census estimates, approximately 15.1% of the Wasco County 
population over the age of 5 speak a language other than English at home. 

A lack of ability to speak or read the English language can present a challenge to 
emergency managers, since instructions for self-protective action and general disaster 
information is usually provided only in English.  The non-English speaking population 
would be uninformed unless they have assistance from friends or services providers who 
may provide them with instruction and information in English.  In certain areas of Wasco 
County it may be advisable for emergency managers and emergency response agencies 
to arrange for translation of instruction and information into different languages.  

 
Elderly 
 

According to 2010 census figures, persons 65 and older made up 17.6% of the total 
Wasco County population.  Nationwide, as the baby boomer generation enters their 60’s 
the senior population is expected to dramatically increase.   

 
Transient Population 
 

The transient population includes those who do not have a permanent residence in 
Wasco County.  

Tourists/Travelers - Tourists are particularly vulnerable to disasters.  This is because 
tourists are usually unfamiliar with the hazards in the region and because they do not 
have the knowledge or the materials needed to take care of themselves in a disaster.  
For example, a typical tourist, unfamiliar with Wasco County, may have difficulty using 
evacuation routes, or finding shelters.  A light traveling tourist would also not have their 
own supply of food, water, flashlights, radios, and other supplies that locals can use to 
take care of themselves in a disaster.  And finally, tourists usually do not have a local 
support structure of family, friends, and neighbors that most of us rely on.   

Due to its proximity to the Columbia River and the cities, rivers and mountains of central 
Oregon, Wasco County is considered a major Northwest tourist destination.   

 

Disabled 
 

Physically Disabled - According to 2000 census, 4,299 Wasco County citizens has a 
mobility limitation.  These disabilities may or may not be permanent.  

Developmentally Disabled - According to national prevalence formulas approximately 
1% of the Wasco County Population or 204 residents (2000) have a developmental 
disability.  A developmental disability is defined as a disability that is attributable to 
mental retardation, cerebral palsy, epilepsy, autism, or any neurological or other condition 
closely related to mental retardation. 
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There is a wide variation in the vulnerability of the developmentally disabled population in 
Wasco County.  Some developmentally disabled individuals may have strong support 
structures and a high level of care provided to them by friends, neighbors, and care 
providers.  Others may not have such a high level of support.  Some individuals may be 
largely self-reliant.  Some may have additional disabilities in additional to their 
developmental disabilities.  10% of the developmentally disabled population is wheelchair 
bound and approximately 2% of the county population or 476 residents (2000) suffer from 
a mental illness.  

 

Mentally Ill 
Disaster conditions can aggravate the symptoms of those who suffer from mental illness.  
The mentally ill tend to be very sensitive to changes in their environment.  We have case 
studies of this phenomenon from Clark County, Washington.  During the Mt. St. Helens 
eruption disaster several individuals incorporated the fall of ash into their delusional 
symptoms.  There was a marked increase in the caseload for mental health crisis 
services at the Columbia River Mental Health Services.  During the February 1996 floods 
several mental health patients were hospitalized as a result of increased stress due to 
relocation, forgetting to take their medications when evacuated, and increased anxiety.  
Another important consideration is the ability of disaster conditions to cause mental 
illness.  It is estimated that 10% of disaster victims can develop mental health problems, 
including depression, and substance abuse. 

 

Low Income 
Not having sufficient financial resources during and after a disaster can be great 
disadvantage.  Lower income people are more likely to live in mobile homes or other 
homes that are less able to resist damage from flooding, windstorms, and severe 
weather.  Low-income people tend to have the greatest difficulty recovering from a 
disaster.  According to 1999 estimates, approximately 12.9% of the total population have 
income below the national poverty level. 
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NATURAL HAZARDS 
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DROUGHT 

Hazard Definition 

Drought is a condition of climatic dryness severe enough to reduce soil moisture and 
water below the minimum necessary for sustaining plant, animal, and human life 
systems.   

Drought is typically measured in terms of water availability in a defined geographical 
area.  It is common to express drought with a numerical index that ranks severity.  Most 
federal agencies use the Palmer Method that incorporates precipitation, runoff, 
evaporation and soil moisture.  However, the Palmer Method does not incorporate 
snowpack as a variable.  Therefore it is not believed to provide a very accurate indication 
of drought conditions in Oregon and the Pacific Northwest.  For more information on the 
Palmer Index see Appendix D. 
 
The Oregon Drought Severity Index is the most commonly used drought measurement in 
the state.  It is considered to be a better indicator of drought severity because it 
incorporates both local conditions and mountain snowpack.  The Oregon Drought 
Severity Index categorizes droughts as mild, moderate, severe, and extreme.  The index 
is available from the Oregon Drought Council. 

 

Early Oregon records, dating back to the late 1800s, clearly associate drought with a 
departure from expected rainfall.  Concern for mountain snowpack, which feeds the 
streams and rivers, came later.  Droughts were particularly noteworthy in the 1890s and 
during the following years: 

 

History 

Occurrences (Oregon State) 

1904-05:  Drought period of about 18 months 

1917-31:  Very dry period punctuated by brief wet spells (1920, 1927) 

1939-41:  Three-year intense drought 

1965-68:  Three-year drought following the big regional floods of 1964-65 

1976-77:  Brief very intense statewide drought  

1985-94:   Generally dry period, capped by statewide droughts in 1992 and 1994 

Hazard Identification 

Nearly all areas of the county may be vulnerable to drought.   

Vulnerability Analysis         192 

In every drought, agriculture has felt the impact, especially in non-irrigated areas such as 
farms.  Droughts have left their major impact on individuals (farm owners), on the 
agricultural industry, and to a lesser extent, on other agriculture-related sectors.   

There is increased danger of forest fires.  Millions of board feet of timber have been lost.  
In many cases, erosion has occurred which caused serious damage to aquatic life, 
irrigation, and power development by heavy silting of streams, reservoirs, and rivers. 
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Low stream flows have created high temperatures, oxygen depletion, disease, and lack 
of spawning areas for our fish resources. 

All of the above effects result in economic and revenue losses for business, cities and the 
county. 
 

History suggests a high probability of occurrence.  The entire population of the county 
is vulnerable to the effects of drought.  Transportation and communications infrastructure 
would be minimally impacted, if at all.  As growth places more pressure on limited local 
resources, future impacts may be greater, suggesting high vulnerability.  A high risk 
rating is assigned. 

Conclusions 

As a result of droughts, new techniques have occurred in agriculture.  Federal and state 
governments have also assumed an active role in developing new water projects and soil 
conservation programs.  OARS 536.700 pertains to drought relief and emergency water 
shortage powers. 

Better forest fire protection techniques have been developed and total acreage burned 
has continually decreased. 

Progress is being made in dealing with the impact of droughts through proper 
management of Oregon’s water resources.  Hopefully, information being collected and 
shared will assist in the formulation of effective programs for future water-short years. 
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EARTHQUAKE 

Hazard Definition 

An earthquake is the shaking of the ground caused by an abrupt shift of rock along a 
fracture in the earth, called a fault.  There are three categories of quakes and each type 
may affect Wasco County.  The first is a shallow or crustal quake.  These occur at a 
depth of 5 to 10 miles beneath the earth’s surface.  These quakes are associated with 
fault movement within a surface plate.  The second type of earthquake is an intraplate, or 
“deep” earthquake.  Intraplate quakes occur when an earthquake on a geologic plate 
affects another plate.  In Pacific Northwest geology, intraplate quakes happen when the 
Juan de Fuca plate breaks up underneath the continental plate, approximately 30 miles 
beneath the earth’s surface.  The third type of quake is a subduction zone earthquake.  
These occur when two converging plates become stuck along their interface.  Continued 
movements between the plates will build up energy across the locked surface until the 
plates abruptly slip along the interface when the strain is released. 

Magnitude is the measure of the strength of an earthquake, or the strain energy released 
by it, as determined by seismographic observations (size or length of a seismic signal).  
There are several types of magnitude scales of which the Richter Scale is the best 
known.  Magnitude is expressed in whole numbers and decimal fractions.  For example, 
a magnitude of 5.3 might be computed for a moderate earthquake, and a strong 
earthquake might be rated as magnitude 6.3.  Because of the logarithmic basis of the 
scale, each whole number increase in magnitude represents a tenfold increase in 
measured amplitude.  As an estimate of energy, each whole number step in the 
magnitude scale corresponds to the release of about 31 times more energy than the 
amount associated with the preceding whole number value.  See Appendix D for more 
information on earthquake measuring scales. 

History 

Each year, since 1980, the Pacific Northwest Seismograph Network has recorded an 
average of more than two thousand earthquakes in Washington and Oregon.  The vast 
majority are shallow earthquakes and 99% had a magnitude less than 3.0. 

The shallow 1872 earthquake in Washington’s North Cascades was the largest in the 
history of Washington and Oregon.  It had an estimated magnitude of 7.4 and was 
followed by many aftershocks.   

Because we do not have a complete history of Oregon earthquakes, we cannot fully 
assess the future risk. In western Oregon, the high rainfall promotes high erosion rates 
and dense ground cover, both of which tend to hide faults. 
 

 Approximate years: 1400BCE, 1050BCE, 600BCE, 400, 750, 900, Offshore, 
Cascadia subduction zone, probably 8-9, Researchers Brian Atwater and Eileen 
Hemphill-Haley have dated earthquakes and tsunamis at Willapa Bay, Washington; 
these are the midpoints of the age ranges for these six events. 
 

 January 26, 1700, Offshore, Cascadia subduction zone, Approximately 9, generated 
a tsunami that struck Oregon, Washington and Japan; destroyed Native American 
villages along the coast. 
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 November 23, 1873, Oregon/California border, near Brookings, 6.8, Felt as far away 
as Portland and San Francisco; may have been an intraplate event because of lack of 
aftershocks. 
 

 July 15, 1936, Milton-Freewater, 6.4, two foreshocks and many aftershocks felt; 
$100,000 damage (in 1936 dollars). 
 

 April 13, 1949, Olympia, Washington, 7.1, Eight deaths and $25 million damage (in 
1949 dollars); cracked plaster, other minor damage in northwest Oregon. 
 

 November 5, 1962, Portland/Vancouver, 5.5, Shaking lasted up to 30 seconds; 
chimneys cracked, windows broke, furniture moved. 
 

 1968 Adel Swarm, largest 5.1 Swarm, lasted May through July, decreasing in 
intensity; increased flow at a hot spring was reported. 
 

 April 12, 1976, Near Maupin, 4.8, Sounds described as distant thunder, sonic booms, 
and strong wind. 
 

 April 25, 1992, Cape Mendocino, California,7.0, Subduction earthquake at the triple 
junction of the Cascadia subduction zone and the San Andreas and Mendocino 
faults. 
 

 March 25, 1993, Scotts Mills, 5.6, On Mount Angel-Gales Creek fault; $30 million 
damage, including Molalla High School and Mount Angel church. 
 

 September 20, 1993, Klamath Falls, 5.9 and 6.0, Two deaths, $10 million damage, 
including county courthouse; rockfalls induced by ground motion. 

 

A northwest subduction zone earthquake has not occurred locally since the 1700’s.  
However, similar subduction zones worldwide have produced earthquakes of magnitude 
8 or larger.  An example is the 9.2 Alaska earthquake of 1964.  Geologic evidence 
indicates that the Cascadia Subduction Zone has generated great earthquakes at roughly 
500 year intervals, most recently about 300 years ago.  Researchers estimate there is a 
10% chance of a local subduction zone earthquake within the next 200 years. 

Hazard Identification 

The Pacific Northwest is a very seismically active area.  Potential earthquake sources in 
Wasco County are not well known because there have not been frequent large 
earthquakes here as there have been in California.  Estimations of possible earthquake 
sources are limited to studies of many small earthquakes, investigations of known faults, 
and other geological surveys.   

Earthquakes in Wasco County are most likely to originate from two sources: 1) the 
Cascadia Subduction Zone and 2) faults located near the eastern end of the Columbia 
River Gorge. 

Cascadia Subduction Zone - The Cascadia Subduction Zone lies about 50 miles 
offshore, extending from near Vancouver Island to northern California.  The zone is 
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where the oceanic Juan de Fuca plate dives beneath the continental North American 
plate.  These plates are converging at a rate of 1 – 1.5 inches per year. 

Vulnerability Analysis         111 

The entire county population, property, commerce, infrastructure and services may be 
vulnerable to an earthquake.  The scope of damage is a function of earthquake 
magnitude and level of preparedness.  Damage could range from minimal to moderate 
loss of life and destruction of property. 

Most injury, death, and property damage in an earthquake result from seismic impacts on 
structural and non-structural materials.  The vulnerability of certain areas partially 
depends on the types of structures in that area.  A wood frame residential structure that is 
adequately secured to the foundation is relatively safe.  Un-reinforced masonry buildings 
are at greatest risk from seismic impacts.  Most injuries in earthquakes result from non-
structural materials such as light fixtures, equipment, and furniture, falling on people and 
causing injury.  
 
There is really no past “recent” history of earthquakes in Wasco County.  County 
residents have felt some earthquakes distant from Wasco County.  Even with this lack of 
history, geology clearly shows that the county has been impacted by significant events in 
the last 500 years.  It is this 500 year history that Oregon Department of Geology and 
Mineral Industries based the 1999 damage estimates on. 

 

Cascadia Subduction Zone Model 
 
Expected losses from the magnitude 8.5 Cascadia earthquake include: 
 

 No casualties or deaths 

 No buildings extensively damaged 

 Over $950,000 of economic damage 
 

500 Year Return Interval model 
 
Every part of Oregon has earthquakes.  The 500 year model is an attempt to quantify the 
risk across the state.  This estimate does not look at a single earthquake.  Instead, this 
study includes many faults, each with a 10 percent chance of producing an earthquake in 
the next 50 years.  It assumes each fault will produce a single “average” earthquake 
during this time.  More and higher magnitude earthquakes than used in this study may 
occur. 
 
This model under-represents losses, because a single fault might produce the “average” 
event, and also larger or smaller events, but only the average magnitude event is 
counted.  So, if all expected earthquakes were included, the cumulative losses over the 
next 500 years would be higher than the estimated losses reported in this study. 

 
Expected losses in Wasco County from the 500 year model include: 

 

 5 casualties, no deaths 

 Over 3% buildings extensively damaged 

 Over $31 million of economic damage 
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These figures 
have a high 
degeeof 
uncerlalnl ly 
and should be 
used only for 
general 
p lanning 
purposes. 
Becouseot 
rounding, 
numbers may 
not odd up to 
100%. 

Because the 
500 year 
model includes 
several 
eorthquo~es. 

the number of 
faciifies 
opera tional 
the "day 
offer" canno t 
be calculated. 

Wasco County 

Injuries 

D<>aths 

Displaced households 

Sh ort term shelt<'.f nt>eds 

Economic loSS<'.S for buildings 

Operating the day after the quake: 

Fire stations 

Police S!'dtions 

Schools 

Bridges 

Econont.ic loss-es to: 

Highways 

Airports 

Communication systems: 

Econonlic losses 

Opcrdtiug the day of th" quak" 

D"bris g <OJ>r.rated (thous ands of to us) 

8.5 Cascadia e'' '"'t 

Building type None 

Agriculture 98 

Commercial 98 

Education 

Govr..rlmlCJlf 98 

Indus trial 98 

Residential 99 

500 year model 

Building type None 

Agriculture 74 

Commercial 68 

Education 56 

Govr..rlmlCJlf 66 

Indus trial 65 

Res idential so 

8.5 Cascadia subduclion zone event 500 year model 

0 6 

0 0 

0 23 

0 17 

$795,000 S25 million 

99% NA 

100% NA 

100% NA 

99% NA 

$71, 000 53 mill ion 

0 52 mill ion 

56,000 s ·l m ill ion 

100% NA 

1 16 

Percentage of buildings in damage <:ategorics 

Slight Moderate Extensive Com plete 

l 1 0 0 

1 1 0 0 

Unknown 

1 0 0 0 

2 0 0 0 

l 0 0 0 

Percentage of buildings in damage <:ategorics 

Slight Moderate Extensive Com plete 

13 10 3 0 

16 12 3 0 

10 7 2 0 

16 14 4 1 

16 15 5 0 

12 6 l 0 
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Another factor in earthquake vulnerability is soil type.  Water-saturated loose sand and 
silt loses its ability to support structures in an earthquake.  Areas in Wasco County that 
are near the flood plains near the Columbia River or areas with silt deposits are at the 
greatest risk during an earthquake.   

Within the limits of predictability, we must assume a moderate probability of 
occurrence for a damaging earthquake during the next 50 years.  A large earthquake 
centered in Western Oregon could have a minor impact on Wasco County suggesting 
moderate vulnerability.  Accordingly, a moderate-risk rating is assigned. 

Conclusions 

It is difficult to identify a part of the community that is not vulnerable to an earthquake.  
People, buildings, emergency services, hospitals, transportation lifelines, and water and 
wastewater utilities are susceptible to the effects of an earthquake.  In addition, electric 
and natural gas utilities and dams have a potential to be damaged.   
 
Earthquakes are unique in impact to structures.  Injuries result from structural materials 
falling on people and creating hazards. 
 
Effects of a major earthquake in the Pacific Northwest could be catastrophic, providing 
the worst case disaster short of war.  Thousands of persons could be killed and many 
tens of thousands injured or left homeless.  A major earthquake may create additional 
hazards such as pipeline line leaks and ruptures, hazardous materials releases, train 
derailments, and fires. 
 
Mitigation activities such as the following should be instituted and maintained to lessen 
the potential problems. 
 

a. Examination, evaluation, and enforcement of effective building and zoning 
codes. 

 
b. Geologically hazardous areas, as defined by the Growth Management Act, 

should be identified and land use policies adopted to lessen risk. 
 

c. Public information on what to do before, during, and after an earthquake 
should be provided to citizens. 

 
d. Local and state governments should develop and maintain response 

procedures and keep mitigation programs ongoing. 



WASCO COUNTY THIRA 
 

21 
 

FLOODS 

Hazard Definition 

The main cause of Northwest floods is the moist air masses that regularly move over the 
region in the winter.  In Wasco County, the weather that produces the most serious 
flooding events are extensive wet conditions that follow a period of mid and high 
elevation ice and snow pack development.    

Riverine and flash floods may both occur in Wasco County.  Riverine floods happen 
when the amount of water flowing through a river channel exceeds the capacity of that 
channel.  Riverine floods are the most common type of flooding.  Flash flooding occurs 
during sudden rainstorms when a large amount or rain falls in a very short period of time.  
These happen in steeply sloping valleys and in small waterways. 

A secondary category of flood is the storm water or urban flood.  Storm water flooding 
occurs when runoff from rainfall concentrates in developed areas, drainage, and low-lying 
areas.  Poor drainage, elevated groundwater levels, and ponding are all symptoms of 
storm water flooding that can cause property damage.   

Storm water flooding should be a concern in Wasco County because of rapid 
development.  In the February 1996 flooding there were a surprising number of properties 
that were impacted that were not near a tributary.  Instead these properties were in poorly 
drained areas where ponding and runoff patterns caused basements to flood and other 
types of water damage.  Not all of this is due to development.  Natural soil conditions and 
geological features often determine drainage patterns.   

History 

January 1923 – Record flood levels on the Deschutes River. 

May 1928 – Columbia River flooding occurred. 

March 1932 - Flooding occurred on the John Day and Grande Ronde Rivers 

May 30, 1948 – Columbia River crested at 34.4 ft.  Flood stage at that time was 15 ft.  

This is the flood that destroyed the City of Vanport.  Fifteen people died in the flood. 

March 1952 - Flooding occurred on the John Day and Grande Ronde Rivers, highest 

flood stages on these rivers in over 40 years 

July 1956 – Flash flooding occurred in Central Oregon 

December 1964 – Region wide flooding occurred 

July 1995 – Fifteen Mile Creek Flash Food, This flood was caused by a summer 

thunderstorm 

January - February 1996 - This widespread flood in the Pacific Northwest was the result 
of heavy rain and warming on heavy mid elevation snowpack, and was similar to regional 
flooding in December 1964.  The Columbia River crested at 27.1 ft. on February 9.  This 
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flood occurred because of the confluence of several factors.  The winter of 1995/96 was 
extremely rainy.  Prior to the flooding period, the region experienced a cold snap with low 
elevation freezing, ice, and snow.  As a result, Mill Creek flooded downtown The Dalles 
where heavy damage was caused.  The last 850 ft. of Mill Creek before it enters the 
Columbia River was in a tunnel.  Heavy debris flows and log jams at the tunnel inlet 
coupled with reduced discharge head caused by Columbia River levels backed water up 
and into the downtown business area.  Losses were in millions of dollars. 

December 1996 – February 1997 – Region wide flooding occurred. 

Hazard Identification 

Many rivers in Wasco County historically flood every few years.  These include the White 
River, the Deschutes River and the Columbia River.  Flooding on these rivers usually 
occurs between October and February.  Long periods of heavy rainfall and mild 
temperatures coupled with snowmelt contribute to flooding conditions. 

Vulnerability Analysis          142 

Wasco County participates in the National Flood Insurance Program and has developed 
local ordinances to better regulate and direct development in flood plain areas.  These 
local ordinances regulate planning, construction, operation, and maintenance of any 
structures, and improvements, private or public.  They work to insure that these 
developments are properly planned, constructed, operated, and maintained to avoid 
adversely influencing the regimen of a stream or body of water or the security of life, 
health, and property against damage by flood water.  Additionally, recent steps have 
been taken to mitigate the effects of flooding.   

Two examples of these mitigation strategies are: 

 The Fifteen Mile Creek Hazard Mitigation Project  

A hazard mitigation plan was developed by a local, interagency planning team and 
approved by Wasco County Court, Oregon Emergency Management, and FEMA. 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) funding was approved in fall 1996 for 
$202,000 and work initiated in spring 1997.  Work included best management 
practices on private lands designed to reduce runoff and erosion in areas where 
frequent events damage infrastructure such as roads and bridges.  Work also 
included upgrading culverts, and other roadway systems.  The purpose of the 
program was to reduce damage to infrastructure from future, similar events.  This 
project was completed in the fall of 1999.  

 Mill Creek Hazard Mitigation Project 

An interagency planning team identified the most feasible solution to be creation of a 
floodway or surface overflow outlet to carry out-of-bank flows safely to the Columbia 
River.  Extremes from minimal land shaping to 16 x 16 ft. concrete channel were 
considered with considerable variation in initial cost estimates.  At the last team 
meeting in 1997, the UPRR representative was going to investigate potential funding 
for a Corps of Engineers definitive study.  Minimal state support has been received 
for this effort.  
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Current Status: Corps engineering / analysis scheduled; City of The Dalles assumed 
sponsorship for this urban public works project.  The City's urban renewal efforts in 2001 
included pedestrian passage under the freeway that might double as a water outlet 
during flood events at the mouth of Mill Creek.  

Residents who live in flood plains face far greater risks than needed.  These homeowners 
probably face greater financial liability than they realize.  During a 30-year mortgage 
period, a home in a mapped flood plain has about a 26 percent chance of being damaged 
by a 100 year-flood event.  The same structure has only about a one percent of being 
damaged by fire.  Many homeowners who live in flood plains carry fire insurance, but do 
not carry flood insurance. 

With uninsured homes located in flood plains, Wasco County homeowners are vulnerable 
to flood damage.  Adding to this vulnerability, are increases in the percentage of 
households and population living in flood plains as new growth creates increasing 
pressure to develop more marginal land.  Furthermore, as the density of development 
increases and permeable natural surfaces are replaced with homes and roads, the 
volume of storm water runoff and the area over which it floods will increase.  As a result, 
unknown numbers of homes that were once outside mapped flood plains will face an 
increased threat of flooding, a threat they were never built to withstand.  In fact, 35-40 
percent of the National Flood Insurance claims are currently coming from outside the 
mapped flood plains. 

Historically, flooding occurs along one or more of the County’s waterways every few 
years, suggesting a moderate probability of occurrence.  Because of the relative land 
area and population affected, the County is exposed to moderate vulnerability.  The 
frequency of flooding, the potential for simultaneous flooding events, plus the historical 
record of recurrent flooding and cumulative costs, all suggest the assignment of a 
moderate risk rating. 

Conclusions 

Floods can cause loss of life and great damage to structures, crops, land resources, flood 
control structures, roads, and utilities of all kinds.  Building in established floodplain areas 
must be regulated.  Human-made developments within flood plains should be limited to 
non-structures such as parks, golf courses, farmlands, etc.  These facilities have the least 
potential for damage, but maximize land use. 

The general public should be made aware of hazardous areas and be given flood 
insurance and emergency preparedness information. 

The National Weather Service has an extensive river and weather monitoring system and 
usually provides adequate and timely warning.  The National Weather Service provides 
weather information to local jurisdictions and the public in a variety of ways, radio, 
teletype, and telephone. 
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WILDLAND FIRE 

Hazard Definition 

Any instance of uncontrolled burning within a forested area is a wildland fire, where as 
uncontrolled burning in grassland, brush, or woodlands is classified as a wildfire.  

History  

Large fires reported in Wasco County since the turn of the century include the following: 

Year    Name   Area    Acres   

1902    Columbia Gorge  170,000 

1977    Wasco County   Unknown 

1979 Pine Grove  Wasco County   Unknown 

1985 Maupin  Wasco County   Unknown 

1988 Warm Springs  Wasco County   Unknown 

1994 Warm Springs  Wasco County   Unknown 

1998 Rowena  Wasco County   2,208 

2002 Sheldon Ridge Wasco County   12,261 

2002 – White River  Wasco County   Unknown 

 

Hazard Identification 

Wasco County’s fire season usually runs from mid-May through October.  However, any 
prolonged period of lack of precipitation presents a potentially dangerous problem.  The 
probability of a wildland fire in any one locality on a particular day depends on fuel 
conditions, topography, the time of year, the past and present weather conditions, and 
the activities (debris burning, land clearing, camping, etc.) which are or will be taking 
place. 

Vulnerability Analysis         190 

The effects of wildland fires vary with intensity, area, and time of year.  Factors affecting 
the degree of risk of fires include extent of rainfall, humidity, wind speed, type of 
vegetation, and proximity to fire fighting agencies.  The greatest short-term loss is the 
complete destruction of valuable resources, such as timber, wildlife habitat, scenic vistas, 
and watersheds.  There is an immediate increase in vulnerability to flooding due to the 
destruction of all or part of the watershed.  Long-term effects are reduced amounts of 
timber for commercial purposes and the reduction of travel and recreational activities in 
the affected area. 
 
Home building in and near forests increases risks from forest fires.  These areas of new 
homes are referred to as interface areas.  Often, structures have been built and 
maintained with minimal awareness of the need for protection from exterior fire sources, 
or the need to minimize interior fires from spreading to forested lands. 
 



WASCO COUNTY THIRA 
 

25 
 

Historically, it appears that the instance of wildfire is increasing through the region.  
Additionally, the existence of open range lands and large forested areas, increasing 
population and recreational activities, and the uncertain impact of a changing climate 
combine to suggest a high probability of occurrence.  The destruction of large tracts of 
forest land would have immediate economic impact to the community through lost jobs, 
reduced taxes, and increased public support while collateral economic and social effect 
could impact the County for years, suggesting moderate vulnerability.  Accordingly, a 
high risk rating is assigned. 

Conclusions 

The following steps should be accomplished to preclude major loss of life and reduce the 
actual number of fires in hazard areas: 
 
1. Since people start the vast majority of wildland fires, fire prevention education and 

enforcement programs can significantly reduce the total number of wildland fires.   
 

2. An effective early fire detection program and emergency communications systems 
are essential.  The importance of immediately reporting any forest fire must be 
impressed upon local residents and persons utilizing the forest areas. 

 
3. An effective warning system is essential to notify local inhabitants and persons in the 

area of the fire.  An evacuation plan detailing primary and alternate escape routes is 
also important. 

 
4. Fire-safe development planning and appropriate wildfire mitigation strategy should be 

done by local jurisdictions, such as the implementation of safety recommendations to 
include. 

 
a. Sufficient fuel-free areas around structures. 
b. Fire resistant roofing materials. 
c. Adequate two-way (ingress and egress) routes and turnarounds for emergency 

response units. 
d. Adequate water supplies with backup power generation equipment or other 

means to cost-effectively support fire fighting efforts. 
e. Development of local ordinances to control human caused fires; i.e. from debris 

burning, fireworks, campfires, etc. 
    

5. Road criteria should ensure adequate escape routes for new sections of 
developments in forest areas. 

 
6. Road closures should be increased during peak fire periods to reduce the access to 

fire-prone areas. 
 

7. Steps the public can take to better protect lives, property, and the environment from 
wildfires include: 

 
a. Maintaining appropriate defensible space around homes. 
b. Providing adequate access routes (two-way with turnaround) to homes for 

emergency equipment. 
c. Minimizing “fuel hazards” adjacent to homes. 
d. Using fire-resistant roofing materials 
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e. Maintaining adequate water supplies. 
f. Ensuring home address is visible to first responders. 
 

8. Some wildland fires are allowed to burn in limited areas as part of forest 
management. 
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LANDSLIDES 

Hazard Definition 

Landslides are the sliding movement of masses of loosened rock and soil down a hillside 
or slope.  The term landslide includes a wide range of ground movement, such as rock 
falls, deep failure of slopes, and shallow debris flows.  It is most common for landslides to 
occur on water saturated slopes when the base of the slope can no longer support the 
weight of the soil above it.  Landslides are commonly associated with heavy rain and 
flooding conditions but they may also be associated with earthquakes (the 1994 
Northridge Earthquake caused an estimated 11,000 landslides) and with volcanic activity. 

Hazard History 

Landslides typically occur in Wasco County during or after periods of heavy rain and 
flooding.  The period from December1996 to February 1997 saw a few landslides in 
Wasco County  

Hazard Identification 

Slides in Wasco County generally range in size from thin masses of soil of a few yards 
wide to deep-seated bedrock slides.  Travel rate may range in velocity from a few inches 
per month to many feet per second, depending largely on slope, material, and water 
content.  The recognition of ancient dormant slide masses is important as they can be 
reactivated by earthquakes or unusually wet winters.  Also, because they consist of 
broken materials and disrupted ground water, they are more susceptible to construction-
triggered sliding than adjacent undisturbed material. 

Wasco County has several areas where landslides have taken place and many areas 
that are susceptible to landslides.  The slopes above the Columbia River are particularly 
susceptible. 

Vulnerability Analysis         103 

Typical effects include damage or destruction of portions of roads and railroads, sewer 
lines, pipelines, and water lines, electrical and communications distribution lines, and 
destroyed homes and public buildings.  Disruption of shipping and travel routes result in 
losses to commerce.  Many of the losses due to landslides may go unrecorded because 
no claims are made to insurance companies, lack of coverage by the press, or the fact 
that transportation network slides may be listed in records simply as “maintenance.” 

Wasco County has a history of landslides suggesting a moderate probability of 
occurrence.  Landslides tend to occur in isolated, sparsely developed areas threatening 
individual structures and remote sections of the transportation, energy and 
communications infrastructure suggesting low vulnerability.  Because of the moderate 
probability of occurrence, a moderate risk rating is assigned. 

Conclusion 

The most significant effect of landslides is the disruption of transportation and the 
destruction of private and public property.  Some work has been done to prevent 
developments on top of or below slopes subject to sliding without geotechnical 
investigations and preventative improvements.  Much more needs to be done to educate 
the public and to prevent development in vulnerable areas. 
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SEVERE LOCAL STORM  

Hazard Definition 

Wasco County is vulnerable to a variety of severe storm hazards.  Tornadoes are 
described separately.  Ice, snow, and windstorms all have the ability to severely impact 
the County.  Severe local storms seldom cause death and serious property damage but 
they can cause major utility and transportation disruptions.   

Ice Storm 

Ice storms or freezing rain (black ice) conditions can occur in Wasco County.  Ice storms 
occur when rain falls from warm moist upper layers of the atmosphere into a cold, dry 
layer near the ground.  The rain freezes on contact with the cold ground and accumulates 
on exposed surfaces.  This has the possibility to create real havoc when the ice 
accumulates on tree branches, and power lines.  This can cause power outages and can 
obstruct transportation routes. 

Snow Storm or Blizzard 

It is possible for moderate snowfall to occur in Wasco County.  Wasco County has had 
accumulations that vary depending on geographic location.  For example, accumulations 
average between 4 – 5 inches in the City of the Dalles each year.  However, during 
December of 1884, almost 30 inches of snow fell over a 3 day period and again in 1909 
more than 14 inches fell over 5 days.  Accumulations of snow usually increase with 
distance and elevation as the terrain rises to the South of the Columbia River.  January is 
usually the month with the greatest snowfall.  Moisture and cold air are required for snow 
to fall.  While moisture is common in the winter months, the Cascades act as a barrier to 
moist air coming from the west.  On occasion, cold air can slip in through low points in the 
Cascades bringing snow to the lower elevations; however, it melts quickly when the warm 
air moves in.  It is common for cold air to come into the County from the central basins of 
Washington and Oregon.   

Wind Storm 

Every so often the Northwest is severely impacted by strong windstorms.  In the past, 
peak wind gusts have gone above 100 miles per hour.  The strongest winds that impact 
Wasco County comes from two sources.  Frequent and widespread strong winds come 
from the west and are associated with strong storms moving onto the coast from the 
Pacific Ocean.  Strong east winds may also originate from the Eastern Washington and 
Oregon, when high atmospheric pressure is over the upper Columbia River Basin and 
low pressure is over the Pacific Ocean.  The Columbia River Gorge acts as a funnel, 
concentrating the intensity of the winds as they flow to the West.  This generates strong 
winds throughout the Gorge.  The Beaufort Wind Scale which can be found in Appendix 
D measures wind speed. 

History  

The record snowfall in the region occurred December 20-23, 1892.  In Southwest 
Washington and Northwest Oregon, 15 to 30 inches of fell.  Portland had 27.5 inches of 
snow.  The Columbus Day Storm on October 12, 1962 was the worst windstorm to occur 
in the Northwest since records have been kept.  Thirty-eight people died and monetary 
losses were estimated somewhere between $175 and $200 million.  The Portland Airport 
reported a peak gust of 88 miles per hour.  At the Morrison Bridge in Downtown Portland 
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there was a peak gust of 114 mph.   The strongest windstorm since the Columbus Day 
Storm occurred November 13-15, 1981.  This storm was nearly as strong as the 
Columbus Day Storm but it tracked farther west.  This was actually two strong 
windstorms, the stronger first storm arriving November 13 and early November 14 and 
the second storm hit on November 15. 

Hazard Identification 

All of the hazards described above impact communities in similar ways.  Even moderate 
storms can bring down power lines, and tree and tree limbs obstructing roadways and 
falling onto houses and other structures with enough force to cause damage.  Downed 
powerlines create widespread electrical hazards.  Severe windstorms will usually cause 
the greatest damage to ridgelines that face into the winds.  There is an additional hazard 
in newly developed areas that have been thinned of trees to make way for new 
structures.  Large unprotected trees in these areas are more like to fall.  Severe storms 
causes massive power and telephone outages.  Severe storms in Wasco County have 
left many without power.  In certain areas it may take several days for utility providers to 
restore power.  This can create life-threatening problems for people with life support 
equipment such as dialysis machines, respirators, and oxygen generators. 

Severe local storms create hazardous driving conditions that can slow down and 
completely inhibit traffic.  This can hinder police, fire, and medical responses to urgent 
calls.  These types of storms also can wreak havoc on first response operations.  Law 
enforcement resources are often tied up in responding to welfare inquiries and in traffic 
control, while fire departments are tied up with electrical hazards and debris removal.  
The long-term challenge for severe local storms is in debris removal.  Hundreds of tons of 
debris can pile up in residential and commercial areas. 

Vulnerability Analysis         216 

The entire County is vulnerable to the effects of a storm.  High winds can cause 
widespread damage to trees and power lines and interrupt transportation, 
communications, and power distribution.  Prolonged heavy rains cause the ground to 
become saturated, rivers and streams to rise, and often results in local flooding and 
landslides. 

Ice storms occur when rain falls out of a warm atmospheric layer into a cold one near the 
ground.  The rain freezes on contact with cold objects including the ground, trees, 
structures, and powerlines, causing power lines to break.  

Snowstorms primarily impact the transportation system and the availability or timing of 
public safety services.  Heavy snow accumulations can also cause roofs to collapse.  
Snow accompanied by high winds is a blizzard, which can affect visibility, cause large 
drifts and strand residents for up to several days.  Melting snow adds to river loading and 
can turn an otherwise benign situation into a local disaster. 

Each of these when in combination with any other or if accompanied by freezing 
temperatures can exacerbate a storm’s impact.  Isolated residents without power are 
more likely to use wood fires to stay warm or to cook, possibly resulting in an increase in 
the number of structural fires.  Residents without food or water may attempt to use 
impassable roads and thereby increase the number of rescues. 

The effects can vary with the intensity of the storm, the level of preparation of local 
jurisdictions and residents, and the equipment and staff available to perform necessary 
tasks to lessen the effects of severe local storms. 
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Storm history suggests a high probability of occurrence.  Historical damage and 
cumulative costs of destructive storms suggest high vulnerability.  Accordingly, a high 
risk rating is assigned. 

  

Conclusion 

Severe local storms seldom cause death and injury and seldom result in severe property 
damage.  However, severe storms have caused serious disasters in Wasco County and 
they will do so again.  Perhaps the one thing that will do the most to prevent death and 
injury is to ensure that people stay off roads and remain in a safe place before the brunt 
of a storm passes.  This is best done through effective employee and student dismissal 
plans and event cancellation.  It is also important to promptly notify the public of severe 
weather watches and warnings. 

In the responding to a severe local storm, often a sticking point is the prioritization of 
phone and power restoration services.  Emergency managers and first responders need 
to work closely with utility providers and telephone companies to ensure that power and 
phone service is quickly restored to essential facilities.   

Once the general public has weathered a severe storm and their power and phone 
service is restored their highest priority is to quickly and efficiently remove the debris on 
their property and on the roads they drive.  Debris removal planning is essential so that 
systems are in place to efficiently manage and finance prompt debris removal. 



WASCO COUNTY THIRA 
 

31 
 

TORNADOES    

 Hazard Definition 

Tornadoes are the most violent weather phenomena known.  They are characterized by 
funnel clouds of varying sizes that generate winds as fast as 500 miles per hour.  They 
can affect an area of ¼ to ¾ of a mile and seldom more than 16 miles long.  Tornadoes 
normally descend from the large cumulonimbus clouds that characterize severe 
thunderstorms.  They form when a strong crosswind (sheer) intersects with strong warm 
updrafts in these clouds causing a slowly spinning vortex to form within a cloud.  
Eventually, this vortex may develop intensity and then descend to form a funnel cloud.  
When this funnel cloud touches the ground or gets close enough to the ground to affect 
the surface it becomes a tornado.  Tornadoes can come from lines of cumulonimbus 
clouds or from a single storm cloud.  Tornadoes are measured using the Fujita Scale 
ranging from F0 to F6.  Details on the Fujita Scale can be found in Appendix D. 

History 

No recorded instance of a tornado causing damage in Wasco County is available. 

Hazard Identification 

Tornadoes are not normal occurrence in the Northwest the way they are in the Midwest.  
Tornadoes require a confluence of warm surface temperatures and warm fronts coming 
from the south with cold fronts coming from the north.  Northwest climates do not 
normally generate the temperature variations conducive to tornado formation.  
Washington is ranked 43 in the US for total number of tornadoes.  Nonetheless, the 
tornado threat should be taken very seriously.  The conditions conducive to tornado 
formation rarely develop in Wasco County and it is uncommon for funnel clouds to be 
reported in this region. 

With the exception of the April 1972 disaster occurring in Clark County, Washington 
tornadoes in Washington and Oregon tend to be light or moderate, with winds ranging 
from 40 to 112 mph.  There are notable minorities of tornadoes that cause significant to 
severe damage with winds going as high as 200 mph.  The peak season for tornadoes is 
April through July.  However, tornadoes may occur in the late summer months and, in a 
few rare cases, may occur in the winter months.  While tornadoes are sometimes formed 
in association with large Pacific storms, most of them are caused by intense local 
thunderstorms.  Tornadoes almost exclusively occur in the late afternoon and early 
evening. 

Vulnerability Analysis         22 

It has not been demonstrated that there is a likelihood of tornadoes impacting Wasco 
County.  Typically, Pacific Northwest tornadoes are moderate but it is possible for serious 
tornadoes to develop causing death and serious injury. 

Typically, tornadoes may cause severe damage to everything in their path.  Walls 
collapse, roofs are ripped off, trees and power lines are destroyed.  The challenge is that 
tornadoes, especially in the northwest, are very difficult to predict and their onset is 
sudden.  Unlike the tornado-prone areas in the plains states, there is little awareness of 
the tornado threat and the forecasting and warning systems are less well developed.  It is 
extremely rare for a tornado watch or warning to be issued anywhere in the Northwest.  
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As such, there is little public awareness of the warning systems, and self-protection 
measures common to the tornado prone states. 

History suggests a low probability of occurrence and low vulnerability.  A low risk 
rating is assigned. 

Conclusions 

While violent tornadoes are not a characteristic of the Wasco County climate, the weather 
systems that may generate tornadoes appear regularly.  Emergency response agencies 
and emergency management officials should be prepared for the rapid notification of the 
public and for the efficient management of a mass casualty incident, and the prioritization 
of debris clearance.   
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VOLCANOES 

Hazard Definition  

A volcano is a vent in the earth’s crust through which molten rock, rock fragments, gases 
or ashes are ejected from the earth’s interior.  Volcanoes are a deadly hazard. From 
1980 to 1995 volcanoes killed approximately 29,000 people, forced the evacuation of 
830,000 people, and caused economic losses in excess of $3 billion (Simkin and Siebert, 
1994) 

There are a wide variety of hazards related to volcanoes and volcano eruption.  With 
volcano eruptions, the hazards are distinguished by the different ways in which volcanic 
materials and other debris flow from the volcano.  Following is a list of the different types 
of hazards that exist in cascade volcanoes. 

 

Figure A - Types of volcanic hazardsi 

Pyroclastic Flows and Surges 

Pyroclastic flows are avalanches of hot (300-800°C), dry, volcanic rock fragments and 

gases that descend a volcano’s flanks at speeds ranging from 20 to more than 200 miles 
per hour.  They originate from the actual explosion related to an eruption.  Pyroclastic 
flows and surges are a lethal hazard.  They result in incineration, asphyxiation, burial, 
and impact.  Because of their speed they cannot be outrun. 

Pyroclastic flows are heavier than air and will seek topographically low areas.  Pyroclastic 
surges, composed of hot mixtures of gas and rock will flow above the ground and they 
may go over topographical barriers such as ridges and hills.    

Lava Flows 

Lava flows are normally the least hazardous threat posed by volcanoes.  The silica 
content of the lava determines the speed and viscosity of a lava flow.  The higher the 
silica content, the more viscous (thick) the lava becomes.  Low silica basalt lava can 
move 10 to 30 mph.  High silica andesite and dacite tend to move more slowly and travel 
short distances.  Cascades volcanoes are normally associated with slow moving andesite 
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or dacite lava.  However, 2,000 years ago Mt. St. Helens produced a large amount of 
basalt. 

Large lava flows may destroy property and cause forest fires but, since they are slow 
moving, pose little threat to human life.  Perhaps the greater hazard presented by lava 
flows is that their extreme heat can cause snow and ice to melt very quickly, adding to 
lahar, debris avalanche, and flooding hazards. 

Tephra 

The ash and the large volcanic projectiles that erupt from a volcano into the atmosphere 
are called tephra.  The largest fragments (bombs, >64mm) fall back to the ground fairly 
near the vents, as close as a few meters and as far as 10 km (6 mi.).  The smallest rock 
fragments (ash) are composed of rock, minerals, and glass that are less than two 
millimeters in diameter.  Tephra plume characteristics are effected by wind speed, 
particle size, and precipitation.    

Tephra falls pose a variety of threats.  Ash only 1 cm thick can impede the movement of 
most vehicles and disrupt transportation, communication, and utility systems.  During the 
past 15 years about 80 commercial jets have been damaged by inadvertently flying into 
ash, and several have nearly crashed.  Airborne tephra will seldom kill people who are a 
safe distance from the vent.  However, tephra may cause eye and respiratory problems, 
particularly for those with existing medical conditions.  Short-term exposure should not 
have any long-term health effects.  Some tephra material may have acidic aerosol 
droplets that adhere to them.  This may cause acid rain or corrosion of metal surfaces 
they fall on. 

Ash may also clog ventilation systems and other machinery.  When tephra is mixed with 
rain it becomes a much greater nuisance.  Wet ash is much heavier and it can cause 
structures to collapse.  Most of the 330 deaths associated with the Mt. Pinatubo eruption 
were caused by roofs collapsing under the weight of rain soaked ash.  Wet ash may also 
cause electrical shorts.  Ash falls also decreases visibility and may cause psychological 
stress and panic. 

Lahars 

Lahars are rapidly flowing mixtures of water and rock debris that originate from 
volcanoes.  While lahars are most commonly associated with eruptions, heavy rains, 
debris accumulation, and even earthquakes may also trigger them.  They may also be 
termed debris or mud flows.  Lahars can travel over 50 miles downstream, reaching 
speeds between 20 and 40 mph.  The highest recorded speed of a lahar during the 1980 
Mt. St. Helens eruption was 88 mph.  Beyond the flanks of a volcano, lahars will normally 
be channeled into waterways.  The threat from lahars comes from their speed and from 
the debris they carry.  Abrasion from the heavy sediment and impacts from heavy debris 
can destroy forests as well as human made structures including bridges, dams, roads, 
pipelines, buildings, and farms.  Lahars may also fill in channels, obstructing shipping 
lanes and impact a channel’s ability to handle large volumes of water. 

Debris Avalanches 

Volcanoes are prone to debris and mountain rock avalanches that can approach speeds 
of 160 kilometers per hour (100 mph).  Volcanoes are characterized by steep slopes of 
weak rock.  Volcanic rock material is weakened by the acidic ground water that seeps 
through rock cracks and turns rigid rock into clay.  Minor eruptions, earthquakes, or 
releases of built up water and debris may trigger large avalanches of this material. 
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Volcanic Gases 

All active volcanoes emit gases.  These gases may include steam, carbon dioxide, sulfur 
dioxide, hydrogen sulfide, hydrogen, and fluorine.  Sometimes, these chemicals can be 
absorbed by ash and impact ground water, livestock, and metal objects.  Even when a 
volcano is not erupting, gases can escape through small surface cracks.  The greatest 
danger to people comes when large quantities of toxic gases are emitted from several 
sources or when there are topographic depressions that collect gases that are heavier 
than air.  These gases can accumulate to the point where people or animals can 
suffocate.   Neither of these conditions exist in Cascade volcanoes, though this could 
change if magma were to come close to the surface.  Mt. St. Helens emitted thousands of 
tons of Sulfur Dioxide every day in the early 80’s.  These gases were easily dispersed by 
the wind. 

History 

Cascade Range volcanoes in the U.S. have erupted more than 200 times during the past 
12,000 years for an average of nearly two eruptions per century.  At least five eruptions 
have occurred during the past 150 years. 

The most recent eruptions in the Cascade Range are the well-documented 1980-1986 
eruptions of Mt. St. Helens, which claimed 57 lives and caused nearly a billion dollars in 
damage and response costs.  The effects were felt throughout the northwest. 

Hazard Identification 

Mount Hood has erupted intermittently for hundreds of thousands of years, but historical 
observations are meager, so most of our information about its past behavior comes from 
geologic study of the deposits produced by prehistoric events.  Observations of recent 
eruptions at other similar volcanoes around the world allow us to better understand what 
future eruptions of Mount Hood might be like.  A brief description of the kinds of events 
that have occurred at Mount Hood and are likely to happen in the future follows.  

Lava Eruptions, Pyroclastic Flows, and Related Lahars  

Lava has erupted at Mount Hood chiefly in two modes.  Numerous lava flows issued from 
vents on the upper flanks and traveled up to 12 kilometers (7 miles) down valleys. 
Erosion of new valleys along flow margins has left many of these lava flows as ridges, 
such as Cathedral Ridge, that radiate out from the center of the volcano.  Observations of 
lava flows at similar volcanoes suggest that Mount Hood flows move down valleys as 
tongues of fluid lava a few to tens of meters thick (10 to 200 feet) encased in a cover of 
hardened lava rubble.  Such lava flows can destroy all structures in their paths, but they 
advance so slowly that they seldom endanger people.  Lava domes formed stubby lava 
masses on the upper flanks and summit of Mount Hood as lava welled out of a vent and 
piled up, too viscous to flow away.  A recent example is the lava dome that grew in the 
crater of Mount St. Helens between 1980 and 1986.  Past lava domes growing on the 
steep upper flanks of Mount Hood were typically unstable and collapsed repeatedly as 
they grew higher and steeper.  

Collapse of a growing lava dome or the front of a thick lava flow generates landslides of 
hot rock called pyroclastic flows.  Pyroclastic flows are fluid mixtures of hot rock 
fragments, ash, and gases that sweep down the flanks of volcanoes at speeds of 50 to 
more than 150 kilometers per hour (30 to 90 miles per hour) destroying vegetation and 
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structures in their paths.  Most are confined to valley bottoms, but pyroclastic surges, 
overriding clouds of hot ash and gases, are more mobile and can overwhelm even high 
ridge tops.  At Mount Hood, pyroclastic flows have traveled at least 12 kilometers (7 
miles) from lava domes; pyroclastic surges probably traveled even farther.  Pyroclastic 
flows and surges also produce ash clouds that can rise thousands of meters (tens of 
thousands of feet) into the atmosphere and drift downwind for hundreds of kilometers 
(hundreds of miles).  The consequences of this ash are discussed in a later section called 
Tephra Fall.  

Pyroclastic flows and surges can also melt snow and ice and generate lahars (also called 
volcanic mudflows or debris flows).  Lahars are rapidly flowing, water-saturated mixtures 
of mud and rock fragments, as large as truck-size boulders, that range in consistency 
from mixtures resembling freshly mixed concrete to very muddy water.  Lahars can travel 
more than 100 kilometers (60 miles) down valleys.  They move as fast as 80 kilometers 
per hour (50 miles per hour) in steep channels close to a volcano, but slow down to about 
15 to 30 kilometers per hour (10-20 miles per hour) on gently sloping valley floors farther 
away.  Past lahars at Mount Hood completely buried valley floors in the Sandy and Hood 
River drainages all the way to the Columbia River and in the White River drainage all the 
way to the Deschutes River.  

Eruptive activity at Mount Hood during the past 30,000 years has been dominated by 
growth and collapse of lava domes.  The last two episodes of eruptive activity occurred 
1,500 and 200 years ago.  Repeated collapse of lava domes extruded near the site of 
Crater Rock, Mount Hood's youngest lava dome, generated pyroclastic flows and lahars 
and built much of the broad smooth fan on the south and southwest flank of the volcano.  

The newly formed fans of debris on the lower flanks of Mount Hood and deposits of 
lahars in river valleys were highly erodible, which caused additional impacts.  Normal 
rainfall, snowmelt, and streams remobilized the sediment and continued to move it farther 
downstream for years after eruptions.  For example, after the last eruptive period, the 
Sandy River became choked with sediment and within about a decade buried the 
preeruption valley floor over 20 meters (65 feet) deep between Sandy and Troutdale. 
Ultimately, much of the sediment from past eruptions entered the Columbia River.  A 
recurrence of such events would greatly affect the Columbia River, its shipping channel, 
and, potentially, hydroelectric installations, such as Bonneville Dam.  

Debris Avalanches and Lahars  

Rapidly moving landslides, called debris avalanches, and occurred numerous times in the 
past when the steep upper parts of Mount Hood collapsed under the force of gravity. 
Warm acidic ground water that circulates in cracks and porous zones inside volcanoes 
alters strong rock to weak slippery clay, thereby gradually weakening them and making 
them more susceptible to debris avalanches than other mountains.  Volcanoes are further 
weakened as erosion, especially by glaciers, oversteepens slopes.  The destabilizing 
forces of magma (molten rock) pushing up into a volcanic cone prior to an eruption can 
trigger debris avalanches as occurred at Mount St. Helens in 1980.  Unexpected 
earthquakes (both smaller local ones and larger distant ones) or steam explosions can 
also trigger debris avalanches.  A debris avalanche can attain speeds in excess of 160 
kilometers per hour (100 miles per hour); the larger the avalanche, the faster and farther 
it can move.  Small-volume debris avalanches typically move only a few kilometers (1 to 
3 miles), but large-volume debris avalanches are capable of reaching tens of kilometers 
(tens of miles) from the volcano.  Debris avalanches destroy everything in their paths and 
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can leave deposits 10 to more than 100 meters (30 to more than 300 feet) thick on valley 
floors.  Depending upon their water content, debris avalanches can transform into lahars, 
which, like lahars formed by pyroclastic flows, can move down valleys for even greater 
distances.  

About 1,500 years ago, a moderate-size debris avalanche originating on the upper 
southwest flank of Mount Hood (see photograph) produced a lahar that flowed down the 
Zigzag and Sandy River valleys.  It swept over the entire valley floor in the Zigzag-
Wemme- Wildwood area, and inundated a broad area near Troutdale, where the Sandy 
flows into the Columbia Rivera total distance of about 90 kilometers (55 miles).  More 
than 100,000 years ago, a much larger debris avalanche and related lahar flowed down 
the Hood River, crossed the Columbia River, and flowed several kilometers up the White 
Salmon River on the Washington side.  Its deposit must have dammed the Columbia 
River at least temporarily.  

During noneruptive periods, relatively small lahars present a hazard along channels and 
on floodplains on the flanks of Mount Hood.  Although of modest size compared to lahars 
generated by eruptions or large debris avalanches, they occur much more frequently. 
Twenty-one lahars, including single flows as large as several hundred thousand cubic 
meters (cubic yards), whose effects were chiefly limited to areas within 15 kilometers (9 
miles) of Mount Hoods summit, are reported in the historical record.  Most occurred 
during autumn and early winter rains.  Glacial outburst floods caused at least two and 
probably as many as seven others.  A highly damaging lahar occurred in December 1980 
when intense warm rain (with rapid snowmelt) triggered a flow in Polallie Creek that killed 
a camper at the creek mouth and temporarily dammed the East Fork Hood River.  The 
ensuing dambreak flood destroyed about 10 kilometers (6 miles) of Oregon Highway 35 
and other downstream facilities and caused about $13 million in damage.  

Tephra Falls  

Mount Hood has typically not produced thick, extensive deposits of tephra (fragmented 
solidified lava that rises into the air, is carried by winds, and falls back to the ground) as 
has nearby Mount St. Helens.  Rather, relatively modest amounts of tephra were 
produced during past lava-flow and lava-dome eruptions.  Most tephra fallout was caused 
by clouds of sand- and silt-size particles that rose from moving pyroclastic flows 
produced by lava-dome collapse.  Tephra was also generated by explosions driven by 
volcanic gases.  Both types of tephra clouds probably reached altitudes of 1,000 to 
15,000 meters (3,000 to 50,000 feet) above the volcano and were then carried away by 
the prevailing wind, which blows toward sectors northeast, east, or southeast of Mount 
Hood about 70 percent of the time.  Winds that would carry tephra toward the Portland 
metropolitan area are rather uncommon, occurring only a few percent of the time.  On the 
flanks of the volcano, each event deposited, at most, a few centimeters (inches) of 
tephra.  Thickness of tephra fallout decreased rapidly downwind to probably just a few 
millimeters (one-tenth inch) or less at 100 to 200 kilometers (60-120 miles) from the 
volcano.  During future explosions at Mount Hood, large, dense ballistic fragments (more 
than 5 cm (2 inches) in diameter) that can damage structures and kill or injure people 
may be thrown up to 5 kilometers (3 miles) from vents.  

Tephra fallout produced by future eruptions of Mount Hood poses little threat to life or 
structures in nearby communities.  But tephra clouds can create tens of minutes or more 
of darkness as they pass over a downwind area, even on sunny days, and reduce 
visibility on highways.  Tephra ingested by vehicle engines can clog filters and increase 
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wear.  Deposits of tephra can short-circuit electric transformers and power lines, 
especially if the tephra is wet and thereby highly conductive, sticky, and heavy.  This 
effect could seriously disrupt hydroelectric power generation and transmission along the 
Columbia River and powerline corridors north and east of the volcano.  Tephra clouds 
often spawn lightning, which can interfere with electrical and communication systems and 
start fires.  A serious potential danger of tephra stems from the grave effects of even 
small, dilute tephra clouds on jet aircraft that fly into them.  Major air routes pass by 
Mount Hood, and tephra clouds produced repeatedly during an eruptive episode would 
interfere greatly with air traffic.  

Lessons learned in eastern Washington during the 1980 eruption of Mount St. Helens 
can help prepare governments, businesses, and citizens for future tephra falls. 
Communities experienced significant disruptions in transportation, business activity, and 
services during fallout of from 0.5 to 8 centimeters (1/4 to 3 inches) of tephra and for 
several days thereafter.  The greater the amount of tephra that fell, the longer the 
recovery time.  As perceived by residents, tephra falls of less than 0.5 centimeter (1/ 4 
inch) were a major inconvenience, whereas falls of more than 1.5 centimeters (2/3 inch) 
constituted a disaster.  Nonetheless, all communities resumed normal activities within 
about two weeks.  On the basis of the type and magnitude of tephra production we would 
expect from Mount Hood in the future, only nearby communities, such as Government 
Camp, Rhododendron, and Parkdale, would likely receive a tephra thickness 
approaching 1.5 centimeters (2/3 inch) in any one event.  However, some other nearby 
volcanoes in the Cascade Range do produce large explosive tephra eruptions that could 
affect the Mount Hood region 

 

Vulnerability Analysis         61 

Wasco County may be impacted by a volcanic eruption at anytime.  The above 
assessments of volcano hazards consider past activity to determine the most likely 
pattern and probability of a future eruption.  It is possible that unexpected volcanic activity 
may occur that may significantly impact Wasco County.   

The factor that most limits Wasco County’s vulnerability to a major eruption of Mt. Hood is 
the modern capability to accurately detect eruptive activity well before an eruption occurs.  
The USGS constantly monitors seismic activity directly underneath Cascade volcanoes.  
Clusters or ‘swarms’ of small earthquakes underneath a volcano have proven to be a 
precursor to renewed volcanic activity.  Mt. St. Helens and Mt. Hood are both closely 
monitored, in terms of ground movement and seismic activity.  It is up to emergency 
managers and other responsible agencies to ensure an aggressive response to these 
warnings. 

Proximal Hazard Zones  

Proximal hazard zones include areas from the summit out to 24 km (15 miles) along 
major valleys and out to about 12 kilometers (7 miles) in between major valleys.  These 
zones are subject to several types of rapidly moving, devastating flows.  Pyroclastic flows 
and surges will travel out to a maximum distance of about 12 kilometers in less than 10 
minutes, whereas lahars and debris avalanches can travel out to the 24- km hazard 
boundary in as little as 30 minutes.  Areas up to 5 kilometers (3 miles) from a vent could 
also be subject to showers of large (more than 5 centimeters or 2 inches) ballistic 
fragments within a few minutes of an explosion.  Owing to such high speeds, escape or 
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survival is unlikely in proximal hazard zones.  Therefore, evacuation of proximal hazard 
zones prior to onset of an event is realistically the only way to protect lives.  Lava flows 
issuing from vents on the upper flanks of Mount Hood would be largely restricted to 
proximal hazard zones, but they would move much more slowly than these other types of 
flows.  

During the past 1,500 years, lava-dome growth has been localized in the area around 
Crater Rock, the youngest lava dome on Mount Hood, which lies in a steeply sloping, 
breached crater south of the summit ridge. It is thought that this same area is the most 
likely vent location during the next eruption as well.  Therefore, a proximal hazard zone A 
(PA), which encompasses those areas that could be affected by events accompanying 
dome growth at or near Crater Rock.  A less likely event is the opening of a vent 
elsewhere on the upper east, north, or west flank.  Should this occur, the corresponding 
hazard zone would be all or part of proximal hazard zone B (PB).  Depending on vent 
location, especially if at the summit, all or part of zone PA also could also be at risk.  On 
the lower south and west flanks, hazard zone PB extends beyond the limit of zone PA 
because a lava dome growing at the summit would be at a higher altitude than Crater 
Rock and would have the potential to generate farther-reaching pyroclastic flows.  On the 
basis of past eruption frequency, we estimate the probability of an eruption impacting part 
of zone PA in the next 30 years (the 30-year probability) to be about 1 in 15 to 1 in 30 [4]. 
In contrast, the 30-year probability of part of zone PB being affected is on the order of 1 
in 300 [4].  We caution that these probabilities are based solely on the long-term behavior 
of the volcano.  Any signs of increased restlessness at Mount Hood will increase these 
probabilities dramatically.  

Several major valleys within the proximal hazard zones are highlighted on the map by a 
hachured line pattern because they are more likely than others to be affected by future 
pyroclastic flows and lahars related to collapse of growing lava domes, especially during 
initial stages of dome building.  These valleys, along with Polallie Creek valley, are also 
areas subject to frequent small lahars, floods, and debris avalanches triggered by storms 
or other noneruptive causes.  If a lava dome grows near Crater Rock, the White and 
Zigzag River valleys and the valley of Zigzag Glacier and its meltwater stream, an 
unnamed tributary of the upper Sandy, are the most likely pyroclastic-flow and lahar 
paths.  If an eruptive episode continues for a long enough time period that debris fills the 
heads of these drainages, pyroclastic flows and lahars will be able to sweep over a 
broader area, which could include the Little Zigzag River, Still Creek (including the area 
around Government Camp), and Salmon River valleys.  Likewise in zone PB on the north 
or east flank, the main valleys below a growing lava dome would initially be the most 
likely flow paths.  For example, dome growth on the upper northeast flank would initially 
affect the valleys of Newton Creek and Eliot Branch.  The large area in the proximal 
hazard zone between these valleys that is drained by Polallie and several other creeks 
does not presently head directly on the upper flanks and probably would not be affected 
initially.  Before these drainages could be inundated by pyroclastic flows, the valley heads 
of Newton Creek and(or) Eliot Branch would have to be partly filled with debris.  

While the subdivision of the proximal area into zones PA and PB based on vent location 
applies well to pyroclastic flows and lahars produced by lava dome collapse, several 
other types of events are not so neatly restricted by this hazard zonation.  First, the 
earthquakes and deformation associated with future intrusion of magma into Mount Hood 
can trigger landslides of fractured and weakened rock from the steep upper slopes. 
Therefore, even though dome building is localized at one site, landslides elsewhere on 
the upper flanks can generate debris avalanches and related lahars in valleys not 
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otherwise affected by dome growth.  Such events, largely restricted to the hachured 
areas in zone PB, occurred on the east, north, and west flanks during the past 1,500 
years, while dome growth and collapse affected valleys on the south and southwest 
flanks.  Furthermore, owing to the pronounced filling of valleys on the south side by 
debris during the past 1,500 years, the majority of high cliffs and spurs subject to 
landsliding lie on other flanks.  Thus, regardless of which zone a dome is growing in, 
potential hazards from debris avalanches and lahars exist in other parts of the proximal 
zones.  Second, explosive eruptions driven by volcanic gases can also affect both 
proximal zones.  Explosions can generate highly mobile pyroclastic flows as material falls 
back to the ground and can hurl large ballistic fragments outward up to 5 kilometers (3 
miles).  Such events are less constrained by topographic features than are pyroclastic 
flows from dome collapse, so explosions at a vent in one proximal zone could impact 
parts of the other proximal zone, especially with ballistics.  

Distal Hazard Zones  

White River Drainage 

Lahars spawned by lava-dome collapses swept through the White River valley about 200 
years ago and inundated large parts of Tygh Valley.  Hazard zone DA encompasses 
these deposits as well as adjacent areas that lie up to 12 meters (40 feet) higher 
depending on valley width.  Lahars of this magnitude would inundate the broad flood 
plain of White River in Tygh Valley, but probably not reach the town itself.  Lahars that 
reach the Deschutes River probably would be diluted to muddy floods that would 
transport large amounts of sediment into the Columbia River upstream from The Dalles 
Dam.  The 30-year probability of an area in zone DA along White River being inundated 
by a debris avalanche or lahar is about 1 in 15 to 1 in 30.  

 

History suggests a low probability of occurrence.  Because of potential impact to the 
White River and Deschutes River drainages from a lahar flow, there is low vulnerability.  
Because Mt. Hood is relatively quiet, this hazard is assigned a low risk rating. 

Conclusions 

Mount Hood is a potentially active volcano close to rapidly growing communities and 
recreation areas.  The most likely widespread and hazardous consequence of a future 
eruption will be for lahars (rapidly moving mudflows) to sweep down the entire length of 
the Sandy (including the Zigzag) and White River valleys.  Lahars can be generated by 
hot volcanic flows that melt snow and ice or by landslides from the steep upper flanks of 
the volcano.  Structures close to river channels are at greatest risk of being destroyed. 
The degree of hazard decreases as height above a channel increases, but large lahars 
can affect areas more than 30 vertical meters (100 vertical feet) above river beds.  The 
probability of eruption- generated lahars affecting the Sandy and White River valleys is 1-
in-15 to 1-in-30 during the next 30 years, whereas the probability of extensive areas in 
the Hood River Valley being affected by lahars is about ten times less.   

Volcano-hazard- zonation maps outline areas potentially at risk and shows that some 
areas may be too close for a reasonable chance of escape or survival during an eruption.  
Future eruptions of Mount Hood could seriously disrupt transportation (air, river, and 
highway), some municipal water supplies, and hydroelectric power generation and 
transmission in northwest Oregon and southwest Washington.  
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Communities, businesses, and citizens need to plan ahead to mitigate the effects of 
future eruptions, debris avalanches, and lahars.  Long-term mitigation includes using 
information about volcano hazards when making decisions about land use and siting of 
critical facilities.  Development should avoid areas judged to have an unacceptably high 
risk or be planned to reduce the level of risk.  For example, a real-estate development 
along a valley could set aside low-lying areas at greatest risk from lahars for open space 
or recreation, and use valley walls or high terraces for houses and businesses.  

When volcanoes erupt or threaten to erupt, emergency responses are needed.  Such 
responses will be most effective if citizens and public officials have an understanding of 
volcano hazards and have planned the actions needed to protect communities.  Mount 
Hood has a settlement (Government Camp), major highways (US 26 and OR 35), and 
popular tourist and recreation areas (Timberline Lodge and Mount Hood Meadows Ski 
Area) on its flanks.  Furthermore, several thousand people live within 35 kilometers (22 
miles) of Mount Hood along the channels and flood plains of rivers that drain the volcano. 
Such areas are at greatest risk from lahars and debris avalanches and could be 
inundated within one hour of an events onset.  

Because an eruption can occur within days to months of the first precursory activity and 
because some hazardous events can occur without warning, suitable emergency plans 
should be made before hand.  Public officials need to consider issues such as public 
education, communications, and evacuations.  Emergency plans already developed for 
floods may apply, with modifications, to hazards from lahars.  

Businesses and individuals should also make plans to respond to volcano emergencies. 
Planning is prudent because once an emergency begins, public resources can often be 
overwhelmed, and citizens may need to provide for themselves and make informed 
decisions.  The Red Cross recommends numerous items that should be kept in homes, 
cars, and businesses for many types of emergencies that are much more probable than a 
volcanic eruption.  A map showing the shortest route to high ground will also be helpful.  

The most important additional item is knowledge about volcano hazards and, especially, 
a plan of action based on the relative safety of areas around home, school, and work. 
Lahars pose the biggest threat to people living in valleys that drain Mount Hood.  The 
best strategy for avoiding a lahar is to move to the highest possible ground.  A safe 
height above river channels depends on many factors including size of the lahar, distance 
from the volcano, and shape of the valley.  For areas beyond the proximal hazard zone, 
few lahars will rise more than 30 meters (100 feet) above river level.  Be aware that an 
approaching lahar will cause a loud roaring noise like a gradually approaching jet plane. 
Once audible, a lahar may be only a few minutes away.  

W.E. Scott, T.C. Pierson, S.P. Schilling, J.E. Costa, C.A. Gardner, J.W. Vallance, and J.J. Major, 1997, 

Volcano Hazards in the Mount Hood Region, Oregon: USGS Open-File Report 97-89 
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DAM FAILURES 

Hazard Definition 

Dam failures are release of impounded water due to structural deficiencies, which can 
affect lives and property downstream. 

Dam failures can be caused by flooding, earthquakes, lack of maintenance and repair, 
misoperation, poor construction, vandalism, or terrorism. 

History 

Few dam failures have occurred in Oregon State over the last 50 years.  None of them 
have been catastrophic.  None have occurred in or has impacted Wasco County. 

Hazard Identification 

There are 7 dams in Wasco County.  These dams are used for hydroelectric power 
generation, irrigation, and recreation.  Appendix E lists dams located in Wasco County. 

Oregon State uses a Downstream Hazard Classification system for dams which assigns 
a Low, Significant or High rating for populations at risk of economic loss and 
environmental damage should the dam fail.  The Cow Creek Reservoir in Wasco County 
is rated as “Significant” hazards  
 
In addition to the dams located in Wasco County, the county can also be affected by dam 
failures of dams on the Columbia River upstream from Wasco County.  These dams are 
all well maintained, operated with 24-hour staffing and inspected on a regular basis. 

Vulnerability Analysis         76 

 

Oregon experiences a dam failure on a frequency of approximately once every two years.  
The majorities of failures were in whole or part the result of a failure to perform adequate 
maintenance and monitoring of the facilities.  Fiscal difficulties in this state increase the 
likelihood that dollars targeted for dam maintenance will be spent on more immediate 
needs.  This reduced prospects for improving the performance of smaller dams in the 
current economic climate. 

Failure of a dam can have many effects such as loss of life, damage to structures, roads, 
utilities, and crops.  Economic losses can also result from a lowered tax base and lack of 
power profits. 

History suggests a low probability of occurrence.  The failure of a high hazard dam 
would threaten a small segment of the County suggesting low vulnerability.  Because 
there has not been a major dam failure in Wasco County, and the three high hazard 
dams are well maintained and operated providing no reason to suspect a compromise in 
structural integrity baring a natural disaster or terrorist action, a low risk rating is 
assigned. 
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Conclusions 

The failure to implement a suitable operation and maintenance program at dams appears 
to be a common thread in the dam incidents that have occurred in Oregon State and 
elsewhere.  Many agencies are operating old reservoir systems and finding it increasingly 
difficult to fund effective operation and maintenance programs.  So while the failure of 
projects with a high potential for loss of life become increasingly remote, the number of 
failures of low hazard projects that provide important infrastructure roles may be on the 
rise. 
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ENERGY EMERGENCY 

Hazard Definition 

Energy emergencies may involve various types of energy resources.  Emergencies can 
develop quickly, such as when Middle East countries embargo petroleum, or they can 
develop slowly, such as when demand out paces the siting of new generation plants.  
Energy emergencies of one type often affect other types of energy resources, such as 
when a loss of electricity makes it impossible to pump gasoline. 

History 

Major petroleum shortages developed during the 1973-74 Middle East oil embargo and 
during the Iran embargo in 1979.  Minor petroleum shortages developed during the 1989 
Exxon Valdez grounding and during the Persian Gulf War in 1990-91.  The state 
responded to each emergency.  During the shortages of the 1970s, the state ran a “set-
aside” program to allocate scarce oil supplies.  The “set-aside” is the state’s strongest 
measure available to respond to an oil shortage. 

Electricity shortages occurred in 1973-74 and 1977-78 due to drought conditions, which 
resulted in insufficient amounts of water to operate hydroelectric plants. 

The winter storms of 1995 caused several electrical power outages in Wasco County. 

Hazard Identification 

All areas of Wasco County are susceptible to petroleum, electrical, and natural gas 
shortages. 

Vulnerability Analysis         106 

Wasco County is vulnerable to many localized, short-term energy emergencies, brought 
about by numerous disasters such as wind and ice storms.  Most of these emergencies 
are handled by the affected industry, with support provided by the state as requested.  
Wasco County is also vulnerable to major energy shortages. 

Major effects of energy shortages include inconvenience to consumers, reduced heating 
and lighting capability, reduced production in all sectors, potential failure of 
transportation, water and waste, communication, information, and banking systems.  
Energy emergencies can seriously hamper emergency response capabilities and should 
be planned for at both the local and state level. 

Petroleum shortages can occur at any time.  However, most oil shortages are due to the 
inability of local distribution systems to meet rapidly increasing demand brought about by 
panic buying and hoarding.  These shortages can be averted by encouraging normal 
purchasing practices. Countywide petroleum shortages are less likely.  However, 
because would oil supplies all trade on open markets, any regions oil supply is subject to 
world demand. 

Wasco County is connected to a regional electrical transmission grid that has major 
connections with other grids out-of region, including British Columbia, Montana, 
California, and other southwest states.  In general, even if Wasco County is short of 
electricity, (due to drought, for example), it can be purchased from elsewhere.  The result 
is higher cost electricity, rather than inadequate supply.  Because most out-of-region 
power is thermal, it is not affected by drought. 
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Natural gas shortages typically occur during cold weather and historically have meant 
curtailment for industries.  In the future, as natural gas use continues to grow, and if it 
takes off as an alternative transportation fuel, Wasco County’s pipeline capacity may be 
insufficient to meet demand.  If new capacity lags demand, shortages could develop. 

Previous energy shortages suggest a moderate probability of occurrence.  The impact 
of a critical shortage would affect the entire county, either directly or through higher costs 
of services suggesting a moderate to high vulnerability.  A moderate risk rating is 
assigned. 

Conclusions 

Future energy shortages are likely to occur due to numerous uncontrollable factors. 
Consumers should be educated on the need for prudent use of all types of energy 
resources, and available conservation measures should be utilized whenever possible. 
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HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

Hazard Definition 

Hazardous materials include chemicals used in manufacturing, household chemicals, 
crude oil and petroleum products, pesticides, herbicides, fertilizers, paints, medical 
wastes, radioactive materials and a host of other substances.  Their manufacture, 
transport, storage, use and disposal may place public, property, and the environment at 
risk from their inadvertent or an intentional release. 

History 

 

              SPILLS REPORTED IN WASCO COUNTY (1998 – 2002) 

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 Average 

01 02 02 00 01 1.2 

Total number of spills in Wasco County reported to the Oregon State Fire Marshal’s Office 

Hazard Identification 

Hazardous materials incidents may occur at any time and any place, when and where 
such materials are present under circumstances in which they may be released in 
sufficient volume and proximity to sensitive receptors and/or environments.  The potential 
impact is dependent on the nature of the material, conditions of the release, and area 
involved.  Releases may be small and easily handled with locally available emergency 
response resources or rise to the catastrophic level with immediate effect and long-term 
public health and environmental consequences. 
 
Hazardous materials incidents can happen at fixed sites or during transportation.  
Hazardous materials are transported by air, rail, truck, and ship.  All of these 
transportation modes are in use in and adjacent to Wasco County.  

Vulnerability Analysis         114/134 

Fixed Sites: 

As of 2002, Wasco County had approximately 164 facilities reporting to the Oregon State 
Fire Marshal’s Office as Tier Two reporters.  Wasco County 2002 Tier Two Hazardous 
reporting facilities can be found in Appendix F. 

 

Transportation: 

Statistics show that nearly half of all hazardous materials incidents occur during transit. 
On Wasco County’s northern border is an east-west rail line, and one interstate highway, 
(Interstate 84).  Another state highway (State Highway 97) bisects the county east and 
west. 

History of spill and leaks of hazardous materials at fixed sites, plus the inferred transport 
into and through the County, suggests a low probability of occurrence.  A hazardous 
material spill generally impacts a relatively small area, but if that area is a populated area 
or a critical wildlife habitat, the impact could be significant, suggesting moderate 
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vulnerability.  Because of the magnitude of the potential risk posed by the transport of 
hazardous materials, a moderate-risk rating is assigned. 

Conclusion 

Due to its proximity to both truck and rail transportation, Wasco County will continue to be 
vulnerable to hazardous materials accidents resulting in spills and leaks to the 
environment.   

Government regulation and industry practices go a long way in reducing chemical 
threats.  The 1986 Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act, the Clean Air Act 
and other state and federal laws and regulations provide fairly strict regulation, and 
encourage good risk management and accident prevention practices.  The Oregon State 
Fire Marshal’s Office, operating as the State’s LEPC also provides a forum for industry 
and government representatives to work together in planning and information sharing. 

Nevertheless, chemical accidents have occurred and will occur again in Wasco County.  
Chemical accidents can create volatile and dynamic incidents that require close 
interagency coordination and a comprehensive community response.  Organizations that 
may be involved in hazardous materials response are encouraged to participate in Local 
Emergency Planning Committee. 
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 TERRORISM AND VIOLENT PERSONS 

Hazard Definition  

The Federal Bureau of investigation (FBI) has defined terrorism as “The unlawful use of 
force or violence against persons or property to intimidate or coerce a government; the 
civilian population; or any segment of it, in furtherance of political or social objectives.”  
The devastation which occurred at the Murrah federal building in Oklahoma City , the 
World Trade Center in New York and the Pentagon in Washington D.C., as well as the 
state of unset in the world today, points to the need to plan for the potential threats within 
our own communities. 

The FBI categorizes terrorism in the United States as one of two types: domestic 
terrorism or international terrorism. 

Domestic terrorism involves groups or individuals whose terrorist activities are directed at 
elements of our government or population without foreign direction. 

International terrorism involves groups or individuals whose terrorist activities are foreign-
based and/or directed by countries or groups outside the United States or whose 
activities transcend national boundaries. 

History  

There has been one event of a terrorist nature reported by the FBI in Wasco County.  
That event occurred in the City of The Dalles.  In 1984, followers of the Indian guru 
Bhagwan Shree Rajneesh spiked salad bars at 10 restaurants in town with salmonella 
and sickened about 750 people.  
 
The cult members had hoped to incapacitate so many voters that their own candidates in 
the county elections would win.  The scheme failed, but the episode spread fear in The 
Dalles and drained the city’s economy.  
 
Eventually Sheela and Ma Anand Puja confessed to plotting to poison the county 
commissioners in 1983 and to contaminate salad bars in The Dalles in 1984.  
Prosecutors believe the cult also carried out similar attacks in other Oregon towns and 
cities which were never discovered.  According to testimony, cult members sprinkled 
“salsa” on lettuce and other fruits and vegetables and put salmonella in restaurant coffee 
creamers and salad dressings.  The Rajneeshees reported that they were more than 
willing to sacrifice one thousand “unenlightened people” to preserve the vision of one 
“enlightened master.” 
 
Several cult members were tried and found guilty in 1986 of violating immigration laws 
and consumer product tampering.  There were no antiterrorism laws to break that year. 
Their sentences were light and all were out of prison within four years. 

 
Miller, Judith et al. Germs. New York: Simon & Schuster, 2001.  
Torok, Thomas MD et al, "A Large Community Outbreak of Salmonellosis Caused by Intentional Contamination of 

Restaurant Salad Bars," JAMA, August 6, 1997 Vol. 278, pp 389-394  
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Hazard Identification 

A terrorist attack can take several forms depending on the technological means of the 
terrorist, the nature of the political issue motivating the attack, and the points of weakness 
of the terrorist targets.  The five categories of terrorist incidents are biological, nuclear, 
incendiary, chemical and explosives.  Bombings are the most frequently used terrorist 
method in the United States.   
 
Potential sites, such as transportation routes, government institutions, dams, water 
supply sources, power distribution systems, communications terminals, and financial 
centers are all susceptible to terrorism within the county.  Random acts of violence such 
as detonation of an explosive device in a public area also is within the scope of terrorism. 

Vulnerability Analysis         68 

Wasco County and its citizens have no immunity to potential terrorist activity within its 
borders.  The potential occurrences could be the result of actions from domestic or 
international groups.  The terrorist actions could be expected to come about as a result of 
grievances, real or imagined, toward activities of some governmental entity, federal or 
state, or as retaliation for some governmental act. 
 
The terrorist “Groups” at play today is constantly emerging.  Some are loose while others 
are structured.  Traditionally, small arms and improvised explosives devices have been 
the weapons of choice for terrorist entities as they are easy to acquire and use.  They will 
probably remain the primary option for the immediate future.  Chances are low but 
growing that chemical or biological agents could be used by some groups as such agents 
are cheap to produce and easy to conceal as well as relatively lethal.  Moreover, they can 
be expected to cause mass panic, as in the 1995 Tokyo subway attacks. 
 
The effects of terrorism can vary significantly from massive loss of life and property 
damage to nuisance service interruptions.  Threatened services include electricity, water 
supply, public transportation, communications and public safety. 
 
The type of terrorist act would determine vulnerability.  Vulnerability could include a large 
segment of the population or infrastructure with the destruction of a major power 
distribution line, a pipeline, or the contamination of a municipal well, or a relatively small 
segment with the telephoning of a bomb threat to a business or government agency. 
 
All such terrorist potentialities remain impossible to predict and difficult to defend against.  
Addressing and reducing their resultant aftermath is itself fraught with certain 
complexities.  Care must be taken to ensure that in rendering assistance to victims of the 
event, that due care is taken or arrangements made to ensure that evidence of the 
criminal event is not carelessly or inadvertently destroyed. 
 
Although there has been a general increase in terrorist activity worldwide, history 
suggests a low probability of occurrence.  Although terrorist tend to choose relatively 
easy targets and activities, their impact could affect a large segment of the community 
suggesting a moderate vulnerability.  Accordingly, a moderate risk rating us assigned. 

Conclusions 

Through proper coordination, public and private safety systems offer an unprecedented 
capability to prevent terrorism.  Usually, the plans and systems developed for other 



WASCO COUNTY THIRA 
 

51 
 

problems can serve as useful templates for the development of a comprehensive 
counter-terrorism program. 
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North Central Public Health District 
Public Health- Hazard Vulnerability Assessment 

February 2012 
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“Public Health Emergency” as defined by the World Health Organization 
(http://www.who.int/hac/about/definitions/en/index.html):  
A public health emergency (the condition that requires the governor to declare a state of public 
health emergency) is defined as "an occurrence or imminent threat of an illness or health 
condition, caused by bio terrorism, epidemic or pandemic disease, or (a) novel and highly fatal 
infectious agent or biological toxin, that poses a substantial risk of a significant number of human 
facilities or incidents or permanent or long-term disability (WHO/DCD, 2001). The declaration of 
a state of public health emergency permits the governor to suspend state regulations, change 
the functions of state agencies. 
 
 

 
 

Hazard 

 
History 
WF = 2 

 
Vulnerability 

WF = 5 

Maximum 
Threat 

WF = 10 

 
Probability 

WF = 7 

 
Total 

= 

 
Public Health 
Emergency 

 

 
4 

 
8 

 
10 

 
8 

 
204 

 
 

Hazard Definition 

A public health emergency (the condition that requires the governor to declare a state of public 
health emergency) is defined as "an occurrence or imminent threat of an illness or health 
condition, caused by bio terrorism, epidemic or pandemic disease, or (a) novel and highly fatal 
infectious agent or biological toxin, that poses a substantial risk of a significant number of human 
facilities or incidents or permanent or long-term disability (WHO/DCD, 2001). The declaration of 
a state of public health emergency permits the governor to suspend state regulations, change 
the functions of state agencies.  
Potential causes of a public health emergency include: communicable disease outbreak (e.g. 
influenza, meningococcal, etc.); foodborne disease outbreak (e.g. salmonella, shigella, lysteria, 
botulism, e. coli, etc.); waterborne disease outbreak (e.g. cryptosporidiosis, giardia, e. coli, etc.); 
or bioterrorism event (including instigation of a food or water borne illness or attack with 
Category A agents- Anthrax, Botulism, Plague, Smallpox, Tularemia, Viral hemorrhagic fevers). 

History  

Public health emergencies occur regularly on a small scale locally. Examples of public health 
emergencies that have occurred locally include outbreaks of meningitis, influenza (H1N1), and 
norovirus. Any of these types of small scale public health incident have the potential to become 
larger than could be managed with local resources and evolve into an emergency. 
Large scale influenza pandemics have occurred three times in the 20th century, (1918, 1957, and 
1968) and once in the 21st century (2009); an estimated 20 million deaths occurred worldwide in 
the 1918 pandemic. We cannot predict when the next pandemic will occur or what disease would 
be the cause.  
In 2001 there were bioterrorism attacks using anthrax in the United States. These were the only 
known Category A agent attacks in the U.S. Additional attacks have occurred infrequently 
throughout other parts of the world. Additionally, in 1984, members of the Rajneesh attacked a 
salad bar in The Dalles. Based on these statistics, the historical threat level of a bioterrorism 
event is medium-low.  
 

Hazard Identification 

Citizens in all areas of Wasco County would be vulnerable to a public health emergency. 
 
 

http://www.who.int/hac/about/definitions/en/index.html
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Vulnerability Analysis 

History suggests a moderate probability of occurrence. Even in an “average” event, a large 
percentage of the population would be affected- a very large percentage of people would be 
affected in worst case scenario. Therefore, there is a high level of vulnerability. A high risk rating 
is assigned.  

Conclusions  

If a public health emergency occurs, either North Central Public Health District or the Oregon 
Health Authority, Public Health Division will be the lead state agency in Oregon and will operate 
under a National Incident Management System compliant Incident Command System.  
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Appendix A 

 
HAZARDS CONSIDERED BUT NOT INCLUDED IN THIRA 

 
All of the below listed hazards, both natural and technological were considered for 
inclusion in Wasco County Hazard Identification Vulnerability Analysis.  These hazards 
were not included because they are not considered to be a threat to Wasco County.  
This is based on history and probability of occurrence. 
 

 Aircraft Crashes 

 Abandoned Underground Mines 

 Avalanche 

 Civil Disturbances 

 Critical Shortage 

 Epidemic 

 Fixed Nuclear Facility 

 Heat Wave 

 Search & Rescue Emergency 

 Tsunami 

 Urban Fire (Conflagration) 
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Appendix B 
 

 
Fire Suppression Authorizations in Oregon 1992 - 2003 

 

06/09/92 Sage Flats 

06/11/92 Round Lake 

08/04/92 Lone Pine 

08/04/92 E. Evans Creek 

08/24/94 Hull Mountain 

08/15/01 Bridge Creek 

08/17/01 Monument 

07/16/02 Eyerly Fire 

07/17/02 Winter Fire 

07/17/02 Squire Peak Fire 

07/19/02 Flagtail Fire 

07/26/02 Sheldon Ridge 

07/29/02 Timbered Rock 

07/29/02 Cache Mountain Fire 

07/29/02 Florence Fire 

08/20/03 Booth Fire 

09/02/03 Herman Creek 

09/6/03 Cove Road Fire 
 

 

 Presidential Disaster Declarations in Oregon 1992 - 2003 
 

04/26/94 Earthquake 

08/02/94 El Nino Effects 

08/03/95 Flash Floods 

02/09/96 Severe Storms/Flooding 

03/19/96 Severe Storms/Flooding 

12/23/96 Severe Storms/Flooding 

01/23/97 Severe Storms/Flooding 

06/15/98 Flooding 

03/12/02 Flooding 
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Appendix C 

 

WASCO COUNTY HAZARD RISK CALENDAR 

 

HAZARD JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 

Dam Failure x x x x x x x x x x x x 

Drought       x x x x   

Earthquake x x x x x x x x x x x x 

Energy Emergency x x x       x x x 

Flood x x x x       x x 

Forest/Wildland Fire      x x x x x   

HAZMAT Spill x x x x x x x x x x x x 

Landslide x x x x       x x 

Severe Local Storm x x x x      x x x 

Terrorism x x x x x x x x x x x x 

Tornado   x x     x x   

Volcano x x x x x x x x x x x x 

Pandemic x x x x x x x x x x x x 

Category A Agent x x x x x x x x x x x x 
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Appendix D 

 

SCALES USED TO MEASURE NATURAL HAZARDS 

 

DROUGHT 
 
The Palmer index measures the severity of drought.  The Palmer index (Wayne C. 
Palmer, U.S. Weather Bureau, Research Paper No. 46 “Meteorological Drought,” 
February 1965) is computed using a complex formula designed to indicate the 
cumulative effect of prolonged departures from normal moisture.  It takes into account 
the intensity and duration of abnormally wet or dry weather periods using several 
parameters, including:  (1) temperature, (2) precipitation, (3) evaporation and 
transpiration, (4) runoff, and (5) soil moisture.  Current and antecedent moisture data are 
compared to long-term averages for each climatological division to derive a single index 
number that normally falls within a –6 to +6 range. 
 

 

Above +4 Extremely Wet 

+3 to +4 Severely Wet 

+2 to +3 Moderately Wet 

-2 to +2 Near Normal 

-2 to –3 Moderate Drought 

-3 to –4 Severe Drought 

Below –4 Extreme Drought 
 

 

EARTHQUAKES 
 
The Richter Magnitude Scale was developed in 1935 by Charles F. Richter of the 
California Institute of Technology as a mathematical device to compare the size of 
earthquakes.  Magnitude is expressed in whole numbers and decimal fractions.  For 
example, a magnitude of 5.3 might be computed for a moderate earthquake, and a 
strong earthquake might be rated as magnitude 6.3 
 
Because of the logarithmic basis of the scale, each whole number increase in magnitude 
represents a tenfold increase in measured amplitude.  As an estimate of energy, each 
whole number step in the magnitude scale corresponds to the release of about 31 times 
more energy than the amount associated with the preceding whole number value. 
 
Modified Mercalli Intensity Scale of 1931.  Developed by American seismologists Harry 
Wood and Frank Newman. 
 
I. Not felt except by a very few under especially favorable circumstances. 
 
II. Felt only by a few persons at rest, especially on upper floors of buildings.  

Delicately suspended objects may swing. 
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III. Felt quite noticeably indoors, especially on upper floors of buildings.  Many 
people do not recognize it as an earthquake.  Standing motor cars may rock 
slightly.  Vibration similar to the passing of a truck.  Duration estimated. 

 
IV. Felt indoors by many, outdoors by few during the day.  At night, some awakened.  

Dishes, windows, doors disturbed; walls make creaking sound.  Sensation like 
heavy truck striking building.  Standing motor cars rocked noticeably. 

 
V. Felt by nearly everyone; many awakened.  Some dishes, windows broken.  

Unstable objects overturned.  Pendulum clocks may stop. 
 
VI. Felt by all; frightened and run outdoors.  Some heavy furniture moved; a few 

instances of fallen plaster.  Damage slight. 
 
VII. Damage negligible in buildings of good design and construction; slight to 

moderate in well-built ordinary structures; considerable in poorly built or badly 
designed structures; some chimneys broken. 

 
VIII. Damage slight in specially designed structures; considerable in ordinary 

substantial buildings with partial collapse.  Damage great in poorly built 
structures.  Fall of chimneys, factory stacks, columns, monuments, walls.  Heavy 
furniture overturned.   

 
IX. Damage considerable in specially designed structures; well designed frame 

structures thrown out of plumb.  Damage great in substantial buildings with 
partial collapse.  Buildings shifted off foundations. 

 
X. Some well-built wooden structures destroyed; most masonry and frame 

structures destroyed with foundations.  Rails bent. 
 
XI. Few, if any (masonry) structures remain standing.  Bridges destroyed. 
 
XII. Damage total.  Lines of sight and level distorted.  Objects thrown into the air. 
 

 

 

SEVERE LOCAL STORM 

 
The Beaufort Wind Scale is a scale classifying wind strength in terms of 
observable effects both on sea and over land. 

 
 

BEAUFORT 
NUMBER 

 
WIND SPEED 
IN MPH 

EFFECTS OF LAND 

0 Under 1 Calm, smoke rises vertically. 
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1 1-3 Smoke drift indicated wind direction, vanes do no 
move 

2 4-7 Wind felt on face, leaves rustle, vanes begin to move 

3 8-12 Leaves, small twigs in constant motion, light flags 
extended. 

4 13-18 Dust, leaves and loose paper raised up, small 
branches move. 

5 19-24 Small trees begin to sway. 
 

6 25-31 Large branches of trees in motion, whistling heard in 
wires. 

7 32-38 Whole trees in motion, resistance felt in walking 
against wind. 

8 39-46 Twigs and small branches broken off trees. 
 

9 47-54 Slight structural damage occurs, slate blown off or 
roofs. 

10 55-63 Seldom experienced on land, trees broken, structural 
damage occurs. 

11 64-72 Very rarely experienced on land, trees broken, 
structural damage occurs. 

12 73 or greater Violence and destruction 
 

 
 

TORNADO 

 
The Fujita Scale (also known as the Fujita-Pearson Scale) may not be a perfect system 
for linking damage to wind speed, but it had distinct advantages over what had gone on 
before its inception.  And it was simple enough to use in daily practice without involving 
much additional expenditure of time or money.  The entire premise of estimating wind 
speeds from damage to non-engineered structures is very subjective and is difficult to 
defend from various meteorological perspectives. The Fujita Scale rates the intensity of 
the tornado, and measured both the path length and the path width.   
 
 

F-Scale 
Number 

Intensity 
Phase 

Wind  
Speed 

Type of Damage Done 

F0 Gale  
Tornado 

40-72 
mph 

Some damage to chimneys; breaks branches off 
trees; pushes over shallow-rooted trees; 
damages sign boards. 

F1 Moderate 
Tornado 

73- 
112 
mph 

The lower limit is the beginning of hurricane wind 
speed; peels surface off roofs; mobile homes 
pushed off foundations or overturned; moving 
autos pushed off the roads; attached garages 
may be destroyed. 

F2 Significant 
Tornado 

113- 
157 

Considerable damage.  Roofs torn off frame 
houses; mobile homes demolished; boxcars 
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mph pushed over; large trees snapped or uprooted; 
light object missiles generated. 

F3 Severe 
Tornado 

158- 
206 
mph 

Roof and some walls torn off well constructed 
houses; trains overturned; most trees in forest 
uprooted. 

F4 Devastating 
Tornado 

207- 
260 
mph 

Well-constructed houses leveled; structures with 
weak foundations blown of some distance; cars 
through and large missiles generated. 

F5 Incredible 
Tornado 

261- 
318 
mph 

Strong frame houses lifted off foundations and 
carried considerable distances to disintegrate; 
automobile sized missiles fly through air in 
excess of 100 meters; trees debarked; steel re-
inforced concrete structures badly damaged. 

F6 Inconceivable 
Tornado 

319- 
379 
mph 

These winds are very unlikely.  The small area of 
damage they might produce would probably not 
be recognizable along with the mess produced by 
F4 and F5 wind that would surround the F6 
winds.  Missiles, such as cars and refrigerators 
would do serious secondary damage that could 
not be directly identified as F6 damage.  If this 
level is ever achieved, evidence for it might only 
be found in some manner of ground swirl pattern, 
for it may never be identifiable through 
engineering studies. 
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Appendix E 

 

LIST OF DAMS IN WASCO COUNTY 

 

Name River Height Storage Hazard 
Rating 

Chase 1 Reservoir Larch Creek 14 25 Low 

Crates Point Reservoir Tributary to Columbia River  22 491 Low 

Crow Creek Reservoir South Fork, Mill Creek 113 955 Significant 

Evans Reservoir Dry Fork Three Mile Creek 13 90 Low 

Ketchum Spring Creek 36 140 Low 

Lake Camp Baldwin Eight Mile Creek 23 49 Low 

Wiley 7 Reservoir Tributary to Mosier Creek 28 13 Low 

Dam Information, Oregon Water Resources Department, Salem, Oregon 

 

 

Reported Dam Failures in Oregon 
 

Dam Name County Incident Date Incident Type Dam 
Failure? 

Haskins Creek Dam Yamhill 10/22/1999 Seepage/Piping (Sinkhole) No 

Haskins Creek Dam Yamhill Summer, 1996 Seepage/Piping (Sinkhole) No 

Lacomb Diversion Linn 05/11/1998 Flood Yes 

Fish Lake Dam   Jackson 09/03/1998 Seepage/Piping No 

Little Sandy Unknown 02/09/1996 Slope Instability/Slide No 

Willamette Falls Clackamas 02/07/1996 Flood No 

Frog Lake Dam B Clackamas 05/31/1996 Seepage   No 
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(Oak Grove Project) 

Clearwater No. 2 Douglas 02/05/1996 Landslide (Appurtenant 
Structure) 

No 

Faraday Clackamas 02/03/1996 Gate Failure No 

Ochoco Dam Crook June, 1995 Seepage/Piping No 

Smith River Lbr.Co. Douglas 05/31/2002 Piping No 
National Performance of Dams Program (NPDP).  
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Emergency Alert System Operations Plan 

 

 Introductory Email 

 Columbia Gorge Emergency Alert System 



Wasco County Mail - Fwd: EAS Plan

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=7d850ab937&view=pt&search=inbox&th=137853b4eb7d736b[5/25/2012 11:58:42 AM]

Kathy White <kathyw@co.wasco.or.us>

Fwd: EAS Plan
1 message

Mike Davidson <miked@co.wasco.or.us> Fri, May 25, 2012 at 11:20 AM

To: Kathy White <kathyw@co.wasco.or.us>

Here is the other one.  Sue may have forwarded this on to Eric already.

Mike

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: Mike Davidson <miked@co.wasco.or.us>

Date: Fri, May 4, 2012 at 9:10 AM

Subject: EAS Plan

To: Sue Stephens <sues@co.wasco.or.us>

Sue, 

Attached is the Columbia Gorge Operational Area Emergency Alert System (EAS) Operations Plan.  This plan is

a component of the upcoming Emergency Notification System that we will be building out next fiscal year.  We are

in partnership with Hood River, Sherman and Gilliam Counties for this part of the system.  The Emergency Managers of the

four counties are putting this plan in front of their Commissions and County Courts for approval now so it is in place when we

initiate the system.

Once this has been reviewed I would like to schedule a presentation to the BOC about the entire system.  Give me a call if

there are any questions.

I have attached the signature page in word format if it requires changes.

Thanks,

-- 

Michael L. Davidson, Emergency Manager

Wasco County Sheriff's Office

(541) 506-2790

-- 

Michael L. Davidson, Emergency Manager

Wasco County Sheriff's Office

(541) 506-2790

2 attachments

CG EAS Draft.update 05032012.pdf

510K

Wasco Signature Page.docx

11K

mailto:miked@co.wasco.or.us
mailto:sues@co.wasco.or.us
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=7d850ab937&view=att&th=137853b4eb7d736b&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=f_h1tfmhmy0&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=7d850ab937&view=att&th=137853b4eb7d736b&attid=0.2&disp=attd&realattid=f_h1tfw6iv1&safe=1&zw
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Columbia Gorge Operational Area 

Emergency Alert System (EAS) Operations Plan 
 
 
Purpose and Scope: 
 
There is established, upon adoption of this plan, the Columbia Gorge Operational 
Area.  The purpose for the establishment of the Operational Area is to implement 
the provisions of the EAS Operations Plan and to ensure the continued 
functionality and viability of a regional EAS messaging system.  
 
The Columbia Gorge Operational Area covers the four county area of Wasco, 
Hood River, Sherman and Gilliam Counties.  It will utilize local radio stations in 
Hood River, Oregon, The Dalles Oregon, and Goldendale Washington for EAS 
messaging services.  
 
Governance: 
 
There is established the Columbia Gorge Operational Area EAS Committee 
consisting of representatives of: 
 
County Emergency Management Agencies 
County’s Sheriff’s Office’s  
Dispatch Centers 
Primary broadcast stations 
Other members as determined by the Committee 
 
Committee members shall identify the structure and responsibilities of the 
Committee including the positions of Chair, Co-Chair and Secretary and the 
method by which those positions are established.  Members shall also establish a 
schedule of meetings for plan review and update, activation, evaluation and 
testing of the EAS.    
 
Basic responsibilities of the Columbia Gorge Operational Area EAS Committee are: 
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1. Develop and maintain the Columbia Gorge Operational Area EAS 
Operations Plan; 

2. Development and maintenance of necessary Memorandums of 
Understanding and/or Intergovernmental Agreements to ensure the 
viability of the Columbia Gorge Operational Area EAS Plan; 

3. Develop a schedule for conducting monthly tests of the EAS system (refer 
to Appendix C, Testing, for criteria);  

4. Submission of the Columbia Gorge Operational Area EAS Operations Plan to 
the appropriate group at the State level for inclusion in the Statewide EAS 
Plan; 

5. Review of any EAS activation request made by an EAS Operational Plan 
certified agency (See Appendix C); 

6. Conduct a minimum of one meeting annually to review the Columbia Gorge 
Operational Area EAS Operations Plan and develop and implement 
necessary updates or changes (Meetings can be in the format deemed 
appropriate by the Chairperson). 

 
Primary Broadcast Station: 
 
The primary broadcast station for the Columbia Gorge Operational Area is: 
 
KACI operated by Bi-Coastal Media 
719 E. 2nd St. 
The Dalles, OR 97058 
Contact Number: 541-296-2211 
 
Appendix “A” contains the primary station agreement. Appendix “B” tables the 
frequencies available for monitoring throughout the operational area.  
 
Monitoring Assignments: 
 
The monitoring assignments are listed in Tab 4 of the Oregon State Plan.  All 
broadcast stations and cable systems are listed. Any conflicts over monitoring 
assignments should be brought to the attention of either the Columbia Gorge 
Operational Area EAS Committee chairperson or the State Emergency 
Communication Commission chairperson for correction.  
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Public Safety Primary Input Source:  
 
The Public Safety Input Source for the public safety sector to initiate an 
Emergency Alert Message in the Columbia Gorge Operational Area is:  
 
Wasco County Communications Center 
419 E. 7th St. 
The Dalles, OR 97058 
541-296-5454 (24/7) 
  
Appendix “C” outlines the public safety primary source activation criteria, 
security, training and testing methods and the certified agencies authorized to 
use the system.  Appendix D provides activation procedures for use by dispatch 
centers and Appendix E is an Activation Request Checklist. 
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Appendix A 
 

Local Primary Station Agreement 
 
KACI is the Primary Station for the Columbia Gorge Operational Area broadcast 
community. KACI will monitor the following sources: 
 

1. The OPB translator for federal and state emergencies. 
2. The NOAA National Weather Service radio for all weather related 

emergencies. 
3. The Wasco County EAS encoder transmitting on VHF frequency of 166.2500 

for emergency messages originating in the Columbia Gorge Operational 
Area. 

 
KACI has agreed to forward the following event codes: 

 
A. CEM, Civil Emergencies 
B. EVI, Immediate Evacuation 
C. TOA, 911 outage 
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Appendix B 
 

Monitoring Frequencies 
 

Community Frequency Relayed by 
Wasco County 166.2500 Mhz  KACI FM 97. 7   

Hood River County 166.2500 Mhz KACI FM 97.7   
Sherman County 166.2500 Mhz KACI FM 97.7   

Gilliam County 166.2500 Mhz KACI FM 97.7   
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Appendix C 
 

Primary Public Safety Input Source 
 
Primary input sources: 
 
The activation point to launch EAS messages for the Columbia Gorge Operational 
Area is the Wasco County Dispatch Center.  The Wasco County Dispatch Center 
has an EAS encoder through which emergency alert messages can be broadcast 
and relayed via primary radio stations to cover the four county area.  Any agency 
in the four counties listed in the certification section of this plan can request EAS 
activation.  
 
Criteria: 
 
All requests for activation from an emergency services system certified agency are 
first screened based on the following criteria: 
 

1. The event has to be one listed on the table below: 
 

Event Code 

Civil Emergencies CEM 
Immediate Evacuation Request EVI 

911 Outage Alert TOA 

 
2. The event needs to be of an immediate danger to the life, health, or 

property of the local citizenry. 
 

3. The event must be of a nature that the broadcast of the message will result 
in significant results. 

 
Security: 
 
EAS activation must be requested by an authorized command level supervisor 
from a certified agency (as identified on page 9) or by the County Emergency 
Manager.  All EAS activations must be requested through the agencies primary 
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911 dispatch center and relayed (if applicable) to the Wasco County Dispatch 
Center.   It is assumed that the 911 supervisors and/or dispatchers are familiar 
with the person making the request. This procedure is intended to provide 
security against false activations. 
 
Activations: 
 
Any time the EAS system is activated for any event in any community within the 
Operational Area the message is transmitted on all media outlets in the area.  
 
The Law Enforcement Data System (LEDS) will be used to disseminate additional 
information on the activation to all the Public Safety Answer Points (PSAP’s) 
within the Operational Area so PSAP’s can respond to citizens calling 911 in any 
community with information on the activation.  
 
The Emergency Manager of the county requesting EAS activation will be notified 
of the event and will initiate procedures to inform the news media of the nature 
of the emergency.  
 
Training: 
 
The Primary Public Safety Input source for the Operational Area shall designate 
only properly trained personnel to operate EAS equipment.  Those personnel 
must be familiar with how the EAS system works and must have performed 
testing with the system to confirm their abilities.  
 
Testing: 
 
Testing of the system is performed through three different methods: 
 

1. The system is tested weekly by performing the “random weekly test” 
option in the EAS encoders to insure equipment readiness. These tests 
originate from the Wasco County EAS encoder located within the Dispatch 
Center.  The primary broadcasters, via e-mail should post the results of 
those tests for each week. In this manner any technical difficulties can be 
reported and corrected.  
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2. Monthly testing is done in two parts. The Oregon State relay network is 
tested by issuing a statewide monthly test during the months of February, 
April, June, August, October and December. The local emergency 
communications committee should meet on an annual basis and develop a 
schedule of Monthly tests that are agreeable to all people in the public 
safety and broadcast communities. The state plan requires that the 
monthly tests occur during the first Monday through Sunday week of the 
month. If that test fails the state plan provides for a make-up test to occur 
six days later. The state emergency communications committee will post a 
schedule of the dates and times of the statewide tests and coordinated 
dates and times for local testing. These dates and times do not necessarily 
need to be coordinated but serve as resource. Results of all monthly testing 
results are posted on the sbe-or@broadcast.net bulletin board for all to 
share.  

 
3. Once a schedule of monthly tests is generated and distributed to the local 

media outlets, they should be distributed to the broadcaster’s traffic 
schedulers. It is the desire to delay the airing of monthly testing 
announcements so that they fall within a natural break of programming 
rather than interrupt programming. 
 

4. On an unscheduled basis the primary public safety input source can 
perform a “Demonstration Only” test with the primary station to ensure 
equipment readiness and provide training for those that are designated to 
activate the system. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:sbe-or@broadcast.net


 
9 

 

Certification: 
 
Agencies must be certified to the criteria and the methods used to activate the 
EAS system in the Operational Area before requesting EAS alerts.  Agencies 
certified by the Emergency Managers in the Columbia Gorge Operational Area are 
listed on the following tables: 
 

Wasco County 
 

Agency: Wasco County Sheriff Agency: The Dalles Police 
Supervisor: Rick Eiesland Supervisor: Jay Waterbury 

Authorized Personnel: 
Chief Deputy 
Sergeants 
 

Authorized Personnel: 
Captain 
Sergeants 

Agency: Wasco County Emergency 
Management 

Agency: Mid-Columbia Fire & Rescue 
 

Supervisor: Mike Davidson Supervisor: Bob Palmer 
Authorized Personnel: 
Emergency Manager 

Authorized Personnel: 
Division Chiefs 
Shift Commanders 

Agency:  Wasco County Dispatch  
Supervisor: Jeanne Pesicka  

Authorized Personnel: 
911 Manager 
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Hood River County 
 

Agency: Hood River County SO Agency: Hood River County 911 

Supervisor:  Sheriff Supervisor: Marita Haddan 
Authorized Personnel: 
Chief Deputy 
Sergeants 
 

Authorized Personnel: 
9-1-1 Commander 

Agency: Hood River County DEM 

Supervisor: HRC DEM  
Authorized Personnel: 
EM Director 

 

 

 
Gilliam County 

 

Agency: Gilliam County Sheriff’s 
Office 

Agency: Gilliam County Emergency 
Management 

Supervisor:  Sheriff  Supervisor:  Sheriff 

Authorized Personnel: 
Sheriff 
Sergeant 
 
 
 

Authorized Personnel: 
Emergency Management Coordinator 

 
 

Sherman County 
 

Agency:  Sherman County Sheriff Agency:  Sherman County Emergency 
Management 

Supervisor:  Sheriff Lohrey Supervisor:  Shawn Payne 

Authorized Personnel: 
Sergeant 

Authorized Personnel: 
Emergency Manager 
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Review: 
 
Any time an EAS alert request is activated a review of the activation will be 
conducted by the Columbia Gorge Operational Area EAS Committee.  The 
Committee shall evaluate if the request met the activation criteria and if proper 
procedures were followed to request the activation.  The Committee will also 
evaluate the effectiveness of the activation to the extent possible (i.e. did the 
activation generate calls to 911, was the time of day appropriate for an activation, 
etc.) If the activation failed, the reason for the failure will be documented and 
appropriate corrective actions will be identified.  Corrective actions to ensure the 
availability and viability of the EAS system must be initiated without delay.   
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Appendix D 
 

COLUMBIA GORGE OPERATIONS PLAN EAS MESSAGE PROCESSING 

PROCEDURES 
 

1. Requests for EAS activation can only be made by certified agency personnel 
2. Requests for EAS activation must be made through the requesting agencies 

primary 911 Dispatch Center 
3. Requests for EAS activation must be consistent with the authorized 

messages: 

Criteria: 
All requests for activation from an emergency services system certified agency are first 
screened based on the following criteria: 
The event has to be one listed on the table below: 

Event Code 

Civil Emergencies CEM 

Immediate Evacuation Request EVI 

911 Outage Alert TOA 

The event needs to be of an immediate danger to the life, health, or property of the 
local citizenry. 
The event must be of a nature that the broadcast of the message will result in significant 
results. 

 
4. Upon receipt of an EAS message request 911 personnel will complete the 

Columbia Gorge Operations Plan EAS Activation Request Checklist 
5. Wasco County Dispatch Center will serve at the primary Public Safety Input 

Source for all EAS message requests 
6. When completed, the Columbia Gorge Operations Plan EAS Activation 

Request Checklist will be forwarded to Wasco County Dispatch Center via 
Fax or e-mail (if available) or by other methods if Fax and e-mail are 
unavailable 

7. Prior to the transmission of the EAS Activation Request Checklist the 
requesting center will notify Wasco County Dispatch at 541-296-5454 of the 
pending transmission of the request 

8. If practical, Wasco County Dispatch will contact the requesting agency to 
verify the validity, and acknowledge receipt of, the EAS message request  
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9. Following the transmission of the EAS Activation Request Checklist the 
transmitting Dispatch Center will send a LEDS AM message to all other 
Dispatch Centers in the Operational Area explaining the purpose and scope 
of the alert (Note: EAS messages are transmitted all broadcast stations in 
the Operational Area) and notify the County Emergency Manager of the 
request 
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Appendix E 
 

COLUMBIA GORGE OPERATIONS PLAN EAS ACTIVATION REQUEST CHECKLIST 
 

Requesting County: 
 

____Wasco 
____Hood River 
____Sherman 
____Gilliam 
____Other (Specify) _____________________ 

 

Requesting Person:  
Requesting Agency: 

Date: 
Time (Military Time): 

   
Request Type: 
 
 ____CEM (Civil Emergencies) 
 ____EVI   (Immediate Evacuation Request) 
 ____TOA (911 Outage Alert)  
 
 

Message 
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____Message transmitted to Wasco County Dispatch Center (if applicable) 
 
 Transmittal method: 
 ____Fax (541-298-1913) 
 ____E-Mail (911@co.wasco.or.us) 
 ____Telephone (541-296-5454) 
 
____ Acknowledgement of Receipt of Message Received  
 
____LEDS notification sent to Operational Area Dispatch Centers 
 
 

Primary Public Safety Input Source Use Only (Wasco County) 
 

To be completed for EAS message requests from counties other than Wasco 
 

EAS Request Received From: 
Date: 

Time: 

Verified/Acknowledged (method):  
EAS Message Transmitted: 

Date: 
Time: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
16 

 

Appendix F 
 

SCHEMATIC OF RADIO BASED EAS ALERT SYSTEM 
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Signature Page 
 

Signatories of this document acknowledge and agree to the provisions of the 
Columbia Gorge Operational Area EAS Plan as those provisions apply to the 
signers’ agency or area of responsibility.  
 

Wasco County Board of Commissioners 
 

 
________________________    
Rod L. Runyon, Chair, Commission Chair 
 
 
________________________ 
Sherry Holliday, County Commissioner 
 
 
 
______________________________    
Scott C. Hege, County Commissioner 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Eric J. Nisley, Wasco County District Attorney 
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2012 Transportation Improvement Schedule 

 

 Schedule 



Recommended: June 6, 2012 
Adopted: June 6, 2012 

WASCO COUNTY 
PUBLIC WORKS 

2012 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT SCHEDULE 

The Wasco County Public Works makes the following recommendation for 
major road projects for the period of 2012 through 2014: 

ROAD ROAD NAME (DESCRIBED SECTION) CONSTRUCTION TYPE 
NO./SEC 

Rural Major Collectors (RC) 

12.1 Wamic Mkt. (Tygh Valley to Top of Grade) 
413.2 State Rd (Mosier Creek bridge to MP 1.23) 
507.1 Sevenmile Hill (Chenowith Creek to MP 0.73) 
507.2 Seven mile Hill (Harvey pit to 1981 Job) 
18.1 Fifteenmile Rd (Lower 8 Mile to Company Hollow) 

Phased Reconstruction 
Heavy Maint I Overlay 
Reconstruction 
Heavy Maint I Overlay 
Heavy Maint I Overlay 

Rural Minor Collectors (RK) 

151.3 Skyline Rd (Olney to MP 0.86) Heavy Maint I Overlay 
151.4 Skyline Rd (MP 0.86 to End of pvmt.) Heavy Maint I Overlay 
402.1 Carroll Rd (Dry Creek to MP 1.37) Reconstruction 
181 Eightmile Rd (US 197 to Pine Hollow Rd) Reconstruction 
147.1 Pleasant Ridge {3 Mile to Grindings) Reconstruction 
147.2 Pleasant Ridge (Grindings to Dolan Rd) Reconstruction 
147.3 * Pleasant Ridge (Dolan Rd to 5 Mile Rd) Reconstruction 
147.4 *Pleasant Ridge (5 Mile to horse ranch) Grindings I Chip Seal 
509.1 *Upper Mill Creek (End of pvmt. to bus stop) Heavy Maint I Drainage 
161.4 Threemile Rd (Dry Hollow to Grindings) Correction Overlay 

2705 EAST 2ND STREET 
THE DALLES, OR 97058-4097 

LENGTH 

0.65 
0.85 
0.73 
1.10 
5.82 

0.34 
2.86 
1.37 
3.86 
1.47 
1.50 
1.48 
1.71 
1.96 
1.67 

541-506-2640 
FAX-506-2641 

PRIOR. 

1190 44.15 
800 21.19 
715 16.56 
715 7.57 
210 5.22 

1000 9.96 
220 25.28 
300 14.72 
290 10.58 
210 7.76 
75 0.58 
50 4.98 
30 5.09 
55 7.16 
155 6.70 

161.5 Threemile Rd (Grindings to Dutch Flat) Reconstruction (Forest Hwy) 7.52 70 2.90 
407.1 *Hood River Rd (End of pvmt. to Proctor Rd) Heavy Maint I Widen 0.53 50 4.34 
414.1 *Vensel Rd (Digger Rd to Resort) Heavy Maint I Paving 0.54 125 3.99 

Rural Local Access (RL) 

511.4 *Chenowith Creek (End of pvmt. to Unimproved) Heavy Maint I Curves 1.43 45 5.44 
515 Knob Hill (Cherry Hts. to MP 0.83) Heavy Maint I Overlay 0.83 170 4.57 
167 *Winslow Rd (Rail Hollow to 2004 job) Heavy Maint I Drainage 4.30 40 2.50 
406.1 *Godberson Rd (Steep grade off of Wilson Rd) Heavy Maint 0.25 30 0.97 

*Gravel Road 

(All Wasco County Capital Improvement Projects currently face financial constraints.) 

(This proposed list of potential road improvement projects are in no particular order and can only be accomplished if adequate funding 
becomes available.) 
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Staffing Transition Plan 
Commission on Children & Families 

Urgent Context 

• Special Projects Coordinator is transitioning out of the office by mid-month for 
regular hours and completely by July 1. 

• Office Specialist II is pregnant and due to deliver at the end of this month 

Recommendation 

Commission on Children & Families slated to be unfunded by the state for next 
biennium; utilize existing framework. 

• Leave Special Projects Coordinator position vacant 
• Administrator to take on additional tasks 
• Transfer of some responsibilities to Office Specialist II 
• Hire temporary Office Specialist I to provide general support 
• Contract special projects as needed. 

Attached: 

• Overview of fiscal impact. 

Wasco County 
Board of County Commissioners Meeting 

June 6, 2012 



Overview of CCF Transition Plan 

2011·2012 Classification 11·12 Budget Additional expenses Total 
Special Projects Coordinator L $ 18,799.64 $ 3,270.53 $ 22,070.17 
Office Specialist II F $ 14,057.48 $ 2,449.04 $ 16,506.52 

TOTAL $ 38,576.69 

2012·2013 Budgeted Classification 11·12 Budget Additional expenses Total 
Special Projects Coordinator L $ 20,044.32 $ 3,486.15 $ 23,530.47 
Office Specialist II F $ 14,982.19 $ 2,609.07 $ 17,591.26 

TOTAL $ 41 ,121.73 

2012·2013 Revised Proposal Classification 11·12 Budget Additional expenses Total 
Office Specialist II F $ 14,982.00 $ 2,609.07 $ 17,591.07 
Office Specialist I D $ 12,300.00 $ 2,091.00 $ 14,391.00 

TOTAL $ 31,982.07 

I Contracts: as needed I $ 9,139.66 I 



FORM LB-1 NOTICE OF BUDGET HEARING 

A public meeting of the Wasco County Board of Commissioners, Governing Body of the Wasco County 4-H & Extension Service District, will be held on June 6, 2012 at ll:OOam at the 
Wasco County Courthouse, Courtroom 202, 511 Washington Street, The Dalles, Oregon. The purpose of t his meeting is to discuss t he budget fo r t he fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 as 
approved by the Wasco County 4-H & Extension Service District Budget Committee. A summary of the budget is presented below. A copy of t he budget may be inspected or obtained at 
the Wasco County Extension Office, 400 E. Scenic Dr., Ste. 2.278, The Dalles, OR, between t he hours of 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. This budget is for an annual period. This budget was prepared on 
a basis of accounting that is consistent with the basis of accounting used the preceding year. 

Contact: Brian Tuck, Budget Officer Telephone: 541-296-5494 Email : brian.tuck@oregonstate.edu 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY- RESOURCES 
TOTAL OF ALL FUNDS Actual Amount Adopted Budget Approved Budget 

2010-11 This Year 2011-12 Next Year 2012-13 I 
Beginning Fund Balance/Net Working Capital 351 ,537 460,230 512,173. 
Fees, Licenses, Permits, Fines, Assessments & Other Service Charges 1,041 0 

All Other Resources Except Property Taxes 1,617 2,300 2,000 
Property Taxes Estimated to be Received 414,651 411,597 425,929 

Total Resources 768,847 874,127 940,1 02 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY - REQUIREMENTS BY OBJECT CLASSIFICATION 

Materials and Services 330,502 377,497 361 ,761 
Contingencies 0 9,100 15,000 
Special Payments 0 0 24,124 
Unappropriated Ending Balance and Reserved for Future Expenditure 438,345 487,530 539,217 

Total Requirements 768,847 874,1 27 940,102 
--- - -- -- - -

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES 
Rate or Amount Imposed Rate or Amount Imposed Rate or Amount A roved 

Permanent Rate Levy (rate limit $.25 per $1 ,000) .25 per $1,000 .25 per $1,000 .25 per $1 ,000 

STATEMENT OF INDEBTEDNESS 
LONG TERM DEBT Estimated Debt Outstanding Estimated Debt Authorized, But 

on July 1. Not Incurred on July 1 
Total 

~ 
$0 $0 

http://extension.oregonstate.edu/wasco/ 



FORM 
LB-20 

Historical Data 
Actual 

Second Preceding 
Year 2009-2010 

First Preceding 
Year 2010-2011 

Adopted Budget 
This Year 

2011-2012 

RESOURCES 

(Fund) 

RESOURCE DESCRIPTION 

Wasco County 4-H & Extension Service District 
(Name of Municipal Corporation) 

Budget for Next Year 2012-13 

Proposed By 
Budget Officer 

Approved By 
Budget Committee 

Adopted By 
Goveming Body 

232,820.00 I 460,230.00 $512,173.00 $512, 173.00 

:::::::::l::: :::::::::::::::::::::~::::::::::::::f:::::::::::::;:;:;:;:~:::::~::: :::::::::l:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::,:::::::::::::::::::::::::::~:::~:77~:::::::::::::::::::: ::::: : ::::::::::::1::::::::~::::::~:::::::~:::~:~::::::::,:::::::::~:::::::::::.::: :~::~:~::::::::j:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::r~:::::: 
3!:>1,!:>37.00 1. Available cash on hand" (cash basis) or 

2 2. Net working capital (accrual basis) 2 

3 10,861.00 I 15,891.04 5,000.00 3. Previously levied taxes estimated to be received $5,000.00 $5,000.00 3 

4 704.00 I 1,617.13 2,300.00 4. Interest $2,000.00 $2,000.00 4 

5 5. Transferred IN. from other funds 5 

6 6 OTHER RESOURCES 6 

71 1.00 I 1,041.42 0.00 17 Misc. Receipts $0.00 $0.00 7 

8 8 8 

9 9 9 

10 10 10 - -
11 11 11 - -
12 12 12 - -
13 13 13 - -
14 14 14 - -
15 15 15 

16 16 16 -
17 17 17 -
18 18 16 -
19 19 19 

20 20 20 

21 21 21 

22 22 22 -
23 23 23 

24 24 24 -
25 25 25 

26 26 26 -
27 27 27 -
28 28 28 

291 244,386.00 I 370,086.59 I 467,530.00 129. Total resources. except taxes to be levied $519,173.00 $519,173.00 $0.00 29 

301:;:;:;:;}:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:1;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;1 406,597.00 130. Taxes estimated to be received $420,929.00 $420,929.00 30 
311 382,133.00 I 398,760.09 J::::;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;::l31. Taxes collected in year levied :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::l:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::t:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: 31 

321 626,519.00 I 768,846.68 I 874,127.00 132. TOTAL RESOURCES $940,102.00 $940,102.00 $0.00 32 

"Includes ending balance from prior year 

Page __ _ 



REQUIREMENTS SUMMARY 
FORM 
LB-30 

BY FUND, ORGANIZATIONAL UNIT OR PROGRAM 

Wasco County 4-H & Extension Service District 
(name of organizational unit- fund) 

Historical Data 
Actual 

Second Preceding I First Preceding 
Year 2009-2010 Year 2010-2011 

Adopted Budget 

This Year 
2011-2012 

:;:::::::t::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: 

2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 0 0 0 
:::::::: :~::: :::::::::::::::::::: ::::::::: ::::::::::::: :: : :::::: ::::::::::::::::: :::::: :::::::::::::::::::;:;::::: :::::: ::::::=:=:::: 

8 276,200 327,600 372,697 
9 2,650 2,700 3,000 

10 0 0 1,000 
11 88 0 250 
12 0 0 250 
13 252 202 300 
14 

12 279,1 90 I 330,502 I 377,497 

REQUIREMENTS DESCRIPTION 

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 

8 OR State University 

9 Audit 

10 Legal Fees 
11 Legal Notice Publication Costs 

12 Insurance 

13 Govt. Ethics Committee Assessment 

14 Rent 

14 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES 
;:;:;:;:};:::::::::::::;:;:;:::::::::::;:;:::;:;:;:;:::::::;:;:;:::;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:;:::::::::::::::::77::::::"87:::::::1 CAPITAL OUTLAY 

151 I I 115 
161 I I 116 
171 I I 117 
181 I I 118 
191 I I 119 
201 I I 120 

21 0 0 0 21 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 
;:;:::::::J::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::I TRANSFERRED TO OTHER FUNDS 

221 I I 122 
231 I I 123 TOTAL TRANSFERS 

241 0 I 0 I 9,100 124 Operating Contingency 
261 I 0 I 467,530 126 ReseNed for Future Expenditures 
261 351 ,537 I 436,873 j:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::l26 Ending balance (prior years) 
27~::::=:::::::::::::::::::::: :::::::::::::1:::::::: :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: 1 20,000 127 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE 

281 630,727 I 767,375 874,127 28 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 
~rso-=-5-o4-=-o3-0\Rev 2/12) 

Budget For Next Year 2012-2013 

Proprosed By 
Budget Officer 

Approved By 
Budget Committee 

Adopted By 
Governing Body 

:;:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::1::::::::: 

2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

0 0 0 7 

:::=:::::::::::=:::::=:::::::::::::::::=:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::;:;:;:;:;:::::::::;:;:::;:;:::;:;:;:t·:·:·:·: 
356,961 356,961 8 

3,000 3,000 9 
1,000 1,000 10 
250 250 11 
250 250 12 
300 300 

24,124 24,124 I I 13 

385,885 385,885 I 0 I 14 
;:::::;:;:;:;::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::1:=::::::: 

15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 

0 0 0 21 
:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::1::::::::: 

22 
23 

15,000 15,000 0 25 
519,217 519,217 26 

::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::1:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::1:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::1 26 
20,000 I 20,000 I I 27 

940,1 02 940,102 0 28 

Page __ _ 



Changes to WCLEA Agreement 

• Article 13-Vacations 

o 13.1 Vaca tion Accrual schedule changes 

• Article 15 -Other Leaves of Absence 

o 15.1 Compassionate Leave amended to include mother-in-law, father- in-law, and 

grandchildren 

• Appendix A- Sheriff's Department Pay Plan 

o COLA adjustment changed from 3.5% to 1.5% effective July 1, 2012 and July 1, 2013. 
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